
Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 

Business Committee Conference Room-2nd Floor Norbert Hill Center 

February 19, 2020 

9:00 a.m.  

I. Call to Order and Approval of the Agenda

II. Minutes to be Approved

1. February 5, 2020 LOC Meeting Minutes (pg. 2)

III. Current Business

1. Indian Preference in Contracting Law Amendments (pg. 5)

2. Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management Amendments (pg. 66)

3. Curfew Law Amendments (pg. 139)

4. Domestic Animals Law Amendments (pg. 154)
5. Tobacco Emergency Amendments (pg. 184)

6. Petition: N. Dallas – Make a Funeral Home and Petition: N. Dallas - Hold on 
Building (pg. 199)

IV. New Submissions

1. Petition: M. Debraska – Increase General Tribal Council Meeting Stipend (pg. 204)
2. Boards, Committees and Commissions Law Emergency Amendments (pg. 205)

V. Additions

VI. Administrative Updates

1. FY 20 First Quarterly LOC Report (pg. 206)

VII. Executive Session

VIII. Recess/Adjourn  

1 of 213

~ 
ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of February 05, 2020 
Page 1 of 3 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Oneida Business Committee Conference Room-2nd Floor Norbert Hill Center 

February 05, 2020 
9:00 a.m. 

Present: Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman King 
Excused: David P. Jordan, Ernest Stevens III 
Others Present: Maureen Perkins, Brandon Wisneski, Clorissa Santiago, Kristen Hooker, Jennifer 
Falck, Rae Skenandore, Jameson Wilson, Leyne Orosco, Lee Cornelius. Present via 

Teleconference: Arthur Elm III, Diane Hill, Michael Coleman.  

I. Call to Order and Approval of the Agenda
Kirby Metoxen called the February 5, 2020, Legislative Operating Committee meeting to
order at 9:00 a.m.

Motion by Jennifer Webster to adopt the agenda with the addition of the Oneida Land
Commission Bylaws Amendments; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried
unanimously.

II. Minutes to be Approved
1. January 15, 2020
Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the January 15, 2020, Legislative Operating
Committee meeting minutes and forward to the Business Committee for consideration;
seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously.

III. Current Business
1. Citations Law (5:46-10:14)

Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the Citation law adoption packet and forward
to the Oneida Business Committee for consideration; seconded by Daniel Guzman
King. Motion carried unanimously.

2. Indian Preference in Contracting Amendments (10:15-14:01)

Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the public comments and the public comment
review memorandum and defer to a work meeting for further consideration; seconded
by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously.

3. Southeastern Wisconsin Oneida Tribal Services (SEOTS) Advisory Board Bylaws
Amendments (14:03-15:59)

Motion by Daniel Guzman King to approve forwarding the amended Southeastern
Wisconsin Oneida Tribal Services Advisory Board bylaws packet to the Oneida
Business Committee for consideration; seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried
unanimously.

IV. New Submissions

2 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

~ 
GDDDOO 

ONEIDA 

r'\. 
OOODDD= 

ONEIDA 



Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of February 5, 2020  
Page 2 of 3

1. Petition: Nancy Dallas – Funeral Home (16:01-16:53)

Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the petition: Nancy Dallas - Make a Funeral Home 
to the active files list; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously.

2. Petition: Nancy Dallas – Hold on Building (16:55-18:31)

Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the petition: Nancy Dallas - Hold on Building to 
the active files list; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously.

3. Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee Bylaws Amendments 
(18:34-20:08)

Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee 
Bylaws Amendments to the active files list; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion 
carried unanimously.

4. Curfew Law Amendments (20:09-22:11)

Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the Curfew Law amendments to the active files list 
for a technical amendment with Jennifer Webster as the sponsor; seconded by 
Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously.

5. Domestic Animals Law Amendments (23:39-24:55)

Motion by Daniel Guzman King to add Domestic Animals amendments to the active 
files list for a technical amendment with Ernest Stevens III as the sponsor; seconded by 
Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously. 

V. Additions
1. Oneida Land Commission Bylaws (25:00-28:26)

Motion by Daniel Guzman King to add the Oneida Land Commission Bylaws 
amendments to the active files list as agreed upon in our joint meeting; seconded by 
Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.

VI. Administrative Items
1. E-poll Results: Sanctions and Penalties for Elected Officials Law – Approve 

Updated Materials and Fiscal Impact Statement Request (28:38-31:27)

Motion by Jennifer Webster to enter into record the e-poll results: Sanctions and 
Penalties for Elected Officials Law – Approve Updated Materials and Fiscal Impact 
Statement Request; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously.

2. E-Poll Results: Sanctions and Penalties for Elected Officials Law – Approve 
Adoption Packet and Forward to Oneida Business Committee. (31:28-33:18) 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to ratify the January 21, 2020, e-poll results into record; 
seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously.

3. E-poll Results: Sanctions and Penalties for Elected Officials Law – Rescind Motion 
Approving Adoption Packet (33:21-35:44)

Motion by Jennifer Webster to enter into the record the January 21, 2020, e-poll results 
for the rescission of the January 21, 2020, LOC motion approving the Sanctions and 
Penalties for elected Officials Law adoption packet and forward to the OBC for 
inclusion on the tentative March 2020 GTC meeting agenda; seconded Daniel Guzman 
King. Motion carried unanimously. 

3 of 213



Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of February 5, 2020  
Page 3 of 3

4. Boards, Committees, and Commissions One-Year Evaluation Report (35:50-

37:00)

Motion by Daniel Guzman King to accept the Boards, Committees, and Commissions
law one-year evaluation report; seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried
unanimously.

VII. Executive Session

VIII. Adjourn
Motion by Jennifer Webster to adjourn at 9:37 a.m.; seconded by Daniel Guzman King.
Motion carried unanimously.

4 of 213



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  
 

 
 

   Legislative Operating Committee 
February 19, 2020 

 

Indian Preference in Contracting Law 
Amendments                   

Submission Date: 4/17/19 Public Meeting: 12/19/19 

LOC Sponsor:   Ernest Stevens III Emergency Enacted: n/a 
 
Summary:  The purpose of the amendments to this Law is to complete an overview of any amendments 

and updates that might be needed for this law. 

 

4/17/19 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the Indian Preference in Contracting law to the active files 
list with a medium priority and Ernest Stevens III as the sponsor; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

5/20/19: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman King, Ernest 
Stevens III, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Travis 
Wallenfang, Paul Stensloff, Jeff House, Cathy Bachhuber. The purpose of this work meeting 
was to discuss why the law was added to the AFL and what portions of the law needed to be 
addressed through amendments. The group identified potential areas for amendments and 
policy considerations for the LOC. Discussed that the notes from the meeting will be compiled 
and the LOC will begin making policy considerations – additional meetings to have further 
discussions of those considerations and the law in general will be scheduled. 

6/5/19: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman 
King, Ernest Stevens III, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose 
of this work meeting was to begin considering potential amendments to the Law – based on the 
discussion and suggestions from the last work meeting. The LOC did not complete an initial 
review of the beginning policy considerations so an additional work meeting will be scheduled 
this week. 

6/6/19: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens III, 
Jennifer Falck, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this work meeting was 
to continue the discussion and consideration of potential amendments to the Law from the June 
6 LOC work session – based on the discussion and suggestions for potential amendments from 
the May 20 LOC work meeting. 

7/25/19: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman King, Ernest 
Stevens III, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Patricia Garvey, Travis 
Wallenfang, Patrick Stensloff. The purpose of this work meeting was to review the law line-
by-line and discuss potential amendments, as well as to review and confirm prior issues the 
LOC decided to support and not support so we can move forward with amendments to this law. 

9/26/19: Work Meeting. Present: Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman King, Ernest Stevens III, Kirby 
Metoxen, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Travis Wallenfang, Patrick Stensloff, Paul 

5 of 213



Page 2 of 2 

Witek, Jameson Wilson. The purpose of this work meeting was for Indian Preference, 
Purchasing, and Community Economic Development Divisions Engineering to educate and 
discuss with the LOC on the internal spreadsheets that are used for scoring, SOPs, and a 
proposed fine schedule. 

10/21/19: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Travis Wallenfang, Paul 
Witek. The purpose of this work meeting was to review the draft of the proposed amendments 
and the fine and penalty resolution with the affected entities.  

10/24/19: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens III, Jennifer Falck, 
Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this work meeting was for the LOC 
to review the draft of the proposed amendments to the law. 

11/6/19 LOC: Motion by Ernest Stevens III to approve the draft and the legislative analysis for the Indian 
Preference in Contracting Law Amendments; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

11/14/19: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Travis Wallenfang, Patrick 
Stensloff. The purpose of this work meeting was to review the updated draft fine and penalty 
resolution and discuss specific fine amounts for each violation. 

11/20/19 LOC: Motion by Ernest Stevens III to approve the public meeting packet and forward the Indian 
Preference in Contracting law amendments to a public meeting on December 19, 2019; 
seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously. 

12/12/19: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Falck, 
Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this work meeting was for the LOC 
to review and discuss the fine and penalty resolution. LOC directed one change be made to the 
resolution. 

12/19/19: Public Meeting Held. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa N. 
Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Lee Cornelius, Jameson Wilson, Rae Skenandore, Crystal Meltz, 
Amy Hacker, Jeffrey House. One (1) person gave oral comments during the public meeting. 

12/30/19: Public Comment Period Closed. Two (2) submissions of written comments were received 
during the public comment period.  

2/5/20 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the public comments and the public comment review 
memorandum and defer to a work meeting for further consideration; seconded by Daniel 
Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously. 

2/5/20: Work Meeting. Present: Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman King, Clorissa N. 
Santiago, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this work meeting was to review and consider the 
public comments that were received during the public meeting and subsequent public comment 
period. The LOC directed some revisions to be made to the draft based on the comments.  

Next Steps: 
 Accept the updated public comment review memorandum, draft, and legislative analysis.
 Approve the Indian Preference in Contracting law amendments fiscal impact statement request

memorandum and forward to the Finance Department requesting a fiscal impact statement be prepared
and submitted to the Legislative Operating Committee by March 4, 2020.

6 of 213



7 of 213

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365 • Oneida, WI 54115-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov 

Legislative Operating Committee (LOC) 

Clarissa N. Santiago, Legislative Reference Office, Staff Attorney CAI; 
February 19, 2020 

" =DODOOO 

ONEIDA 

Indian Preference in Contracting Law Amendments: Public Meeting Comment 

Review 

On December 19, 2019, a public meeting was held regarding the proposed amendments to the 

Indian Preference in Contracting law ("the Law"). The public comment period was then held open 

until December 30, 2019. On February 5, 2020, the Legislative Operating Committee reviewed 

and considered all public comments that were received. 

This memorandum is submitted as the Legislative Operating Committee's review of the oral and 

written comments received within the public meeting and public comment period. 

Comments 1 throuoh 2 - Pur ose of the Law: 

502.1. Purpose and Policy 

502.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this law is to establish an Indian Preference Office and 

increase economic benefits for the Nation and members of the Nation by providing for the 

maximum utilization of Indian workers and businesses on projects of the Nation which occur 

on or near the Reservation. 

Jeffrey S. House (written): Thank you Chairman Jordan and Vice-Chairman Metoxen and 

members of the Legislative Operating Committee for allowing me to comment on the drafted 

amendments to the Indian Preference in Contracting law. I join you today as a representative of 

Oneida ESC group, a tribal corporation that is 100% owned by the Oneida Nation. I would like to 

begin my comments by highlighting the purpose of the law in Section 502.1-1; which is to establish 

an Indian Preference Office and increase economic benefits for the Nation and members of the 

Nation by providing for the maximum utilization oflndian workers and businesses on projects of 

the Nation which occur on or near the Reservation. These two drivers: "Increase economic benefits 

for the Nation" and "maximum utilization of Indian workers and businesses," I believe are the core 

objectives of the law and cannot be over emphasized. 

The Oneida Nation has a greater than $740 million impact on Brown and Outagamie Counties and 

is responsible for more the 5,460 jobs according to a St. Norbert College Study conducted in 2018. 

That equates to $89 million in government revenue, of which $33 .4 million is for state and local 

government. I believe the purpose of the Law is to keep as much of impact on the Oneida Nation 

reservation. 

Jeffrey S. House (oral): Uhh thank you Councilwoman Webster and Chairman Jordan for 

allowing me to provide this testimony. I join you today as a representative of Oneida ESC group, 

a tribal corporation that is one hundred percent ( 100%) owned by the Oneida Nation. 

Page 1 of 24 
A good mind. A good heart . A strong fi re. 



 

Page 2 of 24 

 

 
Thank you Jenny for reading the purpose of the Law, that’s my first, or I would like to give my 
comments by highlighting the purpose of the Law. As you have stated, which is to establish an 
Indian Preference Office and increase economic benefits for the Nation and members of the Nation 
by providing for the maximum utilization of Indian workers and businesses on projects of the 
Nation which occur on or near the Reservation. These two drivers: “Increase economic benefits 
for the Nation” and “maximum utilization of Indian workers and businesses,” I believe are the core 
objectives of the law and cannot be over emphasized. 
 
The Oneida Nation has a greater than seven hundred and forty million dollar ($740,000.000) 
impact on Brown and Outagamie Counties and is responsible for more than five thousand four 
hundred and sixty (5,460) jobs according to a St. Norbert College Study conducted in 2018. That 
equates to eighty-nine million dollars ($89,000,000) in government revenue, of which thirty-three 
point four million ($33,400,000) is for state and local government. I believe the purpose of the 
Law is to keep as much of impact on the Oneida Nation Reservation. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter highlights the purpose of the Law, and provides some statistics on the Nation’s 
economic impact on Brown and Outagamie Counties.  
 
As there are no suggestions being requested, or questions asked by this comment, there is no 
revision to the Law recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined no revision to the Law was necessary based on 
these comments as the commenter is providing background information. 
 

Comment 3 – Jurisdiction of the Nation: 
 
502.1.  Purpose and Policy 
502.1-1.  Purpose.  The purpose of this law is to establish an Indian Preference Office and 
increase economic benefits for the Nation and members of the Nation by providing for the 
maximum utilization of Indian workers and businesses on projects of the Nation which occur 
on or near the Reservation. 
 
502.3.  Definitions 
502.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  
All words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 

(bb) “Reservation” means all the lands within the exterior boundaries of the 
Reservation of the Oneida Nation, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the 
Oneida, 7 Stat. 566, and any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law. 
 

8 of 213



 

Page 3 of 24 

 

502.6.  Application of Indian Preference to Contracts  
502.6-1.  Application of the Law.  Except where prohibited or limited by law or grant funding 
requirements, this law shall apply to all contracts over three thousand dollars ($3,000) that 
meet the requirements of (a) and/or (b) below: 

(a)  This law shall apply to: 
(1)  all contracts, subcontracts, and compliance agreements to which the 
Nation is a party, and all contracts, subcontracts and compliance agreements 
that are entered into on behalf of, or for the benefit of the Nation, whereby 
goods and services are provided on or near the Reservation; and 

 
Eric McLester (written): I am providing written comments in support of the proposed changes 
to the Indian Preference Law. As the Agent for the Oneida Golf Enterprise, I am in full support of 
the purpose of the law which is to increase "economic benefits for the Nation and members of the 
Nation by providing for the maximum utilization of Indian workers and businesses on projects of 
the Nation which occur on or near the Reservation." I would recommend that these economic 
benefits not be limited to just on or near the Reservation, and that wording similar to the "Joint 
Ventures" definition, be included that allows for economic development on a "project-specific 
basis" for projects off Reservation. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter expresses that the Law should apply to projects off and not near the Reservation.  
 
The Law provides that Indian preference shall be applied to all contracts, subcontracts, and 
compliance agreements to which the Nation is a party, or the agreements are entered into on behalf 
of the Nation, whereby goods and services are provided on or near the Reservation. [5 O.C. 502.1-

1, 502.6-1(a)(1)]. The Law defines “Reservation” as all the lands within the exterior boundaries 
of the Reservation of the Oneida Nation, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the Oneida, 
7 Stat. 566, and any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law. [5 O.C. 502.3-1(bb)]. 
 
The definition of Reservation in this Law is consistent with the Constitution and Bylaws of the 
Oneida Nation which provides that the jurisdiction of the Nation extends to the territory within the 
present confines of the Oneida Reservation and to such other lands as may be hereafter added 
thereto within or without said boundary lines under any law of the United States, except as 
otherwise provided by law. [Constitution and Bylaws of the Oneida Nation, Article I]. Simply 
speaking, jurisdiction is the power of a government to affect persons, property, and circumstances 
within its territory. 
 
The application of this Law is specific to projects which occur on or near the Reservation because 
this is the territory where the Nation has jurisdiction, and the Nation only has the authority to affect 
persons, property, and circumstances within its territory.  
 
Since the applicability of this Law is consistent with the territorial jurisdiction of the Nation, there 
is no revision to the Law recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

9 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 4 of 24 

 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined there was no revision to the Law needed based 
on this comment since an explanation on the Nation’s territorial jurisdiction was provided. 
 

Comment 4 – Definition of Joint Venture: 
 
502.3.  Definitions 
502.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  
All words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 

(v)  “Joint venture” means a one-time grouping of two (2) or more entities in a 
business undertaking. 

 
502.5.  Certification of Entities 
502.5-8.  Joint Ventures. All joint ventures seeking certification as an Indian-owned business 
shall submit documentation of the business arrangements of the joint venture in addition to 
the required documentation for certification. 

(a)  Certification for a joint venture shall be issued on a project specific basis. 
 
Eric McLester (written):  The language referring to Joint Ventures speaks to these ventures being 
one-time or short-term partnerships but there are times when long term ventures make good 
business sense. I would recommend language be added that long term joint ventures can be 
considered on a project. specific basis if it is makes good business sense to do so. The Tribe should 
be open to every sound business opportunity and not limit or restrict new ventures.  
 
Response 

 
The commenter discusses the language referring to joint ventures and states that long term joint 
ventures should also be considered in addition to one-time or short-term joint ventures.  
 
The Law provides that joint ventures seeking certification as an Indian-owned business are 
required to submit documentation of the business arrangements of the joint venture in addition to 
the required documentation for certification. [5 O.C. 502.5-8]. Joint ventures are a one (1) time 
grouping of two (2) or more entities in a business undertaking. [5 O.C. 502.3-1(v)]. Joint ventures 
typically occur when two (2) or more parties agree to pool their resources for the purpose of 
accomplishing a specific task or project. The Law then clarifies that certification for a joint venture 
shall be issued on a project specific basis. [5 O.C. 502.5-8(a)]. The Law does not specify any 
requirements as to whether joint ventures are short term business groupings or long-term business 
groupings, instead it is all dependent on the term of the project for which the two (2) entities are 
applying for certification on. 
 
It was the intent of the Legislative Operating Committee that revising the Law to allow for joint 
ventures of Indian-owned business would provide more opportunities for Indian-owned 
businesses. Therefore, there is no revision to the Law recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

10 of 213



 

Page 5 of 24 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that there was no revision to the Law needed 
based on this comment as the Law does not specify any requirements as to the length of joint 
ventures. The Legislative Operating Committee is hopeful that revising the Law to allow for joint 
ventures of Indian-owned business will provide more opportunities for Indian-owned businesses. 
 

Comments 5 through 6 – Support for Definition of Tribal Corporation: 
 
502.3.  Definitions 
502.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  
All words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 

(ee)  “Tribal corporation” means a corporation chartered and/or wholly owned by 
the Nation pursuant to the Constitution and Bylaws of the Oneida Nation.  

 
Jeffrey S. House (written):  Thank you for including the language, “wholly owned,” to the 
definition of Tribal Corporation in Section 502.3-1(ee). Entities such as Oneida ESC Group are 
now defined in the Law other than as an entity with all other non-Oneida and non-Indian businesses 
and companies. 
 
Jeffrey S. House (oral): Thank you for including the language, “wholly owned,” to the definition 
of Tribal Corporation in Section 502.3-1(ee). Entities such as Oneida ESC Group are now defined 
in the Law other than as an entity with all other non-Oneida and non-Indian businesses and 
companies. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter expresses gratitude to the Legislative Operating Committee for expanding the 
definition of Tribal Corporations to include corporations that are wholly owned by the Nation in 
addition to those corporations that are charted by the Nation, as this clarifies that the Oneida ESC 
Group is a Tribal Corporation under the Law. 
 
There is no revision to the Law recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined there was no revision to the Law needed based 
on these comments. The Legislative Operating Committee thanks the commenter for expressing 
his support and gratitude for the revised definition of Tribal corporation. 
 

Comment 7 – Concern with Definition of Tribal Corporation: 
 
502.3.  Definitions 
502.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  
All words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 

(ee)  “Tribal corporation” means a corporation chartered and/or wholly owned by 
the Nation pursuant to the Constitution and Bylaws of the Oneida Nation.  

 

11 of 213



 

Page 6 of 24 

 

Eric McLester (written):  Regarding the Definition of Tribal Corporation, the requirement that 
"a corporation chartered and/or wholly owned by the Nation pursuant to the Constitution and 
Bylaws of the Oneida Nation" is again limiting to a Corporations success. Why would you limit 
any Tribal investment, joint venture, partnership, etc, to only those wholly owned by the Tribe? I 
would recommend the Tribe support any business venture the Tribe has a stake in to be given 
preference.  
 

Response 

 
The commenter provides that the definition of “Tribal corporation” under the Law is limiting the 
success of a Tribal corporation by requiring that a Tribal corporation be wholly owned by the 
Nation. 
 
The Law defines a “Tribal corporation” as a corporation chartered and/or wholly owned by the 
Nation pursuant to the Constitution and Bylaws of the Oneida Nation. [5 O.C. 502.3-1(ee)]. To be 
considered a Tribal corporation, the corporation can be chartered by the Nation, wholly owned by 
the Nation, or both. So even if a corporation is not wholly owned by the Nation, but it was charted 
by the Nation, that would still make it a Tribal corporation.  
 
It is important to remember though that in terms of the application of this Law, a Tribal corporation 
does not automatically receive Indian preference because it was chartered or is wholly owned by 
the Nation. Instead, just like any other business or corporation, the Tribal corporation must still 
meet the criteria to be certified as an Indian-owned business. The Law provides that in order to 
seek certification as an Indian-owned business, the following criteria shall be met by the applicant 
entity: 
 There is Indian financial ownership, control and management of at least fifty-one percent 

(51%) of the entity.  
 Indian financial ownership is established where the Nation, members of the Nation 

and/or other Indians own fifty-one percent (51%) or more of the assets and 
equipment, receive fifty-one percent (51%) or more of distributed net profits, and 
would receive fifty-one percent (51%) or more of the entity’s assets upon 
dissolution. 

 Indian control is established where the Nation, member of the Nation and/or other 
Indian owner(s) maintain a minimum of fifty-one percent (51%) of voting rights or 
other controlling decisional authority. 

 Indian Management is established where an Indian owner(s) is directly involved in 
the entity’s management, this can be shown where at least one (1) Indian owner is 
directly involved in the daily operations of the entity on a full-time basis and in a 
senior-level position; or at least one (1) Indian owner is responsible for the 
oversight of operations, even though the daily operations are conducted by non-
owner employees. 

 The entity can demonstrate financial responsibility, including but not limited to, evidence 
of an adequate line of credit, contributions of sufficient working capital, applicable 
required bonding and insurance, materials and/or equipment necessary to perform 
applicable work. 

12 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 7 of 24 

 

 The entity can provide past and current licensing or certifications, including any penalties, 
or other punitive actions or debarments taken by any licensing body within the past ten 
(10) years. 
[5 O.C. 502.5-1(a)-(c)]. 

 
Therefore, as long as a Tribal corporation can meet the criteria for certification as an Indian-owned 
business provided for in section 502.5-1 of the Law, the Tribal corporation would be eligible for 
Indian preference. There is no revision to the Law recommended based on this comment.  
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that there was no revision to the Law needed 
based on this comment based on the fact that as long as a Tribal corporation can meet the criteria 
for certification as an Indian-owned business provided for in section 502.5-1 of the Law, the Tribal 
corporation would be eligible for Indian preference. 
 

Comments 8 through 9 – Certification Renewal: 
 
502.5.  Certification of Entities 
502.5-5.  Notification Requirements.  A certified entity shall report the following to the Indian 
Preference Office within ten (10) business days of such an occurrence: 

(a)  changes in the ownership or control status of the entity;  
(b)  suspension, revocation, lapse or loss of any licensing, certification, insurance, 
bonding, or credit lines; and/or 
(c)  any other changes that could: 

(1)  affect an entity’s eligibility for certification;  
(2)  affect the financial liability of any entity, contracting party or the Nation; 
and/or  
(3)  alter the status of the qualifications of the entity. 

502.5-6.  Certification Renewal.  Certification is granted on an annual basis and shall lapse 
after one (1) year unless renewed.  

(a)  To apply for a renewal certification, each certified entity shall complete and 
return a renewal application and annual reporting form so that the Indian Preference 
Office may update its records.  
(b)  Annual renewal notices, applications and reporting forms shall be mailed to each 
certified entity at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of an entity’s 
certification; however, the responsibility for renewal is upon the entity.   

 
Jeffrey S. House (written):  In Section 502.5-7 regarding Certification Renewal. I would 
recommend Tribal Corporations be exempt for annual renewals. The previous paragraph, Section 
502.5-5(a) requires that Certified entities shall report change of ownership within 10 days and 
therefore would require re-certification at that point. We see no benefit for Tribal Corporations to 
have to repeatedly re-certify when they are 100% owned by the Oneida Nation and for the Indian 
Preference Office to spend time, energy, and money for a renewal process that is guaranteed. 
 

13 of 213



 

Page 8 of 24 

 

Jeffrey S. House (oral): In Section 502.5-7 regarding Certification Renewal. I would recommend 
Tribal Corporations be exempt for annual renewals. The previous paragraph, Section 502.5-5(a) 
requires that Certified entities shall report change of ownership within ten (10) days and therefore 
would require re-certification at that point. We see no benefit for Tribal Corporations to have to 
repeatedly re-certify when they are one hundred percent (100%) owned by the Oneida Nation and 
for the Indian Preference Office to spend time, energy, and money for a renewal process that is 
guaranteed. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter requests that Tribal Corporations be exempt from the requirement to renew its 
Indian-owned business certification on an annual basis, due to the fact that the Law already 
requires a certified entity to notify the Indian Preference Office of any changes in the ownership 
or control status of the entity. 
 
The certification that an entity is an Indian owned business, and therefore is eligible for Indian 
preference under the Law, is granted on an annual basis. [5 O.C. 502.5-6]. In order to prevent a 
lapse in certification, a certified entity must renew its certification by providing the Indian 
Preference Office a renewal application and annual reporting form. [5 O.C. 502.5-6(a)]. In 
addition to the certification renewal requirements required by the Law, a certified entity is required 
to notify the Indian Preference Office within ten (10) business days of any of the following 
occurrences: 
 changes in the ownership or control status of the entity;  
 suspension, revocation, lapse or loss of any licensing, certification, insurance, bonding, or 

credit lines; and/or 
 any other changes that could: 

 affect an entity’s eligibility for certification;  
 affect the financial liability of any entity, contracting party or the Nation; and/or  
 alter the status of the qualifications of the entity. 
[5 O.C. 502.5-5(a)-(c)]. 

 
Whether to require a Tribal Corporation, or any certified entity, to renew its Indian-owned business 
certification on an annual basis, or simply be required to follow the notification requirements found 
in section 502.5-5 of the Law, is a policy consideration for the Legislative Operating Committee. 
Requiring annual renewals of certification ensures that the Indian Preference Office maintains up 
to date information on the certified entity to ensure that the certified entity continues to meet the 
criteria to be certified as an Indian-owned business. Eliminating the requirement to renew 
certification on an annual basis, and instead relying on the notification requirements of section 
502.5-5 may eliminate some time and effort spent by the Indian Preference Office in processing 
renewal applications and promote greater efficiency. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following determinations: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted. Certification as an Indian-owned business 
shall be renewed on an annual basis by all certified entities, and all certified entities are 
required to follow the notification requirements provided in section 502.5-5 of the Law. 

14 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 9 of 24 

 

2. The Law should be revised so that Tribal Corporations are exempt from the requirement to 
renew certification on an annual basis, due to the fact that the requirements to follow the 
notification requirements of section 502.5-5 should be sufficient to ensure that the Indian 
Preference Office is notified of all relevant events that may occur. If the Legislative 
Operating Committee makes this determination then the following revision is 
recommended: 

502.5-6.  Certification Renewal.  Certification is granted on an annual basis and 
shall lapse after one (1) year unless renewed.  

(a)  To apply for a renewal certification, each certified entity shall complete 
and return a renewal application and annual reporting form so that the 
Indian Preference Office may update its records.  
(b)  Annual renewal notices, applications and reporting forms shall be 
mailed to each certified entity at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration 
of an entity’s certification; however, the responsibility for renewal is upon 
the entity.   
(c)  Exemption for Tribal Corporations.  Tribal corporations shall be exempt 
from the requirement to renew certification on an annual basis. Certification 
for a Tribal corporation is granted until such a time that the Indian 
Preference Office is made aware that there have been changes that may 
affect the certification status of a Tribal corporation in accordance with the 
notification requirements of section 502.5-5.   

(1)  When a Tribal corporation complies with the notification 
requirements of section 502.5-5 the Tribal corporation shall also 
apply for renewal of its certification.,  

(A)  The Indian Preference Office shall provide the Tribal 
corporation with a renewal application and annual reporting 
form.  
(B)  The Tribal corporation shall return the renewal 
application and annual reporting form to the Indian 
Preference Office within  __(X) days. 

3. The Law should be revised to eliminate the requirement to renew certification on an annual 
basis, and instead certification as an Indian-owned business should remain current until the 
Indian Preference Office is noticed that the status of the certified entity has changed in 
accordance with the notification requirements of section 502.5-5 of the Law. If the 
Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination then the following revision is 
recommended: 

502.5-6.  Certification Renewal.  Certification is granted on an annual basis and 
shall lapse after one (1) year unless renewed. until such a time that the Indian 
Preference Office is made aware that there have been changes that may affect the 
certification status of a certified entity in accordance with the notification 
requirements of section 502.5-5. 

(a)  When an entity complies with the notification requirements of section 
502.5-5 the entity shall also To apply for a renewal of its certification.,  

(1)  The Indian Preference Office shall provide the each certified 
entity shall complete and return with a renewal application and 

15 of 213



 

Page 10 of 24 

 

annual reporting form. so that the Indian Preference Office may 
update its records.  
(2)  The certified entity shall return the renewal application and 
annual reporting form to the Indian Preference Office within  __(X) 
days. 

(b)  Annual renewal notices, applications and reporting forms shall be 
mailed to each certified entity at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration 
of an entity’s certification; however, the responsibility for renewal is upon 
the entity.   

 
LOC Consideration 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee determined that the Law should be revised so that Tribal 
corporations are exempt from the requirement to renew certification on an annual basis, due to the 
fact that the requirements to follow the notification requirements of section 502.5-5 should be 
sufficient to ensure that the Indian Preference Office is notified of all relevant events that may 
occur.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee determined that the following revision should be made to 
the Law: 

502.5-6.  Certification Renewal.  Certification is granted on an annual basis and shall lapse 
after one (1) year unless renewed.  

(a)  To apply for a renewal certification, each certified entity shall complete and 
return a renewal application and annual reporting form so that the Indian Preference 
Office may update its records.  
(b)  Annual renewal notices, applications and reporting forms shall be mailed to 
each certified entity at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of an entity’s 
certification; however, the responsibility for renewal is upon the entity.   
(c)  Exemption for Tribal Corporations.  Tribal corporations shall be exempt from 
the requirement to renew certification on an annual basis. Certification for a Tribal 
corporation is granted until such a time that the Indian Preference Office is made 
aware that there have been changes that may affect the certification status of a 
Tribal corporation in accordance with the notification requirements of section 
502.5-5.   

(1)  When a Tribal corporation complies with the notification requirements 
of section 502.5-5 the Tribal corporation shall also apply for renewal of its 
certification.,  

(A)  The Indian Preference Office shall provide the Tribal 
corporation with a renewal application and annual reporting form.  
(B)  The Tribal corporation shall return the renewal application and 
annual reporting form to the Indian Preference Office ten (10) days. 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee made this decision after a discussion on whether a Tribal 
corporation should be required to renew its certification as an Indian-owned business on an annual 
basis. The Legislative Operating Committee discussed the benefits of requiring annual renewal of 
certification, which includes ensuring that the Indian Preference Office maintains the most up to 

16 of 213



 

Page 11 of 24 

 

date information on the Tribal corporation to ensure that it continues to meet the criteria for 
certification. But ultimately the efficiency of relaying on the notification requirements of section 
502.5-5, and saving time and effort by no longer requiring annual certification renewal from Tribal 
corporations, which should be held to a higher standard of expectations for sharing information 
with the Indian Preference Office than other Indian-owned businesses, is what led the Legislative 
Operating Committee to this decision on revising the Law. 
 

Comments 10 through 11 – Joint Ventures: 
 
502.5.  Certification of Entities 
502.5-8.  Joint Ventures. All joint ventures seeking certification as an Indian-owned business 
shall submit documentation of the business arrangements of the joint venture in addition to 
the required documentation for certification. 

(a)  Certification for a joint venture shall be issued on a project specific basis. 
 
Jeffrey S. House (written):  We agree and applaud the Committee for Section 502.5-8 in regards 
in Joint Ventures. We believe allowing joint ventures to be certified as Indian Owned, assuming 
each JV meets the certification criteria, is a good opportunity for tribally owned businesses, 
enterprises, and tribal corporations to increase competitive strength on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Jeffrey S. House (oral): We agree and applaud the Committee for Section 502.5-8 in regards in 
Joint Ventures. We believe allowing joint ventures to be certified as Indian Owned, assuming each 
JV meets the certification criteria, is a good opportunity for tribally owned businesses, enterprises, 
and tribal corporations to increase competitive strength on a case-by-case basis. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter commends the Legislative Operating Committee for revising the Law to allow 
joint ventures of Indian-owned businesses. The Legislative Operating Committee was hopeful that 
this revision to the Law would provide more opportunities for Indian-owned businesses. 
 
There is no revision to the Law recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined there was no revision to the Law needed based 
on these comments. The Legislative Operating Committee thanks the commenter for expressing 
his support for this provision of the Law. 
 

Comments 12 through 14 – Exclusive Utilization of Corporations: 
 
502.3.  Definitions 
502.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  
All words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 

17 of 213



 

Page 12 of 24 

 

(n)  “Enterprise” means any internal operation owned and operated by the Nation 
that generates revenues through its core business functions, including but not limited 
to, Oneida Gaming, Oneida Retail, and Oneida Printing. 
(u) “Internal service” means any service provided for free or at cost for the Nation 
and includes but is not limited to such services as certain types of advocacy or 
representation, mail delivery and pick up, grant writing or assistance, tourism 
initiatives, Human Resource assistance and technical support. 

 
502.6.  Application of Indian Preference to Contracts  
502.6-2.  Non-Applicability of the Law. 

(b)  Internal Services and Enterprises. The application of Indian preference shall be 
superseded in specific situations in accordance with the following: 

(1)  The Nation shall exclusively utilize internal services and enterprises 
whenever an internal service of the Nation or enterprise could or does provide 
the necessary goods and services in the ordinary course of business. 
(2)  If an internal service or enterprise is unable to fulfill some or all of the 
requirements of a contract, then the provisions of this law shall apply to any 
outsourcing conducted by the internal service or enterprise. 

 
Jeffrey S. House (written):  Section 502.6-2(b)(1) states the Nation shall exclusively utilize 
services and enterprises whenever an internal service of the Nation or enterprise could or does 
provide the necessary goods and services in the ordinary course of business. We feel this should 
include Tribal Corporations. At the very least, include the phrase “may include Tribal 
Corporations.” If the purpose of the Oneida Indian Preference in Contracting is maximum 
utilization of Indian businesses, why wouldn’t the Nation include language for Tribal 
corporations? The Nation receives the distribution of profits, the Nation earns the economic benefit 
of a growing company, and more of the economic impact of the Oneida Nation remains within the 
Oneida Nation.  
 
The Indian Preference in Contracting Law initially included Tribal Preference for corporations but 
it was removed with the amendments to the law adopted by OBC Resolution 3-26-13-A. 
 
Jeffrey S. House (oral): Section 502.6-2(b)(1) states the Nation shall exclusively utilize services 
and enterprises whenever an internal service of the Nation or enterprise could or does provide the 
necessary goods and services in the ordinary course of business. We feel this should include Tribal 
Corporations. At the very least, include the phrase “may include Tribal Corporations.” If the 
purpose of the Oneida Indian Preference in Contracting is maximum utilization of Indian 
businesses, why wouldn’t the Nation include language for Tribal corporations? The Nation 
receives the distribution of profits, the Nation earns the economic benefit of a growing company, 
and more of the economic impact of the Oneida Nation remains within the Oneida Nation. The 
Indian Preference in Contracting Law initially included Tribal Preference for corporations but it 
was removed with the amendments to the law adopted by OBC Resolution 03-26-13-A.   
 
Eric McLester (written): Where ever possible and when allowable by contracting rules and laws, 
Tribal Corporations should be given sole source preference so that the businesses are supported, 
and revenue and resources are invested back into Tribal investments, regardless if they are 1% 

18 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 13 of 24 

 

owned or wholly owned businesses. It makes good sense to re-invest and support any business the 
Tribe has a vested interest in seeing succeed. 
 

Response 

 
The commenters state that the Law should require the Nation to exclusively utilize Tribal 
corporations if the Tribal corporation could or does provide the necessary goods and services in 
the ordinary course of business. The first commenter alludes that if the purpose of the Law is to 
maximize the utilization of Indian businesses, then why would the Nation not exclusively utilize 
corporations as it is the Nation that earns an economic benefit from the corporation. The first 
commenter also provides that the Law initially included Tribal preference for corporations but it 
was moved with amendments to the Law adopted in 2013.   
 
Indian preference is required to be applied to all contracts, subcontracts, or compliance agreements 
over three thousand dollars ($3,000), except where prohibited or limited by law or grant funding 
requirements, where the Nation is a party, or the contract is entered into on behalf of, or for the 
benefit of the Nation, whereby goods and services are provided on or near the Reservation. [5 O.C. 

502.6-1].  
 
The Law then goes on to state that Indian preference is not applied in situations where an internal 
service or enterprise of the Nation could or does provide the necessary goods and services in the 
ordinary course of business. [5 O.C. 502.6-2(b)]. In the case where an internal service or enterprise 
of the Nation could or does provide the necessary goods and services in the ordinary course of 
business, the Nation shall exclusively utilize the internal service or enterprise. [5 O.C. 502.6-

2(b)(1)]. But if an internal service or enterprise is unable to fulfill some or all of the requirements 
of a contract, then Indian preference under this Law shall apply to any outsourcing conducted by 
the internal service or enterprise. [5 O.C. 502.6-2(b)(2)]. An internal service is any service 
provided for free or at cost for the Nation and includes but is not limited to such services as 
advocacy or representation, mail delivery and pick up, grant writing or assistance, tourism 
initiatives, Human Resource assistance and technical support. [5 O.C. 502.3-1(u)]. An enterprise 
is any internal operation owned and operated by the Nation that generates revenues through its 
core business functions, including but not limited to, Oneida Gaming, Oneida Retail, and Oneida 
Printing. [5 O.C. 502.3-1(n)].  
 
When discussing the application of Indian preference, it is important to remember that it is 
ultimately the Nation that is a party to the contract and responsible for expending the funds for the 
contract. So even if the Nation receives a portion of the distribution of the profits from a Tribal 
corporation’s business, the Nation still has to expend the funds to pay the initial contract. The 
exclusive utilization of internal services and enterprises when the internal service or enterprise 
could or does provide the necessary goods and services can be attributed to the fact that the internal 
service is providing the good or service for free or at cost for the Nation, and the Nation has direct 
control over the internal service or enterprise as they are both internal operations of the Nation. 
Internal services and enterprises can be distinguished from Tribal corporations based on the fact 
that Tribal corporations are not providing a good or service to the Nation for free or at no cost, and 
the Nation does not have direct control over the actions of the Tribal corporations. 
 

19 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 14 of 24 

 

It is also important to remember that the purpose of the Law is to provide for the maximum 
utilization of Indian workers and businesses on projects of the Nation. [5 O.C. 502.1-1]. It is the 
maximum utilization of Indian workers and businesses, not the exclusive utilization of Indian 
workers and businesses, that this Law aims to provide. The requirement for the exclusive 
utilization of Tribal corporations could potentially block the utilization of any other privately 
owned Indian business from contracting with the Nation where a Tribal corporation could provide 
the good or service. This could also serve as a deterrent for members of the Nation and other 
Indians that might otherwise consider starting or expanding a business in the same areas as a Tribal 
corporation. The goal of the Law is not to simply drive business to corporations of the Nation. The 
use of Indian workers and businesses is maximized in this Law through the application of an Indian 
preference percentage discount that is applied to contract bids that provides the Indian-owned 
business an advantage while still promoting competitive bidding. [5 O.C. 502.6-9, 502.6-10]. 
 
Additionally, although the comment is incorrect in the statement that the Law initially included 
preference for corporations but it was removed with the amendments to the law adopted by the 
Oneida Business Committee through resolution BC-03-27-13-B, it is important to note that sole 
source contracting for Oneida and Indian-owned businesses was a policy that was pursued by the 
Nation nearly ten (10) years ago and was ultimately unsuccessful.  
 
The Oneida Business Committee adopted resolution BC-11-24-10-C titled, “Sole Source 

Contracting for Oneida and Indian-owned Businesses” for the purpose of requiring that except 
where prohibited by law or grant funding requirements, all Tribal departments, programs, and 
entities shall exclusively utilize Oneida businesses first, and then certified Indian-owned 
businesses, unless none were available and qualified to fulfill a contract. An Oneida business was 
defined as a business which is certified by the Indian Preference Department as eligible for 
receiving Indian preference, where such business is majority-owned by the Nation or by one or 
more members of the Nation. This resolution required that where exactly one (1) Oneida business 
is available and qualified to meet contract requirements then the contract shall be sole sourced to 
that business. The resolution also addressed when there were two (2) or more Oneida businesses, 
as well as situations involving Indian-owned businesses when there were no Oneida businesses 
available, and provided reporting requirements for the Oneida Purchasing Department, 
requirements for the negotiation of contracts, and disciplinary procedures for those employees who 
did not follow the policy. 
 
Less than two (2) years later, the Oneida Business Committee took action to rescind resolution 
BC-11-24-10-C through the adoption of resolution BC-05-23-12-B titled, “Rescinding Resolution 

BC-11-24-10-C Regarding Sole Source Contracting for Oneida and Indian-owned Businesses.” 
This resolution highlighted that although resolution BC-11-24-10-C was adopted for the purposes 
of strengthening and supporting the Indian Preference law, reconsideration of the sole source 
requirement was needed for the best interests of the Nation. This resolution provided that although 
the sole source requirement brought needed attention to the bidding process and created a needed 
awareness of businesses owned and operated by members of the Nation, it also brought much 
needed attention to bid results and the ability to obtain market priced bids. Resolution BC-05-23-
12-B concluded with the statement that any positive outcomes of the sole source requirement were 
undermined by long term negative effects of being able to obtain competitive market bidding and 
the bidding process such that rescinding resolution BC-11-24-10-C was a necessary action. 

20 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 15 of 24 

 

 
Since the purpose of this Law is the maximum utilization, not the exclusive utilization, of Indian 
workers and businesses, and the Law purposefully intends not to provide exclusive utilization, or 
sole sourcing, to Oneida or Indian owned businesses based on its prior negative effects on the 
Nation, and in an effort to encourage competitive bidding, there is no revision to the Law 
recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined there was no revision to the Law needed based 
on these comments. The Legislative Operating Committee reiterates that the purpose of this Law 
is the maximum utilization, not the exclusive utilization, of Indian workers and businesses. The 
Law purposefully intends not to provide exclusive utilization, or sole sourcing, to any Oneida or 
Indian owned businesses – which has occurred in the past with negative effects. Instead, the Law 
provides an advantage to Oneida or Indian owned businesses through the Indian preference 

percentage discount that is applied to contract bids, which still encourages competitive bidding to 
occur without sacrificing an Indian preference advantage. 
 

Comments 15 through 16 – Indian Preference References in Federal Law: 
 
Jeffrey S. House (oral): Interestingly, the Office of Native American Programs issued guidance 
for the Native American Housing Assistance and Self-Determination Reauthorization Act, or 
NAHASDA, of 2008 with regards to regulatory changes relating to Indian Preference and tribal 
preference. 
 
A notice issue on July 11, 2013, just three months after the OBC resolution, outlined Indian 
Preference and tribal preference. The guidance, which is now Title 25 of the United States Code, 
Chapter 14 Subchapter II Sec. 450e (2) - Wage and Labor Standards, states that preference in the 
award of subcontracts and subgrants in connection with the administration of such contracts or 
grants shall be given to Indian organizations and to Indian-owned economic enterprises as defined 
in section 1452 of this title. Indian-owned economic enterprise, as defined by section 1452, means 
any Indian owned as defined by the Secretary of the Interior commercial, industrial, or business 
activity established or organized for the purpose of profit: Provided, that such Indian ownership 
shall constitute not less than fifty-one (51) per centum of the enterprise. 
 
The guidance on Tribal Preference further states that when an Indian Tribe has adopted a tribal 
preference law, regulation, or ordinance governing preference in employment and contracting, that 
Tribal Preference law will govern any preferences in employment and contracting under the Indian 
Housing Block Grant program. 25 USC 4111 (k) states: “notwithstanding any other provision of 
law, with respect to any grant or portion of a grant made on behalf of an Indian tribe under this 
chapter that is intended to benefit a Indian tribe, the tribal employment and contract preference 
laws, including regulations and tribal ordinance, adopted by the Indian tribe shall receive the 
benefit \apply with respect to the administration of the grant or portion of a grant.” 
 
That’s it, good thing I submitted them. 
 

21 of 213



 

Page 16 of 24 

 

Jeffrey S. House (written):  Interestingly, the Office of Native American Programs (ONAP) 
issued guidance for the Native American Housing Assistance and Self-Determination 
Reauthorization Act (NAHASDA) of 2008 with regards to regulatory changes relating to Indian 
Preference and tribal preference. A notice issue on July 11, 2013, just three months after the OBC 
resolution, outlined Indian Preference and tribal preference. The guidance, which is now Title 25 
of the United States Code, Chapter 14 Subchapter II Sec. 450e (2) - Wage and Labor Standards, 
states that “preference in the award of subcontracts and subgrants in connection with the 
administration of such contracts or grants shall be given to Indian organizations and to Indian-
owned economic enterprises as defined in section 1452 of this title.” Indian-owned economic 
enterprise, as defined by section 1452, means any Indian owned (as defined by the Secretary of 
the Interior) commercial, industrial, or business activity established or organized for the purpose 
of profit: Provided, that such Indian ownership shall constitute not less than 51 per centum of the 
enterprise. The guidance on Tribal Preference further states that when an Indian Tribe has adopted 
a tribal preference law, regulation, or ordinance governing preference in employment and 
contracting, that Tribal Preference law will govern any preferences in employment and contracting 
under the Indian Housing Block Grant program. 25 USC 4111 (k) states: “notwithstanding any 
other provision of law, with respect to any grant (or portion of a grant) made on behalf of an Indian 
tribe under this chapter that is intended to benefit 1 Indian tribe, the tribal employment and contract 
preference laws (including regulations and tribal ordinances) adopted by the Indian tribe that 
receives the benefit shall apply with respect to the administration of the grant (or portion of a 
grant).” 
 
Another example is 25 CFR Part 170.910 under the Tribal Transportation Program (TTP), which 
states: “Indian organizations and Indian-owned economic enterprises are entitled to a preference, 
to the greatest extent feasible, in the award of contracts, subcontracts, and sub-grants for all work 
performed under the TTP.” Included in this testimony is attachment A, a letter from the 
Department of Interior, Bureau of Indian Affairs, Branch of Road Tony Saccoman to Chairman 
Tehassi Hill stating “It is allowable under the Tribal Transportation Program (TTP) laws and 
regulations (FAST Act and 25 CFR Part 170), for Tribes to complete engineering and construction 
work with qualified in-house Tribal employees and/or Tribal-owned companies without 
implementing the formal solicitation/bid process for those services or activities.” 
 

This is allowed in many US Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR), Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR), and related federal laws. For example, in 13 CFR part 124 – 8a, the US Small Business 
Administration allows contracting officers to sole-source work to small disadvantaged businesses, 
woman-owned businesses, veteran and service disabled veteran-owned businesses up to $9.9 
million without justification and up to $22 million with justification. 
 
There is additional language in Public Law 93-638 using the same language and these are just a 
few examples. The point is the USC, FARs, and other federally mandated procurement regulations 
provide for preference for tribal economic enterprises and tribally owned corporations and so too 
should the Oneida Nation. 
 

Response 

 

22 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 17 of 24 

 

The commenter provides information on various references to Indian preference and tribal 
preference within the federal laws and regulations. The commenter states that the federal 
regulations provide for preference for tribal economic enterprises and tribally owned corporations 
and so too should the Oneida Nation.  
 
The Nation does indeed provide a preference to Indian-owned businesses, including Tribal 
corporations, through the Indian Preference in Contracting law. The Constitution and Bylaws of 
the Oneida Nation provides for the Oneida Nation’s sovereignty, and ability to promulgate and 
enforce its own laws and ordinances. [Article IV, Section 1(f)]. The Legislative Procedures Act, 
adopted by the General Tribal Council in 2013, further provides a process for the development and 
adoption of laws of the Nation. [1 O.C. 109.1-1]. 
 
Through this Law certified Indian-owned businesses are given preference through the use of an 
Indian preference percentage discount on contract bids. [5 O.C. 502.6-9, 502.6-10]. When more 
than one (1) bid is received on a contract, the specific Indian preference discount is applied based 
on whether the contract is a construction contract or non-construction contract, and the specific 
dollar amount of the contract. [5 O.C. 502.6-9, 502.6-10]. After the appropriate Indian preference 
discount has been subtracted from bids from certified Indian-owned businesses, if a bid from a 
certified entity is less than the total of the apparent low bid after Indian preference is applied, then 
the contract shall be awarded to the certified entity. [5 O.C. 502.6-11(a)]. 
 
Since the Nation does in fact provide preference to Indian-owned businesses, including Tribal 
corporations, through the use of this Law, there is no revision to the Law recommended based on 
this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee appreciated the background and information on how federal 
policies and regulations incorporate Indian preference and tribal preference, but determined that 
no revision to the Law was needed based on these comments. 
 

Comment 17 – Applying Indian Preference to Contract Bids: 
 
502.6.  Application of Indian Preference to Contracts  
502.6-9.  Applying Indian Preference to Non-Construction Contracts.  Where more than one 
(1) bid is received for a non-construction contract, an Indian preference percentage discount 
of five percent (5%) shall be applied to all bids received from certified Indian-owned 
businesses. 
502.6-10.  Applying Indian Preference to Construction Contracts.  Where more than one (1) 
bid is received for a construction contract, the discount applied to bids from certified Indian-
owned businesses shall be: 

(a)  ten percent (10%) of the first fifty thousand dollar ($50,000) segment of a bid; 
(b)  plus nine percent (9%) of the next fifty thousand dollar ($50,000) segment of a 
bid; 
(c)  plus eight percent (8%) of the next one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) 
segment of a bid; 

23 of 213



 

Page 18 of 24 

 

(d)  plus seven percent (7%) of the next one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) 
segment of a bid; 
(e)  plus six percent (6%) of the next one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) segment 
of a bid; 
(f)  plus five percent (5%) of the next one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) segment 
of a bid; 
(g)  plus four percent (4%) of the next five hundred thousand dollar ($500,000) 
segment of a bid; 
(h)  plus two percent (2%) of the next one million dollar ($1,000,000) segment of a 
bid; and  

 
Jeffrey S. House (written):  Although not contained in the law, we are aware that the Indian 
Preference Office uses a scoring formula when evaluating qualified bidders. Tribal Corporations 
should receive maximum allowable points for all construction and non-construction contracts. 
Also, the law should define the qualifiers used in the scoring system. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter provides that he is aware that although not contained in the Law, the Indian 
Preference Office uses a scoring formula when evaluating qualified bidders. The commenter then 
states that the Law should define the qualifiers used in the scoring system, and that Tribal 
corporations should receive the maximum allowable points for all construction and non-
construction contracts.  
 
The Law sets forth various criteria for the certification of an Indian-owned business. [5 O.C. 502.5-

1(a)-(c)]. Once an entity has been certified as an Indian-owned business, the entity is eligible for 
an Indian preference percentage discount to be applied to its bids on both construction and non-
construction contracts. [5 O.C. 502.6-9, 502.6-10]. The amount of the Indian preference 
percentage discount to be applied is set forth by the Law, and is dependent on whether the contract 
is a construction or non-construction contract, and the specific dollar amount of the bid. [5 O.C. 

502.6-9, 502.6-10]. Under the Law, as long as an entity is certified as an Indian-owned business, 
then the entity should be receiving the Indian preference percentage discount that is provided by 
the Law for the specific contract type and dollar amount. The Law does not qualify the amount of 
Indian preference percentage discount that is applied to a certified entity’s bid to be based on any 
additional scoring. 
 
It is important to note that Indian preference is just one aspect of a greater overall scoring system 
for evaluating contract bids. 
 
Therefore, the Legislative Operating Committee should consider communicating with the Indian 
Preference Office to ensure that the Law is being applied correctly in terms of how an Indian 
preference percentage discount is currently being applied to contract bids of certified entities. But 
since the Law is already clear on how preference is applied to contract bids, there is no revision to 
the Law recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

24 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 19 of 24 

 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that there was no revision to the Law needed 
based on this comment since the Law is clear on how Indian preference should be applied to 
contract bids. The Legislative Operating Committee decided that communication will be sent to 
the Indian Preference Office to ensure that the Law is being complied with correctly in terms of 
how an Indian preference percentage discount is currently being applied to contract bids of 
certified entities. 
 

Comment 18 – Compliance Agreements: 
 
502.7.  Compliance Agreements 
502.7-1.  Compliance Agreements.  Once a bid has been accepted, but before work commences 
on any portion of a contract or subcontract, each contractor shall meet with the Indian 
Preference Office to negotiate and execute a compliance agreement. All contractors and 
subcontractors shall comply with the terms of any compliance agreement executed in 
accordance with this law.   
502.7-2.  Contents of a Compliance Agreement.  A compliance agreement shall include, but is 
not limited to, the following information: 

(a)  Numerical hiring goals and timetables that specify the minimum number of 
Indians that must be utilized per contract dollar; and  
(b)  Compensation of qualified trades workers including wage scale, salaries and other 
benefits. Compensation shall be determined based on the prevailing wage scales of 
the Nation and/or federal or state governments. 

 
502.8.  Skills Bank and Qualified Trades Workers 
502.8-5.  Placing an applicant in the Skills Bank as a qualified trades worker confers 
recognition that he or she is eligible to receive Indian preference in accordance with this law.  
A qualified trades worker shall be qualified for Indian preference for employment for a 
particular skill or trade if he or she meets the minimum qualifications for a particular skill 
or trade. 
 
Jeffrey S. House (written):  We fully support the purpose of the law “of maximum utilization of 
Indian workers.” The Compliance Agreement in Section 502.7-2, (a) states that the agreement 
shall include “Negotiate Numerical hiring goals and time tables that specify the minimum number 
of Indians that must be utilized per contract dollar.” The Indian Preference Law should recognize 
that business and contractors may have nontrade qualifications, such as possession of a valid non-
probationary driver’s license, passing a background check, and passing a drug screen. The Oneida 
Nation includes such language for its employees. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter mentions that a compliance agreement is required to include numerical hiring 
goals and timetables that specify the minimum number of Indians that must be utilized per contract 
dollar, but wants to Law to recognize that businesses and contractors may have additional non-
trade qualifications. 
 

25 of 213



 

Page 20 of 24 

 

Once a bid is accepted, but before work commences on a project, the Law requires that each 
contractor meet with the Indian Preference Office to negotiate and execute a compliance 
agreement. [5 O.C. 502.7-1]. The compliance agreement is required to include the numerical 
hiring goals and timetables that specify the minimum number of Indians that must be utilized per 
contract dollar, as well as what the compensation of qualified trades workers would be. [5 O.C. 

502.7-2]. This is required because it is a goal of the Nation to achieve one hundred percent (100%) 
participation of qualified trades workers on projects. [5 O.C. 502.8-1]. 
 
The Indian Preference Office is tasked with the responsibility of establishing and administering a 
Skills Bank representing the official compilation of qualified trades workers eligible for Indian 
preference which serves as the exclusive referral source under this list. [5 O.C. 502.8-1, 502.8-2]. 
The Skills Bank lists the names and qualifications of the qualified trades workers. [5 O.C. 502.8-

2]. When a certified entity is required to fill positions in accordance with this Law, like when 
required to in order to comply with numerical hiring goals of a compliance agreement, the certified 
entity shall hire qualified trades workers from the Skills Bank. [5 O.C. 502.8-3]. 
 
The Law then goes on to provide that placing an applicant in the Skills Bank as a qualified trades 
worker confers recognition that he or she is eligible to receive Indian preference. [5 O.C. 502.8-

5]. But a qualified trades worker shall only be qualified for Indian preference for employment for 
a particular skill or trade if he or she meets the minimum qualifications for a particular skill or 
trade. [5 O.C. 502.8-5]. This provision takes in account that businesses and contractors have 
additional minimum non-trade qualifications that would need to be met by a qualified trades 
worker. 
 
Since the Law already provides that a qualified trades worker is only qualified for Indian 
preference for employment if he or she meets the minimum qualifications for a particular skill or 
trade, there is no revision to the Law recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that there is no revision to the Law needed based 
on this comment since the Law already provides that a qualified trades worker is only qualified for 
Indian preference for employment if he or she meets the minimum qualifications for a particular 
skill or trade. 
 

Comment 19 – Qualifications of Qualified Trades Workers : 
 
502.8.  Skills Bank and Qualified Trades Workers 
502.8-4.  In order to be added to the Skills Bank, an applicant shall submit a completed 
application and documentation of the following: 

(a)  proof of enrollment or proof that the individual is a first-generation descendant 
of the Nation; 
(b)  education; including degrees, diplomas, apprenticeships, internships or 
continuing education training related to the field; 
(c)  proof of a driver’s license, including any endorsements, if applicable; 

26 of 213



 

Page 21 of 24 

 

(d)  if the worker is seeking to be listed as a qualified trades worker for a specific 
trade, then the worker shall provide specific information related to that trade, 
including:  

(1)  past and current licensing; 
(2)  credentials and certifications; and 
(3)  information related to penalties or punitive actions taken by any licensing 
body within the past ten (10) years.  

502.8-5.  Placing an applicant in the Skills Bank as a qualified trades worker confers 
recognition that he or she is eligible to receive Indian preference in accordance with this law.  
A qualified trades worker shall be qualified for Indian preference for employment for a 
particular skill or trade if he or she meets the minimum qualifications for a particular skill 
or trade. 
 
Jeffrey S. House (written):  We note that Section 8-4 (c) includes the proof of a driver’s license 
but it should also state that the applicant should possess a valid non-probationary driver’s license. 
Section 502.8-4 should also provide that the contractor may have additional non-trade related 
qualification such as passing a background check and drug screen. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter states that the requirement of section 502.8-4(c) that an applicant submit proof of 
a driver’s license, including any endorsements, if applicable, should instead require a non-
probationary driver’s license. The commenter also states that this section of the Law should 
provide that the contractor may have additional non-trade related qualifications.  
 
Section 502.8-4 of the Law provides what documentation an applicant is required to provide in 
addition to an application in order to be added to the Nation’s Skills Bank. Documentation that is 
required to be provided by an applicant includes: 
 proof of enrollment or proof that the individual is a first-generation descendant of the 

Nation; 
 education; including degrees, diplomas, apprenticeships, internships or continuing 

education training related to the field; 
 proof of a driver’s license, including any endorsements, if applicable; 
 if the worker is seeking to be listed as a qualified trades worker for a specific trade, then 

the worker shall provide specific information related to that trade, including:  
 past and current licensing; 
 credentials and certifications; and 
 information related to penalties or punitive actions taken by any licensing body 

within the past ten (10) years. 
[5 O.C. 502.8-4(a)-(d)]. 

 
Since section 502.8-4 reflect the Nation’s requirements for the documentation an applicant for the 
Skills Bank is required to submit, and does not reflect the specific qualifications to be hired by a 
business or contractor as a qualified trades worker, it would be unnecessary to include a statement 
that the contractor may have additional non-trade related qualifications in this provision of the 
Law. 

27 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 22 of 24 

 

 
The Law does clarify that placing an applicant in the Skills Bank as a qualified trades worker 
confers recognition that he or she is eligible to receive Indian preference, but a qualified trades 
worker shall only be qualified for Indian preference for employment for a particular skill or trade 
if he or she meets the minimum qualifications for a particular skill or trade. [5 O.C. 502.8-5]. This 
provision takes in account that businesses and contractors have additional minimum non-trade 
qualifications that would need to be met by a qualified trades worker. 
 
Additionally, the commenter provides no explanation as to why a valid non-probationary driver’s 
license should be specified in section 502.8-4(c) of the Law instead of its current language of a 
driver’s license, which already implies the necessity of its validity.  
 
Since the purpose of this provision of the Law is to provide the documentation that is required to 
be submitted by an applicant for the Skills Bank, and the Law later clarifies that placement in the 
Skills Bank means the qualified trades worker is eligible to receive Indian preference but is not 
eligible for employment unless he or she meets the minimum qualifications for the skill or trade, 
there is no revision to the Law recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that there is no revision to the Law needed based 
on this comment since the Law already provides that a qualified trades worker is only qualified for 
Indian preference for employment if he or she meets the minimum qualifications for a particular 
skill or trade. 
 

Comment 20 – Oneida ESC Group’s Willingness to Follow Law: 
 
Jeffrey S. House (written):  Oneida ESC Group is proud to follow the Indian Preference in 
Contacting Law. We work diligently in hiring qualified Indian talent, and working with Native 
American owned companies, particularly Oneida-owned businesses. We have a strong record of 
complying with Indian Preference in Contracting Law and working with the Indian Preference 
Office and we look forward to hiring more qualified trade workers who are Oneida. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter states that the Oneida ESC Group will comply with the Law. There is no revision 
to the Law recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that there is no revision to the Law needed based 
on this comment. 
 

Comments 21 through 22 – Additional Preference for Tribal Corporations: 
 

28 of 213



 

Page 23 of 24 

 

Jeffrey S. House (written):  Without adoption of some of these recommend changes, the law 
provides little effective preference for Tribal Corporations when the Nation is within its rights and 
obligations. Other than Indian Preference to Construction Contracts discount found in Section 
502.6-10, there are no other preferences given to Tribal Corporations.  
 
Tribal Corporations are valuable assets to the long-term economic strength of the Nation. Prudent, 
effective preferences that will increase the proper use of these assets will strengthen the Nation’s 
economic stability and will empower Tribal Corporations to grow and increase the economic 
benefits for the Nation—a core objective of the Section 502.1-1. 
 
Because the Nation invests in these business and corporations, the Nation should utilize them to 
their fullest capacity to maximize the economic benefits and return on the Nation’s investments. 
Thank you. 
 
Eric McLester (written): The law should support and drive business back to the corporations the 
Tribe has created to allow for those businesses to be as successful as possible.  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide feedback on the amendments to the Indian Preference 
Law. 
 

Response 

 
Both commenters express the belief that Tribal corporations should be given more preference 
under the Law, and that business should be driven to the Tribal corporations so that they may be 
successful.  
 
The purpose of the Law is to establish an Indian Preference Office and increase economic benefits 
for the Nation and members of the Nation by providing for the maximum utilization of Indian 
workers and businesses on projects of the Nation which occur on or near the Reservation. [5 O.C. 

502.1-1]. The policy of the Nation is to ensure that Indian preference provisions are applied fairly 
in all situations and in such a way that reflects the intent of this law; and to undertake reasonable 
efforts to ensure that all entities that enter into contracts with or on behalf of the Nation utilize the 
labor force of Indian workers and businesses by applying Indian preference in all aspects of 
fulfilling that contract, including but not limited to: hiring, training, business opportunities, labor 
and/or professional services, and the supply of materials. [5 O.C. 502.1-1].  
 
It is not the intent or purpose of this Law to treat Tribal corporations differently than other Indian-
owned businesses or workers. The goal of this Law is the maximum, not exclusive, utilization of 
Indian businesses and workers. It is the policy that Indian preference provisions are applied fairly 
in all situations.  
 
The commenter states that “the law provides little effective preference for Tribal Corporations” 
and that “Other than Indian Preference to Construction Contracts discount found in Section 502.6-

10, there are no other preferences given to Tribal Corporations.” This comment fails to 
acknowledge that Tribal corporations are being provided the full extent of preferences that are 
provided by this Law, the same preferences that are provided to any certified Indian-owned 

29 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 24 of 24 

 

business. The sole preference that is provided to certified Indian-owned business under this Law 
is in fact the Indian preference percentage discounts on contracts. [5 O.C. 502.6-9, 502.6-10]. 
 
The response to Comments twelve (12) through fourteen (14) in this memorandum provides a 
more in-depth response to the request to exclusively utilize Tribal corporations. The request to 
increase business and profits of Tribal corporations through providing additional preferences not 
available to other Indian owned businesses or through the exclusive use of Tribal corporations is 
not consistent with the intent of this Law. The Indian preference percentage discounts on contracts 
that is provided by this Law allocates a preference to Indian-owned businesses while still 
encouraging competitive bids and good work ethic amongst the companies, which ensures that the 
Nation is getting the best price and service for the project. Therefore, there is no revision to the 
Law recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

The Legislative Operating Committee determined that there is no revision to the Law needed based 
on these comments. The Legislative Operating Committee reiterates that the purpose of this Law 
is the maximum utilization, not the exclusive utilization, of Indian workers and businesses. The 
Indian preference percentage discounts on contracts that is provided by this Law allocates a 
preference to Indian-owned businesses while still encouraging competitive bids and good work 
ethic amongst the companies, which ensures that the Nation is getting the best price and service 
for the project. 
 

 

 

30 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 1 

Title 5. Business - Chapter 502 
Yukwat^nhas Ukwehu=w# Kayanl^hsla 

Laws concerning the hiring of the Oneida People 
INDIAN PREFERENCE IN CONTRACTING 

 
 
502.1.  Purpose and Policy 
502.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Conflicts 
502.3.  Definitions 
502.4.  Jurisdiction 
502.5.  Certification of Entities 

502.6.  Application of Indian Preference to Contracts 
502.7.  Compliance Agreements 
502.8.  Skills Bank and Qualified Trades Workers 
502.9.  Investigations and Enforcement 

 1 
 2 
502.1.  Purpose and Policy 3 
502.1-1.  Purpose.  The purpose of this law is to establish an Indian Preference Office and increase 4 
economic benefits for the Nation and members of the Nation by providing for the maximum 5 
utilization of Indian workers and businesses on projects of the Nation which occur on or near the 6 
Reservation. 7 
502.1-2.  Policy.  It is the policy of the Nation to ensure that Indian preference provisions are 8 
applied fairly in all situations and in such a way that reflects the intent of this law; and to undertake 9 
reasonable efforts to ensure that all entities that enter into contracts with or on behalf of the Nation 10 
utilize the labor force of Indian workers and businesses by applying Indian preference in all aspects 11 
of fulfilling that contract, including but not limited to: hiring, training, business opportunities, labor 12 
and/or professional services, and the supply of materials. 13 
 14 
502.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Conflicts 15 
502.2-1.  This law is adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by Resolution BC-03-27-13-B 16 
and amended by resolution BC-__-__-__-__. 17 
502.2-2.  This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee and/or General 18 
Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. 19 
502.2-3.  Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 20 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 21 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 22 
502.2-4.  In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 23 
the provisions of this law shall control.   24 
502.2-5.  This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 25 
 26 
502.3.  Definitions 27 
502.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 28 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 29 

(a)  “Agent” means one who acts relative to a fiduciary relationship to another; a person 30 
authorized to negotiate and/or transact business on behalf of an entity. 31 
(b)  “Bid” means an offer to execute a specified job or jobs within a prescribed time and 32 
not exceeding a proposed amount, and includes both offers that become legally binding 33 
upon acceptance, and nonbinding or informal quotes. 34 
(c)  “Bid shopping” means the practice of divulging a contractor’s or subcontractor’s bid 35 
to other prospective bidders before the award of a contract, in order to secure a lower bid. 36 
(d)  “Broker” means an intermediary; an independent contractor employed to negotiate 37 
business between a buyer and seller for compensation. 38 

31 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 2 

(e)  “Business day” means Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., excluding 39 
holidays recognized by the Nation. 40 
(f)  “Certification” means verification by the Indian Preference Office that an entity meets 41 
all the requirements necessary to qualify for Indian preference in accordance with this law. 42 
(g)  “Certified entity” means an entity that has received certification as an Indian-owned 43 
business from the Indian Preference Office. 44 
(h)  “Compliance agreement” means a binding agreement, negotiated between the Indian 45 
Preference Office and a contractor identifying specific Indian preference-related 46 
requirements for a project. 47 
(i)  “Construction contract” means any contract issued to build, repair, or remodel 48 
structures, and includes subcontracts and other construction agreements. 49 
(j)  “Contractor” means one who enters into a contract. 50 
(k)  “Core work crew” means the minimum amount of the contractor’s key employees, who 51 
perform a critical function such that an employer would risk likely financial damage or loss 52 
if that task were assigned to a person unfamiliar with and/or untrained in the employer’s 53 
procedures and routines, that are essential to start up and continue work on a project.  54 
(l)  “Employee” means any person that performs services and/or labor for an employer in 55 
exchange for compensation. 56 
(m) “Employer” means any entity, except the Nation, that controls and directs an employee 57 
under an express or implied contract of employment and is obligated to pay salary or wages 58 
in compensation. 59 
(n)  “Enterprise” means any internal operation owned and operated by the Nation that 60 
generates revenues through its core business functions, including but not limited to, Oneida 61 
Gaming, Oneida Retail, and Oneida Printing. 62 
(o)  “Entity” means  any person, sole proprietor, partnership, corporation, franchise, 63 
governmental body, or any other natural or artificial person or organization.  The term is 64 
intended to be as broad and encompassing as possible to ensure this law covers all 65 
employment and contract activities within the jurisdiction of the Nation. 66 
(p)  “Entities of the Nation” means all programs, departments, boards, committees, 67 
commissions and similar business units of the Nation, but shall not mean Tribal 68 
corporations. 69 
(q)  “Front” means a business entity that is strategically structured, financed, operated or 70 
staffed such as to unfairly take advantage of Indian preference as granted under this law. 71 
(r) “Indian” means an enrolled member of any federally-recognized Indian tribe. 72 
(s) “Indian-owned business” means an entity which is majority owned and managed by 73 
an Indian. 74 
(t)  “Indian preference” means preference for Indians, regardless of tribal affiliation, in all 75 
aspects of employment and contracting. 76 
(u) “Internal service” means any service provided for free or at cost for the Nation and 77 
includes but is not limited to such services as certain types of advocacy or representation, 78 
mail delivery and pick up, grant writing or assistance, tourism initiatives, Human Resource 79 
assistance and technical support. 80 
(v)  “Joint venture” means a one-time grouping of two (2) or more entities in a business 81 
undertaking. 82 
(w)  “Lowest responsible bidder” means a bidder who, after any Indian preference 83 
discounts are applied, submits the lowest bid and is considered to be fully responsible and 84 
qualified to perform the work for which the bid is submitted. 85 
(x) “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 86 

32 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 3 

(y)  “Non-construction contract” means any contract other than a construction contract, and 87 
includes subcontracts and other agreements. 88 
(z)  “Project” means any effort whereby the Nation or an entity of the Nation contracts for 89 
labor and/or goods or services that will support or benefit any aspect of the Nation’s 90 
government, holdings, infrastructure, workplace, economy or community. 91 
(aa) “Qualified trades worker” means a skilled worker qualified to perform services for the 92 
trade in which the person is trained, and includes general laborers. 93 
(bb) “Reservation” means all the lands within the exterior boundaries of the Reservation of 94 
the Oneida Nation, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the Oneida, 7 Stat. 566, and 95 
any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law. 96 
(cc) “Subcontractor” means a trade contractor, who is awarded a contract for the supply of 97 
services pursuant to a construction agreement, or a junior or secondary contractor who 98 
performs some or all of the prime contractor’s contractual obligations. 99 
(dd)  “Trial Court” means the Trial Court of the Oneida Nation Judiciary, which is the 100 
judicial system that was established by Oneida General Tribal Council resolution GTC-01-101 
07-13-B, and then later authorized to administer the judicial authorities and responsibilities 102 
of the Nation by Oneida General Tribal Council resolution GTC-03-19-17-A. 103 
(ee)  “Tribal corporation” means a corporation chartered and/or wholly owned by the 104 
Nation pursuant to the Constitution and Bylaws of the Oneida Nation.  105 

 106 
502.4.  Jurisdiction 107 
502.4-1.  The Indian Preference Office shall implement, monitor, and enforce this law and other 108 
applicable laws and policies relating to Indian preference. 109 
502.4-2.  The Trial Court shall have jurisdiction over all matters related to the interpretation and 110 
enforcement of this law. 111 
502.4-3.  The Indian Preference Office and Trial Court shall have jurisdiction over all parties to 112 
any contract, subcontract, or compliance agreement to which this law applies, as well as 113 
jurisdiction over all subcontractors, employees, or other entities working with, for, or on behalf of 114 
such a party in fulfilling such contract, subcontract or compliance agreement. 115 
 116 
502.5.  Certification of Entities 117 
502.5-1.  Criteria for Certification as an Indian-Owned Business.  In order to seek certification as 118 
an Indian-owned business the following criteria shall be met by the applicant entity: 119 

(a)  There is Indian financial ownership, control and management of at least fifty-one 120 
percent (51%) of the entity. Evidence of both financial ownership and control shall be 121 
embodied in the entity’s organizational documents, including, but not limited to the 122 
documents of incorporation, stock ownership, or a partnership agreement. 123 

(1)  Indian Financial Ownership.  Indian financial ownership is established where 124 
the Nation, members of the Nation and/or other Indians own fifty-one percent 125 
(51%) or more of the assets and equipment, receive fifty-one percent (51%) or more 126 
of distributed net profits, and would receive fifty-one percent (51%) or more of the 127 
entity’s assets upon dissolution. 128 
(2)  Indian Control.  Indian control is established where the Nation, member of the 129 
Nation and/or other Indian owner(s) maintain a minimum of fifty-one percent 130 
(51%) of voting rights or other controlling decisional authority. 131 
(3)  Indian Management.  Indian Management is established where an Indian 132 
owner(s) is directly involved in the entity’s management, this can be shown where: 133 

33 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 4 

(A)  at least one (1) Indian owner is directly involved in the daily operations 134 
of the entity on a full-time basis and in a senior-level position; or 135 
(B)  at least one (1) Indian owner is responsible for the oversight of 136 
operations, even though the daily operations are conducted by non-owner 137 
employees. 138 

(b)  The entity can demonstrate financial responsibility, including but not limited to, 139 
evidence of an adequate line of credit, contributions of sufficient working capital, 140 
applicable required bonding and insurance, materials and/or equipment necessary to 141 
perform applicable work. 142 
(c)  The entity can provide past and current licensing or certifications, including any 143 
penalties, or other punitive actions or debarments taken by any licensing body within the 144 
past ten (10) years. 145 

502.5-2.  Application.  The applicant entity shall submit a completed and signed application to the 146 
Indian Preference Office, along with any documentation proving the entity meets the criteria for 147 
certification of an Indian-owned business. 148 

(a)  Upon receiving an application, the Indian Preference Office may interview the 149 
applicant and/or request additional information as may be necessary to make a 150 
determination regarding certification. 151 

502.5-3.  Certification Determination.  Within thirty (30) days of receiving the application and any 152 
additional requested information, the Indian Preference Office shall inform the applicant of a 153 
determination to: 154 

(a)  grant the certification;  155 
(b)  deny the certification, including a full written explanation of the reason for the denial; 156 
or 157 
(c)  grant probationary certification for a period of up to one (1) year, if so determined by 158 
the Indian Preference Office for reasonable and just cause.  159 

(1)  During the probationary period, the applicant shall satisfy any conditions 160 
imposed by the Indian Preference Office.  161 
(2)  The Indian Preference Office shall monitor the activities of the applicant, and 162 
may request and receive such information as necessary to ensure compliance with 163 
this law.   164 
(3)  The Indian Preference Office shall either grant or deny full certification at the 165 
end of the probationary period, or upon petition by the applicant, whichever occurs 166 
first. 167 

502.5-4.  Once an applicant entity has been granted certification, the Indian Preference Office shall 168 
mail a certificate to the entity. Granting an entity certification does not convey any comment 169 
regarding the ability of the entity to perform any work nor does it guarantee that an entity has met 170 
all the qualifications to obtain work under any particular contract where Indian preference may be 171 
applied. 172 
502.5-5.  Notification Requirements.  A certified entity shall report the following to the Indian 173 
Preference Office within ten (10) business days of such an occurrence: 174 

(a)  changes in the ownership or control status of the entity;  175 
(b)  suspension, revocation, lapse or loss of any licensing, certification, insurance, bonding, 176 
or credit lines; and/or 177 
(c)  any other changes that could: 178 

(1)  affect an entity’s eligibility for certification;  179 
(2)  affect the financial liability of any entity, contracting party or the Nation; and/or  180 
(3)  alter the status of the qualifications of the entity. 181 

34 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 5 

502.5-6.  Certification Renewal.  Certification is granted on an annual basis and shall lapse after 182 
one (1) year unless renewed.  183 

(a)  To apply for a renewal certification, each certified entity shall complete and return a 184 
renewal application and annual reporting form so that the Indian Preference Office may 185 
update its records.  186 
(b)  Annual renewal notices, applications and reporting forms shall be mailed to each 187 
certified entity at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of an entity’s certification; 188 
however, the responsibility for renewal is upon the entity.   189 
(c)  Exemption for Tribal Corporations.  Tribal corporations shall be exempt from the 190 
requirement to renew certification on an annual basis. Certification for a Tribal corporation 191 
is granted until such a time that the Indian Preference Office is made aware that there have 192 
been changes that may affect the certification status of a Tribal corporation in accordance 193 
with the notification requirements of section 502.5-5.   194 

(1)  When a Tribal corporation complies with the notification requirements of 195 
section 502.5-5 the Tribal corporation shall also apply for renewal of its 196 
certification.,  197 

(A)  The Indian Preference Office shall provide the Tribal corporation with 198 
a renewal application and annual reporting form.  199 
(B)  The Tribal corporation shall return the renewal application and annual 200 
reporting form to the Indian Preference Office ten (10) days. 201 

502.5-7.  Open Records.  In accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing open 202 
records, general, non-proprietary and non-private information provided for the purposes of 203 
acquiring certification shall be considered open records and available for public inspection.  204 
Provided that, all information given for purposes of receiving certification, including financial 205 
information, is subject to internal audit of the Nation. 206 
502.5-8.  Joint Ventures. All joint ventures seeking certification as an Indian-owned business shall 207 
submit documentation of the business arrangements of the joint venture in addition to the required 208 
documentation for certification. 209 

(a)  Certification for a joint venture shall be issued on a project specific basis. 210 
502.5-9.  Brokers, Agents and Franchises. 211 

(a)  Brokers.  Brokers shall be certified as an Indian-owned business only if they are dealers 212 
who own, operate or maintain a store, warehouse or other establishment in which the 213 
commodities being supplied are bought, kept in stock and sold to the public in the usual 214 
course of business; provided that this requirement shall not apply where the applicant 215 
demonstrates that it is not customary and usual in the area of the trade in question for a 216 
broker to maintain an establishment and to keep commodities in stock. 217 

(1)  To qualify as an Indian-owned business, the broker shall provide conclusive 218 
evidence that the broker is an independent contractor and not an agent of a non-219 
Indian owned business. 220 
(2)  The broker shall also provide proof that he owes no fiduciary responsibility nor 221 
has a fixed or permanent relationship to any one company.  A broker shall hold 222 
himself or herself out for employment to the public generally and that the 223 
employment is not that of being a special agent for a single client. 224 

(b)  Agents.  Agents who are employees of a non-Indian-owned business or who merely 225 
represent a company, such as an insurance agent or real estate agent for a non-Indian-226 
owned business, shall not be certified as an Indian-owned business. 227 
(c)  Franchises.  A franchise may be certified as an Indian-owned business if the franchisee 228 
does not pay the franchisor a share or percentage of revenue or profits, but only 229 

35 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 6 

compensates the franchisor through licensing, royalty and franchise fees as set out by 230 
contract, and/or for services provided, such as training and advising. 231 

502.5-10.  Fronts are Prohibited.  Entities shall be disqualified from certification as an Indian-232 
owned business in all situations where the entity operates as a front in order to unfairly take 233 
advantage of Indian preference granted under this law to Indian-owned businesses. 234 

(a)  The Indian Preference Office shall not certify entities that operate solely as fronts. 235 
(b)  No entity shall manipulate its business structure or misrepresent the roles of Indian 236 
individuals or entities in such a way as to become eligible for Indian preference in a manner 237 
inconsistent with the purpose and intent of this law. 238 
(c)  Examples of fronts include but are not limited to: 239 

(1)  Entities that represent that they are exercising management control of a project 240 
in order to qualify for Indian preference when in fact such management control is 241 
exercised by a non-Indian entity; 242 
(2)  Entities where Indians have senior management titles without the correlating 243 
responsibilities, control, or knowledge of operations; where the entity only qualifies 244 
for certification because an Indian holds that senior management role; 245 
(3)  Entities, not including legitimate brokers, that derive profit only by providing 246 
goods or services at an increased cost, where such goods or services could be 247 
acquired directly on the open market and/or from the entity’s source without paying 248 
a marked-up cost; and/or 249 
(4)  Any other situation where the Indian Preference Office determines that the 250 
application of Indian preference would in fact predominantly or substantially 251 
benefit non-Indians or non-Indian-owned businesses; or where Indians or Indian-252 
owned businesses only benefit by assisting the non-Indian or non-Indian-owned 253 
business with receiving the contract. 254 

 255 
502.6.  Application of Indian Preference to Contracts  256 
502.6-1.  Application of the Law.  Except where prohibited or limited by law or grant funding 257 
requirements, this law shall apply to all contracts over three thousand dollars ($3,000) that meet 258 
the requirements of (a) and/or (b) below: 259 

(a)  This law shall apply to: 260 
(1)  all contracts, subcontracts, and compliance agreements to which the Nation is 261 
a party, and all contracts, subcontracts and compliance agreements that are entered 262 
into on behalf of, or for the benefit of the Nation, whereby goods and services are 263 
provided on or near the Reservation; and 264 
(2)  all subcontractors, employees, or other entities working with, for, on behalf of 265 
a party to a contract, subcontract or compliance agreement as identified in (1), in 266 
fulfilling such contract, subcontract, or compliance agreement. 267 

(b)  Tribal Corporations.  This law shall apply to Tribal corporations to the extent such 268 
corporations enter into contracts with the Nation. 269 

502.6-2.  Non-Applicability of the Law. 270 
(a)  Indian Preference in Hiring of Employees of the Nation.  The standards set out in this 271 
law shall not apply to preference as applicable to employees hired through the Nation’s 272 
Human Resources Department or pursuant to an employment contract. 273 
(b)  Internal Services and Enterprises. The application of Indian preference shall be 274 
superseded in specific situations in accordance with the following: 275 

36 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 7 

(1)  The Nation shall exclusively utilize internal services and enterprises whenever 276 
an internal service of the Nation or enterprise could or does provide the necessary 277 
goods and services in the ordinary course of business. 278 
(2)  If an internal service or enterprise is unable to fulfill some or all of the 279 
requirements of a contract, then the provisions of this law shall apply to any 280 
outsourcing conducted by the internal service or enterprise. 281 

502.6-3.  Contract Specifications Review.  Prior to the posting or announcement of a contract for 282 
any project of the Nation, the specifications for such project shall be submitted to the Indian 283 
Preference Office.  284 

(a)  Within five (5) business days of receiving the specifications of the project the Indian 285 
Preference Office shall, with experts identified from other entities of the Nation, review 286 
the specifications, including bidding requirements, to ensure that there are no unnecessary 287 
and/or unjustifiable restrictions that may: 288 

(1)  preclude certified entities from bidding or being eligible to fulfill the contract 289 
or subcontract;  290 
(2)  disqualify qualified trades workers from employment opportunities created 291 
under such contract or subcontract; and/or 292 
(3)  create conditions that would make bidding, compliance, or employment unduly 293 
burdensome for qualified trades workers or certified entities. 294 

(b)  Unbundling a Contract. The Indian Preference Office may require that specific 295 
portions of a contract be outsourced to internal services, enterprises, certified entities 296 
and/or qualified trades workers, even if a single entity is capable of providing all of the 297 
goods and/or services required under the contract. Provided that, such outsourcing shall 298 
not cause undue hardship, unnecessary delay or additional expenses in completing the 299 
project. 300 

502.6-4.  In soliciting bids, the entity offering the contract shall indicate that Indian preference 301 
shall be applied in accordance with this law. 302 
502.6-5.  Cooperative Agreements.  Within the scope of authority defined in this law, the Indian 303 
Preference Office may enter into cooperative agreements with federal and state agencies, subject 304 
to the approval of the Oneida Business Committee. 305 
502.6-6.  Cultural Setting of Contracts.  All parties to a contract to which this law applies shall 306 
recognize that any operations are taking place within a unique cultural setting within the Nation. 307 
Every contractor shall make reasonable accommodations to the customs and beliefs of all Indian 308 
workers so as to promote rather than hinder the employment of Indians. 309 

(a)  If an Indian worker wishes to attend any traditional cultural activities or ceremonies, 310 
the worker shall provide reasonable advance notice to the contractor in requesting such 311 
time off. 312 
(b)  Where attendance at traditional cultural activities or ceremonies requires a worker to 313 
take time off from a regularly scheduled shift or workday, such time may be paid or unpaid, 314 
at the discretion of the employer or as established by contract or compliance agreement. 315 

502.6-7.  Employees of the Nation.  In the execution of employment duties and in accordance with 316 
the Nation’s laws and policies governing employment, employees of the Nation shall follow this 317 
law in following contracting and bidding procedures for the Nation or entities of the Nation. 318 

(a)  The Indian Preference Office shall establish a training process for entities of the Nation 319 
that do contracting or bidding as a regular function of their duties. 320 

502.6-8.  Contracts and Attachments.  All contracts this law applies to shall: 321 

37 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 8 

(a)  Stipulate that compliance with this law is required, and that violation of any portion of 322 
this law or applicable compliance agreement may be deemed a material and substantial 323 
breach of contract, enforceable: 324 

(1)  As set forth by the terms of the original contract for a breach of contract; and 325 
(2)  In accordance with the provisions of this law.  326 

(b)  Reference this law, and shall contain an acknowledgment clause, whereby the 327 
contractor shall agree to the following: 328 

(1)  The contractor has read and understands the provisions of this law; 329 
(2) The contractor understands how this law affects the contractor’s rights and 330 
responsibilities; and  331 
(3)  The contractor agrees that the provisions of this law shall govern the 332 
performance of the parties. 333 

(c)  Reference the Nation’s laws governing vendor licensing, and provide the contracting 334 
parties with directions on how to access that document. 335 

502.6-9.  Applying Indian Preference to Non-Construction Contracts.  Where more than one (1) 336 
bid is received for a non-construction contract, an Indian preference percentage discount of five 337 
percent (5%) shall be applied to all bids received from certified Indian-owned businesses. 338 
502.6-10.  Applying Indian Preference to Construction Contracts.  Where more than one (1) bid 339 
is received for a construction contract, the discount applied to bids from certified Indian-owned 340 
businesses shall be: 341 

(a)  ten percent (10%) of the first fifty thousand dollar ($50,000) segment of a bid; 342 
(b)  plus nine percent (9%) of the next fifty thousand dollar ($50,000) segment of a bid; 343 
(c)  plus eight percent (8%) of the next one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) segment 344 
of a bid; 345 
(d)  plus seven percent (7%) of the next one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) segment 346 
of a bid; 347 
(e)  plus six percent (6%) of the next one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) segment of 348 
a bid; 349 
(f)  plus five percent (5%) of the next one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) segment of 350 
a bid; 351 
(g)  plus four percent (4%) of the next five hundred thousand dollar ($500,000) segment of 352 
a bid; 353 
(h)  plus two percent (2%) of the next one million dollar ($1,000,000) segment of a bid; 354 
and  355 
(i)  plus one percent (1%) of any amount over two million dollars ($2,000,000). 356 

502.6-11.  Awarding the Contract.  After the appropriate discount has been subtracted from 357 
preferred bids, the following shall be used to determine which bidder is awarded the contract: 358 

(a)  If a bid from a certified entity is less than the total of the apparent low bid after Indian 359 
preference is applied, then the contract shall be awarded to the certified entity. 360 
(b)  If none of the certified entity bids are less than the total of the apparent low bid after 361 
the Indian preference discount is applied, the contract shall be awarded to the lowest 362 
responsible bidder. 363 
(c)  Bid shopping is prohibited. 364 

502.6-12.  Monitoring the Contract.  Once a contract is awarded to an entity, the Indian Preference 365 
Office shall perform the following monitoring duties: 366 

(a)  Perform on-site inspections to verify compliance with this law; 367 
(b)  Require and review weekly workforce reports; 368 

38 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 9 

(c)  Provide training to assist certified entities with understanding their rights and abilities 369 
under this law; and  370 
(d)  Receive feedback from contractors regarding the performance of any certified entity 371 
or qualified trades worker. 372 

502.6-13.  In the event that a dispute may arise regarding this law or a compliance agreement, all 373 
affected parties shall cooperate in good faith with the Indian Preference Office toward a mutually 374 
satisfactory resolution. 375 
 376 
502.7.  Compliance Agreements 377 
502.7-1.  Compliance Agreements.  Once a bid has been accepted, but before work commences on 378 
any portion of a contract or subcontract, each contractor shall meet with the Indian Preference 379 
Office to negotiate and execute a compliance agreement. All contractors and subcontractors shall 380 
comply with the terms of any compliance agreement executed in accordance with this law.   381 
502.7-2.  Contents of a Compliance Agreement.  A compliance agreement shall include, but is not 382 
limited to, the following information: 383 

(a)  Numerical hiring goals and timetables that specify the minimum number of Indians 384 
that must be utilized per contract dollar; and  385 
(b)  Compensation of qualified trades workers including wage scale, salaries and other 386 
benefits. Compensation shall be determined based on the prevailing wage scales of the 387 
Nation and/or federal or state governments. 388 

502.7-3.  Term of a Compliance Agreement.  Where a contract lasts for more than one (1) year, 389 
compliance agreements shall be reviewed annually and revised as necessary to reflect changes in 390 
hiring plans or the number of certified entities available. 391 
502.7-4.  Unless prior written consent of the Indian Preference Office has been received, a 392 
contractor shall not deviate from an executed compliance agreement by adding or removing any 393 
subcontracts, subcontractors or positions filled by qualified trades workers or certified entities, or 394 
by filling a vacancy with a non-qualified trades worker or a non-certified entity. 395 
502.7-5.  Limited Waivers.  The Indian Preference Office shall establish standard operating 396 
procedures to provide for emergency conditions and situations whereby a limited waiver of 397 
compliance may be authorized, in situations where a contractor has made a significant and 398 
documented good faith effort to achieve compliance, or can demonstrate that compliance is not 399 
practical for reasons other than pricing. 400 
 401 
502.8.  Skills Bank and Qualified Trades Workers 402 
502.8-1.  The Indian Preference Office shall establish and administer a Skills Bank to assist with 403 
providing Indians and first-generation descendants with employment opportunities.  The goal of 404 
the Nation is to achieve one hundred percent (100%) participation of qualified trades workers on 405 
projects. 406 

(a)  The Indian Preference Office shall identify, initiate, and sponsor training, internship, 407 
and apprenticeship opportunities necessary in order to increase the pool of qualified trades 408 
workers and to assist Indians in becoming qualified in the various job classifications used 409 
by employers. 410 
(b)  The Indian Preference Office shall cooperate with other programs of the Nation to 411 
provide counseling and support to assist Indians in retaining employment.  412 

502.8-2.  The Skills Bank shall be the exclusive referral source under this law, representing the 413 
official compilation of qualified trades workers eligible for Indian preference in accordance with 414 
this law.  Skills Bank listings shall include the names and qualifications of the qualified trades 415 
workers. The Indian Preference Office shall regularly update the Skills Bank listings. 416 

39 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 10 

502.8-3.  Entities required to fill positions in accordance with this law and/or a compliance 417 
agreement under section 502.7, shall contact the Indian Preference Office prior to the 418 
commencement of any work. 419 

(a)  Except where prohibited by law or grant funding requirements, the entity shall hire 420 
qualified trades workers from the Skills Bank in the following order of priority: 421 

(1)  Members of the Nation; 422 
(2)  First generation descendants of the Nation; and then 423 
(3)  Members of other federally-recognized Indian tribes. 424 

(b)  If a law or grant funding requirement prohibits the hiring of qualified trades workers 425 
in accordance with section 502.8-3(a), qualified trades workers shall be hired in accordance 426 
with the requirements of said law or grant. 427 
(c)  If the necessary labor cannot be acquired from the Skills Bank, then a limited waiver 428 
may be granted by the Indian Preference Office. 429 

502.8-4.  In order to be added to the Skills Bank, an applicant shall submit a completed application 430 
and documentation of the following: 431 

(a)  proof of enrollment or proof that the individual is a first-generation descendant of the 432 
Nation; 433 
(b)  education; including degrees, diplomas, apprenticeships, internships or continuing 434 
education training related to the field; 435 
(c)  proof of a driver’s license, including any endorsements, if applicable; 436 
(d)  if the worker is seeking to be listed as a qualified trades worker for a specific trade, 437 
then the worker shall provide specific information related to that trade, including:  438 

(1)  past and current licensing; 439 
(2)  credentials and certifications; and 440 
(3)  information related to penalties or punitive actions taken by any licensing body 441 
within the past ten (10) years.  442 

502.8-5.  Placing an applicant in the Skills Bank as a qualified trades worker confers recognition 443 
that he or she is eligible to receive Indian preference in accordance with this law.  A qualified 444 
trades worker shall be qualified for Indian preference for employment for a particular skill or trade 445 
if he or she meets the minimum qualifications for a particular skill or trade. 446 
502.8-6.  Wage and Hour Standards, Layoffs and Terminations, Call-Backs, Promotions, Unions. 447 

(a)  Every contractor utilizing qualified trades workers shall ensure that such workers 448 
receive equal compensation, including overtime pay, and shall have equal work standards, 449 
that are provided to other employees.  Contractors that hire qualified trades workers in 450 
order to comply with this law, but do not utilize those workers in a manner similar to other 451 
employees are not maintaining equal work standards. 452 
(b)  In making any layoffs or terminations, all contractors shall notify the Indian Preference 453 
Office prior to laying off or terminating a qualified trades worker. 454 

(1)  No qualified trades worker with at least minimum qualifications for the job 455 
classification shall be terminated or laid off so long as a non-Indian employee in 456 
the same craft with similar skills remains employed. If the contractor lays off by 457 
crews, qualified trades workers shall be transferred to any crew that will be retained, 458 
as long as there are non-Indian employees in the same craft employed elsewhere 459 
under the same contract. 460 
(2)  No contractor shall terminate or lay off any qualified trades worker pursuant to 461 
this law, without documented good cause. The contractor shall promptly replace 462 
the qualified trades worker with another qualified trades worker. 463 

40 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 11 

(3)  When a contractor begins to call back laid-off employees, that contractor shall 464 
notify the Indian Preference Office and shall call back qualified trades workers 465 
before bringing back other employees. 466 

(c)  Qualified trades workers and certified entities shall not be required to affiliate with 467 
organized labor for employment under this law.  The mere absence of affiliation with 468 
organized labor shall not disqualify a qualified trades worker from employment or 469 
contracting where that worker is otherwise qualified.  A qualified trades worker shall not 470 
be guaranteed to receive the benefits of a union contract, other than wage scales, unless the 471 
worker elects to join the union. 472 

502.8-7.  Construction Contracts:  Core Work Crew.  As a condition of a construction contract 473 
award, the contractor shall identify its core work crew, including those core work crew employees 474 
utilized by known subcontractors.  If such employees are approved by the Indian Preference Office, 475 
they may be employed on the project without regard to Indian preference.  Provided that, core 476 
work crew employees shall at no time displace qualified trades workers and/or potential qualified 477 
trades workers by performing work outside their trade or skill. 478 

(a)  For the purposes of employment on a project, the Indian Preference Office and the 479 
contractor, and any subcontractor, shall negotiate the designated members of the 480 
contractor’s core work crew. 481 
(b)  Any contractor that fills vacant positions immediately prior to undertaking work 482 
pursuant to a contract to which this section applies shall provide evidence acceptable to the 483 
Indian Preference Office that such actions were not intended to circumvent the provisions 484 
of this law. 485 
(c)  A contractor shall not use extraneous qualification criteria or other personnel 486 
requirements that prevent qualified trades workers from being employed, unless the 487 
contractor is able to demonstrate that such criteria or requirements are required by 488 
regulatory compliance. 489 

 490 
502.9.  Investigations and Enforcement 491 
502.9-1.  Complaints.  An individual or entity may file a written complaint with the Indian 492 
Preference Office if aggrieved by an act of non-compliance with: 493 

(a)  this law;  494 
(b)  a compliance agreement; and/or  495 
(c)  any standard operating procedure issued pursuant to this law.   496 

502.9-2.  Contents of the Complaint.  A complaint shall include information that will reasonably 497 
enable the Indian Preference Office to understand the general nature of the complaint and carry 498 
out an investigation, such as evidence of any discriminatory practices, alleged misconduct, or other 499 
non-compliance. 500 
502.9-3.  Complaint Investigation.  Upon receipt of a complaint or after witnessing non-501 
compliance with this law while conducting its monitoring duties, the Indian Preference Office shall 502 
conduct an investigation. 503 

(a)  In conducting an investigation to determine if the complaint has merit, the Indian 504 
Preference Office shall be authorized to: 505 

(1)  inspect and copy all relevant records; 506 
(2)  interview and speak to workers; and  507 
(3)  conduct inspections of the job site. 508 

(b)  Information collected during an Indian Preference Office investigation shall be kept 509 
confidential unless disclosure is necessary or required as part of any judicial or 510 
administrative proceeding or in accordance with a law of the Nation.   511 

41 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 12 

(1)  Any report or recommendation prepared by the Indian Preference Office for 512 
use at a hearing shall be promptly released to the complainant and alleged violator. 513 

(c)  If the Indian Preference Office receives a complaint or information that an entity is 514 
operating in a manner that is harmful to the health, safety, or welfare of the Nation or 515 
community, the Indian Preference Office shall immediately refer the complaint or 516 
information to the appropriate department or authority of the Nation for investigation.   517 

(1) The referral of a complaint does not prohibit the Indian Preference Office from 518 
its independent investigation of such complaint or information for purposes of 519 
ensuring compliance with this law. 520 
(2)  The Indian Preference Office shall have the authority to review the results of 521 
any other investigation conducted by another department or authority of the Nation 522 
in accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing open records. 523 

502.9-4.  Alleged Violation Has No Merit.  If the Indian Preference Office determines that the 524 
alleged violation has no merit, the Indian Preference Office shall notify all parties in writing that 525 
the complaint shall be closed.   526 

(a)  The complainant may file a complaint to contest this decision with the Nation’s Trial 527 
Court within ten (10) business days after issuance of such notice.  528 
(b)  The Trial Court shall then conduct an in-camera inspection of the investigation 529 
completed by the Indian Preference Office. During an in-camera inspection only a judge 530 
may review the information obtained by the Indian Preference Office during the 531 
investigation as this information is confidential and disclosure is not necessary. 532 
(c)  If after reviewing the Indian Preference Office’s investigation, the Trial Court 533 
determines the alleged violation has no merit, the Trial Court shall notify all parties in 534 
writing that the matter will be dismissed and no further appeals of the matter will be 535 
accepted. 536 
(d)  If after reviewing the Indian Preference Office’s investigation the Trial Court 537 
determines that there is sufficient evidence of a genuine and material issue of non-538 
compliance, the Trial Court shall order the Indian Preference Office to take action in 539 
accordance with section 502.9-5. 540 

502.9-5.  Alleged Violation Has Merit.  If the Indian Preference Office determines that the alleged 541 
violation has merit and there is sufficient evidence of a genuine and material issue of non-542 
compliance, the Indian Preference Office may take action to resolve the complaint. 543 

(a)  The Indian Preference Office may take any of the following actions to resolve the 544 
complaint: 545 

(1)  Attempt to reach an informal or formal resolution of the alleged non-546 
compliance; 547 

(A)  If a formal resolution is reached, any agreement shall be in writing and 548 
signed by all parties.  The issue shall then remain in abeyance for the term 549 
of the contract during which time all parties shall comply with the terms of 550 
the written agreement. Breach of the terms of the written agreement may be 551 
a cause of action for litigation before the Trial Court. 552 

(2)  Issue a notice of non-compliance to the entity by certified mail; 553 
(A)  The notice shall state the specific violation(s) alleged, the requirements 554 
that must be met to ensure compliance with this law, and shall provide a 555 
reasonable amount of time, not to exceed thirty (30) days, wherein the entity 556 
shall provide evidence that it has taken the steps necessary to come into 557 
compliance. 558 

42 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 13 

(3)  Place the entity’s certification in probationary status for a period not to exceed 559 
six (6) months; or suspend, revoke, or deny renewal of the entity’s certification;  560 

(A)  Once certification is revoked, an entity shall not be eligible to apply for 561 
re-certification until one (1) year has passed from the effective date of the 562 
revocation.  563 
(B)  At any time that certification is suspended, revoked, or has lapsed, a 564 
formerly certified entity shall not qualify for Indian preference.   565 
(C)  Where a certified entity loses certification: 566 

(i)  the contractor may be required to replace that entity with another 567 
certified entity if the work has not begun or performance under a 568 
contract has not commenced, unless replacement is impossible or 569 
would cause undue hardship; or 570 
(ii)  the Indian Preference Office may authorize the contractor to 571 
continue to utilize that entity without regard to Indian preference if 572 
work has already begun or performance under a contract has 573 
commenced. 574 

(4)  Issue a fine; 575 
(A)  The Indian Preference Office shall be delegated authority to develop a 576 
fine and penalty schedule that may be imposed upon any person or entity 577 
violating provisions of this law. The fine and penalty schedule shall be 578 
adopted by the Oneida Business Committee through resolution. 579 
(B)  No fines or penalties may be assessed against the Nation, the Indian 580 
Preference Office, or other department of the Nation, or employees engaged 581 
in their official duties under this law. 582 

(5)  Re-negotiate a compliance agreement with the contractor to include additional 583 
opportunities for qualified trades workers or certified entities; and/or 584 
(6)  Request the appropriate entity withdraw any licensing issued by the Nation. 585 

(b)  An individual or entity may contest an action taken by the Indian Preference Office by 586 
filing a complaint with the Trial Court within ten (10) business days after the date of 587 
issuance of the Indian Preference Office’s decision.  588 

502.9-6.  Additional Enforcement Measures.  If the Indian Preference Office is unable to facilitate 589 
a satisfactory resolution, and a notice of non-compliance or action against a certified entity’s 590 
certification has not resulted in a successful resolution, the Indian Preference Office may file an 591 
action with the Trial Court, seeking appropriate relief, including but not limited to: 592 

(a)  An injunction; 593 
(b)  Specific performance, including but not limited to: 594 

(1)  reinstatement of a qualified trades worker at the previous wage; 595 
(2)  immediate removal of employees hired in violation of this law; and/or 596 
(3)  employment, promotion or additional training for Indian preference-eligible 597 
parties injured by a violation; 598 

(c)  Payment of back pay, damages, and/or costs associated with the enforcement of an 599 
order issued by the Trial Court, including but not limited to filing fees, attorney fees, and/or 600 
costs incurred by the Indian Preference Office in bringing an action. Provided that, no 601 
money damages may be claimed in any suit against the Nation, the Indian Preference Office 602 
or other departments of the Nation, or officials of the Nation or employees engaged in their 603 
official duties under this law; and/or  604 
(d) Any other action the Trial Court deems lawful, equitable, and necessary to ensure 605 
compliance with this law and to alleviate or remedy any harm caused by non-compliance. 606 

43 of 213



Draft 2 (Redline to Draft 1 – PM Draft) 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 14 

502.9-7.  Although relief granted by the Trial Court may benefit an individual qualified trades 607 
worker, certified Indian preference entity, or other individual or entity, neither the Indian 608 
Preference Office nor the Nation represents those individuals and/or entities in any action for non-609 
compliance with this law. 610 
502.9-8.  Cease-and-Desist Orders.  The Oneida Police Department is hereby expressly authorized 611 
and directed to enforce such cease-and-desist or related orders as may from time to time be 612 
properly issued by the Trial Court.  Such orders shall require a decree or order to render them 613 
enforceable.  The Oneida Police Department shall not be civilly liable for enforcing such orders 614 
so long as the Trial Court signs the order. 615 
502.9-9.  Retaliatory Action Prohibited.  No entity shall punish, terminate, harass or take any other 616 
adverse personnel or hiring action in retaliation for a party’s exercise of Indian preference rights 617 
under this law. However, this section shall not prohibit action that can be reasonably justified as 618 
taken in good faith based on documented employee performance. 619 
 620 
End. 621 
 622 
Adopted BC-03-27-13-B 623 
Amended BC-__-__-__-__ 624 

 625 
 626 

 627 
 628 
 629 
 630 

44 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 1 

Title 5. Business - Chapter 502 
Yukwat^nhas Ukwehu=w# Kayanl^hsla 

Laws concerning the hiring of the Oneida People 
INDIAN PREFERENCE IN CONTRACTING 

 
 
502.1.  Purpose and Policy 
502.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Conflicts 
502.3.  Definitions 
502.4.  Jurisdiction 
502.5.  Certification of Entities 

502.6.  Application of Indian Preference to Contracts 
502.7.  Compliance Agreements 
502.8.  Skills Bank and Qualified Trades Workers 
502.9.  Investigations and Enforcement 

 1 
 2 
502.1.  Purpose and Policy 3 
502.1-1.  Purpose.  The purpose of this law is to establish an Indian Preference Office and 4 
increase economic benefits for the Nation and members of the Nation by providing for the 5 
maximum utilization of Indian workers and businesses on projects of the Nation which occur on 6 
or near the Reservation. 7 
502.1-2.  Policy.  It is the policy of the Nation to ensure that Indian preference provisions are 8 
applied fairly in all situations and in such a way that reflects the intent of this law; and to 9 
undertake reasonable efforts to ensure that all entities that enter into contracts with or on behalf 10 
of the Nation utilize the labor force of Indian workers and businesses by applying Indian 11 
preference in all aspects of fulfilling that contract, including but not limited to: hiring, training, 12 
business opportunities, labor and/or professional services, and the supply of materials. 13 
 14 
502.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Conflicts 15 
502.2-1.  This law is adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by Resolution BC-03-27-13-B 16 
and amended by resolution BC-__-__-__-__. 17 
502.2-2.  This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee and/or 18 
General Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. 19 
502.2-3.  Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 20 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are 21 
considered to have legal force without the invalid portions. 22 
502.2-4.  In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another 23 
law, the provisions of this law shall control.   24 
502.2-5.  This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 25 
 26 
502.3.  Definitions 27 
502.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 28 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 29 

(a)  “Agent” means one who acts relative to a fiduciary relationship to another; a person 30 
authorized to negotiate and/or transact business on behalf of an entity. 31 
(b)  “Bid” means an offer to execute a specified job or jobs within a prescribed time and 32 
not exceeding a proposed amount, and includes both offers that become legally binding 33 
upon acceptance, and nonbinding or informal quotes. 34 
(c)  “Bid shopping” means the practice of divulging a contractor’s or subcontractor’s bid 35 
to other prospective bidders before the award of a contract, in order to secure a lower bid. 36 
(d)  “Broker” means an intermediary; an independent contractor employed to negotiate 37 
business between a buyer and seller for compensation. 38 

45 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 2 

(e)  “Business day” means Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., 39 
excluding holidays recognized by the Nation. 40 
(f)  “Certification” means verification by the Indian Preference Office that an entity 41 
meets all the requirements necessary to qualify for Indian preference in accordance with 42 
this law. 43 
(g)  “Certified entity” means an entity that has received certification as an Indian-owned 44 
business from the Indian Preference Office. 45 
(h)  “Compliance agreement” means a binding agreement, negotiated between the Indian 46 
Preference Office and a contractor identifying specific Indian preference-related 47 
requirements for a project. 48 
(i)  “Construction contract” means any contract issued to build, repair, or remodel 49 
structures, and includes subcontracts and other construction agreements. 50 
(j)  “Contractor” means one who enters into a contract. 51 
(k)  “Core work crew” means the minimum amount of the contractor’s key employees, 52 
who perform a critical function such that an employer would risk likely financial damage 53 
or loss if that task were assigned to a person unfamiliar with and/or untrained in the 54 
employer’s procedures and routines, that are essential to start up and continue work on a 55 
project.  56 
(l)  “Employee” means any person that performs services and/or labor for an employer in 57 
exchange for compensation. 58 
(m) “Employer” means any entity, except the Nation, that controls and directs an 59 
employee under an express or implied contract of employment and is obligated to pay 60 
salary or wages in compensation. 61 
(n)  “Enterprise” means any internal operation owned and operated by the Nation that 62 
generates revenues through its core business functions, including but not limited to, 63 
Oneida Gaming, Oneida Retail, and Oneida Printing. 64 
(o)  “Entity” means  any person, sole proprietor, partnership, corporation, franchise, 65 
governmental body, or any other natural or artificial person or organization.  The term is 66 
intended to be as broad and encompassing as possible to ensure this law covers all 67 
employment and contract activities within the jurisdiction of the Nation. 68 
(p)  “Entities of the Nation” means all programs, departments, boards, committees, 69 
commissions and similar business units of the Nation, but shall not mean Tribal 70 
corporations. 71 
(q)  “Front” means a business entity that is strategically structured, financed, operated or 72 
staffed such as to unfairly take advantage of Indian preference as granted under this law. 73 
(r) “Indian” means an enrolled member of any federally-recognized Indian tribe. 74 
(s) “Indian-owned business” means an entity which is majority owned and managed by 75 
an Indian. 76 
(t)  “Indian preference” means preference for Indians, regardless of tribal affiliation, in all 77 
aspects of employment and contracting. 78 
(u) “Internal service” means any service provided for free or at cost for the Nation and 79 
includes but is not limited to such services as certain types of advocacy or representation, 80 
mail delivery and pick up, grant writing or assistance, tourism initiatives, Human 81 
Resource assistance and technical support. 82 
(v)  “Joint venture” means a one-time grouping of two (2) or more entities in a business 83 
undertaking. 84 

46 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 3 

(w)  “Lowest responsible bidder” means a bidder who, after any Indian preference 85 
discounts are applied, submits the lowest bid and is considered to be fully responsible and 86 
qualified to perform the work for which the bid is submitted. 87 
(x) “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 88 
(y)  “Non-construction contract” means any contract other than a construction contract, 89 
and includes subcontracts and other agreements. 90 
(z)  “Project” means any effort whereby the Nation or an entity of the Nation contracts 91 
for labor and/or goods or services that will support or benefit any aspect of the Nation’s 92 
government, holdings, infrastructure, workplace, economy or community. 93 
(aa) “Qualified trades worker” means a skilled worker qualified to perform services for 94 
the trade in which the person is trained, and includes general laborers. 95 
(bb) “Reservation” means all the lands within the exterior boundaries of the Reservation 96 
of the Oneida Nation, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the Oneida, 7 Stat. 566, 97 
and any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law. 98 
(cc) “Subcontractor” means a trade contractor, who is awarded a contract for the supply 99 
of services pursuant to a construction agreement, or a junior or secondary contractor who 100 
performs some or all of the prime contractor’s contractual obligations. 101 
(dd)  “Trial Court” means the Trial Court of the Oneida Nation Judiciary, which is the 102 
judicial system that was established by Oneida General Tribal Council resolution GTC-103 
01-07-13-B, and then later authorized to administer the judicial authorities and 104 
responsibilities of the Nation by Oneida General Tribal Council resolution GTC-03-19-105 
17-A. 106 
(ee)  “Tribal corporation” means a corporation chartered and/or wholly owned by the 107 
Nation pursuant to the Constitution and Bylaws of the Oneida Nation.  108 

 109 
502.4.  Jurisdiction 110 
502.4-1.  The Indian Preference Office shall implement, monitor, and enforce this law and other 111 
applicable laws and policies relating to Indian preference. 112 
502.4-2.  The Trial Court shall have jurisdiction over all matters related to the interpretation and 113 
enforcement of this law. 114 
502.4-3.  The Indian Preference Office and Trial Court shall have jurisdiction over all parties to 115 
any contract, subcontract, or compliance agreement to which this law applies, as well as 116 
jurisdiction over all subcontractors, employees, or other entities working with, for, or on behalf 117 
of such a party in fulfilling such contract, subcontract or compliance agreement. 118 
 119 
502.5.  Certification of Entities 120 
502.5-1.  Criteria for Certification as an Indian-Owned Business.  In order to seek certification 121 
as an Indian-owned business the following criteria shall be met by the applicant entity: 122 

(a)  There is Indian financial ownership, control and management of at least fifty-one 123 
percent (51%) of the entity. Evidence of both financial ownership and control shall be 124 
embodied in the entity’s organizational documents, including, but not limited to the 125 
documents of incorporation, stock ownership, or a partnership agreement. 126 

(1)  Indian Financial Ownership.  Indian financial ownership is established where 127 
the Nation, members of the Nation and/or other Indians own fifty-one percent 128 
(51%) or more of the assets and equipment, receive fifty-one percent (51%) or 129 
more of distributed net profits, and would receive fifty-one percent (51%) or more 130 
of the entity’s assets upon dissolution. 131 

47 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 4 

(2)  Indian Control.  Indian control is established where the Nation, member of 132 
the Nation and/or other Indian owner(s) maintain a minimum of fifty-one percent 133 
(51%) of voting rights or other controlling decisional authority. 134 
(3)  Indian Management.  Indian Management is established where an Indian 135 
owner(s) is directly involved in the entity’s management, this can be shown 136 
where: 137 

(A)  at least one (1) Indian owner is directly involved in the daily 138 
operations of the entity on a full-time basis and in a senior-level position; 139 
or 140 
(B)  at least one (1) Indian owner is responsible for the oversight of 141 
operations, even though the daily operations are conducted by non-owner 142 
employees. 143 

(b)  The entity can demonstrate financial responsibility, including but not limited to, 144 
evidence of an adequate line of credit, contributions of sufficient working capital, 145 
applicable required bonding and insurance, materials and/or equipment necessary to 146 
perform applicable work. 147 
(c)  The entity can provide past and current licensing or certifications, including any 148 
penalties, or other punitive actions or debarments taken by any licensing body within the 149 
past ten (10) years. 150 

502.5-2.  Application.  The applicant entity shall submit a completed and signed application to 151 
the Indian Preference Office, along with any documentation proving the entity meets the criteria 152 
for certification of an Indian-owned business. 153 

(a)  Upon receiving an application, the Indian Preference Office may interview the 154 
applicant and/or request additional information as may be necessary to make a 155 
determination regarding certification. 156 

502.5-3.  Certification Determination.  Within thirty (30) days of receiving the application and 157 
any additional requested information, the Indian Preference Office shall inform the applicant of a 158 
determination to: 159 

(a)  grant the certification;  160 
(b)  deny the certification, including a full written explanation of the reason for the 161 
denial; or 162 
(c)  grant probationary certification for a period of up to one (1) year, if so determined by 163 
the Indian Preference Office for reasonable and just cause.  164 

(1)  During the probationary period, the applicant shall satisfy any conditions 165 
imposed by the Indian Preference Office.  166 
(2)  The Indian Preference Office shall monitor the activities of the applicant, and 167 
may request and receive such information as necessary to ensure compliance with 168 
this law.   169 
(3)  The Indian Preference Office shall either grant or deny full certification at the 170 
end of the probationary period, or upon petition by the applicant, whichever 171 
occurs first. 172 

502.5-4.  Once an applicant entity has been granted certification, the Indian Preference Office 173 
shall mail a certificate to the entity. Granting an entity certification does not convey any 174 
comment regarding the ability of the entity to perform any work nor does it guarantee that an 175 
entity has met all the qualifications to obtain work under any particular contract where Indian 176 
preference may be applied. 177 
502.5-5.  Notification Requirements.  A certified entity shall report the following to the Indian 178 
Preference Office within ten (10) business days of such an occurrence: 179 

48 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 5 

(a)  changes in the ownership or control status of the entity;  180 
(b)  suspension, revocation, lapse or loss of any licensing, certification, insurance, 181 
bonding, or credit lines; and/or 182 
(c)  any other changes that could: 183 

(1)  affect an entity’s eligibility for certification;  184 
(2)  affect the financial liability of any entity, contracting party or the Nation; 185 
and/or  186 
(3)  alter the status of the qualifications of the entity. 187 

502.5-6.  Certification Renewal.  Certification is granted on an annual basis and shall lapse after 188 
one (1) year unless renewed.  189 

(a)  To apply for a renewal certification, each certified entity shall complete and return a 190 
renewal application and annual reporting form so that the Indian Preference Office may 191 
update its records.  192 
(b)  Annual renewal notices, applications and reporting forms shall be mailed to each 193 
certified entity at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of an entity’s certification; 194 
however, the responsibility for renewal is upon the entity.   195 
(c)  Exemption for Tribal Corporations.  Tribal corporations shall be exempt from the 196 
requirement to renew certification on an annual basis. Certification for a Tribal 197 
corporation is granted until such a time that the Indian Preference Office is made aware 198 
that there have been changes that may affect the certification status of a Tribal 199 
corporation in accordance with the notification requirements of section 502.5-5.   200 

(1)  When a Tribal corporation complies with the notification requirements of 201 
section 502.5-5 the Tribal corporation shall also apply for renewal of its 202 
certification.,  203 

(A)  The Indian Preference Office shall provide the Tribal corporation 204 
with a renewal application and annual reporting form.  205 
(B)  The Tribal corporation shall return the renewal application and annual 206 
reporting form to the Indian Preference Office ten (10) days. 207 

502.5-7.  Open Records.  In accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing open 208 
records, general, non-proprietary and non-private information provided for the purposes of 209 
acquiring certification shall be considered open records and available for public inspection.  210 
Provided that, all information given for purposes of receiving certification, including financial 211 
information, is subject to internal audit of the Nation. 212 
502.5-8.  Joint Ventures. All joint ventures seeking certification as an Indian-owned business 213 
shall submit documentation of the business arrangements of the joint venture in addition to the 214 
required documentation for certification. 215 

(a)  Certification for a joint venture shall be issued on a project specific basis. 216 
502.5-9.  Brokers, Agents and Franchises. 217 

(a)  Brokers.  Brokers shall be certified as an Indian-owned business only if they are 218 
dealers who own, operate or maintain a store, warehouse or other establishment in which 219 
the commodities being supplied are bought, kept in stock and sold to the public in the 220 
usual course of business; provided that this requirement shall not apply where the 221 
applicant demonstrates that it is not customary and usual in the area of the trade in 222 
question for a broker to maintain an establishment and to keep commodities in stock. 223 

(1)  To qualify as an Indian-owned business, the broker shall provide conclusive 224 
evidence that the broker is an independent contractor and not an agent of a non-225 
Indian owned business. 226 

49 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 6 

(2)  The broker shall also provide proof that he owes no fiduciary responsibility 227 
nor has a fixed or permanent relationship to any one company.  A broker shall 228 
hold himself or herself out for employment to the public generally and that the 229 
employment is not that of being a special agent for a single client. 230 

(b)  Agents.  Agents who are employees of a non-Indian-owned business or who merely 231 
represent a company, such as an insurance agent or real estate agent for a non-Indian-232 
owned business, shall not be certified as an Indian-owned business. 233 
(c)  Franchises.  A franchise may be certified as an Indian-owned business if the 234 
franchisee does not pay the franchisor a share or percentage of revenue or profits, but 235 
only compensates the franchisor through licensing, royalty and franchise fees as set out 236 
by contract, and/or for services provided, such as training and advising. 237 

502.5-10.  Fronts are Prohibited.  Entities shall be disqualified from certification as an Indian-238 
owned business in all situations where the entity operates as a front in order to unfairly take 239 
advantage of Indian preference granted under this law to Indian-owned businesses. 240 

(a)  The Indian Preference Office shall not certify entities that operate solely as fronts. 241 
(b)  No entity shall manipulate its business structure or misrepresent the roles of Indian 242 
individuals or entities in such a way as to become eligible for Indian preference in a 243 
manner inconsistent with the purpose and intent of this law. 244 
(c)  Examples of fronts include but are not limited to: 245 

(1)  Entities that represent that they are exercising management control of a 246 
project in order to qualify for Indian preference when in fact such management 247 
control is exercised by a non-Indian entity; 248 
(2)  Entities where Indians have senior management titles without the correlating 249 
responsibilities, control, or knowledge of operations; where the entity only 250 
qualifies for certification because an Indian holds that senior management role; 251 
(3)  Entities, not including legitimate brokers, that derive profit only by providing 252 
goods or services at an increased cost, where such goods or services could be 253 
acquired directly on the open market and/or from the entity’s source without 254 
paying a marked-up cost; and/or 255 
(4)  Any other situation where the Indian Preference Office determines that the 256 
application of Indian preference would in fact predominantly or substantially 257 
benefit non-Indians or non-Indian-owned businesses; or where Indians or Indian-258 
owned businesses only benefit by assisting the non-Indian or non-Indian-owned 259 
business with receiving the contract. 260 

 261 
502.6.  Application of Indian Preference to Contracts  262 
502.6-1.  Application of the Law.  Except where prohibited or limited by law or grant funding 263 
requirements, this law shall apply to all contracts over three thousand dollars ($3,000) that meet 264 
the requirements of (a) and/or (b) below: 265 

(a)  This law shall apply to: 266 
(1)  all contracts, subcontracts, and compliance agreements to which the Nation is 267 
a party, and all contracts, subcontracts and compliance agreements that are 268 
entered into on behalf of, or for the benefit of the Nation, whereby goods and 269 
services are provided on or near the Reservation; and 270 
(2)  all subcontractors, employees, or other entities working with, for, on behalf of 271 
a party to a contract, subcontract or compliance agreement as identified in (1), in 272 
fulfilling such contract, subcontract, or compliance agreement. 273 

50 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 7 

(b)  Tribal Corporations.  This law shall apply to Tribal corporations to the extent such 274 
corporations enter into contracts with the Nation. 275 

502.6-2.  Non-Applicability of the Law. 276 
(a)  Indian Preference in Hiring of Employees of the Nation.  The standards set out in this 277 
law shall not apply to preference as applicable to employees hired through the Nation’s 278 
Human Resources Department or pursuant to an employment contract. 279 
(b)  Internal Services and Enterprises. The application of Indian preference shall be 280 
superseded in specific situations in accordance with the following: 281 

(1)  The Nation shall exclusively utilize internal services and enterprises 282 
whenever an internal service of the Nation or enterprise could or does provide the 283 
necessary goods and services in the ordinary course of business. 284 
(2)  If an internal service or enterprise is unable to fulfill some or all of the 285 
requirements of a contract, then the provisions of this law shall apply to any 286 
outsourcing conducted by the internal service or enterprise. 287 

502.6-3.  Contract Specifications Review.  Prior to the posting or announcement of a contract for 288 
any project of the Nation, the specifications for such project shall be submitted to the Indian 289 
Preference Office.  290 

(a)  Within five (5) business days of receiving the specifications of the project the Indian 291 
Preference Office shall, with experts identified from other entities of the Nation, review 292 
the specifications, including bidding requirements, to ensure that there are no 293 
unnecessary and/or unjustifiable restrictions that may: 294 

(1)  preclude certified entities from bidding or being eligible to fulfill the contract 295 
or subcontract;  296 
(2)  disqualify qualified trades workers from employment opportunities created 297 
under such contract or subcontract; and/or 298 
(3)  create conditions that would make bidding, compliance, or employment 299 
unduly burdensome for qualified trades workers or certified entities. 300 

(b)  Unbundling a Contract. The Indian Preference Office may require that specific 301 
portions of a contract be outsourced to internal services, enterprises, certified entities 302 
and/or qualified trades workers, even if a single entity is capable of providing all of the 303 
goods and/or services required under the contract. Provided that, such outsourcing shall 304 
not cause undue hardship, unnecessary delay or additional expenses in completing the 305 
project. 306 

502.6-4.  In soliciting bids, the entity offering the contract shall indicate that Indian preference 307 
shall be applied in accordance with this law. 308 
502.6-5.  Cooperative Agreements.  Within the scope of authority defined in this law, the Indian 309 
Preference Office may enter into cooperative agreements with federal and state agencies, subject 310 
to the approval of the Oneida Business Committee. 311 
502.6-6.  Cultural Setting of Contracts.  All parties to a contract to which this law applies shall 312 
recognize that any operations are taking place within a unique cultural setting within the Nation. 313 
Every contractor shall make reasonable accommodations to the customs and beliefs of all Indian 314 
workers so as to promote rather than hinder the employment of Indians. 315 

(a)  If an Indian worker wishes to attend any traditional cultural activities or ceremonies, 316 
the worker shall provide reasonable advance notice to the contractor in requesting such 317 
time off. 318 
(b)  Where attendance at traditional cultural activities or ceremonies requires a worker to 319 
take time off from a regularly scheduled shift or workday, such time may be paid or 320 

51 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 8 

unpaid, at the discretion of the employer or as established by contract or compliance 321 
agreement. 322 

502.6-7.  Employees of the Nation.  In the execution of employment duties and in accordance 323 
with the Nation’s laws and policies governing employment, employees of the Nation shall follow 324 
this law in following contracting and bidding procedures for the Nation or entities of the Nation. 325 

(a)  The Indian Preference Office shall establish a training process for entities of the 326 
Nation that do contracting or bidding as a regular function of their duties. 327 

502.6-8.  Contracts and Attachments.  All contracts this law applies to shall: 328 
(a)  Stipulate that compliance with this law is required, and that violation of any portion 329 
of this law or applicable compliance agreement may be deemed a material and substantial 330 
breach of contract, enforceable: 331 

(1)  As set forth by the terms of the original contract for a breach of contract; and 332 
(2)  In accordance with the provisions of this law.  333 

(b)  Reference this law, and shall contain an acknowledgment clause, whereby the 334 
contractor shall agree to the following: 335 

(1)  The contractor has read and understands the provisions of this law; 336 
(2) The contractor understands how this law affects the contractor’s rights and 337 
responsibilities; and  338 
(3)  The contractor agrees that the provisions of this law shall govern the 339 
performance of the parties. 340 

(c)  Reference the Nation’s laws governing vendor licensing, and provide the contracting 341 
parties with directions on how to access that document. 342 

502.6-9.  Applying Indian Preference to Non-Construction Contracts.  Where more than one (1) 343 
bid is received for a non-construction contract, an Indian preference percentage discount of five 344 
percent (5%) shall be applied to all bids received from certified Indian-owned businesses. 345 
502.6-10.  Applying Indian Preference to Construction Contracts.  Where more than one (1) bid 346 
is received for a construction contract, the discount applied to bids from certified Indian-owned 347 
businesses shall be: 348 

(a)  ten percent (10%) of the first fifty thousand dollar ($50,000) segment of a bid; 349 
(b)  plus nine percent (9%) of the next fifty thousand dollar ($50,000) segment of a bid; 350 
(c)  plus eight percent (8%) of the next one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) segment 351 
of a bid; 352 
(d)  plus seven percent (7%) of the next one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) segment 353 
of a bid; 354 
(e)  plus six percent (6%) of the next one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) segment of 355 
a bid; 356 
(f)  plus five percent (5%) of the next one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) segment of 357 
a bid; 358 
(g)  plus four percent (4%) of the next five hundred thousand dollar ($500,000) segment 359 
of a bid; 360 
(h)  plus two percent (2%) of the next one million dollar ($1,000,000) segment of a bid; 361 
and  362 
(i)  plus one percent (1%) of any amount over two million dollars ($2,000,000). 363 

502.6-11.  Awarding the Contract.  After the appropriate discount has been subtracted from 364 
preferred bids, the following shall be used to determine which bidder is awarded the contract: 365 

(a)  If a bid from a certified entity is less than the total of the apparent low bid after 366 
Indian preference is applied, then the contract shall be awarded to the certified entity. 367 

52 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 9 

(b)  If none of the certified entity bids are less than the total of the apparent low bid after 368 
the Indian preference discount is applied, the contract shall be awarded to the lowest 369 
responsible bidder. 370 
(c)  Bid shopping is prohibited. 371 

502.6-12.  Monitoring the Contract.  Once a contract is awarded to an entity, the Indian 372 
Preference Office shall perform the following monitoring duties: 373 

(a)  Perform on-site inspections to verify compliance with this law; 374 
(b)  Require and review weekly workforce reports; 375 
(c)  Provide training to assist certified entities with understanding their rights and abilities 376 
under this law; and  377 
(d)  Receive feedback from contractors regarding the performance of any certified entity 378 
or qualified trades worker. 379 

502.6-13.  In the event that a dispute may arise regarding this law or a compliance agreement, all 380 
affected parties shall cooperate in good faith with the Indian Preference Office toward a mutually 381 
satisfactory resolution. 382 
 383 
502.7.  Compliance Agreements 384 
502.7-1.  Compliance Agreements.  Once a bid has been accepted, but before work commences 385 
on any portion of a contract or subcontract, each contractor shall meet with the Indian Preference 386 
Office to negotiate and execute a compliance agreement. All contractors and subcontractors shall 387 
comply with the terms of any compliance agreement executed in accordance with this law.   388 
502.7-2.  Contents of a Compliance Agreement.  A compliance agreement shall include, but is 389 
not limited to, the following information: 390 

(a)  Numerical hiring goals and timetables that specify the minimum number of Indians 391 
that must be utilized per contract dollar; and  392 
(b)  Compensation of qualified trades workers including wage scale, salaries and other 393 
benefits. Compensation shall be determined based on the prevailing wage scales of the 394 
Nation and/or federal or state governments. 395 

502.7-3.  Term of a Compliance Agreement.  Where a contract lasts for more than one (1) year, 396 
compliance agreements shall be reviewed annually and revised as necessary to reflect changes in 397 
hiring plans or the number of certified entities available. 398 
502.7-4.  Unless prior written consent of the Indian Preference Office has been received, a 399 
contractor shall not deviate from an executed compliance agreement by adding or removing any 400 
subcontracts, subcontractors or positions filled by qualified trades workers or certified entities, or 401 
by filling a vacancy with a non-qualified trades worker or a non-certified entity. 402 
502.7-5.  Limited Waivers.  The Indian Preference Office shall establish standard operating 403 
procedures to provide for emergency conditions and situations whereby a limited waiver of 404 
compliance may be authorized, in situations where a contractor has made a significant and 405 
documented good faith effort to achieve compliance, or can demonstrate that compliance is not 406 
practical for reasons other than pricing. 407 
 408 
502.8.  Skills Bank and Qualified Trades Workers 409 
502.8-1.  The Indian Preference Office shall establish and administer a Skills Bank to assist with 410 
providing Indians and first-generation descendants with employment opportunities.  The goal of 411 
the Nation is to achieve one hundred percent (100%) participation of qualified trades workers on 412 
projects. 413 

(a)  The Indian Preference Office shall identify, initiate, and sponsor training, internship, 414 
and apprenticeship opportunities necessary in order to increase the pool of qualified 415 

53 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 10 

trades workers and to assist Indians in becoming qualified in the various job 416 
classifications used by employers. 417 
(b)  The Indian Preference Office shall cooperate with other programs of the Nation to 418 
provide counseling and support to assist Indians in retaining employment.  419 

502.8-2.  The Skills Bank shall be the exclusive referral source under this law, representing the 420 
official compilation of qualified trades workers eligible for Indian preference in accordance with 421 
this law.  Skills Bank listings shall include the names and qualifications of the qualified trades 422 
workers. The Indian Preference Office shall regularly update the Skills Bank listings. 423 
502.8-3.  Entities required to fill positions in accordance with this law and/or a compliance 424 
agreement under section 502.7, shall contact the Indian Preference Office prior to the 425 
commencement of any work. 426 

(a)  Except where prohibited by law or grant funding requirements, the entity shall hire 427 
qualified trades workers from the Skills Bank in the following order of priority: 428 

(1)  Members of the Nation; 429 
(2)  First generation descendants of the Nation; and then 430 
(3)  Members of other federally-recognized Indian tribes. 431 

(b)  If a law or grant funding requirement prohibits the hiring of qualified trades workers 432 
in accordance with section 502.8-3(a), qualified trades workers shall be hired in 433 
accordance with the requirements of said law or grant. 434 
(c)  If the necessary labor cannot be acquired from the Skills Bank, then a limited waiver 435 
may be granted by the Indian Preference Office. 436 

502.8-4.  In order to be added to the Skills Bank, an applicant shall submit a completed 437 
application and documentation of the following: 438 

(a)  proof of enrollment or proof that the individual is a first-generation descendant of the 439 
Nation; 440 
(b)  education; including degrees, diplomas, apprenticeships, internships or continuing 441 
education training related to the field; 442 
(c)  proof of a driver’s license, including any endorsements, if applicable; 443 
(d)  if the worker is seeking to be listed as a qualified trades worker for a specific trade, 444 
then the worker shall provide specific information related to that trade, including:  445 

(1)  past and current licensing; 446 
(2)  credentials and certifications; and 447 
(3)  information related to penalties or punitive actions taken by any licensing 448 
body within the past ten (10) years.  449 

502.8-5.  Placing an applicant in the Skills Bank as a qualified trades worker confers recognition 450 
that he or she is eligible to receive Indian preference in accordance with this law.  A qualified 451 
trades worker shall be qualified for Indian preference for employment for a particular skill or 452 
trade if he or she meets the minimum qualifications for a particular skill or trade. 453 
502.8-6.  Wage and Hour Standards, Layoffs and Terminations, Call-Backs, Promotions, 454 
Unions. 455 

(a)  Every contractor utilizing qualified trades workers shall ensure that such workers 456 
receive equal compensation, including overtime pay, and shall have equal work 457 
standards, that are provided to other employees.  Contractors that hire qualified trades 458 
workers in order to comply with this law, but do not utilize those workers in a manner 459 
similar to other employees are not maintaining equal work standards. 460 
(b)  In making any layoffs or terminations, all contractors shall notify the Indian 461 
Preference Office prior to laying off or terminating a qualified trades worker. 462 

54 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 11 

(1)  No qualified trades worker with at least minimum qualifications for the job 463 
classification shall be terminated or laid off so long as a non-Indian employee in 464 
the same craft with similar skills remains employed. If the contractor lays off by 465 
crews, qualified trades workers shall be transferred to any crew that will be 466 
retained, as long as there are non-Indian employees in the same craft employed 467 
elsewhere under the same contract. 468 
(2)  No contractor shall terminate or lay off any qualified trades worker pursuant 469 
to this law, without documented good cause. The contractor shall promptly 470 
replace the qualified trades worker with another qualified trades worker. 471 
(3)  When a contractor begins to call back laid-off employees, that contractor shall 472 
notify the Indian Preference Office and shall call back qualified trades workers 473 
before bringing back other employees. 474 

(c)  Qualified trades workers and certified entities shall not be required to affiliate with 475 
organized labor for employment under this law.  The mere absence of affiliation with 476 
organized labor shall not disqualify a qualified trades worker from employment or 477 
contracting where that worker is otherwise qualified.  A qualified trades worker shall not 478 
be guaranteed to receive the benefits of a union contract, other than wage scales, unless 479 
the worker elects to join the union. 480 

502.8-7.  Construction Contracts:  Core Work Crew.  As a condition of a construction contract 481 
award, the contractor shall identify its core work crew, including those core work crew 482 
employees utilized by known subcontractors.  If such employees are approved by the Indian 483 
Preference Office, they may be employed on the project without regard to Indian preference.  484 
Provided that, core work crew employees shall at no time displace qualified trades workers 485 
and/or potential qualified trades workers by performing work outside their trade or skill. 486 

(a)  For the purposes of employment on a project, the Indian Preference Office and the 487 
contractor, and any subcontractor, shall negotiate the designated members of the 488 
contractor’s core work crew. 489 
(b)  Any contractor that fills vacant positions immediately prior to undertaking work 490 
pursuant to a contract to which this section applies shall provide evidence acceptable to 491 
the Indian Preference Office that such actions were not intended to circumvent the 492 
provisions of this law. 493 
(c)  A contractor shall not use extraneous qualification criteria or other personnel 494 
requirements that prevent qualified trades workers from being employed, unless the 495 
contractor is able to demonstrate that such criteria or requirements are required by 496 
regulatory compliance. 497 

 498 
502.9.  Investigations and Enforcement 499 
502.9-1.  Complaints.  An individual or entity may file a written complaint with the Indian 500 
Preference Office if aggrieved by an act of non-compliance with: 501 

(a)  this law;  502 
(b)  a compliance agreement; and/or  503 
(c)  any standard operating procedure issued pursuant to this law.   504 

502.9-2.  Contents of the Complaint.  A complaint shall include information that will reasonably 505 
enable the Indian Preference Office to understand the general nature of the complaint and carry 506 
out an investigation, such as evidence of any discriminatory practices, alleged misconduct, or 507 
other non-compliance. 508 

55 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 12 

502.9-3.  Complaint Investigation.  Upon receipt of a complaint or after witnessing non-509 
compliance with this law while conducting its monitoring duties, the Indian Preference Office 510 
shall conduct an investigation. 511 

(a)  In conducting an investigation to determine if the complaint has merit, the Indian 512 
Preference Office shall be authorized to: 513 

(1)  inspect and copy all relevant records; 514 
(2)  interview and speak to workers; and  515 
(3)  conduct inspections of the job site. 516 

(b)  Information collected during an Indian Preference Office investigation shall be kept 517 
confidential unless disclosure is necessary or required as part of any judicial or 518 
administrative proceeding or in accordance with a law of the Nation.   519 

(1)  Any report or recommendation prepared by the Indian Preference Office for 520 
use at a hearing shall be promptly released to the complainant and alleged 521 
violator. 522 

(c)  If the Indian Preference Office receives a complaint or information that an entity is 523 
operating in a manner that is harmful to the health, safety, or welfare of the Nation or 524 
community, the Indian Preference Office shall immediately refer the complaint or 525 
information to the appropriate department or authority of the Nation for investigation.   526 

(1) The referral of a complaint does not prohibit the Indian Preference Office 527 
from its independent investigation of such complaint or information for purposes 528 
of ensuring compliance with this law. 529 
(2)  The Indian Preference Office shall have the authority to review the results of 530 
any other investigation conducted by another department or authority of the 531 
Nation in accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing open records. 532 

502.9-4.  Alleged Violation Has No Merit.  If the Indian Preference Office determines that the 533 
alleged violation has no merit, the Indian Preference Office shall notify all parties in writing that 534 
the complaint shall be closed.   535 

(a)  The complainant may file a complaint to contest this decision with the Nation’s Trial 536 
Court within ten (10) business days after issuance of such notice.  537 
(b)  The Trial Court shall then conduct an in-camera inspection of the investigation 538 
completed by the Indian Preference Office. During an in-camera inspection only a judge 539 
may review the information obtained by the Indian Preference Office during the 540 
investigation as this information is confidential and disclosure is not necessary. 541 
(c)  If after reviewing the Indian Preference Office’s investigation, the Trial Court 542 
determines the alleged violation has no merit, the Trial Court shall notify all parties in 543 
writing that the matter will be dismissed and no further appeals of the matter will be 544 
accepted. 545 
(d)  If after reviewing the Indian Preference Office’s investigation the Trial Court 546 
determines that there is sufficient evidence of a genuine and material issue of non-547 
compliance, the Trial Court shall order the Indian Preference Office to take action in 548 
accordance with section 502.9-5. 549 

502.9-5.  Alleged Violation Has Merit.  If the Indian Preference Office determines that the 550 
alleged violation has merit and there is sufficient evidence of a genuine and material issue of 551 
non-compliance, the Indian Preference Office may take action to resolve the complaint. 552 

(a)  The Indian Preference Office may take any of the following actions to resolve the 553 
complaint: 554 

(1)  Attempt to reach an informal or formal resolution of the alleged non-555 
compliance; 556 

56 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 13 

(A)  If a formal resolution is reached, any agreement shall be in writing 557 
and signed by all parties.  The issue shall then remain in abeyance for the 558 
term of the contract during which time all parties shall comply with the 559 
terms of the written agreement. Breach of the terms of the written 560 
agreement may be a cause of action for litigation before the Trial Court. 561 

(2)  Issue a notice of non-compliance to the entity by certified mail; 562 
(A)  The notice shall state the specific violation(s) alleged, the 563 
requirements that must be met to ensure compliance with this law, and 564 
shall provide a reasonable amount of time, not to exceed thirty (30) days, 565 
wherein the entity shall provide evidence that it has taken the steps 566 
necessary to come into compliance. 567 

(3)  Place the entity’s certification in probationary status for a period not to 568 
exceed six (6) months; or suspend, revoke, or deny renewal of the entity’s 569 
certification;  570 

(A)  Once certification is revoked, an entity shall not be eligible to apply 571 
for re-certification until one (1) year has passed from the effective date of 572 
the revocation.  573 
(B)  At any time that certification is suspended, revoked, or has lapsed, a 574 
formerly certified entity shall not qualify for Indian preference.   575 
(C)  Where a certified entity loses certification: 576 

(i)  the contractor may be required to replace that entity with 577 
another certified entity if the work has not begun or performance 578 
under a contract has not commenced, unless replacement is 579 
impossible or would cause undue hardship; or 580 
(ii)  the Indian Preference Office may authorize the contractor to 581 
continue to utilize that entity without regard to Indian preference if 582 
work has already begun or performance under a contract has 583 
commenced. 584 

(4)  Issue a fine; 585 
(A)  The Indian Preference Office shall be delegated authority to develop a 586 
fine and penalty schedule that may be imposed upon any person or entity 587 
violating provisions of this law. The fine and penalty schedule shall be 588 
adopted by the Oneida Business Committee through resolution. 589 
(B)  No fines or penalties may be assessed against the Nation, the Indian 590 
Preference Office, or other department of the Nation, or employees 591 
engaged in their official duties under this law. 592 

(5)  Re-negotiate a compliance agreement with the contractor to include 593 
additional opportunities for qualified trades workers or certified entities; and/or 594 
(6)  Request the appropriate entity withdraw any licensing issued by the Nation. 595 

(b)  An individual or entity may contest an action taken by the Indian Preference Office 596 
by filing a complaint with the Trial Court within ten (10) business days after the date of 597 
issuance of the Indian Preference Office’s decision.  598 

502.9-6.  Additional Enforcement Measures.  If the Indian Preference Office is unable to 599 
facilitate a satisfactory resolution, and a notice of non-compliance or action against a certified 600 
entity’s certification has not resulted in a successful resolution, the Indian Preference Office may 601 
file an action with the Trial Court, seeking appropriate relief, including but not limited to: 602 

(a)  An injunction; 603 
(b)  Specific performance, including but not limited to: 604 

57 of 213



Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

5 O.C. 502 – Page 14 

(1)  reinstatement of a qualified trades worker at the previous wage; 605 
(2)  immediate removal of employees hired in violation of this law; and/or 606 
(3)  employment, promotion or additional training for Indian preference-eligible 607 
parties injured by a violation; 608 

(c)  Payment of back pay, damages, and/or costs associated with the enforcement of an 609 
order issued by the Trial Court, including but not limited to filing fees, attorney fees, 610 
and/or costs incurred by the Indian Preference Office in bringing an action. Provided that, 611 
no money damages may be claimed in any suit against the Nation, the Indian Preference 612 
Office or other departments of the Nation, or officials of the Nation or employees 613 
engaged in their official duties under this law; and/or  614 
(d) Any other action the Trial Court deems lawful, equitable, and necessary to ensure 615 
compliance with this law and to alleviate or remedy any harm caused by non-compliance. 616 

502.9-7.  Although relief granted by the Trial Court may benefit an individual qualified trades 617 
worker, certified Indian preference entity, or other individual or entity, neither the Indian 618 
Preference Office nor the Nation represents those individuals and/or entities in any action for 619 
non-compliance with this law. 620 
502.9-8.  Cease-and-Desist Orders.  The Oneida Police Department is hereby expressly 621 
authorized and directed to enforce such cease-and-desist or related orders as may from time to 622 
time be properly issued by the Trial Court.  Such orders shall require a decree or order to render 623 
them enforceable.  The Oneida Police Department shall not be civilly liable for enforcing such 624 
orders so long as the Trial Court signs the order. 625 
502.9-9.  Retaliatory Action Prohibited.  No entity shall punish, terminate, harass or take any 626 
other adverse personnel or hiring action in retaliation for a party’s exercise of Indian preference 627 
rights under this law. However, this section shall not prohibit action that can be reasonably 628 
justified as taken in good faith based on documented employee performance. 629 
 630 
End. 631 
 632 
Adopted BC-03-27-13-B 633 
Amended BC-__-__-__-__ 634 

 635 
 636 

 637 
 638 
 639 
 640 

58 of 213



Analysis to Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

     Yukwat^nhas Ukwehu=w# Kayanl^hsla 

AMENDMENTS TO 

INDIAN PREFERENCE IN CONTRACTING 

LEGISLATIVE ANALYSIS 

    
SECTION 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

REQUESTER: 
Ernie Stevens III 

SPONSOR: 
Ernie Stevens III 

DRAFTER: 
Clorissa N. Santiago 

ANALYST: 
Brandon Wisneski 

Intent of the 
Amendments 

 To update the definition of tribal corporation to include any corporation chartered 
and/or wholly owned by the Nation;  

 To raise the threshold to apply Indian Preference from one thousand five hundred 
dollars ($1,500) to three-thousand dollars ($3,000) for any contracts entered into 
by the Nation;  

 To permit joint ventures to qualify for Indian Preference on a project-specific 
basis; 

 To exempt tribal corporations from having to submit a certification renewal 
application on an annual basis;  

 Set a new timeline for Indian Preference Office to review contracts; 
 Clarify the Indian Preference Office’s authority to develop a fine and penalty 

schedule for violations of this law, to be approved by the Oneida Business 
Committee by resolution. 

Purpose To establish an Indian Preference Office and increase economic benefits for the 
Nation and members of the Nation by providing for the maximum utilization of 
Indian workers and businesses on projects of the Nation which occur on or near the 
Reservation [5 O.C. 502.1-1]. 

Affected Entities Indian Preference Office, Purchasing Department, Oneida Judiciary, Oneida Police 
Department, Oneida Licensing Department, Corporations chartered and/or wholly 
owned by the Nation, and any department or entity of the Nation that enters into 
projects or contracts greater than $3,000.   

Related 
Legislation 

Open Records and Open Meetings law, Vendor Licensing law, Personnel Policies 
and Procedures; Independent Contractor Policy, Travel and Expense Policy.  

Public Meeting A public meeting was held on December 19, 2019.      

Fiscal Impact A fiscal impact statement has not yet been requested.  

 

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE DEVELOPMENT 1 
A. The Nation’s Indian Preference in Contracting law was adopted on July 29, 1998 and most recently 2 

amended on March 27, 2013. The purpose of this law is to increase economic benefits for the Nation 3 
and members of the Nation by providing maximum utilization of Indian workers and businesses on 4 
projects of the Nation. The Nation’s Indian Preference Office is responsible for monitoring and 5 
enforcing Indian Preference in contracting.  6 

B. This law was added to the LOC’s Active file List on April 17, 2019 at the request of Councilmember 7 
Ernie Stevens III. The original intent of the amendments was to update the definition of “tribal entity.” 8 
Since that time, a work group of representatives from relevant entities and departments have met to 9 

59 of 213



Analysis to Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

review the law. Many of the proposed amendments reflect the feedback and suggestions of this work 10 
group.  11 
 12 

SECTION 3. CONSULTATION AND OUTREACH 13 
A. Representatives from the following departments or entities of the Nation participated in the 14 

development of this law and legislative analysis: Indian Preference Office, Purchasing Department, 15 
Law Office, Community and Economic Development Division, and Oneida ESC Group.   16 

B. The following laws of the Nation were reviewed in drafting this analysis: Open Meetings and Open 17 
Records law, Vendor Licensing law, Personnel Policies and Procedures, Independent Contractor 18 
Policy, Travel and Expense Policy, Layoff Policy, Furlough Policy, Oneida Nation Law Enforcement 19 
Ordinance.  20 
 21 

SECTION 4. PROCESS 22 
A.  Thus far, this law has followed the process set forth in the Legislative Procedures Act (LPA).  23 
B.  The law was added to the Active Files List on April 17, 2019.  24 
C. A public meeting was held on December 19, 2019 with the public comment period held open until 25 

December 30, 2019.  26 
C.  At the time this legislative analysis was developed, the following work meetings had been held 27 

regarding developments of these amendments and legislative analysis: 28 
 May 20, 2019 Work Meeting: LOC, Indian Preference, Purchasing, Oneida ESC Group. 29 
 June 5, 2019 Work Meeting: LOC. 30 
 June 6, 2019 Work Meeting: LOC. 31 
 July 25, 2019 Work Meeting: LOC, Law Office, Indian Preference, Purchasing. 32 
 September 26, 2019 Work Meeting: LOC, Indian Preference, Purchasing, Community Economic 33 

Development. 34 
 October 21, 2019 Work Meeting: Indian Preference, Community Economic Development. 35 
 October 24, 2019 Work Meeting: LOC. 36 
 November 14, 2019 Work Meeting: Indian Preference and Purchasing.  37 
 December 12, 2019 Work Meeting: LOC.   38 

 39 
SECTION 5. CONTENTS OF THE LEGISLATION  40 
A. Definition of Tribal Corporation. The Indian Preference law applies to tribal corporations to the extent 41 

that those corporations enter into contracts with the Oneida Nation [5 O.C. 502.6-1(b)]. Previously, the 42 
definition of tribal corporation was “a corporation chartered by the Oneida Tribe of Indians of 43 
Wisconsin pursuant to the Constitution and Bylaws of the Oneida Tribe.” This definition has been 44 
updated to “a corporation chartered and/or wholly owned by the Nation pursuant to the Constitution 45 
and Bylaws of the Oneida Nation” [5 O.C. 502.3-1(ee)].  46 
 Effect. Some of the corporations owned by the Nation are chartered in other states. For example, 47 

Oneida ESC Group is incorporated in the state of Nevada, but wholly owned by the Oneida Nation. 48 
This updated definition clarifies that this law will apply to all of the Nation’s corporations 49 
regardless of where they are chartered, organized or incorporated.  50 

 51 
 52 

60 of 213



Analysis to Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

      Chart 1. List of Oneida Nation Corporations.  53 
Tribal Corporation  

Oneida Airport Hotel Corporation Chartered by Oneida Nation.  

Bay Bancorporation Incorporated under WI Business Corporation law. 
Wholly owned by Oneida Nation.  

Oneida ESC Group, LLC Limited liability company (LLC) organized under 
Nevada law. Wholly owned by Oneida Nation.  

Oneida Golf Course Enterprise Corporation Chartered by Oneida Nation.  

Oneida Seven Generations Corporation. Chartered by Oneida Nation. Currently in the 
process of being dissolved.  

 54 
B. Joint Ventures. Joint ventures will now qualify for Indian Preference on a project-specific basis.  55 
 What is a Joint Venture? A “joint venture” is a one-time grouping of two (2) or more entities in a 56 

business undertaking [5 O.C. 502.3-1(v)]. A joint venture is a partnership where each party jointly 57 
undertakes a transaction for mutual profit. Each member of the joint venture contributes assets and 58 
shares risk [Cornell Law Legal Information Institute (LII)].  For example, two companies may form 59 
a joint venture to bid on a construction project that they otherwise would be unable to complete on 60 
their own.  61 

 Joint Ventures Now Eligible for Indian Preference. Previously, joint ventures were not eligible to 62 
receive Indian Preference. These amendments will permit joint ventures to receive Indian 63 
Preference on a project-specific basis [5 O.C. 502.5-8]. In other words, the joint venture will only 64 
receive Indian Preference for the specific project they are bidding on. Because joint ventures are 65 
typically a short-term partnership, any future joint venture will need to reapply for Indian 66 
Preference each time they bid on a project.  67 

 Effect. Entities that form joint ventures to bid on projects will now qualify for Indian Preference 68 
provided they meet all other requirements of this law.   69 

C. Threshold to Apply Indian Preference. Currently, the Indian Preference law applies to all of the 70 
Nation’s contracts over $1,500 except where prohibited by law or grant funding requirements. These 71 
amendments raise this threshold. Now, the Indian Preference law will only apply to the Nation’s 72 
contracts over $3,000 [5 O.C. 502.6-1].  73 
 Justification. This change was made at the recommendation of the Purchasing Department to match 74 

the Nation’s current procurement threshold. The Nation’s procurement policy requires three bids 75 
for any contract or purchase over $3,000. Setting both the Indian Preference and three-bid 76 
thresholds at $3,000 will make both policies easier to implement for the Nation. Purchasing also 77 
explained that most Indian Preference vendors bid on projects above $3,000, such as construction-78 
related projects. Therefore, Purchasing Department predicts that the higher threshold will have 79 
minimal impact on most Indian Preference vendors.  80 

 Effect. Indian Preference will only apply to contracts greater than $3,000. Any vendors bidding on 81 
projects between $1,500 and $2,999 will no longer receive Indian Preference.  82 

D. New Timeline for Indian Preference Office to Review Contracts.  The current Indian Preference law 83 
already requires that projects must be submitted to the Indian Preference Office for review before being 84 
posted or announced for bids. However, the current law does not include a timeframe for the Indian 85 
Preference office to complete this review.  86 
 New Timeline. These amendments add a new timeline for when the Indian Preference office must 87 

complete this review. Now, the Indian Preference Office must complete their review within five 88 

61 of 213



Analysis to Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

(5) business days [5 O.C. 502.6-4]. The intent is to ensure that projects can be posted in a timely 89 
manner.   90 

E. Fine and Penalty Schedule for Indian Preference Violations.  The current Indian Preference law 91 
already authorizes the Indian Preference Office to develop and the Business Committee to approve a 92 
fine and penalty schedule for violations of this law. However, no fine and penalty schedule has been 93 
adopted.  94 
 Changes. Previously, this law stated that fine amounts must be no less than $100 and no more than 95 

$1,000. These amendments remove this limitation. In addition, the amendments also specify that 96 
the fine amounts will be adopted by the Business Committee by resolution.  [5 O.C. 502.9-5(a)(4)]. 97 

F. Certification Renewal Exemption for Tribal Corporations. Indian Preference certification is granted 98 
on an annual basis and expires after one (1) year. Each year, certified entities must submit a renewal 99 
application and reporting form to maintain their certification. This ensures that entities still meet the 100 
requirements for Indian preference. Tribal corporations will now be exempt from having to submit a 101 
certification renewal form on an annual basis. [5 O.C. 502.5-6(c)]. 102 
 Background: Tribal corporations are chartered and/or wholly owned by the Oneida Nation. 103 

Compared to a private entity, tribal corporations are unlikely to experience a change in ownership 104 
or control that would impact their Indian Preference certification status without the Nation being 105 
aware of it. Therefore, the requirement to submit renewal forms each year has been deleted. Tribal 106 
corporations will still be required to notify that Indian Preference Office of any occurrence that 107 
would impact their eligibility for certification in accordance with 502.5-5.  108 

G. Minor Drafting Changes.  Minor drafting changes have been made throughout the law, such as 109 
changing “Tribe” to “Nation” or moving the order of existing sections.    110 
 111 

SECTION 6. EFFECT ON EXISTING LEGISLATION 112 
A. References to the Other Laws of the Nation: The following laws of the Nation are referenced in this 113 

law. These amendments do not conflict with any of the referenced laws. 114 
 Open Records and Open Meetings law. In accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies 115 

governing open records, general, non-proprietary and non-private information provided for the 116 
purposes of acquiring certification shall be considered open records and available for public 117 
inspection.  [5 O.C. 502.5-7 and 502.9-3(c)(2)].       118 

 Personnel Policies and Procedures.  In the execution of employment duties and in accordance 119 
with the Nation’s laws and policies governing employment, employees of the Nation shall follow 120 
this law in following contracting and bidding procedures for the Nation or entities of the Nation 121 
[5 O.C. 502.6-7].  122 

 Vendor Licensing. All contracts this law applies to must include reference to the Nation’s laws 123 
governing vendor licensing and provide the contracting parties with directions on how to access 124 
that document [5 O.C. 502.6-8(c)].  125 

B. Other Laws that Reference Indian Preference in Contracting: The following laws of the Nation 126 
reference Indian Preference in Contracting. These amendments do not conflict with any of the 127 
referenced laws. 128 
 Independent Contractor Policy. “It is… the policy of the Tribe that the order of preference, as set 129 

out in the Tribe’s Indian Preference law, be used in the selection of independent contractors” [5 130 
O.C. 503.1-2(b)].  131 

62 of 213



Analysis to Draft 2 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 Travel and Expense Policy. In regard to business expenses, “Considerations should be given to 132 
patronizing tribally owned business and Indian Preference vendors certified by the Compliance 133 
division” [2 O.C. 219.9-4(f)].  134 

 Judiciary Canons of Judicial Conduct. “Nothing in these canons shall be construed as prohibiting 135 
a Judge from affiliating with, using the facilities of, or attending events sponsored by organizations 136 
that support Native American issues, exercise tribal or Indian Preference…” [8 O.C. 802.3.2.2].  137 

C. Other Laws that Reference Indian Preference in Hiring: The following laws of the Nation reference 138 
Indian Preference as it relates to the Nation’s hiring process. The standards set in this law do not apply 139 
to preference “as applicable to employees hired through the Nation's HRD or pursuant to an 140 
employment contract" [5 O.C. 502.6-2(a)]. The Nation’s Indian preference in hiring process is located 141 
in Section III of the Nation’s Personnel Policies and Procedures. These amendments do not conflict 142 
with any of the referenced laws. 143 
 Layoff Policy. “The Oneida Tribe recognizes Indian preference in the development of layoff SOPs. 144 

Indian preference as used in this policy shall mean a preference granted to retain the Oneida 145 
member employee when all other things being equal with non-member employees. Provided that, 146 
a manager may identify critical positions within the business unit which shall not be subject to 147 
Indian Preference” [2 O.C. 207.4-1].  148 

 Furlough Policy. “Indian preference may not be used as a consideration in identifying employees 149 
to be furloughed” [2 O.C. 205.5-4].  150 

 Oneida Nation Law Enforcement Ordinance. “The following positions shall be held only by 151 
members of the Oneida Tribe: Police Chief, Assistant Chief, Police Lieutenant or Sergeant, 152 
Conservation Director, Assistant Conservation Director… All other positions and appointments 153 
shall be subject to the Indian Preference rules of the Oneida Tribe” [3 O.C. 301.5-3(d)].  154 

 155 
SECTION 7. ENFORCEMENT AND ACCOUNTABILITY 156 
A. Enforcement. The Nation’s Indian Preference Office is authorized to enforce this law [5 O.C. 502.4-1 157 

502.9-5]. In addition, the Oneida Police Department is authorized to enforce orders issued by the Trial 158 
Court, such as cease-and-desist orders [5 O.C. 502.9-8].  159 
 160 

SECTION 8. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 161 
A. Fine and Penalty Schedule. At the time this analysis was drafted, the Indian Preference Office is 162 

developing a fine and penalty schedule for consideration by the Oneida Business Committee. The LOC 163 
intends to bring a proposed fine and penalty schedule resolution to the Oneida Business Committee at 164 
the time these amendments are up for adoption.   165 

B. Fiscal Impact. A fiscal impact statement has not yet been requested. 166 
 Under the Legislative Procedures Act, a fiscal impact statement is required for all legislation except 167 

emergency legislation [1 O.C. 109.6-1].  168 
 A fiscal impact statement shall be submitted by agencies as directed by the Legislative Operating 169 

Committee and may be prepared by any agency who may receive funding if the legislation is 170 
enacted; who may administer a program if the legislation is enacted; who may have financial 171 
information concerning the subject matter of the legislation; or by the Finance Office, upon request 172 
of the Legislative Operating Committee [1 O.C. 109.6-1(a and b).]. 173 

 174 

63 of 213



64 of 213

TO: Lawrence E. Batton, Chief Financial Officer 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 

PO Box 365 • Oneida, WI 54155-0365 
Oneida-nsn.gov 

Ralinda R. Ninham-Lamberies, Assistant Chief Financial Officer 

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 

FROM: 
Rae M. Skenandore, Financial Management Analyst ~ 

David P. Jordan, Legislative Operating Committee Chairman \ fQ,~-1, _ 
February 19, 2020 ~ U...r--
Indian Preference in Contracting Law Amendments Fiscal Impact Statement 

DATE: 

RE: 

The Legislative Operating Committee (LOC) is cmTently developing amendments to the Indian 

Preference in Contracting law. The Legislative Procedures Act requires that a fiscal impact 

statement be provided for all proposed legislation of the Nation. [1 O.C. 109.6-1}. The fiscal 

impact statement is an estimate of the total fiscal year financial effects associated with the proposed 

legislation, and should include: 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

staitup costs; 

personnel; 

office costs; 

documentation costs; and 

an estimate of the amount oftime necessary for an individual or agency to comply with the 

law after implementation. [J O.C. 109.3-l(c)}. 

The fiscal impact statement must be completed and submitted to the LOC prior to the proposed 

legislation being forwarded to the Oneida Business Committee for consideration. [1 0. C. 109. 6-

2}. The fiscal impact statement provides the Oneida Business Committee information on what the 

potential adoption of the proposed legislation will cost the Nation, so that the Oneida Business 

Committee can dete1mine if adoption of the proposed legislation is in the best interest of the 

Nation. 

The Legislative Procedures Act grants the LOC the authority to direct the Finance Depaitment or 

any agency who may administer a program if the legislation is enacted or may have financial 

information concerning the subject matter of the legislation to submit a fiscal impact statement. [J 

o.c. 109.6-1}. 

Oneida Business Committee resolution BC-09-25-19-A titled, "Interpreting 'Fiscal Impact 

Statement' in the Legislative Procedures Act" provides fmther clarification on the process for 

directing a fiscal impact statement be completed. This resolution provides that when developing a 

fiscal impact statement for proposed legislation to be used for presentation to and consideration of 

adoption by the Oneida Business Conunittee, the Finance Depaitment shall, within ten (10) 

business days of final approval of draft legislation by the Legislative Operating Committee, 

provide a fiscal impact statement to the Legislative Operating Committee. 

On February 19, 2020, the Legislative Operating Committee approved the final draft of the 

proposed amendments to the Indian Preference in Contracting law. Therefore, the LOC is directing 

Page 1 of 2 
A good mind. A good heart. A st rong fire. 



65 of 213

the Finance Department to provide a fiscal impact statement on the proposed amendments to the 

Child Suppmt law by March 4, 2020. 

A copy of the proposed amendments to the Indian Preference in Contracting law, as well as the 

legislative analysis, have been attached to this memorandum for your convenience. 

Requested Action 

Provide the LOC a fiscal impact statement of the proposed amendments to the Indian Preference 

in Contracting law by March 4, 2020. 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

Page 2 of 2 

r'\ 
;QCJOOOD: 

ONEIDA 



Page 1 of 2 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

Legislative Operating Committee 
February 19, 2020 

Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet 
Management Law Amendments          
Submission Date:2/7/18 Public Meeting: 1/23/20 

LOC Sponsor:   Jennifer Webster Emergency Enacted: n/a 

Summary:  The Human Resources Department and the Law Office have recommended changes to this

law since its recent adoption and implementation. 

2/7/18 LOC:  Motion by Ernest Stevens III to add the Vehicle Driver and Fleet Management amendments to 
active files list as a medium priority and assign Jennifer Webster as the sponsor. Seconded by 
Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously. 

7/15/19: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Matthew J. Denny, Nic 
Reynolds, Barbara Kolitsch, Robert Keck, Destiny Prendiville. The purpose of this work 
meeting was to begin discussing potential amendments to the law. The work group reviewed 
the law line by line and discussed revisions that should be presented to the LOC for 
consideration. 

7/29/19: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Matthew J. Denny, Nic 
Reynolds, Robert Keck, Wendy Alvarez, Gunladunt Webster. The purpose of this work 
meeting was to continue discussing potential amendments to the law. The work group 
continued reviewing the law line by line and discussing revisions that should be presented to 
the LOC for consideration. 

8/13/19: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Barbara Kolitsch, Nic 
Reynolds, Robert Keck, Wendy Alvarez, Gunladunt Webster. The purpose of this work 
meeting was to continue discussing potential amendments to the Vehicle Driver Certification 
and Fleet Management law, as well as review research that was conducted on questions that 
arose during prior work meetings. 

9/4/19: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens 
III, Daniel Guzman King, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Jameson 
Wilson. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss a plan to move this item forward, as 
well as begin discussion policy considerations that will affect potential amendments to this 
law. 

10/2/19: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Nic Reynolds, Robert Keck, 
Wendy Alvarez, Gunladunt Webster, Rick Fuss. After the previous three work meetings with 
HRD and Risk Management the LRO took many of their suggestions and recommendations 
and brought that information to the LOC. The LOC began making policy considerations. The 
purpose of this work meeting was to review the first draft of the proposed amendments to the 

66 of 213



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Law and obtain input from the effected entities so that information can be brought back to the 
LOC. 

10/16/19: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman 
King, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this work 
meeting was to review an updated draft of the proposed amendments and begin making policy 
considerations.  

10/24/19: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens III, Jennifer Falck, 
Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this work meeting was to review an 
updated draft of the proposed amendments, and make decisions as to how to move this item 
forward. LRO will schedule a work meeting between LOC, HRD, Risk Management, and 
Fleet Management. 

11/5/19: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman 
King, Ernest Stevens III, Jenifer Falck, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Robert Keck, 
Wendy Alvarez, Gunladunt Webster, Matthew J. Denny, Leyne Orosco. The purpose of this 
work meeting was to review the proposed draft and discuss any potential revisions that need 
to be made before it is placed on the LOC agenda on December 4, 2019. 

12/4/19 LOC: Motion by Ernest Stevens III to approve the draft and legislative analysis of the amendments 
to the Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management law and forward to a work meeting 
for further discussion; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously.  

12/4/19: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Ernest Stevens III, Jennifer Falck, 
Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss 
and consider the considerations contained in the legislative analysis, as well as the comments 
that were received during the LOC meeting. LRO will update the draft and analysis based on 
these discussions, and prepare a public meeting packet to come to the next LOC meeting. 

12/18/19 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to approve the public meeting packet and forward the Vehicle 
Driver Certification and Fleet Management law amendments to a public meeting to be held 
on January 16, 2020; seconded by Ernest Stevens III. Motion carried unanimously. 

12/18/19: E-Poll Conducted. E-Poll was titled “Approval of January 23, 2020, Updated Public Meeting 
for the Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management Law Amendments.” The requested 
action of this e-poll was to approve the updated public meeting packet and forward the Vehicle 
Driver Certification and Fleet Management law amendments to a public meeting to be held 
on January 23, 2020, instead of January 16, 2020. The e-poll was approved by David P. Jordan, 
Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens III, Kirby Metoxen. Daniel Guzman King did not provide a 
response. 

1/15/20 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to enter the E-poll into the record from 12/18/19 to approve the 
January 23, 2020 Updated public meeting for the Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet 
Management Law Amendments; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

1/23/20: Public Meeting Held. Present: Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon 
Wisneski, Lee Cornelius, Nicolas Reynolds, Geraldine Danforth, Jacque Boyle, Barbara 
Kolitsch, Michelle Myers, Carol Silva, Rae Skenandore, Jeffrey Prevost, Lisa A. Moore. Two 
(2) individuals provided oral comments during the public meeting. 

1/30/20: Public Comment Period Closed.  Two (2) individuals submitted written comments during the 
public comment period. 

 
Next Steps: 
 Accept the public comments and the public comment review memorandum and defer to a work 

meeting for further consideration 

67 of 213



68 of 213

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365 • Oneida, WI 54115-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov 

Legislative Operating Committee (LOC) ~ {i 

Clarissa N. Santiago, Legislative Reference Office, Staff Attorney c,\JS 
Febrnary 19, 2020 

~ 
=DDDDOO 

ONEIDA 

RE: Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management Amendments: Public Meeting 

Comment Review 

On January 23, 2020, a public meeting was held regarding the proposed amendments to the Vehicle 

Driver Certification and Fleet Management law ("the Law"). The public comment period was then 

held open until January 30, 2020. This memorandum is submitted as a review of the oral and 

written comments received within the public meeting and public comment period. 

The public meeting draft, and public meeting transcript, and written comments received are 

attached to this memorandum for review. 

Comment 1 - Sup ort for Revisions to Law: 

Barbara Kolitsch (written): Hi -The below comments are to be directed to the Legislative 

Reference Office, but there's no such email, so I am submitting to Clarissa and LOC in hopes it 

will get to the c01Tect office. I provided oral comments today, Jan 23, 2020. Below includes 

testimony I provided as well as testimony I did not have time to provide in the allotted five minutes. 

I appreciate the work on the LRO in revising this law. The revisions are well done! Thank you! 

It's simpler and easier to follow! I recommend some additional revisions ... 

Response 

The commenter expresses support for the proposed revisions to the Law, and provides that she has 

submitted some additional potential revisions for the Legislative Operating Committee's 

consideration. 

There is no revision to the Law recommended based on this comment. 

LOC Consideration 

Page 1 of 22 
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



 

Page 2 of 22 

 

Comments 2 through 4 – Mandatory Requirement of Training for all Employees: 
 
210.4. Driver Certification 
210.4-2.  Qualifications for Certification.  In order to receive driver certification a person 
shall: 

(d)  Complete all driver training requirements imposed by the Nation or any federal 
or state agency regulations; 

 
210.5. Responsibilities of a Certified Driver  
210.5-2.  Training Responsibilities.  An individual with driver certification shall complete the 
driver safety training provided and monitored by the Human Resources Department every 
three (3) years.  

(a)  Exemption. An individual who is required to maintain compliance with any 
specialized driver safety training requirements imposed by state or federal regulatory 
agencies shall be exempt from the requirement to complete the driver safety training 
provided by the Human Resources Department. 

 
Barbara Kolitsch (oral): Do I need to state my name or anything?  Hello, my name is Barb 
Kolitsch.  I work for Personnel Services in the Gaming Division.  I’ll start my comments in 
regarding the training that’s required for the Vehicle Driver Training or vehicle driver policy.  And 
I am going to speak initially from my training experience.  I was a training director for many years, 
over twenty (20) years, I was a teacher for many, for a couple of years, I was a health educator for 
a couple of years and also coach and I’ll tell you and anyone who reads these comments, training 
doesn’t change behavior.  So, when we look at a training that’s required every three years, not only 
do people not remember what they were trained on every three years, training isn’t changing 
behavior.  There are other ways to help change behavior of a driver and (inaudible) called the 
influencer, there are a lot of better ideas on how to change behaviors if we are looking at changing 
behaviors of drivers.  So, I would recommend to remove that driving requirement or that training 
requirement from the drivers, the three years, every three years having to do safety training, 
because I don’t think that, you know a ten (10) to twenty (20) minute education on safety, driver 
safety, is changing behaviors of your drivers.  What I would recommend though, is if we have 
drivers and I noticed in the packet here today that we have a lot of at-fault accidents and at-fault 
drivers.  And so what I would recommend is then taking those at-fault drivers and putting them 
into a specialized course.  I looked up before I came here, there are online courses that an employee 
could be responsible for paying for it if they are an at-fault driver and these online courses 
guarantee that they increase the, the behaviors of drivers.  So, there are online courses, the one in 
particular that I looked at, specifically for fleet drivers for companies, was twenty- ninety-five 
($27.95).  So, it’s something that, maybe an idea for increasing at-fault or decreasing the at-fault 
drivers that we have using that sort of type of, you know looking at drivers who are actually not 
making good decisions and putting them through training may be a better decision than putting 
everybody in general through training. 
 
Barbara Kolitsch (written): Training requirements: Safety every three years for all drivers – 
please remove safety training requirement for all. As a former Training Director, Trainer, School 
Teacher, Health Teacher, and professional Coach (35 years), training/teaching or education does 
not result in behavior change. Requiring all employees who drive to take safety training every 

69 of 213



 

Page 3 of 22 

 

three years is not going to change behaviors of our drivers. When I took the training, it was more-
so an act of getting through the training for compliance reasons. The reason I feel this way is 
because I have only been in one accident in my life…I was rearended at no fault of my own. My 
belief, and most people’s belief will be that they are doing the training due to other people being 
bad drivers. In the Public Hearing materials I noticed that of the accidents tracked, the majority of 
them were our employees being at-fault. To improve and change behaviors, the law should place 
the burden on the drivers to take safety training who have an onduty at-fault accident, and make 
the employee pay for that training. I found an on-line educational site for drivers where the 
company claims proven behavior and success rates with their training program for $27.95. I would 
require drivers who are reported to be at-risk drivers and those who have accidents while 
performing driving duties for the Oneida Nation. For example, if I get a ticket while driving on 
official duty, require me to take training. 
 
Barbara Kolitsch (written): Training as prevention is great, but maybe it should be “voluntary” 
for most drivers, and mandatory for drivers who demonstrate risky on-the-job driving, or drivers 
who get a ticket while on duty, or drivers who have an at-fault accident while on duty. If I 
voluntarily take training I’m much more likely to learn by the nature I’m choosing to take it – to 
learn. If I’m mandated, I’m much more likely to go through the motions. This is human behavior. 
If I’m mandated to watch it due to my behavior at my own cost – I think I would pay attention if 
there’s risk of losing my job if it happens again (though disciplinary action – in the new version 
of the law.) I mentioned a book called Influencer in my inperson comments. This testimony is 
further supported in the research presented in the book. I was certified as a Trainer to teach the 
training Influencer in 2018. Believe me, if I felt training would change behaviors, I would feel 
much safer on the road. I’ve been hit 11 times while riding my bicycle by distracted drivers. I’ve 
had many friends hit by cars on their bikes and one friend killed on his bike. This experience has 
made me a more attentive as a driver because I know it’s so easy to be distracted these days! I 
wouldn’t recommend putting all of our drivers on a bicycle to observe how most drivers are so 
distracted, there has to be a better way than traditional “training”. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter provides her disbelief that requiring every employee of the Nation to complete a 
driver safety training provided and monitored by the Human Resources Department would have 
any impact on the behavior or driving capabilities of an employee. Instead, the commenter suggests 
that the mandatory training requirement be removed from the Law and replaced with a requirement 
that any employee who has an at-fault accident while on duty be required to take a driver safety 
course. 
 
The Law provides that in order to receive driver certification a person shall complete all driver 
training requirements imposed by the Nation or any federal or state agency regulations. [2 O.C. 

210.4-2(d)]. The Law further provides that any individual with driver certification shall complete 
the driver safety training provided and monitored by the Human Resources Department every three 
(3) years. [2 O.C. 210.5-2]. An individual who is required to maintain compliance with any 
specialized driver safety training requirements imposed by state or federal regulatory agencies is 
exempt from the requirement to complete the driver safety training provided by the Human 
Resources Department. [2 O.C. 210.5-2(a)]. 

70 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 4 of 22 

 

 
What driver safety requirements to impose on an employee of the Nation is a policy consideration 
for the Legislative Operating Committee to make. The Legislative Operating Committee may 
make one of the following considerations: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted to require that in order to receive and maintain 
driver certification a person shall complete and maintain all driver training requirements 
imposed by the Nation or any federal or state agency regulations. 

2. The Law should be revised so that the mandatory training requirement is removed from the 
Law and replaced with a requirement that any employee who has an at-fault accident while 
on duty be required to take a driver safety course. If the Legislative Operating Committee 
makes this determination then the following revision is recommended: 
 
210.5. Responsibilities of a Certified Driver  
210.5-2.  Training Responsibilities.  An individual with driver certification shall complete 
the driver safety training provided and monitored by the Human Resources Department 
every three (3) years.  

(a)  Exemption. An individual who is required to maintain compliance with any 
specialized driver safety training requirements imposed by state or federal 
regulatory agencies. shall be exempt from the requirement to complete the driver 
safety training provided by the Human Resources Department. 

 
210.7. Motor Vehicle Crashes or Damage to Vehicles 
210.7-2.  Internal Review. The Fleet Management Department and Risk Management 
Department shall coordinate and conduct an internal review of the auto incident report for 
a motor vehicle crash and/or damage to a vehicle.  

(a)  Fleet Management and Risk Management may recommend whether an 
individual should be subject to disciplinary action and/or a driver safety training 
requirement based on the motor vehicle crash or incident resulting in damage to a 
vehicle 

 

210.8. Suspension of Driver Certification and Other Enforcement  
210.8-8.  Driver Safety Training.  A supervisor may require that an individual complete a 
driver safety training, at his or her own expense, if the individual: 

(a)  is involved in an at-fault motor vehicle crash or damage involving the fleet 
vehicle or personal vehicle driven on official business; 
(b)  receives a moving violation while driving a fleet vehicle or personal vehicle 
driven on official business; and  
(c)  has his or her driver’s license suspended or revoked by the State or becomes 
invalid for any other reason. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

 

 

 

 

71 of 213



 

Page 5 of 22 

 

 

Comments 5 through 6 – Administrative Difficulty of Tracking Training: 
 
210.4. Driver Certification 
210.4-2.  Qualifications for Certification.  In order to receive driver certification a person 
shall: 

(d)  Complete all driver training requirements imposed by the Nation or any federal 
or state agency regulations; 

210.4-3.  The Nation’s Human Resources Department shall be responsible for determining 
whether an individual meets all the qualifications before approving or denying a driver 
certification.  

(a)  An individual shall provide his or her appropriate license, training certification, 
and insurance information to the Human Resources Department. 
(b)  The Human Resources Department shall have the authority to check the driving 
record of an individual at any time. 
(c)  The Human Resources Department shall maintain a current list of all certified 
drivers and provide the list to Fleet Management, Risk Management, and Central 
Accounting on a regular basis. 

210.4-4.  A supervisor shall ensure that an individual has received his or her driver 
certification from the Human Resources Department before allowing the individual to drive 
a fleet vehicle or a personal vehicle on official business. 
 
210.5. Responsibilities of a Certified Driver  
210.5-2.  Training Responsibilities.  An individual with driver certification shall complete the 
driver safety training provided and monitored by the Human Resources Department every 
three (3) years.  

(a)  Exemption. An individual who is required to maintain compliance with any 
specialized driver safety training requirements imposed by state or federal regulatory 
agencies shall be exempt from the requirement to complete the driver safety training 
provided by the Human Resources Department. 

 
Barbara Kolitsch (oral): And then it’s also difficult, it’s a tracking, something that has to be 
tracked, it’s a lot of administrative work to track whether somebody has been trained or not.  
Recently we just went through somewhat of an audit with training and we had drivers who were 
required to have the training who didn’t.  So, again it’s an administrative nightmare, there is a lot 
of responsibility put on HR and put on supervisors to make sure that they have that training. 
 
Barbara Kolitsch (written): Tracking training is a huge administrative burden. As former 
Training Director at Human Resources, every time we had required training for large groups, there 
are legitimate reasons people are noncompliant: leave of absence, vacation, business (customer 
priority), staff shortage, staff emergency, etc. In a recent self-audit in Gaming the Personnel 
Services staff found there were some Gaming employees who needed drivers safety training and 
never had taken it almost three years ago. Gaming has a very high compliance rate in training 
requirements from my experience as former Training Director, yet we still missed a few. Some 
may feel it’s our job (HR or Personnel Services), but in reality it’s the supervisor’s job to make 
sure employees are in compliance with policies and procedures. There’s a lot for supervisors to 

72 of 213



 

Page 6 of 22 

 

track, so this may be an important thing to track, but may be put on the backburner when there’s a 
business to run and customers/clients/and more urgent matters to deal with. Safety training is not 
urgent, it’s purpose is meant to help prevent accidents. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter provides insight on the administrative burden that is placed on the Human 
Resources Department and supervisors with tracking compliance with driver safety training. The 
commenter provides this information for the Legislative Operating Committee to consider in 
regard to the request to remove the mandatory requirement of driver safety training for all certified 
drivers of the Nation.  
 
The Law currently requires that an individual obtain driver certification from the Human 
Resources Department before operating a fleet vehicle or personal vehicle on official business. [2 

O.C. 210.4-1]. One qualification for receiving driver certification is completing all driver training 
requirements imposed by the Nation or any federal or state agency regulations. [2 O.C. 210.4-

2(d)]. The Nation’s Human Resources Department is delegated the responsibility for determining 
whether an individual meets all qualifications before approving or denying a driver certification. 
[2 O.C. 210.4-3]. Additionally, a supervisor shall ensure that an individual has received his or her 
driver certification from the Human Resources Department before allowing the individual to drive 
a fleet vehicle or a personal vehicle on official business. [2 O.C. 210.4-4]. 
 
The Law currently places responsibilities on both the supervisor and the Human Resources 
Department to ensure that an individual meets the qualifications for and has obtained driver 
certification before being allowed to operate a fleet vehicle or a personal vehicle while conducting 
official business. This is for the purpose of limiting the liability of the Nation by ensuring that only 
certified drivers are permitted to operate a fleet vehicle or a personal vehicle on official business. 
If the Law is going to require that an individual obtain driver certification, then the responsibility 
to determine if someone meets the qualifications and has obtained driver certification needs to be 
delegated to an individual or entity.  
 
Additionally, in the previous comment, the Legislative Operating Committee was specifically 
asked to consider the utility of imposing mandatory driver safety training on every individual who 
wishes to obtain and maintain driver certification. It is recommended that the Legislative Operating 
Committee take into consideration the administrative burden tracking driver safety training 
imposes on the supervisors and Human Resources Department when making that consideration.  
 
LOC Consideration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

73 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 7 of 22 

 

Comments 7 through 8 – Disqualification of Driver Certification for Moving Violations: 
 
210.4. Driver Certification 
210.4-2.  Qualifications for Certification.  In order to receive driver certification a person 
shall: 

(c)  Have a driving record that does not reflect any of the following conditions: 
(1)  Three (3) or more moving violations and/or at-fault motor vehicle crashes 
in the past two (2) years; and/or 
(2)  An operating while intoxicated (OWI), driving under the influence (DUI), 
or prohibited alcohol concentration (PAC) citation within the last twelve (12) 
months. 

 
Barbara Kolitsch (oral): My next comment is regarding the driving record and moving 
violations.  My question to the LOC or the LRO is, when someone is off duty, why do we penalize 
an employee?  So, for example, if the State law says I can drive, why can’t I drive for the job?  I 
do think we should track on duty violations and again tie that back to training and tie that back to 
disciplinary action if somebody is violating their driving rules that we have in the organization or 
driving laws that the State or Federal regulations have.  So, what was added into the new vehicle 
driver policy was moving violations, and again, if I have three speeding tickets in the next two 
years I become not certifiable and if these violations were all off duty, why is the organization 
punishing me for something that I did off duty?  I think we all do things off duty that we wouldn’t 
do at work, so I’m not sure what the correlation is really.  
 
Barbara Kolitsch (written): Driving record – please remove the consideration of violations on 
driving record – including drug and alcohol related I challenge the Committee to assess the 
requirement to be certified and only consider my driving record while on duty. If the state of 
Wisconsin says I can drive, and in the case of a personal vehicle – I’m paying for my insurance, 
why can’t I drive? I understand that if I cause an accident that causes more liability that I carry, 
the Tribe’s insurance kicks in, but I’m paying for the speeding tickets with my higher insurance 
rates. If I have three speeding tickets in the next two years, I would lose my job? And this doesn’t 
consider at all the fact that I had these tickets off duty. Everyone makes personal choices in their 
lives, and we all make some while off-duty that we may not do at work. Why does my off-duty 
behavior certify or not certify me to be able to drive. In most cases we look at a person’s state 
license…example: to teach, practice medicine, social work, day care, etc. So we recognize that 
license. Why don’t we recognize this state license to drive? 
 
Response 

 
The commenter asks the Legislative Operating Committee to reconsider qualifying driver 
certification on an individual’s driving record, due to the belief that it is unfair to use what may be 
an individual’s behavior while off duty in the consideration of whether that individual should 
receive driver certification from the Nation. The commenter recommends that in order to receive 
driver certification a person simply maintains a valid Wisconsin driver’s license.  
 
The Law provides that in order to receive driver certification a person shall have a driving record 
that does not reflect any of the following conditions: 

74 of 213



 

Page 8 of 22 

 

1. Three (3) or more moving violations and/or at-fault motor vehicle crashes in the past two 
(2) years; and/or 

2. An operating while intoxicated (OWI), driving under the influence (DUI), or prohibited 
alcohol concentration (PAC) citation within the last twelve (12) months. 
[2 O.C. 210.4-2(c)]. 

 
The qualification based on the individual’s driving record is in addition to qualifications that the 
individual: 
 is at least eighteen (18) years of age or older; 
 holds a valid Wisconsin driver’s license; 
 completes all driver training requirements imposed by the Nation or any federal or state 

agency regulations; 
 satisfies any other requirements specific to the job description and/or vehicle that may be 

used by or assigned to the person; and  
 maintains minimum insurance requirements for a personal vehicle if the individual will be 

using his or her personal vehicle to conduct official business. 
[2 O.C. 210.4-2(a)-(f)]. 

 
What qualifications to use when determining if an individual qualifies for driver certification is a 
policy consideration for the Legislative Operating Committee. The overall policy of this law is to 
ensure the safety of the community and employees of the Nation; minimize the Nation’s liability 
when physical damage to vehicles and/or property damage occurs as a result of a motor vehicle 
crash; and improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the use of vehicles owned by the Nation. [2 

O.C. 210.1-2]. One way that this Law ensures the safety of the community and employees of the 
Nation, while also minimizing the liability of the Nation when damage to vehicles or property 
occurs as a result of a motor vehicle crash is through the driving record check of all potential 
certified drivers.  
 
A review of an individual’s driving record when determining if an individual is qualified for driver 
certification is not a new provision included in the amendments to this Law, although it is being 
modified. The currently effective version of the Law, as adopted through resolution BC-06-28-17-
C, provides that in order to be certified, an individual shall pass a driving record check by the 
Human Resources Department to verify that the driver has no citation or conviction related to a 
traffic incident, and no driving citation or conviction involving drugs or alcohol, within the time 
period that would make the driver ineligible for certification under this law. [BC-06-28-17-C - 2 

O.C. 210.8-1(d)]. This means that is an individual has any citation or conviction related to a traffic 
incident, then that person is not eligible to become a certified driver. Due to the fact that the Law 
lacked clarity as to what exactly a “traffic incident” included, the Nation’s Human Resources 
Department had many issues with how to interpret this provision and determine if an individual 
should be certified for driving. Because of these interpretation issues, the Human Resources 
Department issued an interpretation in 2017 that defined a traffic incident as “any traffic incident 
that results in the loss of an applicant’s and/or employee’s valid Wisconsin driver’s license.” 
 
Prior to the 2017 version of the Law, the Vehicle Driver Certification Policy, which was originally 
adopted by the Oneida Business Committee on October 21, 1992 and then amended through 
resolution BC-09-09-98-A, also prohibited a person from obtaining driver certification if he or she 

75 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 9 of 22 

 

had certain driving violation convictions within a three (3) year time period. [BC-09-09-98-A – 

I.A.4(a)-(b)]. 
 
Since at least 1992, the Nation has worked towards ensuring the safety of the community and 
employees while also minimizing the liability of the Nation by qualifying certification as a driver 
for the Nation on a review of an individual’s driving record. The specifics of what citations or 
convictions could disqualify an individual from receiving his or her driving certification during 
the driving record review has changed throughout the years.  
 
Whether or not to include a review of an individual’s driving record when determining if an 
individual meets the qualifications to obtain driver certification, or simply base qualification off 
of the fact that an individual has a valid Wisconsin driver’s license, is a policy determination for 
the Legislative Operating Committee to make. The Legislative Operating Committee may make 
one of the following determinations: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted and an individual shall not obtain his or her 
driver certification if he or she has three (3) or more moving violations and/or at-fault motor 
vehicle crashes in the past two (2) year, and/or an operating while intoxicated (OWI), 
driving under the influence (DUI), or prohibited alcohol concentration (PAC) citation 
within the last twelve (12) months. 

2. The Law should be revised so that a review of an individual’s driving record is not required 
to qualify for driver certification, and all that is necessary for qualification for driver 
certification in terms of driving record or licensure is that the individual has a valid 
Wisconsin driver’s license. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this 
determination then the following revision is recommended: 
210.4. Driver Certification 
210.4-2.  Qualifications for Certification.  In order to receive driver certification a person 
shall: 

(c)  Have a driving record that does not reflect any of the following conditions: 
(1)  Three (3) or more moving violations and/or at-fault motor vehicle 
crashes in the past two (2) years; and/or 
(2)  An operating while intoxicated (OWI), driving under the influence 
(DUI), or prohibited alcohol concentration (PAC) citation within the last 
twelve (12) months. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments 9 through 10  – Drug and Alcohol Related Offenses: 
 
210.4. Driver Certification 
210.4-2.  Qualifications for Certification.  In order to receive driver certification a person 
shall: 

76 of 213



 

Page 10 of 22 

 

(c)  Have a driving record that does not reflect any of the following conditions: 
(1)  Three (3) or more moving violations and/or at-fault motor vehicle crashes 
in the past two (2) years; and/or 
(2)  An operating while intoxicated (OWI), driving under the influence (DUI), 
or prohibited alcohol concentration (PAC) citation within the last twelve (12) 
months. 

 
210.8. Suspension of Driver Certification and Other Enforcement  
210.8-2.  Qualifications for Suspension.  A supervisor shall suspend an individual’s driver 
certification if the individual’s driver’s license is suspended or revoked by the State or 
becomes invalid for any other reason.  

(a)  A supervisor shall, when necessary, refer drivers to the Employee Assistance 
Program in accordance with applicable laws and policies of the Nation. 

 
Barbara Kolitsch (oral): In addition to that the drug and alcohol violation was reduced from three 
years to one year, again I think if the State says I can drive with an Occupational License, why 
can’t I drive with the organization?  I don’t think any of the instances where somebody comes up 
with a drug and alcohol violation driving, it’s not been at work, it’s been off work and if we 
correlate that to our drug and alcohol policy, our drug and alcohol policy was created in the 1990s 
to be a helping hand policy because Oneidas, well not specifically Oneidas, Native Americans 
have the highest abuse rate of drugs and alcohol.  They are the highest of any ethnicity in the U.S.  
It’s a helping hand policy.  This is a cutthroat policy.  If I have, if I tonight go out and celebrate a 
birthday with a friend, have one too many, get pulled over, get a drunk driving, I’m out of a job.  
Where if I come to work drunk, I drink at work, I get referred to EAP and I get help and I get 
assistance, so I’m not sure, again the correlation of off duty violations and on duty violations. 
Okay.  I can submit the rest in writing. 
 
Barbara Kolitsch (written): Drug and alcohol related offenses. Native Americans have the 
highest rate of drug/alcohol addition than any other ethnicity. Our Drug and Alcohol Policy 
recognizes this, and was developed in the 1990’s to be a helping hand policy. I can come to work 
drunk or drink at work and the consequence is to be referred to EAP. If I follow the requirements 
of the EAP agreement, I can go back to work. On the other hand - if I go out and have two drinks 
get pulled over and get an OWI – I will lose my job. One strike. This does not match the values of 
the Oneida Nation as I’ve known them for 30 years. How does having an OWI correlate to my on-
duty driving? It will not likely correlate for most employees. If the drug/alcohol driving violation 
occurred during work time, I can understand a firm repercussion, but how does it relate to the job 
when I may have simply made a poor judgement after having a couple of drinks? 
 
Response 

 
The commenter asks the Legislative Operating Committee to reconsider qualifying driver 
certification on an individual’s driving record, specifically a driving record demonstrating any 
citation or conviction related to a drug and/or alcohol offense. The commenter provides that other 
laws of the Nation, such as the Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace law, provide assistance to 
individuals with drug and/or alcohol issues instead of simply punishing the individual for his or 
her actions, and this Law should follow suit. The commenter also shares the belief that it is unfair 

77 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 11 of 22 

 

to use what may be an individual’s behavior while off duty in the consideration of whether that 
individual should receive driver certification from the Nation. 
 
The Law provides that in order to receive driver certification an individual shall have a driving 
record that does not reflect an operating while intoxicated (OWI), driving under the influence 
(DUI), or prohibited alcohol concentration (PAC) citation within the last twelve (12) months. [2 

O.C. 210.4-2(c)(2)]. The overall policy of this law is to ensure the safety of the community and 
employees of the Nation; minimize the Nation’s liability when physical damage to vehicles and/or 
property damage occurs as a result of a motor vehicle crash; and improve the efficiency and 
effectiveness of the use of vehicles owned by the Nation. [2 O.C. 210.1-2]. One way that this Law 
ensures the safety of the community and employees of the Nation, while also minimizing the 
liability of the Nation when damage to vehicles or property occurs as a result of a motor vehicle 
crash is through the driving record check of all potential certified drivers to determine if the 
individual has a citation or conviction related to drug or alcohol offenses.  
 
Additionally, if after an individual obtains his or her driver certification that individual’s driver’s 
license is suspended or revoked by the State, for any reason including drug and/or alcohol related 
offenses, the Law requires that the individual’s driver certification be suspended. [2 O.C. 210.8-

2]. Suspension of driver certification is the suspension of an individual’s ability to drive a fleet 
vehicle or personal vehicle on official business and is not a suspension or leave from work. [2 O.C. 

210.8-1]. The individual’s driver certification is suspended until a time in which the individual has 
obtained a valid driver’s license and meets the qualifications for reinstatement of driver 
certification. [2 O.C. 210.8-3]. 
 
An individual’s action of obtaining an operating while intoxicated (OWI), driving under the 
influence (DUI), or prohibited alcohol concentration (PAC) citation, even if that action occurred 
while the individual was off duty, have an impact on the individual’s driver certification because 
an OWI, DUI, or PAC citation typically results in the suspension of the individual’s driver’s 
license for some period of time. The suspension of an individual’s driver’s license results in the 
suspension of driver certification.  
 
So although an individual obtaining a citation for an OWI, DUI, or PAC may always have an 
impact on the individual’s driver certification if the individual’s driver’s licenses was suspended 
or revoked as a result, how far back in time to review a individual’s driving record to determine if 
the individual meets the qualifications to obtain driver certification is a policy determination for 
the Legislative Operating Committee to make. The Legislative Operating Committee may make 
one of the following determinations: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted and an individual shall not obtain his or her 
driver certification if he or she has an OWI, DUI, or PAC citation within the last twelve 
(12) months. 

2. The Law should be revised so that a different time period for the review of an individual’s 
driving record for an OWI, DUI, or PAC citation is included. If the Legislative Operating 
Committee makes this determination then the LOC would have to make a determination as 
to how far back in time the driving record should be reviewed, and the following revision 
is recommended: 

78 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 12 of 22 

 

210.4. Driver Certification 
210.4-2.  Qualifications for Certification.  In order to receive driver certification a person 
shall: 

(c)  Have a driving record that does not reflect any of the following conditions: 
(1)  Three (3) or more moving violations and/or at-fault motor vehicle 
crashes in the past two (2) years; and/or 
(2)  An operating while intoxicated (OWI), driving under the influence 
(DUI), or prohibited alcohol concentration (PAC) citation within the last 
__(time period)__ (#)___ twelve (12) months. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comment 11 – Current Challenges for Personnel Services: 
 
Barbara Kolitsch (written): Current challenges/issues from Personnel Services. One of our first 
commitments to the Oneida Nation in Personnel Services is to employ Oneida members. This 
policy negatively impacts mainly Oneida enrolled members. We don’t want to be in the business 
of screening out Oneida enrolled candidates because of their driving record such as OWI. We lose 
good candidates this way! We’ve lost good employees this way. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter provides that a current challenge the Personnel Services Department faces is 
screening out Oneida enrolled job applicants due to not meeting the qualifications for driver 
certification. The commenter expresses that this may have a negative effect on the Nation’s goal 
to employ members of the Oneida Nation.  
 
When amending this Law, the Legislative Operating Committee focused on balancing the 
employment needs of the Nation with the need to minimize the liability of the Nation and 
encourage safety. Because the Legislative Operating Committee determined that the amendments 
to the Law better accomplish this balance, there is no revision to the Law recommended based on 
this comment.  
 
LOC Consideration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

79 of 213



 

Page 13 of 22 

 

Comments 12 through 13 – Insurance Requirements: 
 
210.4. Driver Certification 
210.4-2.  Qualifications for Certification.  In order to receive driver certification a person 
shall: 

(f)  Maintain one (1) of the following minimum insurance requirements for a personal 
vehicle if the individual may use his or her personal vehicle to conduct official 
business: 

(1)  the individual’s insurance covers:   
(A)  one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) per person; 
(B)  three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000) per motor vehicle crash 
for bodily injury; and 
(C)  twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) property damage; or 

(2)  the individual’s insurance covers two hundred and fifty thousand dollars 
($250,000) combined single limit. 

210.4-3.  The Nation’s Human Resources Department shall be responsible for determining 
whether an individual meets all the qualifications before approving or denying a driver 
certification.  

(a)  An individual shall provide his or her appropriate license, training certification, 
and insurance information to the Human Resources Department. 

 
Jacque Boyle (oral): Jacque Boyle, Public Works Director.  There is a few things.  As far as 
submitting insurance, we do get notification that insurance has, needs to be renewed for each 
employee that has a driver’s requirement, personal driver’s requirement.  Unfortunately, there are 
instances that can occur where the employee then terminates the insurance and there is really no 
way for us to follow-up on that.  So, I’m not sure what we can do, I don’t think I can call the 
insurance company and say is this still in effect.  So, so what they are doing is getting insurance, 
submitting the paperwork that’s good for six months, but they could actually cancel it the next day. 
 
Barbara Kolitsch (written): Employees have lapse of insurance, and supervisors don’t 
consistently deal with lapse. A lapse today should result in suspension of certification, and today, 
some are not held accountable. It’s difficult to track an employee who may drop insurance between 
coverage periods and pick up a new company, which will not show coverage. My only 
recommendation is for employees to somehow show continuation of coverage when they change 
insurance companies. Some supervisors aren’t following up to ensure their employee has the 
required insurance prior to the employee continuing to drive. 
 

Response 

 
The commenters express concern that an employee can obtain insurance to become a certified 
driver, but then immediately cancel the insurance and the supervisor would not know.  
 
The Law requires that an individual maintains minimum insurance requirements for a personal 
vehicle if that individual may use his or her personal vehicle to conduct official business. [2 O.C. 

210.4-2(f)]. An individual is required to provide his or her insurance information to the Human 
Resources Department. [2 O.C. 210.4-3(a)]. A supervisor is required to ensure that the individual 

80 of 213



 

Page 14 of 22 

 

has received his or her driver certification from the Human Resources Department before the 
supervisor can allow the individual to drive a fleet vehicle or a personal vehicle on official 
business. [2 O.C. 210.4-4]. If an individual does not maintain the minimum insurance 
requirements for a personal vehicle then a supervisor may take disciplinary action against that 
individual. [2 O.C. 210.8-7(e)]. A supervisor who fails to ensure that his or her employee has 
received driver certification from the Human Resources Department prior to allowing that 
employee to drive a fleet vehicle or a personal vehicle on official business is also subject to 
disciplinary action for failing to comply with a provision of this law. [2 O.C. 210.8-7(a)]. 
 
Since the Law already requires that an individual maintain the minimum insurance requirements 
on a personal vehicle if that individual is going to use his or her personal vehicle to conduct official 
business, and allows for discipline if an individual or supervisor is not complying with the 
provisions of the Law, there is no revision to the Law recommended based on this comment.  
 
LOC Consideration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comment 14 – Referral to EAP: 
 
210.8. Suspension of Driver Certification and Other Enforcement  
210.8-2.  Qualifications for Suspension.  A supervisor shall suspend an individual’s driver 
certification if the individual’s driver’s license is suspended or revoked by the State or 
becomes invalid for any other reason.  

(a)  A supervisor shall, when necessary, refer drivers to the Employee Assistance 
Program in accordance with applicable laws and policies of the Nation. 

 
Barbara Kolitsch (written): Referral to EAP (210.8(a). I’m unsure the value of this referral. 
There’s an EAP policy, DOT policy, DAFWP policy – all which spell out reasons/ways to do an 
EAP referral. This isn’t value-added in the Vehicle Driver/Fleet law. Please contact me if you have 
any questions regarding my comments. Thank you! 
 

Response 

 
The commenter states that she does not think there is value in including section 210.8-2(a) of the 
Law because it is duplicative of provision in other laws that more clearly detail when a referral to 
the Employee Assistance Program should occur.  
 
Section 210.8-2(a) of the Law provides that a supervisor shall, when necessary, refer drivers to the 
Employee Assistance Program in accordance with applicable laws and policies of the Nation. 
 
The commenter is correct that other laws of the Nation provide when it may be necessary to refer 
an employee to the Employee Assistance Program. For example, the Drug and Alcohol Free 

81 of 213



 

Page 15 of 22 

 

Workplace law provides that an employee that engages in prohibited behavior, such as being under 
the influence of prohibited drugs and/or alcohol while on duty, for the first time shall be removed 
from duty without pay and shall receive a mandatory referral to the Employee Assistance Program 
for an assessment. [2 O.C. 202.11-5(a)(1)]. 
 
Although section 210.8-2(a) may be duplicative of requirements of other laws of the Nation, it 
serves as a notice or reminder to a supervisor that may be reviewing this Law that other laws of 
the Nation may require a referral to the Employee Assistance Program for the individual’s 
violation in conjunction with any consequences that result from this Law. 
 
Whether or not to include section 210.8-2(a) in the Law is a policy consideration for the Legislative 
Operating Committee. The Legislative Operating Committee may determine: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted and include section 210.8-2 in the Law as a 
notice to supervisors of the responsibility to refer an employee to the Employee Assistance 
Program in accordance with other applicable laws of the Nation. 

2. The Law should be revised to remove section 210.8-2(a) due to the fact that it is duplicative 
of other laws of the Nation that more clearly detail when a referral to the Employee 
Assistance Program should occur. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this 
determination, then the following revision is recommended: 
210.8. Suspension of Driver Certification and Other Enforcement  
210.8-2.  Qualifications for Suspension.  A supervisor shall suspend an individual’s driver 
certification if the individual’s driver’s license is suspended or revoked by the State or 
becomes invalid for any other reason.  

(a)  A supervisor shall, when necessary, refer drivers to the Employee Assistance 
Program in accordance with applicable laws and policies of the Nation. 
 

LOC Consideration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comment 15 – Approval of Authorized Passengers: 
 
210.6. Fleet Vehicles  
210.6-7.  Authorized Passengers.  In addition to the employees, elected or appointed officials, 
or volunteers who are authorized to use a fleet vehicle, the following individuals shall be 
authorized to be a passenger in a fleet vehicle: 

(a)  Individuals being transported as part of a program or service of the Nation; 
(b)  Individuals being transported during the normal and ordinary course of 
representing and/or conducting business on behalf of the Nation; and/or 
(c) Any other individual who is authorized to be a passenger by the Fleet Management 
Department. 

 

82 of 213



 

Page 16 of 22 

 

Jacque Boyle (oral): Another item is in the law it says that Fleet Management needs to authorize 
all passengers or individuals that may not be employees, that’s going to be very hard for us to 
administer.  So I think that should be approved by the supervisor and area manager of whose using 
the vehicle.  So, especially for Recreation or different, you know, events, we would have a hard 
time identifying each and every individual in the vehicle. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter provides that it would be difficult for the Fleet Management Department to 
provide the necessary authorization for passengers in fleet vehicles, and this responsibility would 
be better handled by supervisors who would have better knowledge of the appropriateness of 
authorizing an individual to be a passenger.  
 
The Law provides that in addition to the employees, elected or appointed officials, or volunteers 
who are authorized to use a fleet vehicle, the following individuals shall be authorized to be a 
passenger in a fleet vehicle: 
 a person being transported as part of a program or service of the Nation; 
 a person being transported during the normal and ordinary course of representing and/or 

conducting business on behalf of the Nation; and/or 
 any other individual who is authorized to be a passenger by the Fleet Management 

Department. 
[2 O.C. 210.6-7(a)-(c)]. 

 
Which department to delegate the authority to authorize a passenger of a fleet vehicle to is a policy 
consideration for the Legislative Operating Committee. The Legislative Operating Committee can 
make one of the following determinations: 

1. The Law should remain as currently drafted and require that any additional passengers 
receive authorization from the Fleet Management Department. 

2. The Law should be revised so that it is the supervisor of the individual, and not the Fleet 
Management Department, that provides authorization for additional passengers. If the 
Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination, then the following revision is 
recommended: 
210.6-7.  Authorized Passengers.  In addition to the employees, elected or appointed 
officials, or volunteers who are authorized to use a fleet vehicle, the following individuals 
shall be authorized to be a passenger in a fleet vehicle: 

(a)  Individuals being transported as part of a program or service of the Nation; 
(b)  Individuals being transported during the normal and ordinary course of 
representing and/or conducting business on behalf of the Nation; and/or 
(c) Any other individual who is authorized to be a passenger by the employee, 
elected or appointed official, or volunteer’s supervisorFleet Management 
Department. 

 
LOC Consideration 

 

 

 

83 of 213



 

Page 17 of 22 

 

 

 

 

Comment 16 – Suspending Driver Certification as a Result of a Motor Vehicle Crash: 
 
210.7. Motor Vehicle Crashes or Damage to Vehicles 
210.7-2.  Internal Review. The Fleet Management Department and Risk Management 
Department shall coordinate and conduct an internal review of the auto incident report for 
a motor vehicle crash and/or damage to a vehicle.  

(a)  Fleet Management and Risk Management may recommend whether an individual 
should be subject to disciplinary action based on the motor vehicle crash or incident 
resulting in damage to a vehicle. 
(b)  The internal review shall be completed as soon as possible after a motor vehicle 
crash has been reported.  
(c)  Following an internal review, Fleet Management and Risk Management shall 
issue a report. Copies of the report shall be: 

(1)  provided to the driver, the driver’s supervisor, and the driver’s area 
manager; and 
(2)  provided to the Human Resources Department if the Fleet Management 
Department and Risk Management Department recommend disciplinary 
action.  

 
Jacque Boyle (oral): And I do want to reiterate what Barb said as far as managing the training.  I 
think that if there is an incident, that that training should be required, especially if it’s repetitive.  
We do have a lot of specialized vehicles for snow removal and the current policy says that if there 
is an incident, Risk Management, the Fleet Manager, HRD investigate and make a 
recommendation and typically it is to remove their driving privileges.  If we did that, in order to 
do the job that’s required, that would mean we would have to put someone untrained in that 
vehicle, untrained on the route to take care of that job for the five days, ten days or fifteen days, I 
don’t think that’s sending the right message either.  It also encourages employees not to report, 
because they know there’s some negative consequences, but actually if we address it through 
training, especially if it’s, you know, multiple incidents, and I’m talking about fender benders, not 
very serious accidents, that the training would actually help them to drive better.   
 

Response 

 
The commenter expresses support for the earlier comment that mandatory training should occur 
when an employee has an at-fault accident or receives a moving violation while on duty, instead 
of requiring it for all certified drivers of the Nation on a triennial basis. 
 
The commenter also discusses a situation that arises under the currently effective law, where when 
conducting an internal review of a motor vehicle crash, the Fleet Management Department and the 
Risk Management Department may recommend that the individual who is involved in a motor 
vehicle crash has his or her driver certification suspended. [BC-06-28-17-C – 2 O.C. 210.9-

4(a)(2)]. The commenter provides that suspending the driver certification of an individual involved 
in a motor vehicle crash results in someone who may not have the proper training or familiarity 

84 of 213



 

Page 18 of 22 

 

being put into that vehicle for work until the original individual has completed his or her 
suspension, and also results in employees not reporting motor vehicle crashes or damage to a 
vehicle in fear of having his or her driver certification suspended.  
 
The proposed amendments to the Law handle the suspension of driver certification in a different 
manner than the current Law. Under the proposed amendments to the Law, an individual’s driver 
certification shall only be suspended when the individual’s driver’s license is suspended or revoked 
by the State or becomes invalid for any other reason. [2 O.C. 210.8-2]. For other violations of the 
Law, a supervisor may take disciplinary action against an individual in accordance with the 
Nation’s laws and policies governing employment if the individual is an employee, or in 
accordance with the laws and policies of the Nation governing sanctions and penalties if the 
individual is an elected or appointed official of the Nation. [2 O.C. 210.8-7]. Disciplinary action 
can be taken against an individual for any of the following actions: 
 Failing to comply with any provision of this law; 
 Failing to complete any applicable driver training requirements; 
 Driving a fleet vehicle without being certified under the provisions of this law;  
 Admitting to, or being determined to be, partially or entirely at fault in a motor vehicle 

crash involving vehicle damage, property damage, or personal injury; and 
 Not maintaining the minimum insurance requirements for a personal vehicle.   

[2 O.C. 210.8-7(a)-(e)]. 
 
The Law still requires that the Fleet Management Department and the Risk Management 
Department coordinate and conduct an internal review for a motor vehicle crash or damage to a 
vehicle involving a fleet vehicle or a personal vehicle that as driven while conducting official 
business. [2 O.C. 210.7-2]. But, since the suspension of driver certification only occurs when an 
individual has his or her driver’s license suspended or revoked by the State, if an individual is 
involved in a motor vehicle crash or a situation involving damage to a vehicle that did not result 
in the suspension of revocation of the individual’s license, then the Fleet Management Department 
and Risk Management Department will no longer recommend suspension of driver certification as 
a result of the internal review, but can recommend disciplinary action be taken. [2 O.C. 210.7-

2(a)]. 
 
Since the commenter’s concerns of suspending the driver certification of an individual who is 
involved in a motor vehicle crash or damage involving a vehicle is already addressed through the 
proposed amendments to the Law, and the Legislative Operating Committee has already been 
asked to consider mandatory training requirements for those involved in an at-fault accident or 
moving violation while on duty, there is no revision to the Law recommended based on this 
comment. 
  
LOC Consideration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

85 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 19 of 22 

 

Comment 17 – Use of GPS Equipment to Monitor Drivers: 
 
Jacque Boyle (oral): We are, in conjunction with that, we are looking at implementing a GPS 
system throughout the fleet vehicles, so that it will give feedback on how that driver is doing.  Hard 
braking, speeding, where they’ve been and we’re getting very close to implementing a contract 
with a vendor and starting out with some of the vehicles.  So, two things, it will allow the vehicle 
to last longer and hopefully give us feedback on how that driver is performing.  That’s all I have. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter provides the Legislative Operating Committee with information that the 
Department of Public Works is currently working on implementing a GPS system throughout fleet 
vehicles that will help monitor the driving of employees of the Nation.  
 
Since this is just information being provided regarding the implementation of GPS equipment in 
fleet vehicles, there is no revision to the Law recommended based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comment 18 – Compliance with BIA Motor Vehicle Operation Policy: 
 
Candice Skenandore (written): Background. The Oneida Nation (Nation) has entered into a 
Compact and Funding Agreement with the US Department of lnterior (DOI) since 1994. In 
accordance with Section 20 of the Nation's current Funding Agreement, the Nation agrees to self-
administer a motor vehicle operations policy that is either comparable or superior to that of the 
DOI's Bureau of Indian Affairs' May 3, 2006 Motor Vehicle Operation Policy issued by the 
Associate Deputy Secretary. In addition, the Nation agrees to comply with Executive Order 13513 
pursuant to the current Funding Agreement. Below you will find the Section 20 of the Funding 
Agreement in verbatim. Attached is the May 3, 2006 BIA Motor Vehicle Operation Policy and 
Executive Order 13513 for your reference. 
 

Response 

 
The commenter provides that through its Compact and Funding Agreement with the U.S. 
Department of Interior, the Nation has agreed to self-administer a motor vehicle operations policy 
that is either comparable or superior to that of the Department of Interior's Bureau of Indian Affairs' 
May 3, 2006 Motor Vehicle Operation Policy issued by the Associate Deputy Secretary, and has 
agreed to comply with Executive Order 13513. 
 
Since this information is being provided to the Legislative Operating Committee for information 
purposes and to serve as a reminder of the requirements of the Nation’s Compact and Funding 

86 of 213



 

Page 20 of 22 

 

Agreement with the U.S. Department of Interior, there is no revision to the Law recommended on 
this comment.  
 
LOC Consideration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comment 19 – Conflicts with BIA Motor Vehicle Operation Policy: 
 
Candice Skenandore (written): Section 20 Motor Vehicle Operation Policy - The Tribe certifies 
that it will self-administer a motor vehicle operation policy that promotes the safe and prudent 
operation of motor vehicles while performing duties to implement the terms of the Agreement. 
The Tribe's policy is either comparable or superior to the May 3, 2006 Motor Vehicle Operation 
Policy for the BIA issued by the Associate Deputy Secretary. The Tribe's policy includes 
compliance with Executive Order 13513 prohibiting texting while driving.  
 
There may be areas where the proposed law and BIA Motor Vehicle Operation Policy conflict. In 
order to avoid compromising the Nation's funding agreement, the LOC may want to consider 
making changes to the proposed law to align with the BIA Policy or insert language in the proposed 
law that states that any current and future employee whose duties with respect to implementation 
of the Compact include driving may be subject to the BIA Motor Vehicle Operation Policy and 
Executive Order 13513 when the Nation's Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management law 
is less stringent.  
 
It should be noted that the following programs, services, functions, and activities are currently 
found within the Nation's BIA funding agreement; however, this is likely to change once the 
Nation negotiates a new funding agreement by the end of CY 2021. 
 
Administrative Direction  
Rights Protection  
Aid to Tribal Government  
Law Enforcement  
Facilities Management 
Economic Development  
Housing Improvement Program  
Road Maintenance  
Community Fire Protection  
Agriculture 
Real Estate Services  
Real Estate Appraisals  
Environmental Quality  

Safety Management  
Forestry Management  
Wildlife Management  
Indian Child Welfare  
Services to Children, Elderly, and Families  
Welfare Assistance 
Education (Scholarship, Adult Education)  
Employment Assistance  
Johnson O'Malley  
Litigation Support  
Fish Hatchery  
Water Management  
Hunting and Fishing Rights 

 

87 of 213



 

Page 21 of 22 

 

There are some areas within the Nation that contribute to the operation of but are not identified as 
compacted programs, services, functions, and activities. The Nation receives contract support costs 
for these types of positions. It is unclear whether and under what circumstances the Department of 
Interior would consider driving to be part of an employee's performance of duties to implement 
the Compact on the basis of the Nation's receipt of contract support costs.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 

[See Attached May 3, 2006 BIA Motor Vehicle Operation Policy and Executive Order 13513] 

 

Response 

 
The commenter provides that through its Compact and Funding Agreement with the U.S. 
Department of Interior, the Nation has agreed to self-administer a motor vehicle operations policy 
that is either comparable or superior to that of the Department of Interior’s Bureau of Indian 
Affairs' May 3, 2006 Motor Vehicle Operation Policy issued by the Associate Deputy Secretary, 
and has agreed to comply with Executive Order 13513. The commenter then goes on to provide 
that there may be areas where the proposed Law and the Bureau of Indian Affairs' May 3, 2006 
Motor Vehicle Operation Policy conflict. In an effort to avoid compromising the Nation’s funding 
agreement, the commenter recommends that the Legislative Operating Committee consider 
revising the Law to be consistent with the Department of Interior’s Bureau of Indian Affairs' May 
3, 2006 Motor Vehicle Operation Policy, or include a provision in the Law that provides that any 
current and future employee whose duties with respect to implementation of the Compact include 
driving may be subject to the BIA Motor Vehicle Operation Policy and Executive Order 13513 
when the Nation's Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management law is less stringent. 
 
When drafting the amendments to the Law the Legislative Operating Committee was not aware of 
the Nation’s agreement to self-administer a motor vehicle operations policy that is either 
comparable or superior to that of the Department of Interior’s Bureau of Indian Affairs' May 3, 
2006 Motor Vehicle Operation Policy issued by the Associate Deputy Secretary, and comply with 
Executive Order 13513. Now that the Legislative Operating Committee has been made aware of 
this obligation and potential for conflicts, the Legislative Operating Committee will have to 
determine how to move forward.  
 
An example of a conflict that may exist between the Law and the Department of Interior’s Bureau 
of Indian Affairs' May 3, 2006 Motor Vehicle Operation Policy exists in how drug and/or alcohol 
related offenses are handled when determining if an individual is eligible for driver certification. 
The Law provides that a person shall not be eligible for driver certification if the individual has a 
driving record that demonstrates an operating while intoxicated (OWI), driving under the influence 
(DUI), or prohibited alcohol concentration (PAC) citation within the last twelve (12) months. [2 

O.C. 210.4-2(c)(2)]. On the other hand, Section II.D. of the Department of Interior’s Bureau of 
Indian Affairs' May 3, 2006 Motor Vehicle Operation Policy provides that in order to be authorized 
to drive on official business an employee must have no convictions or uncontested citations within 
the three (3) year period immediately preceding their submittal of GTA Form 3607, Motor Vehicle 
Operator’s License and Driving Record, for reckless driving, driving while intoxicated (DWI), 
driving under the influence (DUI), or leaving the scene of an accident. 

88 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 22 of 22 

 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee has to make a decision on how to handle to potential 
conflicts between the Law and the Department of Interior’s Bureau of Indian Affairs' May 3, 2006 
Motor Vehicle Operation Policy. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the 
following determinations: 

1. Direct that a comprehensive analysis of the Department of Interior’s Bureau of Indian 
Affairs' May 3, 2006 Motor Vehicle Operation Policy is completed and includes a 
comparison with the Law to identify any potential conflicts, and then deter this item to a 
work meeting to consider revisions to the Law that would eliminate such conflicts.  

2. Revise the Law so that it includes a provision that provides that any current and future 
employee whose duties with respect to implementation of the Compact include driving 
may be subject to compliance with the BIA Motor Vehicle Operation Policy and Executive 
Order 13513 when the Nation's Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management law is 
less stringent. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination, then it is 
recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee direct the Human Resources 
Department and the Self Governance Department to collaborate to identify the positions 
that would be required to comply with the BIA Motor Vehicle Operations Policy, and then 
the following revision is recommended: 
210.4-5.  Exemption.  An individual whose duties with respect to the implementation of a 
contract, agreement, or compact of the Nation include driving may be subject to 
compliance with a motor vehicle operation policy as provided in the contract, agreement, 
or compact of the Nation when this law is less stringent than the said motor vehicle 
operation policy.  

 
LOC Consideration 

 

 

89 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
""' 000000 

ONEIDA 



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 1 
 

Title 2. Employment - Chapter 210 
Lot$=sles Kayanl^sla Khale> Nya>teka>sl#htake    Lonatl$hute>  Kayanl^sla  

they’re driving  law   and  a variety of vehicles the responsibility is attached to them  

VEHICLE DRIVER CERTIFICATION AND FLEET MANAGEMENT  
 
 

210.1. Purpose and Policy 
210.2.   Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
210.3.   Definitions 
210.4.  Tribal Department Responsibilities 
210.5.   Driver Responsibilities 
210.6.   Tribal Vehicle Usage 
210.7.   Rental Vehicles 
210.8.   Driver Certification 
210.9.   Motor Vehicle Crashes, Damage Involving Tribal 

Vehicles 

210.10.  Suspension and Revocation of Certification; 
Disciplinary Action 

210.11.   Reinstatement of Certification 
210.1. Purpose and Policy 
210.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
210.3. Definitions 
210.4. Driver Certification 
210.5. Responsibilities of a Certified Driver 
210.6. Fleet Vehicles 
210.7. Motor Vehicle Crashes or Damage to Vehicles 
210.8. Suspension of Driver Certification and Other Enforcement 

 

 1 
210.1. Purpose and Policy 2 
210.1-1. Purpose. The purposespurpose of this law areis to:  3 

(a) establish standards that certify employees, elected and appointed officials, and 4 
volunteers to drive a Tribalfleet vehicle or drive a personal vehicle on Tribalofficial 5 
business, and  6 

(b) regulate the use of all vehicles owned and leased by the Nation. 7 
210.1-2. Policy. It is the policy of the Nation to:  8 

(a) ensure the safety of the community and employees of the Oneida Nation;  9 
(b) minimize the Nation’s liability when physical damage to vehicles and/or property 10 
damage occurs as a result of a motor vehicle crash; and 11 

(c) improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the use of vehicles owned by the Nation. 12 
 13 
210.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 14 
210.2-1. This law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC-06-28-17-C., 15 
and amended by resolution BC-__-__-__-__. 16 
210.2-2. This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee and/or Oneida 17 
General Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. 18 
210.2-3. Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 19 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 20 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 21 
210.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 22 
the provisions of this law shall control.  Provided that, this law repeals the following: 23 

(a) BC-09-09-98-A (Amended Vehicle Driver Certification Policy) 24 
(b) BC-09-24-97-E (Oneida Vehicle Fleet Management Policy) 25 

210.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 26 
 27 
210.3.  Definitions 28 
210.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 29 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 30 

(a)(a)  “Area manager” means an employee’s supervisor’s supervisor; or, an individual 31 
designated to be the area manager by a General Manager position. 32 

90 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 2 
 

(b)  “Business day” means Monday through Friday, from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.; excluding 33 
the Nation’s holidays.  34 
(b) “Business miles” means miles driven in a vehicle by an individual in order to conduct 35 
Tribal business.  36 
(c) “Certification” or “certified” means that a driver meets the requirements established by 37 
this law and is authorized to operate a Tribal vehicle and/or a personal vehicle on Tribal 38 
business. 39 
(d) “Driver” means any employee, official and/or volunteer who is certified to operate a 40 
Tribal vehicle, or to drive a personal vehicle on Tribal business. 41 
(e) “Driver’s abstract” means a driver’s official driving record, which includes, but is not 42 
limited to, any restrictions or limitations that may be imposed on the driver’s driving 43 
privileges.  44 
(f) “Employee” means an individual who is employed by the Nation and is subject to the 45 
direction and control, but does not include elected or appointed officials, or employees of 46 
a chartered corporation of the Nation with respect to the material details of the work 47 
performed, or who has the status of an employee under the usual common law rules 48 
applicable to determining the employer-employee relationship.  “Employee” includes, but 49 
is not limited to, an individual employed by any program or enterprise of the Nation, and 50 
political appointees. 51 
(g)d)  “Entity” means a department, enterprise, program, board, committee or commission 52 
of the Nation. 53 
(e)  “Employee Assistance Program” means a professional counseling program staffed by 54 
clinical social workers licensed by the State of Wisconsin which offers services to the 55 
Nation’s employees and family members. 56 
(f)  “Fleet vehicle” means a vehicle owned or leased by the Nation. 57 
(g)  “Moving violation” means any violation of motor vehicle or traffic law that is 58 
committed by the driver of a vehicle while the vehicle is moving. A moving violation does 59 
not include parking violations, equipment violations, or paperwork violations relating to 60 
insurance, registration or inspection. 61 
(h)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 62 
(i) “Non-business miles” means miles driven in a Tribal vehicle that are not business-63 
related, including commuting. 64 
(j) “Official” means anyone who is serving on the Oneida Business Committee or the 65 
Oneida Judiciary, and any other person who is elected or appointed to a board, committee 66 
or commission created by the Oneida Business Committee or Oneida General Tribal 67 
Council.  68 
(k)(i)  “Prohibited drug” means marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, phencyclidine 69 
(PCP), hallucinogens, methaqualone, barbiturates, narcotics, and any other substances 70 
included in Schedules I through V, as defined by Section 812 of Title 21 of the United 71 
States Code. Prohibited drugs also includes prescription medication or over-the-counter 72 
medicine when used in an unauthorized or unlawful manner. 73 
(j)  “Supervisor” means the direct supervisor of an employee. Provided that, forFor 74 
volunteers, elected or appointed officials and, or employees without a direct supervisor, it 75 
means the Human Resources Department or any party who has been designated by the 76 
Human Resources Department as responsible for performing a supervisor’s responsibilities 77 
under this law.  78 
(l) “Tribal” or “Tribe” means the Oneida Nation.  79 
(m) “Tribal(k)  “Weapon” means a firearm, knife, electric weapon, club, or any other object 80 
intended to cause harm to oneself or others. 81 

91 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 3 
 

 82 
210.4. Driver Certification 83 
210.4-1.  An individual shall obtain driver certification from the Human Resources Department 84 
before operating a fleet vehicle” means a or personal vehicle owned or leasedon official business.   85 
210.4-2.  Qualifications for Certification.  In order to receive driver certification a person shall: 86 

(a)  Be eighteen (18) years of age or older; 87 
(b)  Hold a valid Wisconsin driver’s license; 88 

(1)  A person who holds a valid driver’s license from a state other than Wisconsin 89 
shall have thirty (30) days after his or her first day of employment or service to 90 
obtain a Wisconsin driver’s license. 91 

(c)  Have a driving record that does not reflect any of the following conditions: 92 
(1)  Three (3) or more moving violations and/or at-fault motor vehicle crashes in 93 
the past two (2) years; and/or 94 
(2)  An operating while intoxicated (OWI), driving under the influence (DUI), or 95 
prohibited alcohol concentration (PAC) citation within the last twelve (12) months. 96 

(d)  Complete all driver training requirements imposed by the Nation. or any federal or 97 
state agency regulations; 98 
(n) “Volunteer” means a person who provides a service to the Nation without receiving 99 
pay. 100 
(o) “Workday” means a regularly scheduled workday or service day for a driver, regardless 101 
of whether the day falls on a weekday or weekend. 102 
(e)  Satisfy any other requirements specific to the job description and/or vehicle that may 103 
be used by or assigned to the person; and  104 
(f)  Maintain one (1) of the following minimum insurance requirements for a personal 105 
vehicle if the individual may use his or her personal vehicle to conduct official business: 106 

(1)  the individual’s insurance covers:   107 
(A)  one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) per person; 108 
(B)  three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000) per motor vehicle crash for 109 
bodily injury; and 110 
(C)  twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) property damage; or 111 

(2)  the individual’s insurance covers two hundred and fifty thousand dollars 112 
($250,000) combined single limit. 113 

210.4-3.  The Nation’s Human Resources  114 
210.4. Tribal Department Responsibilities 115 
210.4-1. Department of Public Works. The shall be responsible for determining whether an 116 
individual meets all the qualifications before approving or denying a driver certification.  117 

(a)  An individual shall provide his or her appropriate license, training certification, and 118 
insurance information to the Human Resources Department of Public Works. 119 
(b)  The Human Resources Department shall have the authority to check the driving record 120 
of an individual at any time. 121 
(c)  The Human Resources Department shall maintain a current list of all certified drivers 122 
and provide the list to Fleet Management, Risk Management, and Automotive 123 
DepartmentsCentral Accounting on a regular basis. 124 

210.4-4.  A supervisor shall ensure that an individual has received his or her driver certification 125 
from the Human Resources Department before allowing the individual to drive a fleet vehicle or a 126 
personal vehicle on official business. 127 
 128 

92 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 4 
 

210.assist5. Responsibilities of a Certified Driver  129 

210.5-1.  General Responsibilities.  While operating a fleet vehicle or a personal vehicle on official 130 
business, an individual shall: 131 

(a)  Abide by all traffic laws; 132 
(b)  Wear a seat belt and require any passengers to wear a seat belt at all times; 133 
(c)  Not drive while under the influence of prohibited drugs and/or alcohol; 134 
(d)  Not drive if impaired by a medical or physical condition or other factor that affects a 135 
driver’s motor skills, reaction time, or concentration; 136 
(e)  Not carry a weapon, whether in the open or concealed; 137 

(1)  Exemption.  An individual who is carrying a weapon in the course of performing 138 
his or her official duties, or is participating in cultural activities or ceremonies is 139 
exempt from this requirement. 140 

(f)  Not transport prohibited drugs and/or alcohol;   141 
(1)  Exemption. An employee of the Nation who is transporting prohibited drugs 142 
and/or alcohol in the course of performing his or her job duties is exempt from this 143 
requirement.  144 

(g)  Not deliver goods or services for personal gain, or operate private pools where the 145 
riders pay the driver; and 146 
(h)  Not use electronic devices in an unlawful manner. 147 

210.5-2.  Training Responsibilities.  An individual with the implementationdriver certification 148 
shall complete the driver safety training provided and monitored by the Human Resources 149 
Department every three (3) years.  150 

(a)  Exemption. An individual who is required to maintain compliance with any specialized 151 
driver safety training requirements imposed by state or federal regulatory agencies shall be 152 
exempt from the requirement to complete the driver safety training provided by the Human 153 
Resources Department. 154 

210.5-3.  Fleet Vehicle Responsibilities.  When operating a fleet vehicle, an individual shall: 155 
(a)  Complete a vehicle mileage log; 156 
(b)  Not transport unauthorized passengers; 157 
(c)  Notify the Fleet Management Department immediately of any problems with a fleet 158 
vehicle that may be a safety or mechanical hazard, or of any incidents that result in the 159 
inability of a fleet vehicle to complete a trip; 160 
(d)  Be personally responsible for all traffic citation costs, parking ticket costs, or any 161 
similar expense related to vehicle use; 162 
(e)  Use Oneida Retail locations for fueling fleet vehicles, unless the fleet vehicle needs 163 
fuel before it can be taken to an Oneida Retail location; 164 
(f)  Not smoke or use electronic smoking devices or permit others to smoke or use 165 
electronic smoking devices in the fleet vehicle; and  166 
(g)  Ensure the interior of the vehicle is kept in good condition, clean, and free of debris. 167 

210.5-4.  Personal Vehicle Responsibilities.  When operating a personal vehicle on official 168 
business, an individual shall: 169 

(a)  Obtain permission from his or her supervisor to operate a personal vehicle on official 170 
business; and  171 
(b)  Submit all required documents for mileage reimbursement, if seeking reimbursement 172 
for miles driven while conducting official business, within thirty (30) days of driving the 173 
miles or by the end of the current fiscal year, whichever is sooner. 174 

(1)  Not seeking mileage reimbursement does not exempt an individual from the 175 
provisions of this law. 176 

210.5-5. Notification Requirements.  An individual shall notify his or her supervisor if he or she: 177 

93 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 5 
 

(a)  Has his or her driver’s license suspended or revoked by the State, or has his or her 178 
driver’s license become invalid for any other reason; 179 
(b)  Meets any of the conditions for disciplinary action as provided in section 210.8-7; 180 
and/or 181 
(c)  Has any impairment by a medical or physical condition or other factor that affects his 182 
or her motor skills, reaction time, or concentration. 183 

 184 

210.64‐2. Fleet Vehicles  185 

210.6-1.  Fleet Management. Department.  The Nation’s Fleet Management Department shall: 186 
(a) Purchase purchase, manage, and monitor the use of Tribal vehicles, the Nation’s fleet vehicles. 187 
The Fleet Management Department’s responsibilities shall include, but are not limited to: 188 

(a)  Maintain a list of all fleet vehicles that are available for use, including the removal of 189 
vehicles permanently assigned to specific entities of the Nation; 190 
(b)  Remove unsafe vehicles from the fleet; 191 
(b)c)  Obtain estimates of and schedule Tribalfleet vehicle repairs when necessary; 192 
(c) Participate in motor vehicle crash investigations; 193 
(d) Participate in situations requiring approval of driver certifications;  194 
(e) (d) Install or remove global positioning system monitors on Tribalequipment on fleet 195 
vehicles;  196 
(e)  Ensure the Nation’s logo is on all fleet vehicles; and  197 
(f)  Ensure that all Tribalfleet vehicles are equipped with a mileage log and an auto incident 198 
kit which contains forms and instructions for reporting any incident; and. 199 
(g) Maintain a list of all fleet vehicles that are available for use by drivers; including 200 
vehicles permanently assigned to specific departments.  201 

210.4-3.6-2.  Automotive Department.  The Automotive Department shall service and maintain 202 
Tribalfleet vehicles according to factory recommendations, or the maintenance schedule 203 
established by the Automotive Department, whichever is stricter. Any vehicle deemed unsafe by 204 
the Automotive Department shall be reported to the Fleet Management Department. 205 
210.4-46-3.  Risk Management.   Department.  The Risk Management shall: 206 
(a) SecureDepartment shall be responsible for securing and maintainmaintaining insurance 207 
coverage for all Tribalfleet vehicles, or may designate another party to do so;. Additional 208 
responsibilities of the Risk Management Department shall include, but is not limited to: 209 

(b) Provide(a)  Providing auto insurance identification cards in every Tribalfleet vehicle; 210 
(c) Process(b)  Processing all submitted vehicle claims and related information; and  211 
(d) Submit(c)  Submitting claims to the insurance company;. 212 
(e) Participate in motor vehicle crash investigations; and 213 

(f) Participate in situations requiring approval of certifications.210.6-4.  Use of a Fleet Vehicle.  A 214 
fleet vehicle may be permanently assigned to an entity for use or requested for use on a temporary 215 
basis. A fleet vehicle shall be used for conducting official business of the Nation. When used for 216 
travel purposes, a fleet vehicle may also be used for incidental purposes such as travel to and from 217 
lodging and/or meal sites.  218 

(a)  Prohibited Use of a Fleet Vehicles. A fleet vehicle shall not be used for any of the 219 
following purposes: 220 

(1)  Personal use for non-business purposes; 221 
(2)  Towing cargo for personal reasons; 222 
(3)  Hauling loads that could structurally damage the vehicle; and/or 223 
(4)  Jump starting vehicles, other than fleet vehicles. 224 

94 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 6 
 

210.6-5.  Permanently Assigned Fleet Vehicles.  The Fleet Management Department may 225 
permanently assign a fleet vehicle to an entity if the entity meets the minimum mileage criteria as 226 
established by the Fleet Management Department. 227 

(a)  Exception to Minimum Mileage Criteria.  The Fleet Management Department may 228 
grant an entity an exception to the minimum mileage criteria. 229 
(b)  An entity who is permanently assigned a fleet vehicle shall regularly schedule 230 
maintenance work and safety checks with the Automotive Department.  231 
(c)  An entity that is permanently assigned a fleet vehicle is responsible for ensuring that 232 
any individual who drives the vehicle has his or her driver certification. 233 

210.6-6.  Temporary Use 234 
210.4-5. Human Resources Department.  The Human Resources Department shall: 235 

(a)  Maintain a current list of drivers and provide the list to Fleet Management and the 236 
Central Accounting Department on a regular basis; 237 
(b) Perform driving record checks and approve or deny certification based on the review 238 
of an individual’s driving record; and notify the appropriate parties immediately of 239 
ineligibility in writing; 240 
(c) Notify supervisors immediately of 241 

(1) the certification status of his or her employees or volunteers; and 242 
(2) of any cancelation or lapse in a personal vehicle driver’s insurance coverage.  243 

(d) Assist supervisors with the administration of suspensions and/or revocations of 244 
certification; 245 
(e) Request and maintain records of proof of insurance on personal vehicles driven on 246 
Tribal business; 247 
(f) Participate in motor vehicle crash investigations;  248 
(g) Maintain documentation of all required driver training and regulatory compliance; 249 
(h) Perform, or delegate to another person to perform, the supervisory responsibilities 250 
identified in this law, for drivers who do not have a supervisor.  251 

210.4-6. Environmental Health & Safety Division.  The Environmental Health & Safety Division 252 
shall provide driver safety training as included herein, and provide the Human Resources 253 
Department with the names of drivers who have completed training after each training session. 254 
210.4-7. Supervisors. For drivers who do not have a supervisor, the Human Resources Department 255 
shall either assume the supervisor’s responsibilities, or shall delegate those responsibilities to 256 
another person/Fleet Vehicle.  An individual in an entity. Supervisors of drivers shall: 257 

(a) Ensure those drivers who report to them are certified before allowing those employees 258 
to drive a Tribal vehicle or a personal vehicle on Tribal business. 259 
(b) Ensure drivers have the appropriate license, training certification(s), and insurance 260 
information on file with the Human Resources Department. 261 
(c) Ensure all motor vehicle crashes and damages are reported in accordance with this law. 262 
(d) Ensure that all Tribal vehicle mileage is recorded and submitted to Fleet Management 263 
in accordance with requirements established by Fleet Management. 264 
(e) Approve expense reports submitted for personal vehicle mileage reimbursement. 265 
(f) Promptly take appropriate action to investigate: 266 

(1) all infractions of this law of which they become aware, including but not limited 267 
to, allegations of alcohol or drug use while using a Tribal vehicle or personalnot 268 
permanently assigned a fleet vehicle for Tribal business.  269 
(2) allegations of a history of unsafe driving, regardless of whether or not the 270 
employee has ever been charged with an offense. 271 

(g) Ensure that all employees who directly report to them abide by this law. 272 

95 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 7 
 

(h) Implement disciplinary action against employee drivers who violate this law, in 273 
accordance with the Nation’s laws governing employment. 274 
(i) When necessary, refer drivers to:  275 

(1) the Environmental Health & Safety Division or an appropriate agency or 276 
training source for additional driver training; and/or 277 
(2) the Employee Assistance Program, in accordance with applicable policies and 278 
procedures of the Nation. 279 

 280 
210.5. Driver Responsibilities 281 
210.5-1. While operating a Tribal vehicle or a personal vehicle on Tribal business, drivers shall: 282 

(a)  Abide by all provisions of this law. 283 
(b) Follow all traffic laws, respect property, be courteous and use good judgment.  284 
(c) Wear seat belts and require passengers to wear seat belts at all times.  285 
(d) Not drive while:  286 

(1) under the influence of controlled substances, intoxicating beverages, 287 
prescription drugs or other medications that caution against operating a motor 288 
vehicle when taken, or  289 
(2) impaired by a medical or physical condition or other factor that affects a driver’s 290 
motor skills, reaction time or concentration.   291 

(e) Not transport controlled substances, intoxicating beverages, or any passenger that is in 292 
possession of controlled substance or intoxicating beverages; without prior written 293 
approval from his or her supervisor to do so.   294 

(1) Exemptions. Employees of the Nation who are transporting such substances, 295 
beverages or passengers in the course of performing their job duties are exempt 296 
from this requirement.  297 

(f) Not transport unauthorized passengers. 298 
(g) Not use devices such as cell phones, whether for talking or texting; notebook or laptop 299 
computers; books or book applications; newspapers or magazines; and two-way radios 300 
unless the vehicle is safely stopped.   301 

(1) Exemptions. The following are exempt from this requirement: 302 
(A) Authorized emergency vehicle communication equipment 303 
(B) Navigation devices 304 
(C) Communication equipment used while performing services for the 305 
Nation.  306 

 307 
210.6. Tribal Vehicle Usage 308 
210.6-1. Drivers who do not have access to a permanently assigned Tribal vehicle and who are 309 
unable to use a vehicle assigned to another department, may request to use a Tribalfleet vehicle to 310 
conduct Tribalfor the purpose of conducting official business by submitting a request to the Fleet 311 
Management. Whenever possible, such requests shall be made at least one (1) week in advance.  312 
Department.  313 

(a)  Requests for the use of a fleet vehicle shall be made at least one (1) week in advance, 314 
unless urgent circumstances arise. 315 
(b)  Before determining whether a fleet vehicle is available, or approving the use of a fleet 316 
vehicle, the Fleet Management Department shall confirm that: 317 

(1)  The individual requesting the fleet vehicle has his or her driver certification; 318 
(2) The individual has authorization to use the fleet vehicle from his or her 319 
supervisor, if an employee, or by the individual’s entity, if the individual is an 320 
elected or appointed official of the Nation or volunteer; and 321 

96 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 8 
 

(3)  Any passengers are authorized to travel in a fleet vehicle.  322 
(c)  The Fleet Management Department may combine vehicle use for travel to the same 323 
destination. 324 
(d)  The Fleet Management Department may cancel reservations that are not fulfilled in a 325 
timely manner and may combine vehicle use for travel to the same destination. 326 
(b)  Before determining whether a Tribal vehicle is available or approving the use of a 327 
Tribal vehicle, Fleet Management shall confirm that: 328 

(1) the driver is certified. 329 
(2) the driver has written consent to use a Tribal vehicle; provided by the driver’s 330 
supervisor, if the driver is an employee; or by the driver’s entity, if the driver is an 331 
official or volunteer.  332 
(3) any passengers are authorized to travel in a Tribal vehicle, in accordance with 333 
210.6-3. 334 

(c) Before approving the use of a permanently assigned Tribal vehicle by any driver; the 335 
department shall be responsible for confirming that the requirements of (b) are met.  336 

210.6-2.7.  Authorized Passengers.  In order to have a Tribal vehicle permanently assigned to an 337 
entity, the entity shall drive a minimum number of miles annually, as determined by Fleet 338 
Management.  Exceptions to the mileage criteria may be granted upon request by an entity and 339 
with written approval from Fleet Management. 340 

(a)  Entities who have a permanently-assigned vehicle shall regularly schedule service 341 
work, maintenance work and safety checks with the Automotive Department. 342 

210.6-3.  The following individuals may travel in a Tribal vehicle: 343 
(a)  Employees,addition to the employees, elected or appointed officials, or volunteers who are on 344 
Tribal business,authorized to use a fleet vehicle, the following individuals shall be authorized to 345 
be a passenger in a fleet vehicle: 346 

(b)a)  Individuals being transported as part of a program or service of the Nation, ; 347 
(c)b)  Individuals being transported during the normal and ordinary course of representing 348 
and/or conducting business on behalf of the Nation; and/or 349 
(d) Individuals(c) Any other individual who areis authorized, by Oneida Business 350 
Committee motion, to travel in a Tribal vehicle. The Oneida Business Committee may 351 
request input from be a passenger by the Fleet Management before making a determination 352 
on these requestsDepartment. 353 

210.6-4. When a driver uses a Tribal vehicle, he or she shall: 354 
(a) Complete a vehicle mileage log. Vehicle mileage logs shall be provided in each Tribal 355 
vehicle. 356 
(b) Notify Fleet Management immediately of any problem(s) with a Tribal vehicle that may 357 
be a safety or mechanical hazard, or of any incidents that result in the inability of a Tribal 358 
vehicle to complete a trip. 359 
(c) Be personally responsible for all traffic citation costs, parking ticket costs or any similar 360 
expense related to vehicle use.  361 
(d) Use Oneida One Stops for fueling Tribal vehicles, unless the Tribal vehicle needs fuel 362 
before it can be taken to an Oneida One Stop. 363 
(e) Not smoke, and not permit others to smoke, in the Tribal vehicle.  364 
(f) Ensure the interior of the vehicle is kept in good condition, clean and free of debris. 365 

210.6-5. Tribal vehicles shall be used for business miles. When away from the work site, a Tribal 366 
vehicle may also be used for incidental purposes, such as travel to and from lodging and meal sites. 367 
Tribal vehicles shall not be used for any of the following: 368 

(a) Personal use or non-business miles, except as authorized under the Business Committee 369 
Vehicle Policy. 370 

97 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 9 
 

(b) Vacation. 371 
(c) Towing cargo for personal reasons. 372 
(d) Hauling loads that could structurally damage the vehicle. 373 
(e) Delivering goods or services for personal gain, or operating private pools where the 374 
riders pay the driver. 375 
(f) Transporting hitchhikers. 376 
(g) Jump starting vehicles, other than Tribal vehicles. 377 

210.6-6. Tribal logos shall be placed on all Tribal vehicles. 378 
210.6-7. Additional Equipment,210.6-8.  Modifications. 379 
(a) to Fleet Vehicles.  Modifications to Tribalfleet vehicles for personal reasons are not permitted. 380 
Modifications to Tribalfleet vehicles for operating purposes may be allowed only with the approval 381 
of the Fleet Management.  Department. 382 

(1) Provided that, this shall not be construed to prohibit drivers from making 383 
temporary, non-permanent modifications, such as adjusting the positions of vehicle 384 
seats or mirrors.    385 

(b) Fleet Management may equip Tribal vehicles with Global Positioning Systems (GPS) 386 
to monitor vehicle usage. 387 
(c)(a)  Radar detection devices shall not be installed or used in Tribalfleet vehicles. 388 

 389 
210.7. Rental Vehicles 390 
210.7-1. Rental vehicles are considered Tribal vehicles for the purpose of this law. All provisions 391 
of this law apply to rental vehicle usage. Vehicles210.6-9.  Rental Vehicles.  An individual shall 392 
have his or her driver certification before using a rental vehicle to conduct official business. An 393 
individual shall operate the rental vehicle with the same responsibilities and restrictions as a fleet 394 
vehicle.  395 
(a)  A vehicle shall be rented in accordance with the Oneida Travel and Expense PolicyNation’s 396 
laws and drivers of rental vehicles shall be certified in accordance with this law.  397 

210.7-2.policies governing travel. Every vehicle rentalrented shall include the purchase of 398 
the maximum collision damage waiver offered by the rental companiescompany. 399 
 400 

210.8. Driver Certification 401 
7210.8-1. Certification. All persons shall be certified before operating a Tribal vehicle or personal 402 
vehicle on Tribal business.  In order to be certified, an individual shall: 403 

(a) Be eighteen (18) years of age or older. 404 
(b) Satisfy any additional experience requirements established by law or by rules 405 
promulgated by the Human Resources Department, that apply for the vehicle being 406 
assigned or used.  407 
(c) Hold a valid, non-probationary Wisconsin driver’s license and provide proof of such 408 
license, including any commercial endorsement(s), to the Human Resources Department 409 
within thirty (30) days after his or her start of employment or time of election, appointment 410 
or volunteer service. 411 

(1) Drivers with commercial driver’s licenses may be restricted to only operating 412 
Tribal vehicles within the state of Wisconsin. 413 
(2) An occupational license is a valid, non-probationary driver’s license if the 414 
driver’s abstract which accompanies the occupational license allows the driver to 415 
operate vehicles for his or her job with the Nation. 416 
(3) Individuals with a driver’s license from a state other than Wisconsin shall obtain 417 
a Wisconsin driver’s license within thirty (30) days after their first day of actual 418 
employment or service and provide a copy to the Human Resources Department. 419 

98 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 10 
 

(d) Pass a driving record check by the Human Resources Department to verify the driver 420 
has a valid, non-probationary driver’s license as identified in (c); and to verify the driver 421 
has no citation or conviction related to a traffic incident, and no driving citation or 422 
conviction involving drugs or alcohol, within the time period(s) that would make the driver 423 
ineligible for certification under this law.  424 

(1)  The individual shall have his or her driving record checked by the Human 425 
Resources Department prior to his or her hire date or start date.   426 

(A) State Department of Motor Vehicle reports shall be used to determine 427 
whether an individual passes the driving record check.  428 
(B) An individual with a driver’s license from a state other than Wisconsin 429 
shall have his or her driving record checked based on that state’s license. 430 

(2) The Nation reserves the right to check driving records of a driver at any time.   431 
All drivers shall authorize the Human Resources Department to check his or her 432 
driving record.  433 
(3)  The Nation reserves the right to allow insurance carriers or agents to check 434 
driving records at any time. This review shall be deemed to be a review by the 435 
Nation. 436 

(e) Complete all driver training requirements imposed by the Nation, an individual entity, 437 
or by any federal or state agency regulations. 438 

(1) Except as provided in (e)(2), drivers who are certified to operate a Tribal vehicle 439 
shall complete driver safety training every three (3) years. 440 

(A) The training program shall be administered, scheduled, and documented 441 
by the Environmental Health & Safety Division. 442 
(B) A break in employment or service of one hundred eighty (180) days or 443 
greater requires retraining.   444 
(C) Drivers shall be paid their regular wage for all required training. 445 

(2) Tribal vehicle drivers who are subject to specialized driver safety training requirements 446 
imposed by state or federal regulatory agencies are exempt from the driver safety training 447 
required in (e)(1), provided that, such drivers shall complete all required driver safety training 448 
according to the applicable regulations before operating a Tribal vehicle to which the regulations 449 
apply. 450 
210.8-2. Additional Requirements for Personal Vehicle Drivers.  In addition to the requirements 451 
listed in 210.8-1, the following also apply for drivers of personal vehicles on Tribal business.  452 

(a) Insurance. Each driver shall provide the Human Resources Department with written 453 
proof that he or she carries at least the minimum insurance coverage required by this law. 454 
Drivers shall maintain updated proof of vehicle insurance and provide copies to the Human 455 
Resources Department. The Human Resources Department may request written proof of 456 
insurance from drivers at any time. 457 

(1) The minimum insurance requirements on a personal vehicle are: 458 
 (A) one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) per person; 459 

(B) three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000) per accident for bodily 460 
injury; and 461 

 (C) twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) property damage. 462 
(2). A driver shall immediately notify the Human Resources Department of any 463 
cancelation or lapse in his or her insurance coverage. No driver may drive a 464 
personal vehicle on Tribal business during the time he or she does not have the 465 
required minimum personal auto insurance coverage. 466 

99 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 11 
 

(3) If a personal vehicle driver’s required insurance lapses, the Human Resources 467 
Department shall immediately remove the driver from the list of certified drivers, 468 
and notify the driver’s supervisor once this action has been taken.  469 

(b) Mileage Reimbursement. 470 
(1) A driver who operates a personal vehicle on Tribal business shall be reimbursed 471 
for any business miles driven if he or she: 472 

(A) was certified at the time and had written proof of required insurance on 473 
file with the Human Resources Department. 474 
(B) had prior consent from his or her supervisor to travel those miles on 475 
Tribal business.  476 

(2) While driving on Tribal business, drivers of personal vehicles shall not use their 477 
vehicle for personal gain of any kind. 478 
(3) All provisions of this law apply to drivers of personal vehicles on Tribal 479 
business regardless of whether or not vehicle mileage reimbursement is submitted. 480 

210.8-3. Additional Requirements 481 
(a) Individual entities may require stricter certification procedures and standards that do 482 
not conflict with these standards; including but not limited to, specialized requirements 483 
regarding age, experience, training, and licensing.  Such procedures and standards shall be 484 
submitted to Fleet Management, Risk Management and the Human Resources Department 485 
for review and approval.  486 
(b) Drivers are subject to all specialized requirements imposed by state or federal 487 
regulatory agencies; including but not limited to, regulatory requirements pertaining to the 488 
use of drugs and alcohol. 489 

210.8-4. Drivers shall immediately notify their supervisor; and the supervisor shall immediately 490 
notify the Human Resources Department in writing, of any of the following: 491 

(a) An arrest, charge or conviction for any: 492 
(1) motor vehicle operation violation involving drugs or alcohol; or  493 
(2) criminal offense related to a traffic incident.  494 

(b) Any restriction, suspension, revocation, cancellation or, if applicable, reinstatement of 495 
driving privileges related to his or her driver’s license.   496 

210.8-5. Drivers shall immediately notify their supervisor of any impairment by a medical or 497 
physical condition or other factor that affects his or her motor skills, reaction time or concentration. 498 
Supervisors shall notify the Human Resources Department, in writing, of such information when 499 
appropriate.  500 
 501 
210.9. Motor Vehicle Crashes; or Damage Involving Tribal to Vehicles 502 
210.97-1. This section shall apply in the event a driver is involved in a motor vehicle crash while 503 
driving a Tribal vehicle or a personal vehicle on Tribal business; and/or in the event that a Tribal 504 
vehicle is damaged during use. Provided that, if the Travel and Expense Policy has more restrictive 505 
requirements regarding accident reporting, the provisions of that policy shall apply. 506 
210.9-2. In the event of a motor vehicle crash or damage involving the vehicle, driversfleet vehicle 507 
or personal vehicle driven on official business, an individual shall be subject to the following 508 
reporting requirements; provided that, if a driveran individual sustains injuries that make it 509 
impossible to meet the reporting deadlines identified herein; the driver shall instead make the 510 
required reports as soon as he or she is able to do so: 511 

(a)  immediately report the crash or damage to local law enforcement if it results in any of 512 
the following: 513 

(1)  death of a person;  514 

100 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 12 
 

(2)  an injury to the driver or another person that requires medical intervention by 515 
law enforcement or emergency personnel, or treatment at a medical facility; 516 
orattention; 517 
(2) death of a person; or 518 
(3)  damage to property that does not belong to the driver or the Nation; or 519 
(4)  a Tribal vehicle being disabled and/or needing to be towed. 520 

(b)  immediately report the motor vehicle crash or damage to his or her supervisor. ; and 521 
(c)  provide the Fleet Management Department and Risk Management Department with a 522 
completed auto incident report by the end of the next business day immediately following 523 
the motor vehicle crash or damage. 524 
(d) comply with any applicable alcohol and drug testing requirements established in other 525 
laws of the Nation. 526 

210.9-3. Drivers shall follow any additional, applicable motor vehicle crash reporting requirements 527 
for vehicles regulated by a state or federal agency. 528 
210.9-4.7-2.  Internal Review. Whenever necessary, The Fleet Management Department and Risk 529 
Management Department shall coordinate and conduct an internal reviewsreview of the auto 530 
incident report for a motor vehicle crash and/or damage to a vehicle crashes involving Tribal 531 
vehicles. Internal reviews may include other personnel as deemed appropriate by .  532 
(a)  Fleet Management and Risk Management. 533 

(a) Fleet Management and Risk Management shall have investigative authority to: 534 
(1) determine fault, if not determined by law enforcement; and/or 535 

(2) may recommend whether a driver’s certification an individual should be 536 
suspendedsubject to disciplinary action based on the motor vehicle crash or incident 537 
resulting in damage to a vehicle. 538 
 (b) Internal reviews The internal review shall be completed as soon as practicablepossible 539 
after a motor vehicle crash has been reported; and shall be conducted in accordance with 540 
industry standards of practice.  541 
(c)  Following an internal review, Fleet Management and Risk Management shall issue an 542 
investigationa report. Copies of the investigation report shall be: 543 

(1)  provided to the driver, the driver’s supervisor, and the driver’s supervisorarea 544 
manager; and  545 
(2) retained by  provided to the Human Resources Department if the Fleet 546 
Management Department and Risk Management Department recommend 547 
disciplinary action.  548 

 549 

210.8for	a	minimum. Suspension of Driver Certification and Other Enforcement  550 

210.8-1. three (Suspension of driver certification is the suspension of an individual’s ability to 551 
drive a fleet vehicle or personal vehicle on official business and is not a leave from work. 552 
Suspension of driver certification is non-appealable.  553 
210.8-2.  Qualifications for Suspension.  A supervisor shall suspend an individual’s driver 554 
certification if the individual’s driver’s license is suspended or revoked by the State or becomes 555 
invalid for any other reason.  556 

(a)  A supervisor shall, when necessary, refer drivers to the Employee Assistance Program 557 
in accordance with applicable laws and policies of the Nation. 558 

210.8-3) years..  Length of Suspension.  The individual’s driver certification shall be suspended 559 
until a time in which the individual has obtained a valid driver’s license and meets the 560 
qualifications for reinstatement of driver certification.  561 
210.9-5. If, while driving a Tribal vehicle, a driver is determined to be, or admitted210.8-4.  562 
Notification of Suspension.  The supervisor shall notify the Human Resources Department in 563 

101 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 13 
 

writing if he or she suspends the driver certification of an individual and shall provide the basis 564 
for the suspension. Once notified of a suspension of driver certification the Human Resources 565 
Department shall remove the individual from the list of current certified drivers. 566 
210.8-5.  Reasonable Accommodations to Suspension.  If the suspension of an individual’s driver 567 
certification affects the individual’s ability to perform his or her job duties, a supervisor may take 568 
one of the following actions: 569 

(a)  Reassign the individual to a position which does not require driving; 570 
(b)  Provide non-driving accommodation within the position; 571 
(c)  Remove the driving requirement from the job description; 572 
(d)  Place the individual on unpaid leave until the individual obtains his or her driver 573 
certification; or 574 
(e)  Terminate the individual because a valid driver’s license is an essential requirement of 575 
the position.  576 

210.8-6. Reinstatement of Driver Certification.  An individual may have his or her driver 577 
certification reinstated upon a review by the Human Resources Department that the individual 578 
again meets all the qualifications for driver certification provided for in section 210.4-2. 579 
210.8-7.  Other Enforcement Actions.  A supervisor may take disciplinary action against an 580 
individual in accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing employment if the 581 
individual is an employee, or in accordance with the laws and policies of the Nation governing 582 
sanctions and penalties if the individual is an elected or appointed official of the Nation, for any 583 
of the following actions: 584 

(a)  Failing to comply with any provision of this law; 585 
(b)  Failing to complete any applicable driver training requirements; 586 
(c)  Driving a fleet vehicle without being certified under the provisions of this law;  587 
(d)  Admitting to, or being determined to be, partially or entirely at fault in a motor vehicle 588 
crash involving vehicle damage, property damage, or personal injury, the driver may have 589 
his or her certification suspended.; and 590 

 591 
210.10. Suspension and Revocation of Certification; Disciplinary Action 592 
210.10-1. Any driver who violates this law may be subject to suspension of his or her vehicle 593 
driver certification, and/or driving privileges.  594 

(a) Driving Privilege Suspensions.  595 
(1) In certain situations, a supervisor may temporarily suspend a driver’s driving 596 
privileges without suspending the driver’s certification. When a driver’s driving 597 
privileges are suspended, the driver shall not be permitted to drive a Tribal vehicle 598 
or to drive a personal vehicle on Tribal business. 599 

(A) A supervisor shall temporarily suspend a driver’s driving privileges:  600 
(1) When the driver is unable to provide proof that the driver carries 601 
any insurance required by this law, or 602 
(2) When the driver has not satisfied any driver training 603 
requirements as required by this law; but has made arrangements to 604 
complete the required driver training within a reasonable period of 605 
time.  606 
(3) Upon request from the Human Resources Department, in 607 
conjunction with the Risk Management Department, pending an 608 
investigation that appears likely to lead to a suspension of 609 
certification.  610 

102 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 14 
 

(4) In any other situation where the supervisor is unable to determine 611 
whether the driver has valid certification and is eligible to drive a 612 
Tribal vehicle or a personal vehicle on Tribal business.  613 

(B) When a supervisor suspends a driver’s driving privileges; the supervisor 614 
shall promptly notify both the driver and the Human Resources Department, 615 
in writing, of the suspension, including the effective date; as well as the 616 
conditions that the employee is required to meet before the suspension may 617 
be lifted. The supervisor shall also notify both the driver and the Human 618 
Resource Department, in writing, once the driver’s driving privileges are 619 
reinstated.  620 
(C) A driver’s driving privileges shall automatically be reinstated after the 621 
driver satisfactorily fulfills the conditions identified by the supervisor when 622 
the driving privileges are suspended.  623 

(b) Certification Suspensions. A driver shall have his or her certification suspended for any 624 
of the following: 625 

(1) Refusing to allow the Nation or an insurance carrier check his or her driving 626 
record. 627 
(2) Failing to immediately notify his or her supervisor of any information as 628 
required in 210.8-4 or elsewhere in this law.    629 
(3) Noncompliance with motor vehicle crash reporting requirements established by 630 
this law.  631 
(4) Failing to complete any applicable driver training requirements. 632 
(5) Being arrested, charged or convicted of a motor vehicle operation violation 633 
involving drugs, alcohol or criminal offense related to a traffic incident.  634 
(6) Having his or her driver’s license restricted, suspended, revoked or cancelled 635 
by the state. 636 
(7) Knowingly driving a Tribal vehicle without being certified under the provisions 637 
of this law. 638 

(8) For a personal vehicle certification, not(e)  Not maintaining the minimum insurance 639 
requirements for a personal vehicle.   640 
(c) Supervisors who fail to uphold this law may face disciplinary action, in accordance with 641 
the laws of the Nation governing employment. 642 
(d) Regardless of whether a violation results in suspension of certification,  643 

(1) employees who violate this law may also be subject to disciplinary action, in 644 
accordance with laws of the Nation governing employment;  645 
(2) officials who violate this law may also be subject to sanctions and penalties in 646 
accordance with applicable laws of the Nation; including but not limited to, removal 647 
from office for elected officials and termination of appointment for appointed 648 
officials.  649 

210.10-2. Except as provided in 210.11-2(d) and 210.10-7(b), suspension of a vehicle driver 650 
certification or of driving privileges, is not appealable.  651 
210.10-3.  Suspensions Affecting  Employment  Status. Suspension of certification is a suspension 652 
of driving privileges and is not leave from work. Individuals who have their driving privileges 653 
suspended in accordance with 210.10-1(a), or who have their certification suspended and their 654 
ability to perform their duties as an employee affected by that suspension may request, in writing, 655 
that their supervisor and a Human Resources Department representative determine what, if any, 656 
options may be available to them. Options may include, but are not limited to: non-driving 657 
accommodation within the home department; reassignment to a position which does not require 658 
driving; a leave of absence without pay; or termination of employment. 659 

103 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 15 
 

210.10-4. The minimum length of a suspension shall be based on the number of prior suspensions 660 
that have occurred within the past three (3) years from the date of the incident that resulted in the 661 
most recent suspension:  662 

(a) The first time a driver has his or her vehicle driver certification suspended, the 663 
suspension shall last no less than five (5) full-time workdays. 664 
(b) The second time a driver has his or her vehicle driver certification suspended, the 665 
suspension shall last no less than ten (10) full-time workdays. 666 
(c) The third time a driver has his or her vehicle driver certification suspended, the 667 
suspension shall last no less than fifteen (15) full-time workdays. 668 
(d) Drivers who incur more than three (3) vehicle driver certification suspensions under 669 
this law within a three (3) year period shall lose their vehicle driver certification for three 670 
(3) years, beginning with the date of the incident that resulted in the most recent suspension.   671 

210.10-5. Due to the seriousness of a citation for the operation of motor vehicles involving drugs 672 
or alcohol, vehicle driver certification shall be suspended upon the issuance of a driving citation 673 
involving drugs or alcohol. Certification may only be reinstated upon the dismissal of the citation 674 
or upon three (3) years passing from the date of citation. 675 
210.10-6. A break in employment or service of one hundred eighty (180) days or greater shall clear 676 
the driver’s record of any vehicle driver certification suspensions, except for three (3)-year 677 
suspensions resulting from a violation that involved drugs or alcohol. However, all prior 678 
suspensions may be used in re-employment consideration.   679 
210.10-7. Notwithstanding any other provision of this law, the Nation reserves the right to suspend 680 
an individual’s certification or extend a certification suspension. Certification may be suspended; 681 
or an existing suspension may be extended, based on the best interests of the Nation and in 682 
accordance with the following: 683 

(a) For officials and volunteers: upon unanimous agreement between the Human Resources 684 
Department, Fleet Management and Risk Management. 685 
(b) For employees: A supervisor may suspend an employee’s certification or extend an 686 
existing suspension, when the supervisor determines it is appropriate to do so. The 687 
employee may appeal this adverse employment action in accordance with the employment 688 
laws of the Nation.  689 

 690 
210.11. Reinstatement of Certification 691 
210.11-1. Vehicle driver certifications that are suspended for thirty (30) days or less shall be 692 
automatically reinstated upon expiration of the suspension.   693 
210.11-2. A driver whose certification is suspended for thirty-one (31) days or more, may have his 694 
or her certification reinstated in accordance with the following: 695 

(a) The driver may request reinstatement of his or her certification after: 696 
(1) A certification suspension has concluded or any citation(s) are dismissed or the 697 
individual is cleared of any charges alleged in a citation that resulted in a driving 698 
certification suspension; and 699 
(2) Three (3) years have passed since the individual was convicted of a motor 700 
vehicle operation citation involving drugs or alcohol; and 701 
(3) The state removes a driver’s license suspension; and  702 
(4) Written proof has been submitted to the Human Resources Department that the 703 
individual has any required insurance coverage. 704 

(b) Upon receiving a request to reinstate an individual’s certification, the Human Resources 705 
Department shall: 706 

(1) check the individual’s driving record to ensure the individual has no violations 707 
on his or her driving record preventing reinstatement; and 708 

104 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft (Redline to Current) 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 16 
 

(2) verify the written proof of insurance submitted by the individual, provided it 709 
meets the requirements of this law. 710 

(c) If the individual passes the driving record check and his or her proof of insurance is 711 
verified, the individual’s certification shall be reinstated upon approval of the Human 712 
Resources Department. 713 

(1) Exception. For an individual’s fourth (4th) suspension or a suspension due to a 714 
conviction of motor vehicle operation citation involving drugs or alcohol the 715 
individual’s certification may only be reinstated if the following requirements are 716 
met:   717 

(A) For officials and volunteers: certification may only be reinstated upon 718 
unanimous approval of the Human Resources Department, Fleet 719 
Management and Risk Management. 720 
(B) For employees: The supervisor shall notify the Human Resources 721 
Department, Area Manager, and Risk Management of the request; and may 722 
reinstate the employee’s certification if none of those entities object.  723 

(d) Any official, volunteer or employee may seek review of a decision not to reinstate 724 
certification, by filing an appeal with the Judiciary.  725 

 726 
End. 727 
Adopted BC-06-28-17-C. 728 
Amended BC-__-__-__-__. 729 

105 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 1 
 

Title 2. Employment - Chapter 210 
Lot$=sles Kayanl^sla Khale> Nya>teka>sl#htake    Lonatl$hute>  Kayanl^sla  

they’re driving  law   and  a variety of vehicles the responsibility is attached to them  

VEHICLE DRIVER CERTIFICATION AND FLEET MANAGEMENT  
 

210.1. Purpose and Policy 
210.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
210.3. Definitions 
210.4. Driver Certification 

210.5. Responsibilities of a Certified Driver 
210.6. Fleet Vehicles 
210.7. Motor Vehicle Crashes or Damage to Vehicles 
210.8. Suspension of Driver Certification and Other Enforcement 

 1 
210.1. Purpose and Policy 2 
210.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this law is to establish standards that certify employees, elected 3 
and appointed officials, and volunteers to drive a fleet vehicle or personal vehicle on official 4 
business and regulate the use of all vehicles owned and leased by the Nation. 5 
210.1-2. Policy. It is the policy of the Nation to ensure the safety of the community and employees 6 
of the Nation; minimize the Nation’s liability when physical damage to vehicles and/or property 7 
damage occurs as a result of a motor vehicle crash; and improve the efficiency and effectiveness 8 
of the use of vehicles owned by the Nation. 9 
 10 
210.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 11 
210.2-1. This law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC-06-28-17-C, 12 
and amended by resolution BC-__-__-__-__. 13 
210.2-2. This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee and/or Oneida 14 
General Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. 15 
210.2-3. Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 16 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 17 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 18 
210.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 19 
the provisions of this law shall control.   20 
210.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 21 
 22 
210.3. Definitions 23 
210.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 24 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 25 

(a)  “Area manager” means an employee’s supervisor’s supervisor; or, an individual 26 
designated to be the area manager by a General Manager position. 27 
(b)  “Business day” means Monday through Friday, from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.; excluding 28 
the Nation’s holidays.  29 
(c)  “Employee” means an individual employed by the Nation, but does not include elected 30 
or appointed officials, or employees of a chartered corporation of the Nation. 31 
(d)  “Entity” means a department, enterprise, program, board, committee or commission of 32 
the Nation. 33 
(e)  “Employee Assistance Program” means a professional counseling program staffed by 34 
clinical social workers licensed by the State of Wisconsin which offers services to the 35 
Nation’s employees and family members. 36 
(f)  “Fleet vehicle” means a vehicle owned or leased by the Nation. 37 
(g)  “Moving violation” means any violation of motor vehicle or traffic law that is 38 
committed by the driver of a vehicle while the vehicle is moving. A moving violation does 39 

106 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 2 
 

not include parking violations, equipment violations, or paperwork violations relating to 40 
insurance, registration or inspection. 41 
(h)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 42 
(i)  “Prohibited drug” means marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, phencyclidine 43 
(PCP), hallucinogens, methaqualone, barbiturates, narcotics, and any other substances 44 
included in Schedules I through V, as defined by Section 812 of Title 21 of the United 45 
States Code. Prohibited drugs also includes prescription medication or over-the-counter 46 
medicine when used in an unauthorized or unlawful manner. 47 
(j)  “Supervisor” means the direct supervisor of an employee. For volunteers, elected or 48 
appointed officials, or employees without a direct supervisor, it means the Human 49 
Resources Department or any party who has been designated by the Human Resources 50 
Department as responsible for performing a supervisor’s responsibilities under this law.  51 
(k)  “Weapon” means a firearm, knife, electric weapon, club, or any other object intended 52 
to cause harm to oneself or others. 53 
 54 

210.4. Driver Certification 55 
210.4-1.  An individual shall obtain driver certification from the Human Resources Department 56 
before operating a fleet vehicle or personal vehicle on official business.   57 
210.4-2.  Qualifications for Certification.  In order to receive driver certification a person shall: 58 

(a)  Be eighteen (18) years of age or older; 59 
(b)  Hold a valid Wisconsin driver’s license; 60 

(1)  A person who holds a valid driver’s license from a state other than Wisconsin 61 
shall have thirty (30) days after his or her first day of employment or service to 62 
obtain a Wisconsin driver’s license. 63 

(c)  Have a driving record that does not reflect any of the following conditions: 64 
(1)  Three (3) or more moving violations and/or at-fault motor vehicle crashes in 65 
the past two (2) years; and/or 66 
(2)  An operating while intoxicated (OWI), driving under the influence (DUI), or 67 
prohibited alcohol concentration (PAC) citation within the last twelve (12) months. 68 

(d)  Complete all driver training requirements imposed by the Nation or any federal or state 69 
agency regulations; 70 
(e)  Satisfy any other requirements specific to the job description and/or vehicle that may 71 
be used by or assigned to the person; and  72 
(f)  Maintain one (1) of the following minimum insurance requirements for a personal 73 
vehicle if the individual may use his or her personal vehicle to conduct official business: 74 

(1)  the individual’s insurance covers:   75 
(A)  one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) per person; 76 
(B)  three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000) per motor vehicle crash for 77 
bodily injury; and 78 
(C)  twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) property damage; or 79 

(2)  the individual’s insurance covers two hundred and fifty thousand dollars 80 
($250,000) combined single limit. 81 

210.4-3.  The Nation’s Human Resources Department shall be responsible for determining whether 82 
an individual meets all the qualifications before approving or denying a driver certification.  83 

(a)  An individual shall provide his or her appropriate license, training certification, and 84 
insurance information to the Human Resources Department. 85 
(b)  The Human Resources Department shall have the authority to check the driving record 86 
of an individual at any time. 87 

107 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 3 
 

(c)  The Human Resources Department shall maintain a current list of all certified drivers 88 
and provide the list to Fleet Management, Risk Management, and Central Accounting on a 89 
regular basis. 90 

210.4-4.  A supervisor shall ensure that an individual has received his or her driver certification 91 
from the Human Resources Department before allowing the individual to drive a fleet vehicle or a 92 
personal vehicle on official business. 93 
 94 
210.5. Responsibilities of a Certified Driver  95 
210.5-1.  General Responsibilities.  While operating a fleet vehicle or a personal vehicle on official 96 
business, an individual shall: 97 

(a)  Abide by all traffic laws; 98 
(b)  Wear a seat belt and require any passengers to wear a seat belt at all times; 99 
(c)  Not drive while under the influence of prohibited drugs and/or alcohol; 100 
(d)  Not drive if impaired by a medical or physical condition or other factor that affects a 101 
driver’s motor skills, reaction time, or concentration; 102 
(e)  Not carry a weapon, whether in the open or concealed; 103 

(1)  Exemption.  An individual who is carrying a weapon in the course of performing 104 
his or her official duties, or is participating in cultural activities or ceremonies is 105 
exempt from this requirement. 106 

(f)  Not transport prohibited drugs and/or alcohol;   107 
(1)  Exemption. An employee of the Nation who is transporting prohibited drugs 108 
and/or alcohol in the course of performing his or her job duties is exempt from this 109 
requirement.  110 

(g)  Not deliver goods or services for personal gain, or operate private pools where the 111 
riders pay the driver; and 112 
(h)  Not use electronic devices in an unlawful manner. 113 

210.5-2.  Training Responsibilities.  An individual with driver certification shall complete the 114 
driver safety training provided and monitored by the Human Resources Department every three 115 
(3) years.  116 

(a)  Exemption. An individual who is required to maintain compliance with any specialized 117 
driver safety training requirements imposed by state or federal regulatory agencies shall be 118 
exempt from the requirement to complete the driver safety training provided by the Human 119 
Resources Department. 120 

210.5-3.  Fleet Vehicle Responsibilities.  When operating a fleet vehicle, an individual shall: 121 
(a)  Complete a vehicle mileage log; 122 
(b)  Not transport unauthorized passengers; 123 
(c)  Notify the Fleet Management Department immediately of any problems with a fleet 124 
vehicle that may be a safety or mechanical hazard, or of any incidents that result in the 125 
inability of a fleet vehicle to complete a trip; 126 
(d)  Be personally responsible for all traffic citation costs, parking ticket costs, or any 127 
similar expense related to vehicle use; 128 
(e)  Use Oneida Retail locations for fueling fleet vehicles, unless the fleet vehicle needs 129 
fuel before it can be taken to an Oneida Retail location; 130 
(f)  Not smoke or use electronic smoking devices or permit others to smoke or use 131 
electronic smoking devices in the fleet vehicle; and  132 
(g)  Ensure the interior of the vehicle is kept in good condition, clean, and free of debris. 133 

210.5-4.  Personal Vehicle Responsibilities.  When operating a personal vehicle on official 134 
business, an individual shall: 135 

108 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 4 
 

(a)  Obtain permission from his or her supervisor to operate a personal vehicle on official 136 
business; and  137 
(b)  Submit all required documents for mileage reimbursement, if seeking reimbursement 138 
for miles driven while conducting official business, within thirty (30) days of driving the 139 
miles or by the end of the current fiscal year, whichever is sooner. 140 

(1)  Not seeking mileage reimbursement does not exempt an individual from the 141 
provisions of this law. 142 

210.5-5. Notification Requirements.  An individual shall notify his or her supervisor if he or she: 143 
(a)  Has his or her driver’s license suspended or revoked by the State, or has his or her 144 
driver’s license become invalid for any other reason; 145 
(b)  Meets any of the conditions for disciplinary action as provided in section 210.8-7; 146 
and/or 147 
(c)  Has any impairment by a medical or physical condition or other factor that affects his 148 
or her motor skills, reaction time, or concentration. 149 

 150 
210.6. Fleet Vehicles  151 
210.6-1.  Fleet Management Department.  The Nation’s Fleet Management Department shall 152 
purchase, manage, and monitor the use of the Nation’s fleet vehicles. The Fleet Management 153 
Department’s responsibilities shall include, but are not limited to: 154 

(a)  Maintain a list of all fleet vehicles that are available for use, including vehicles 155 
permanently assigned to specific entities of the Nation; 156 
(b)  Remove unsafe vehicles from the fleet; 157 
(c)  Obtain estimates of and schedule fleet vehicle repairs when necessary; 158 
(d) Install or remove equipment on fleet vehicles;  159 
(e)  Ensure the Nation’s logo is on all fleet vehicles; and  160 
(f)  Ensure that all fleet vehicles are equipped with a mileage log and an auto incident kit 161 
which contains forms and instructions for reporting any incident. 162 

210.6-2.  Automotive Department.  The Automotive Department shall service and maintain fleet 163 
vehicles according to factory recommendations, or the maintenance schedule established by the 164 
Automotive Department, whichever is stricter. Any vehicle deemed unsafe by the Automotive 165 
Department shall be reported to the Fleet Management Department. 166 
210.6-3.  Risk Management Department.  The Risk Management Department shall be responsible 167 
for securing and maintaining insurance coverage for all fleet vehicles. Additional responsibilities 168 
of the Risk Management Department shall include, but is not limited to: 169 

(a)  Providing auto insurance identification cards in every fleet vehicle; 170 
(b)  Processing all submitted vehicle claims and related information; and  171 
(c)  Submitting claims to the insurance company. 172 

210.6-4.  Use of a Fleet Vehicle.  A fleet vehicle may be permanently assigned to an entity for use 173 
or requested for use on a temporary basis. A fleet vehicle shall be used for conducting official 174 
business of the Nation. When used for travel purposes, a fleet vehicle may also be used for 175 
incidental purposes such as travel to and from lodging and/or meal sites.  176 

(a)  Prohibited Use of a Fleet Vehicles. A fleet vehicle shall not be used for any of the 177 
following purposes: 178 

(1)  Personal use for non-business purposes; 179 
(2)  Towing cargo for personal reasons; 180 
(3)  Hauling loads that could structurally damage the vehicle; and/or 181 
(4)  Jump starting vehicles, other than fleet vehicles. 182 

109 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 5 
 

210.6-5.  Permanently Assigned Fleet Vehicles.  The Fleet Management Department may 183 
permanently assign a fleet vehicle to an entity if the entity meets the minimum mileage criteria as 184 
established by the Fleet Management Department. 185 

(a)  Exception to Minimum Mileage Criteria.  The Fleet Management Department may 186 
grant an entity an exception to the minimum mileage criteria. 187 
(b)  An entity who is permanently assigned a fleet vehicle shall regularly schedule 188 
maintenance work and safety checks with the Automotive Department.  189 
(c)  An entity that is permanently assigned a fleet vehicle is responsible for ensuring that 190 
any individual who drives the vehicle has his or her driver certification. 191 

210.6-6.  Temporary Use of a Fleet Vehicle.  An individual in an entity that is not permanently 192 
assigned a fleet vehicle may request to use a fleet vehicle for the purpose of conducting official 193 
business by submitting a request to the Fleet Management Department.  194 

(a)  Requests for the use of a fleet vehicle shall be made at least one (1) week in advance, 195 
unless urgent circumstances arise. 196 
(b)  Before determining whether a fleet vehicle is available, or approving the use of a fleet 197 
vehicle, the Fleet Management Department shall confirm that: 198 

(1)  The individual requesting the fleet vehicle has his or her driver certification; 199 
(2) The individual has authorization to use the fleet vehicle from his or her 200 
supervisor, if an employee, or by the individual’s entity, if the individual is an 201 
elected or appointed official of the Nation or volunteer; and 202 
(3)  Any passengers are authorized to travel in a fleet vehicle.  203 

(c)  The Fleet Management Department may combine vehicle use for travel to the same 204 
destination. 205 
(d)  The Fleet Management Department may cancel reservations that are not fulfilled in a 206 
timely manner. 207 

210.6-7.  Authorized Passengers.  In addition to the employees, elected or appointed officials, or 208 
volunteers who are authorized to use a fleet vehicle, the following individuals shall be authorized 209 
to be a passenger in a fleet vehicle: 210 

(a)  Individuals being transported as part of a program or service of the Nation; 211 
(b)  Individuals being transported during the normal and ordinary course of representing 212 
and/or conducting business on behalf of the Nation; and/or 213 
(c) Any other individual who is authorized to be a passenger by the Fleet Management 214 
Department. 215 

210.6-8.  Modifications to Fleet Vehicles.  Modifications to fleet vehicles for personal reasons are 216 
not permitted. Modifications to fleet vehicles for operating purposes may be allowed only with the 217 
approval of the Fleet Management Department. 218 

(a)  Radar detection devices shall not be installed or used in fleet vehicles. 219 
210.6-9.  Rental Vehicles.  An individual shall have his or her driver certification before using a 220 
rental vehicle to conduct official business. An individual shall operate the rental vehicle with the 221 
same responsibilities and restrictions as a fleet vehicle.  222 

(a)  A vehicle shall be rented in accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing 223 
travel. Every vehicle rented shall include the purchase of the maximum collision damage 224 
waiver offered by the rental company. 225 
 226 

210.7. Motor Vehicle Crashes or Damage to Vehicles 227 
210.7-1.  In the event of a motor vehicle crash or damage involving the fleet vehicle or personal 228 
vehicle driven on official business, an individual shall be subject to the following reporting 229 
requirements; provided that, if an individual sustains injuries that make it impossible to meet the 230 

110 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 6 
 

reporting deadlines identified herein; the driver shall instead make the required reports as soon as 231 
he or she is able to do so: 232 

(a)  immediately report the crash or damage to local law enforcement if it results in any of 233 
the following: 234 

(1)  death of a person;  235 
(2)  an injury to the driver or another person that requires medical attention; 236 
(3)  damage to property that does not belong to the driver or the Nation; or 237 
(4)  a vehicle being disabled and/or needing to be towed. 238 

(b)  immediately report the motor vehicle crash or damage to his or her supervisor; and 239 
(c)  provide the Fleet Management Department and Risk Management Department with a 240 
completed auto incident report by the end of the next business day immediately following 241 
the motor vehicle crash or damage. 242 

210.7-2.  Internal Review. The Fleet Management Department and Risk Management Department 243 
shall coordinate and conduct an internal review of the auto incident report for a motor vehicle crash 244 
and/or damage to a vehicle.  245 

(a)  Fleet Management and Risk Management may recommend whether an individual 246 
should be subject to disciplinary action based on the motor vehicle crash or incident 247 
resulting in damage to a vehicle. 248 
(b)  The internal review shall be completed as soon as possible after a motor vehicle crash 249 
has been reported.  250 
(c)  Following an internal review, Fleet Management and Risk Management shall issue a 251 
report. Copies of the report shall be: 252 

(1)  provided to the driver, the driver’s supervisor, and the driver’s area manager; 253 
and 254 
(2)  provided to the Human Resources Department if the Fleet Management 255 
Department and Risk Management Department recommend disciplinary action.  256 

 257 
210.8. Suspension of Driver Certification and Other Enforcement  258 
210.8-1. Suspension of driver certification is the suspension of an individual’s ability to drive a 259 
fleet vehicle or personal vehicle on official business and is not a leave from work. Suspension of 260 
driver certification is non-appealable.  261 
210.8-2.  Qualifications for Suspension.  A supervisor shall suspend an individual’s driver 262 
certification if the individual’s driver’s license is suspended or revoked by the State or becomes 263 
invalid for any other reason.  264 

(a)  A supervisor shall, when necessary, refer drivers to the Employee Assistance Program 265 
in accordance with applicable laws and policies of the Nation. 266 

210.8-3.  Length of Suspension.  The individual’s driver certification shall be suspended until a 267 
time in which the individual has obtained a valid driver’s license and meets the qualifications for 268 
reinstatement of driver certification.  269 
210.8-4.  Notification of Suspension.  The supervisor shall notify the Human Resources 270 
Department in writing if he or she suspends the driver certification of an individual and shall 271 
provide the basis for the suspension. Once notified of a suspension of driver certification the 272 
Human Resources Department shall remove the individual from the list of current certified drivers. 273 
210.8-5.  Reasonable Accommodations to Suspension.  If the suspension of an individual’s driver 274 
certification affects the individual’s ability to perform his or her job duties, a supervisor may take 275 
one of the following actions: 276 

(a)  Reassign the individual to a position which does not require driving; 277 
(b)  Provide non-driving accommodation within the position; 278 
(c)  Remove the driving requirement from the job description; 279 

111 of 213



Draft 2 – PM Draft 
2020 01 23 

2 O.C. 210 – Page 7 
 

(d)  Place the individual on unpaid leave until the individual obtains his or her driver 280 
certification; or 281 
(e)  Terminate the individual because a valid driver’s license is an essential requirement of 282 
the position.  283 

210.8-6. Reinstatement of Driver Certification.  An individual may have his or her driver 284 
certification reinstated upon a review by the Human Resources Department that the individual 285 
again meets all the qualifications for driver certification provided for in section 210.4-2. 286 
210.8-7.  Other Enforcement Actions.  A supervisor may take disciplinary action against an 287 
individual in accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing employment if the 288 
individual is an employee, or in accordance with the laws and policies of the Nation governing 289 
sanctions and penalties if the individual is an elected or appointed official of the Nation, for any 290 
of the following actions: 291 

(a)  Failing to comply with any provision of this law; 292 
(b)  Failing to complete any applicable driver training requirements; 293 
(c)  Driving a fleet vehicle without being certified under the provisions of this law;  294 
(d)  Admitting to, or being determined to be, partially or entirely at fault in a motor vehicle 295 
crash involving vehicle damage, property damage, or personal injury; and 296 
(e)  Not maintaining the minimum insurance requirements for a personal vehicle.   297 

 298 
End. 299 
Adopted BC-06-28-17-C. 300 
Amended BC-__-__-__-__. 301 

112 of 213



 

LOC Public Meeting Transcript of January 23, 2020  
Page 1 of 5 

 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  �  Oneida, WI 54155‐0365 

Oneida‐nsn.gov   

 

 
LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management Law Amendments 

 Business Committee Conference Room-2nd Floor Norbert Hill Center 
January 23, 2020 12:15 p.m. 

 
Present: Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa N. Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Lee Cornelius, 
Nicolas Reynolds, Geraldine Danforth, Jacque Boyle, Barbara Kolitsch, Michelle Myers, Carol 
Silva, Rae Skenandore, Jeffrey Prevost, Lisa A. Moore. 
 
Kirby Metoxen:  Everybody, Council Member Kirby Metoxen, Vice Chair of the LOC, and I’ll 
be facilitating the Community Meeting.  This is the Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet 
Management Law Amendments Public Meeting script.  Okay, the time is 12:15 p.m. and today’s 
date is Thursday, January 23, 2020.   I will now call to order the public meeting for the proposed 
amendment to the Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management law. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee is hosting this public meeting to gather feedback from the 
community. The public meeting is not a question and answer period. The LOC will review and 
consider all comments received during the public comment period. The LOC will respond to all 
comments received in a memorandum, which will be submitted in the meeting materials for a 
future LOC meeting. 
 
All persons who wish to present oral testimony need to register on the sign in sheet at the back of 
the room.  There was a sign in sheet put in the back of the room, so if you came in before it was 
placed there, you can stop in and sign that.  If you leave an email address on the sign in sheet, we 
can ensure you receive a copy of the memorandum. 
 
Additionally, written comments may be submitted to the Nation’s Secretary’s Office or to the 
Legislative Reference Office in person or by mail, interoffice mail or e-mail or fax as provided on 
the public meeting notice.  These comments must be received by close of business day on 
Thursday, January 30, 2020.   
 
In attendance from the LOC is myself, Kirby Metoxen as Vice Chair. 
 
The LOC may impose a time limit for all speakers pursuant to section 109.8-3(c) of the Legislative 
Procedures Act.  As the pending LOC member, as the presiding LOC member, I am imposing a 
time limit of five (5) minutes.  This time limit shall be applied equally to all persons. 
 
We will now begin today’s public meeting with the proposed amendments to the Vehicle Driver 
Certification and Fleet Management law. The purpose of this law is to establish standards that 
certify employees, elected and appointed officials, and volunteers to drive a fleet vehicle or 
personal vehicle on official business, and to regulate the use of all vehicles owned and leased by 
the Nation. 

113 of 213



 

LOC Public Meeting Transcript of January 23, 2020   
Page 2 of 5 

 

 
Those who wish to speak please come to the microphone. And was there any names on, does 
anybody want to come up to the microphone for any comments?  Yes, Barb if you could come to 
the mike. 
 
Barbara Kolitsch:  Do I need to state my name or anything?   
 
Kirby Metoxen:  Yes. 
 
Barbara Kolitsch:  Hello, my name is Barb Kolitsch.  I work for Personnel Services in the Gaming 
Division.  I’ll start my comments in regarding the training that’s required for the Vehicle Driver 
Training or vehicle driver policy.  And I am going to speak initially from my training experience.  
I was a training director for many years, over twenty (20) years, I was a teacher for many, for a 
couple of years, I was a health educator for a couple of years and also coach and I’ll tell you and 
anyone who reads these comments, training doesn’t change behavior.  So, when we look at a 
training that’s required every three years, not only do people not remember what they were trained 
on every three years, training isn’t changing behavior.  There are other ways to help change 
behavior of a driver and (inaudible) called the influencer, there are a lot of better ideas on how to 
change behaviors if we are looking at changing behaviors of drivers.  So, I would recommend to 
remove that driving requirement or that training requirement from the drivers, the three years, 
every three years having to do safety training, because I don’t think that, you know a ten (10) to 
twenty (20) minute education on safety, driver safety, is changing behaviors of your drivers.  What 
I would recommend though, is if we have drivers and I noticed in the packet here today that we 
have a lot of at-fault accidents and at-fault drivers.  And so what I would recommend is then taking 
those at-fault drivers and putting them into a specialized course.  I looked up before I came here, 
there are online courses that an employee could be responsible for paying for it if they are an at-
fault driver and these online courses guarantee that they increase the, the behaviors of drivers.  So, 
there are online courses, the one in particular that I looked at, specifically for fleet drivers for 
companies, was twenty- ninety-five ($27.95).  So, it’s something that, maybe an idea for increasing 
at-fault or decreasing the at-fault drivers that we have using that sort of type of, you know looking 
at drivers who are actually not making good decisions and putting them through training may be a 
better decision than putting everybody in general through training. 
 
And then it’s also difficult, it’s a tracking, something that has to be tracked, it’s a lot of 
administrative work to track whether somebody has been trained or not.  Recently we just went 
through somewhat of an audit with training and we had drivers who were required to have the 
training who didn’t.  So, again it’s an administrative nightmare, there is a lot of responsibility put 
on HR and put on supervisors to make sure that they have that training. 
 
My next comment is regarding the driving record and moving violations.  My question to the LOC 
or the LRO is, when someone is off duty, why do we penalize an employee?  So, for example, if 
the State law says I can drive, why can’t I drive for the job?  I do think we should track on duty 
violations and again tie that back to training and tie that back to disciplinary action if somebody is 
violating their driving rules that we have in the organization or driving laws that the State or 
Federal regulations have.  So, what was added into the new vehicle driver policy was moving 
violations, and again, if I have three speeding tickets in the next two years I become not certifiable 

114 of 213

A good mind. A good heart . A strong fire. 

~ 
,CJOOOOO 

ONEIDA 



 

LOC Public Meeting Transcript of January 23, 2020   
Page 3 of 5 

 

and if these violations were all off duty, why is the organization punishing me for something that 
I did off duty?  I think we all do things off duty that we wouldn’t do at work, so I’m not sure what 
the correlation is really.  In addition to that the drug and alcohol violation was reduced from three 
years to one year, again I think if the State says I can drive with an Occupational License, why 
can’t I drive with the organization?  I don’t think any of the instances where somebody comes up 
with a drug and alcohol violation driving, it’s not been at work, it’s been off work and if we 
correlate that to our drug and alcohol policy, our drug and alcohol policy was created in the 1990s 
to be a helping hand policy because Oneidas, well not specifically Oneidas, Native Americans 
have the highest abuse rate of drugs and alcohol.  They are the highest of any ethnicity in the U.S.  
It’s a helping hand policy.  This is a cutthroat policy.  If I have, if I tonight go out and celebrate a 
birthday with a friend, have one too many, get pulled over, get a drunk driving, I’m out of a job.  
Where if I come to work drunk, I drink at work, I get referred to EAP and I get help and I get 
assistance, so I’m not sure, again the correlation of off duty violations and on duty violations. 
 
Kirby Metoxen:  Barb, we’re at the five (5) minutes. 
 
Barbara Kolitsch:  Okay.  I can submit the rest in writing. 
 
Kirby Metoxen:  Yes.  Okay.  Are there any other comments regarding the, any other comments?  
And Barb, it was quite interesting listening to you.  I would let you go on, but the five (5) minute 
policy. 
 
[Inaudible] 

 
Kirby Metoxen:  Pardon. 
 
[Inaudible] 

 
Kirby Metoxen:  Originally I was thinking, ahh we got a lot of comments, there is more people 
at this meeting than other community meetings.  And this is just a reminder that written comments 
may be submitted to the Nation’s Secretary’s office or to the LRO, in person, by mail, interoffice 
mail, e-mail, fax on the public meeting notice. These comments must be received by the close of 
business day on Thursday, January 30, 2020.  That’s just a reminder. 
 
If there are no other comments we will wait fifteen (15) minutes and then we will adjourn the 
meeting. 
 
I want to ask the audience some questions, but it states the public meeting is not a question and 
answer period, so it even stifles me. 
 
Jacque did you want to come up? 
 
[Inaudible] 

 
Kirby Metoxen:  Clorissa how much time do we have before we call the meeting? 
 

115 of 213

A good mind. A good heart . A strong fire. 

~ 
,CJOOOOO 

ONEIDA 



 

LOC Public Meeting Transcript of January 23, 2020   
Page 4 of 5 

 

Clorissa N. Santiago:  Five (5) more minutes. 
 
Kirby Metoxen:  Five (5) more minutes.  Okay Jacque. 
 
Jacque Boyle:  Jacque Boyle, Public Works Director.  There is a few things.  As far as submitting 
insurance, we do get notification that insurance has, needs to be renewed for each employee that 
has a driver’s requirement, personal driver’s requirement.  Unfortunately, there are instances that 
can occur where the employee then terminates the insurance and there is really no way for us to 
follow-up on that.  So, I’m not sure what we can do, I don’t think I can call the insurance company 
and say is this still in effect.  So, so what they are doing is getting insurance, submitting the 
paperwork that’s good for six months, but they could actually cancel it the next day. 
 
Another item is in the law it says that Fleet Management needs to authorize all passengers or 
individuals that may not be employees, that’s going to be very hard for us to administer.  So I think 
that should be approved by the supervisor and area manager of whose using the vehicle.  So, 
especially for Recreation or different, you know, events, we would have a hard time identifying 
each and every individual in the vehicle. 
 
Kirby Metoxen:  Yep. 
 
Jacque Boyle:  And I do want to reiterate what Barb said as far as managing the training.  I think 
that if there is an incident, that that training should be required, especially if it’s repetitive.  We do 
have a lot of specialized vehicles for snow removal and the current policy says that if there is an 
incident, Risk Management, the Fleet Manager, HRD investigate and make a recommendation and 
typically it is to remove their driving privileges.  If we did that, in order to do the job that’s required, 
that would mean we would have to put someone untrained in that vehicle, untrained on the route 
to take care of that job for the five days, ten days or fifteen days, I don’t think that’s sending the 
right message either.  It also encourages employees not to report, because they know there’s some 
negative consequences, but actually if we address it through training, especially if it’s, you know, 
multiple incidents, and I’m talking about fender benders, not very serious accidents, that the 
training would actually help them to drive better.  We are, in conjunction with that, we are looking 
at implementing a GPS system throughout the fleet vehicles, so that it will give feedback on how 
that driver is doing.  Hard braking, speeding, where they’ve been and we’re getting very close to 
implementing a contract with a vendor and starting out with some of the vehicles.  So, two things, 
it will allow the vehicle to last longer and hopefully give us feedback on how that driver is 
performing.  That’s all I have. 
 
Kirby Metoxen:  Okay, thanks Jacque.  I knew we could do it. 
 
[Inaudible] 

 
Kirby Metoxen:  Clorissa with that being said did we hit our? 
 
[Inaudible] 

 

116 of 213

A good mind. A good heart . A strong fire. 

~ 
,CJOOOOO 

ONEIDA 



 

LOC Public Meeting Transcript of January 23, 2020   
Page 5 of 5 

 

Kirby Metoxen:  Are there any other comments?  With there being no more speakers registered, 
the public meeting for the proposed amendment to the Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet 
Management law is now closed and the time is 12:36 p.m. 
 
Written comments may be submitted until the close of business day on Thursday, January 30, 
2020.  Thank you all for coming. 
 

-End of Meeting- 
 

117 of 213

A good mind. A good heart . A strong fire. 

~ 
,CJOOOOO 

ONEIDA 



From: Barbara A. Kolitsch

To: Legislative_Operating_Committee; Clorissa N. Santiago

Cc: Lucy A. Neville;  Brenda J. Mendolla-Buckley

Subject: Vehicle Driver and Fleet Management Law Public Comments

Date: Thursday, January 23, 2020 3:25:17 PM

Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

Hi –

 

The below comments are to be directed to the Legislative Reference Office, but there’s no such e-

mail, so I am submitting to Clorissa and LOC in hopes it will get to the correct office.

 

I provided oral comments today, Jan 23, 2020. Below includes testimony I provided as well as

testimony I did not have time to provide in the allotted five minutes.

 

I appreciate the work on the LRO in revising this law. The revisions are well

done! Thank you! It’s simpler and easier to follow! I recommend some

additional revisions…

 

Training requirements: Safety every three years for all drivers – please remove safety training

requirement for all

As a former Training Director, Trainer, School Teacher, Health Teacher, and professional Coach (35

years), training/teaching or education does not result in behavior change. Requiring all employees

who drive to take safety training every three years is not going to change behaviors of our drivers.

When I took the training, it was more-so an act of getting through the training for compliance

reasons. The reason I feel this way is because I have only been in one accident in my life…I was rear-

ended at no fault of my own. My belief, and most people’s belief will be that they are doing the

training due to other people being bad drivers. In the Public Hearing materials I noticed that of the

accidents tracked, the majority of them were our employees being at-fault. To improve and change

behaviors, the law should place the burden on the drivers to take safety training who have an on-

duty at-fault accident, and make the employee pay for that training. I found an on-line educational

site for drivers where the company claims proven behavior and success rates with their training

program for $27.95. I would require drivers who are reported to be at-risk drivers and those who

have accidents while performing driving duties for the Oneida Nation. For example, if I get a ticket

while driving on official duty, require me to take training.

 

Tracking training is a huge administrative burden. As former Training Director at Human Resources,

every time we had required training for large groups, there are legitimate reasons people are non-

compliant: leave of absence, vacation, business (customer priority), staff shortage, staff emergency,

etc. In a recent self-audit in Gaming the Personnel Services staff found there were some Gaming

employees who needed drivers safety training and never had taken it almost three years ago.

Gaming has a very high compliance rate in training requirements from my experience as former

Training Director, yet we still missed a few.  Some may feel it’s our job (HR or Personnel Services),

but in reality it’s the supervisor’s job to make sure employees are in compliance with policies and

procedures. There’s a lot for supervisors to track, so this may be an important thing to track, but

118 of 213



may be put on the backburner when there’s a business to run and customers/clients/and more

urgent matters to deal with. Safety training is not urgent, it’s purpose is meant to help prevent

accidents.  

 

Training as prevention is great, but maybe it should be “voluntary” for most drivers, and mandatory

for drivers who demonstrate risky on-the-job driving, or drivers who get a ticket while on duty, or

drivers who have an at-fault accident while on duty. If I voluntarily take training I’m much more likely

to learn by the nature I’m choosing to take it – to learn. If I’m mandated, I’m much more likely to go

through the motions. This is human behavior. If I’m mandated to watch it due to my behavior at my

own cost – I think I would pay attention if there’s risk of losing my job if it happens again (though

disciplinary action – in the new version of the law.) I mentioned a book called Influencer in my in-

person comments. This testimony is further supported in the research presented in the book. I was

certified as a Trainer to teach the training Influencer in 2018.

 

Believe me, if I felt training would change behaviors, I would feel much safer on the road. I’ve been

hit 11 times while riding my bicycle by distracted drivers. I’ve had many friends hit by cars on their

bikes and one friend killed on his bike. This experience has made me a more attentive as a driver

because I know it’s so easy to be distracted these days! I wouldn’t recommend putting all of our

drivers on a bicycle to observe how most drivers are so distracted, there has to be a better way than

traditional “training”.

 

Driving record – please remove the consideration of violations on driving record – including drug

and alcohol related

I challenge the Committee to assess the requirement to be certified and only consider my driving

record while on duty. If the state of Wisconsin says I can drive, and in the case of a personal vehicle

– I’m paying for my insurance, why can’t I drive? I understand that if I cause an accident that causes

more liability that I carry, the Tribe’s insurance kicks in, but I’m paying for the speeding tickets with

my higher insurance rates. If I have three speeding tickets in the next two years, I would lose my job?

And this doesn’t consider at all the fact that I had these tickets off duty. Everyone makes personal

choices in their lives, and we all make some while off-duty that we may not do at work. Why does

my off-duty behavior certify or not certify me to be able to drive. In most cases we look at a person’s

state license…example: to teach, practice medicine, social work, day care, etc. So we recognize that

license. Why don’t we recognize this state license to drive?

 

Drug and alcohol related offenses. Native Americans have the highest rate of drug/alcohol addition

than any other ethnicity. Our Drug and Alcohol Policy recognizes this, and was developed in the

1990’s to be a helping hand policy. I can come to work drunk or drink at work and the consequence

is to be referred to EAP.  If I follow the requirements of the EAP agreement, I can go back to work.

On the other hand - if I go out and have two drinks get pulled over and get an OWI – I will lose my

job. One strike. This does not match the values of the Oneida Nation as I’ve known them for 30

years. How does having an OWI correlate to my on-duty driving? It will not likely correlate for most

employees. If the drug/alcohol driving violation occurred during work time, I can understand a firm

repercussion, but how does it relate to the job when I may have simply made a poor judgement after

having a couple of drinks?

 

119 of 213



Current challenges/issues from Personnel Services

One of our first commitments to the Oneida Nation in Personnel Services is to employ Oneida

members. This policy negatively impacts mainly Oneida enrolled members. We don’t want to be in

the business of screening out Oneida enrolled candidates because of their driving record such as

OWI. We lose good candidates this way! We’ve lost good employees this way.

 

Employees have lapse of insurance, and supervisors don’t consistently deal with lapse. A lapse today

should result in suspension of certification, and today, some are not held accountable.

It’s difficult to track an employee who may drop insurance between coverage periods and pick up a

new company, which will not show coverage. My only recommendation is for employees to

somehow show continuation of coverage when they change insurance companies.

Some supervisors aren’t following up to ensure their employee has the required insurance prior to

the employee continuing to drive.

 

Referral to EAP (210.8(a)

I’m unsure the value of this referral. There’s an EAP policy, DOT policy, DAFWP policy – all which

spell out reasons/ways to do an EAP referral. This isn’t value-added in the Vehicle Driver/Fleet law.

 

Please contact me if you have any questions regarding my comments. Thank you!

 

Barb Kolitsch, SHRM-CP

Personnel Services Manager

920.429.3083

 

 

 

Official Casino of the Green Bay Packers

120 of 213



121 of 213

Memo 

To: Legislative Operating Committee 

From: Candice E. Skenandore, Self-Governance Coordinator 

Date: January 29, 2020 

Re: Public Comments Regarding Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management 

Background 

r'\ 
GDDODC) 

ONEIDA 

The Oneida Nation (Nation) has entered into a Compact and Funding Agreement with the US 

Depaiiment oflnterior (DOI) since 1994. In accordance with Section 20 of the Nation's cunent 

Funding Agreement, the Nation agrees to self-administer a motor vehicle operations policy that is 

either comparable or superior to that of the DOI's Bureau of Indian Affairs' May 3, 2006 Motor 

Vehicle Operation Policy issued by the Associate Deputy Secretary. In addition, the Nation agrees 

to comply with Executive Order 13513 pursuant to the cunent Funding Agreement. Below you 

will find the Section 20 of the Funding Agreement in verbatim. Attached is the May 3, 2006 BIA 

Motor Vehicle Operation Policy and Executive Order 13513 for your reference. 

Section 20 

Motor Vehicle Operation Policy - The Tribe certifies that it will self-administer a motor vehicle 

operation policy that promotes the safe and prudent operation of motor vehicles while performing 

duties to implement the terms of the Agreement. The Tribe 's policy is either comparable or 

superior to the May 3, 2006 Motor Vehicle Operation Policy for the BIA issued by the Associate 

Deputy Secretary. The Tribe's policy includes compliance with Executive Order 13513 

prohibiting texting while driving. 

1 There may be ai·eas where the proposed law and BIA Motor Vehicle Operation Policy conflict. In 

order to avoid compromising the Nation's funding agreement, the LOC may want to consider 

making changes to the proposed law to align with the BIA Policy or inse1i language in the proposed 

law that states that any cunent and future employee whose duties with respect to implementation 

of the Compact include driving may be subject to the BIA Motor Vehicle Operation Policy and 

Executive Order 13513 when the Nation's Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management law 

is less stringent. 

It should be noted that the following programs, services, functions, and activities are currently 

found within the Nation' s BIA funding agreement; however, this is likely to change once the 

Nation negotiates a new funding agreement by the end of CY 2021. 

Administrative Direction 

Rights Protection 

Aid to Tribal Government 

Law Enforcement 

Facilities Management 

Economic Development 

Housing Improvement Program 

Road Maintenance 

Community Fire Protection 

Agriculture 



122 of 213

Real Estate Services 
Real Estate Appraisals 

Environmental Quality 
Safety Management 
Forestry Management 

Wildlife Management 

Indian Child Welfare 
Services to Children, Elderly, and Families 
Welfare Assistance 

Education (Scholarship, Adult Education) 

Employment Assistance 
Johnson O'Malley 

Litigation Support 
Fish Hatchery 
Water Management 

Hunting and Fishing Rights 

There are some areas within the Nation that contribute to the operation of but are not identified as 

compacted programs, services, functions, and activities. The Nation receives contract support 
costs for these types of positions. It is unclear whether and under what circumstances the 

Depaiiment of Interior would consider driving to be paii of an employee's perfo1mance of duties 
to implement the Compact on the basis of the Nation's receipt of contract suppmi costs. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

A good mind. A good hearl. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



123 of 213

April 2&, 2009 

Memorandum 

To: 

From: 

Subjca: 

United States Depa~ent of the Interior 
BUREAU OF INDIAN Ali'J'AIRS 

NATIONAL INTERAGENCY FIRE CENTER 

3833 SOUTH DEVELOPMENT AVENUE 
BOISE, IDAHO 8370S-5354 

BIA-NIFC Staff 

Director, Branch of Wild.land Fire Management 

Motor Vehicle Operation Policy 

To conform to the Motor Vehicle Operation Policy memorandum dated May 3, 2006, and to bring 

NIFC staff into compliance with current Department of Interior (DOI) and Bureau Motor Vehicle 
Operation Policy, all employees are required to respond to this memorandum no later than May 15, 
2009. · 

In S CFR 930, and DOI Policy 48S I;,~ I 6, all employees who operate a motor vehicle on official 
duty for the Bureau must meet aJI requirements addressed. Motor vehicles include Government 
Owned Vehicles (GOV), lease or rentals, and Privately Owned Vehicles (POV). 

Employees and Supervisors must complete GSA Form 3607, and sign the "Acknowledgement of 
Receipt and Understaoding .. Form. Completed copies will be sent to Teresa Wesley, Administrative . 
Assistant at NIFC in a sealed Blue "Special Attention Mail Envelope". All forms must be complete, 
and signed certifying statements a.re correct. Supervisors will be required to complete and sign the 

Supervismy Review section. 

All drivers will receive Defensive Driver training within three (3) months of hire and refresher 
training every 3 years thereafter. Documentation will be submitted to verify completion or 
recertification. · · 

Individuals qualified, and cw:rent to operate specialized machinery such as All Terrain Vehicles 
(A TV), Fork: Lifts, Snowmobiles, etc. will . be required to add in the remarks section any 

mtifications. All specialized equipment requests will require docmnentation of trainin& and 

cwrency for addition to the Motor Vehicle Operator's Identification Card (OF-346). 

All completed GSA Form 3607 will be validated with the National Drivers Registry for accuracy. 
All personnel who receive a favorable determination, and have completed Defemive Driver 
traininglrecertification will be issued an Motor V ehiclcs Authorization Card that will be valid four · 
(4) years :&om issuance with a current state issued driver•s license. 



124 of 213. r 

For questions or more information, please contract Tony Beitia, NIFC Wildland Fire Safety 

Specialist at (208)-387-5177 or via email at tony beitia@nifc.gov. 

Attachments: 
Motor Vehicle Operation Policy Memorandum, May 03, 2006 

Motor Vehicle Operator's license and Driving Record - GSA Form 3607 
Acknowledge of Receipt and Understanding Fonn 

5 CRF 930 Link: http://ecfr.gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/text/text: 
idx?c=ecfr&rgn=div6&yiew=te,ct&node=5 :2.0.1.1.41. l&idno=S 

DOI motor Vehicle Safety Policy 485 DM 16 Link: 
http:/n4.12S.95.132/search?g=cache:1Phf4a3turcJ:206.13l.24l.18/elips/DM word/3246.doc+48 
S+DM+ 16&hl=ep&ct=clnk&cd=2&gl=us . 

- - - -··· - - · .. -··· ··-·- ··- ·· " ···- ·-·-···· 



125 of 213

IN llll'U' u,a ,o; 

United States Department of the Interior 

BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS 
Wubinaton. D.C. 20240 

Division of Forestry JUN '9 2006 

Memorandwn 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

All Regional Directors 

Director, Bureau of Indi~ Affairs ~ ,,~· ~·· ~~~~~~

Clarification of Motor Vehicle Operation Policy for the Wildland Fire Program 

A new Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) Motor Vehicle Operation Policy was issued on May 3, 
2006. This memorandum provides clarification regarding implementation of that policy within 

the BIA Wildland Fire Program; 

The BIA Motor Vehicle Operation Policy provides direction for Indian Affairs motor vehicle 
operators. There have been recent questions from the field as to whether this policy applies to 
om non-BIA federal and non-federal cooperators that respond to wildland fires in Indian 
Country. F.ach year a large number of our cooperators respond to assist with our wildland mes. 
These individuals are "mlource ordered" through the interagency wildland fire dispatch system. 
These cooperator individuals include and are not limited to non-federal partners such as state 
wildland fire personnel and rural or volunteer fire departinents; other federal agencies such as 
Bureau of Reclamation and United States Geological Survey; international firefighters such as 
Canadian and Australian individuals; Administratively Determined (ADs) hires from non-BIA 
agencies, and; other agency federally retained contractors such as helicopter pilots and fuel truck 
drivers. Individuals assist from throughout the nation and the number of individuals required 
each year is dependent on the fire situation. There is no way to identify in advance which 
individuals will respond to assist on a particular incident. Therefore, it fa impractical to secure a 
drivi.ne record for time responders and issue a BIA Motor Vehicle Operator Authorization Card. 
Without the aid of these cooperators each year, the BIA would not be able to fulfill its tnm 
responsibility for wildland fire protection. 

With respect to the BIA Wildland Fire Program the BIA, Motor Vehicle Operation Policy 
applies only to individuals that are Indian Affairs employees as defined in the policy. It does not 
apply to our: federal and non-federal cooperatots that respond to wildland fires on Indian lands. 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact Lyle Carlile, Chief, Branch of Fire 
Management at 208-381-SS1S 



126 of 213

To: 

Prom: 

THE ASSOCIATE DEPUTY SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR 

WASHINGTON, DC 20240 

IIAY--8111 

Deputy Aaiatant Secretaries 
Director, Burau of IDtiaD Affairs 

Director, Office of Indian Bdunrilll Pro.-. 
AD Centtal Oflb Directon 
All Rep>ml Direclon 

.Allocillle Depaty Secretary 

Sut,jed 

All BdDcationLine Offi&:cnr l ~ 
Motor Vehicle Opaadou Po · 

In coq,li.ance with the requimDma of S CFll 930 and the Dep-tneot'1 MolDI' Vehicle Safety 

Policy, 485 DM 16. this Mom Vehicle Operation Policy (Policy) ii to ellablilh clear 
reapomibilitie• fbr ~loyeea, aupcrviaon. and 1DIIDllpft. and to ~te the ... and prudellt 
opamoaa of m>tor 'ffbic)ea while ptdouuina auigned datiea in support of India Affain (IA). 
Thia Policy supcraedca the New Motor Vehicle Opaation Policy tbr the Bureaa of Indian Affain 
(BIA) siprd by the Auiltant Secretary- Indian Affain on March 19, 2004. 

L Wdom 

A. Ba:q,loyee. All permlDCllt, tanpol•Y, iuteuuiltem, and contract ~loyeea; intana; 
lludc:nl tadla'I; and adminiatrat:nely determined (AD) emergency worbn • 
defined in 5 u.s.c. 2105. 

B. Motor Vehicle. A Go-.amn.mt owned, rmted or leued m>1DI' 'Yebicle and/or 

pivalely owm:ct. rmted or leued m>1Dr ffllicle., with a aro• ~le ~ (GVW) 
of 1cll tblln 26,000 pounda, detianed to tramport 1cll than 15 peopJe, and which doca 
me bad lm:ardou lDldaiaJI or tow ¥Cbiclea with a GVW of 10.000 pounds or m>ie 

<e.1. trdana, Ugk 1l'UCb, sports uriJity ~mc1es <StN•> and an terrain -vemcles 
(ATV~. . 

C. Motor Vehicle Openaor. An eq,loyee who drivel & ID>tm' 'ftbicle, including 

COIW.CICial m>1DI' ~- in the peaformmce of their dude, and iapoDlibilitia. 

D. Coum:rcial Opentor. An eq,loyee who opentea a con:m.:eacial whicle and ia 
required to po118e111 a Coum:rcial Driver'• Licenae (CDL). 

B. OmmerciaJ Motor Vehicle. A whicle .bmng a GVW rating of more tblll 26.000 

pounda, • 'Ydlicle towma • tniJa' wda:hma 10,000 pounda or imre, a whicle banling 
hlzardoua Illlterial which ffqUirea dilplay sipl nouoa the buardou maraial QOl*D1 



127 of 213

of the whicle, a whicle designed to tnmlpOrt 15 or m>re people including the dma', 
or~ echool baa. Openton of tbeee 'Vehicle&~ haw. a valid CDL 

An eq,loyee may be authorized 1D driw on Indian Aff'ain baaineu if he or sbe 8llliafiea 
the followiDg ~: 

A. Be 18 yeanofageorolder; 

B. Hu a valid State drivet'1 liceme: 

C. Hu the requilile experience needed 1D drive the type of wbicJc being uaigned or 
uaed; 

D. Has no convictioDI or \1DCOllteated citamDa within the tine-year pemd ioaurdiate)y 
precedina their 111bmittal o( GSA Form '3(g7, Mocor Vehicle ~1 Licenae and 

Drivina ~rd, for Recldeu Drivma, Drmna While Intoxicated (DWI), Driving 
Under the Influence (DUI) or Leaving the Scene of an Accident; 

B. Hu not demmltntm a pman of umafe driving or behavion (e.g. drug or alcohol 
abuee, ummal agpela>n. etc.) that wouJd came a aapervilor 1D quadon the 
likelihood that the iDdividua1 wm drhe ufely and pradmtly while on Indian Affain 
bulinea; and 

P. Poueuea cw1eut Mo1or Vebiele Opendon ~ from hillba' superviaor . 
. -.... . . _, 

BL .._ and Rllpolllllftdee 

A Deputy Al8i..,, Secretariea, BIA Director, Deputy Direcu>n and Rqponal Directon. 
1111d Dnctor, Office of Indian Bducamn Pmgnam (OIBP) me raponaible fbr · 
carrying out the RqUimoenta of tbil policy within their area of rapolllibility. 

B. Managen. sup:rvilon, comn.cdna offlcen and awarding officiak mm: 

1. Carefully comida' whether dudea and rapomibilitiea auigned to an 

· eq,byee ffll1lire the opention of a aovamnem-owned or aovamneut-Jeaaed 
motor 'Yehic)e. cou:meacial motor wbic]e. rental motor 'Vehicle. or privately
owned or pmate)y-Jeued mom whicle in the pafbrmmce of official or 
co~ dutiea, reapolllibi&iea or actividea, including dudea of m:ord and 
otbe.r dutiea Mligned or hiltorically usiped 1D such positiona or activitiea; . 

2. BDlure that each IA Mo1Dr Vehicle Opntor under their auperviaion poueaaea 
a valid driwc I liceme that mcticafea Sta authorization 10 opaae the cJua of 
wbicle requin,d in the pearol'IDIDCe of dutiea. Thia responaibillty is met by 
emuriDg each empbyee coq,Jetet the annual Authorizamn Procaa 

2 



128 of 213

delcribed in Section 7 of ddl uieomar-t•u,, wish includea a n:qmremmt to 

cxmduct ID IIIIIU1 lffiew of the eq,Joyee•a cuneat licenle ad a cmrml 
m,cor wmclD driving record. If II my time the supervilor baa a coDCaD with 
ID eq,Joyee•a drmna record, be or lbe will initie«e a MYiew of the 
eq,loyee's driviDa ~ Failure ID mm mil iapomibilily may result in 
dilciplinary action apiNt the supe:rvilor; 

3. BDlure that all tam com and CODJllla'Cial CODIIICII under their 

adminiltndoD, ll the time of coDlract rmewal, include aadfk:ethl from the 
contnctora catifyioa tbll they will aelf-edrnioilter md emure coq,liance 
with the requnmentl of ddl policy. 

4. Buecl OD available informllion,·eue DD autlmizadon ii aivm to 
individaala with ratricted driving priYilegel (i.e., lx>mc to work lk:euea); 

S. Bnlme tbll DD Momr Vehicle Operator is pamitted to opa• a govamnem 
owned or leued ID>IDI' '9ehicle, cooa:te1cial m>tor wbicle, rmtal m>tor 

whicle and/or privarely owned or leued ID>1Dr whicJe in the peaformace of 
official dutiel while: (a) ialoxicaled by iDgelting controlled mhltlDCW or 

cowuorioa inlox:kwhc bewtl9*, incladiDa any impairmmll ffllldr:ioa from 
the ue of pucdption or o'VCl'-tb&-counta drop; or (b) impuecl by a medical 
or pbylical condition, or other factor tlllt affectl hillber m>mr sldlJa, reacmn 
time. or concamai.m; 

6. Joooedietely tllnDi:nate driYioa privilepa for a Motor Vehicle Operator who 
is: 

L Alnsml for, charged vnlh. or convicted of Reekie• Drmna, 
Drivina While lntollicmd (DWI), or Drivina Unda the fnftumce 
(DUI); 

b. Analed for, cblllpd wilb. or COIIVkted of a aimina1 offeme 
relarecl to a nfflc incidml ill'folvina alcohol or drup, includina 
bat not 1imital to ftbicuJar homicide. vehicular DWDIJq)Mr, or 
mcJangem:e:ut; 

c. Dilqualifkd fromholdina a Stare dri'VCl''a licemc. includina 
remictioa, .....,..,, rewcation, or CIIIKlellation of a Sta, 

driw:1''1 &eD1e fur the type and elm of wbicle operated; 

d. Upon requeat. falls to powle a valid ClL medical certificate; 

e. Not in poueuion of a current IAIBIAIOIBP Motor Vdlicle 
Opamor Authoriation Card; 

7. M dncted in S CPR 930.113, tab app.oprie«e action when a Motor Vehicle 
Ope:ralor: 

3 



129 of 213

L ]1 COJl'ticted for opeulting a m>tor whic1e under the inlo:idcariQa 
iDfluence of ak:obol, narcotics, or pathogenic drugs; 

b. Ia c:onvicted of k:avina the accne of an accident without meking bia 
or her' identity known; 

c. Ia mt qualified to operate a Gowunnellt owmd or Jeued vehicle 
safely becauae of a physical or medical condition; 

d. No longer poueaes a State liceme by re'YOC8UOD or suspenaioD; 

e. Fails to report iocidencel mlecl in paragraph 6 abow to hia or her 

supervi,or; and 

f. Bxhibita behaviors imxmailtenl with the safe and prudes opaation 

of a m>tor vehicle; 

8. Wlae appropriate, recommeud the Bq,loyee AuiRance Program (BAP) and 
other programa to eq,loyeea wboae performance appears impaia«I by die uae 
of comroDed aabe«•Rllw preaaiption druga, or ialou:atiog ~; and 

9. Tab appropriate actioDa to ilnadg111e aUegatbia of employee's ab>bol or 
drug abule problrim or a bilu,ry of umafe driYing. ieallldleu of whether or 
not the eq,loyee hll ewr been cbarpd with an offenae. Supemaon may 111 

their dmedon. consider a put.an of umafe driving acts u a factm' in 
delamiDina wbedler 1111 eq,loyee m,ets driwr qualificamm. (For euq,le, 
m employee ii convicted of DWI or other umafe drmoa pncticea O'VU a 10-
year period, with DWI anat lonpr than tine-years preceding tla submittal 
of GSA Form '3fH1, Motor Vehicle Operaaor's Lbmle a4 Driving Rec:ord). 

C. The Division of Safety and Rilk Management will: 

J Receive and procea MOU>r Vehicle Operator LioeD8e and Drivina Reconl 
forml (GSA Form 3607) i>r their aenice area. 

L The Divuion of Safety aod Rist Management ia re,ponaib]e for 
Central Office Weat Programs in Albuquerque. NM; Lakewood, 
CO; Boiae, m (NBC). The Divilion ii alao reap mible fi>r Office 

of Law Bnforcement SerYicea (Ol..m) and Office of Indian 
&hPmD Programa (OIBP) Cmtra1 Office Weat; 

b. ~ Central Office But Collateral Duty Safety Officer ia 

raponail>Je for c.am. Office But Proa,ama in Wllbington. DC; 
Reaton. VA:. and Herndon, VA; and 

c. hp,na1 Safety M.anapn are reapon11l>le for all regional 

pn>gnam, inchM:lina OIBP within the region. 



130 of 213

2. Conduct the .ammal evalualion of the applicant's drivina reconl. 

3. Return GSA A>rm '3Q1'/ with ccrtificmm to the supervilor after proceuiDa. 

4. Document any conflicta or concema with respect to an eiq,loyee' a driving 
qualificatkma. . 

D. Bq,loyea, aenerally, baff re,powl,ility to inform supervilon of operlfDr 
incideDCel or behaviors that would be CODlidaed c:ownd by tbia policy or 1ep:wm 
umafe driving behavior. AD empJoyeea lhme • affirmatiye duty to emure our 
'Vebiclea are Died properly by reapomible. individuJa who haw a hiah reprd for both 
penonal ad public safety while opeaq a gowamnent wbicle. .Bmployeea may 
report any mapet1ec1 vtoladona to the IDdiaa Aft'ain Mom Vehicle Hotline: (505) 

S63-S4Q). 

IV. Operatar Re.(ubeaa1:1•t1 

Motor Vehicle Operators mllt: 

A. Cmq,ly widl State, k>cal ad tribal traffic law• ml the Jawful inllructioll of 
emqency and law enforcemem perm); 

B. Abltain from ingeatiD& commlled IUbltaocN, intoxicatq bewngea, preacdptiou 
dnp or other medn•Nma that caumn aaamat oprnting a IDltDr ~le wt.:n taken. 
to awid being impaired; 

C. Not tnmaport intoxic#ina bewngea, c:omrolled IW'IUDCCI, or any paNCDga who ii 
in polR-IR)n of intoxicating beYellpl or commlled mhltalxn without writtm 
approval of iuu1wtiate superviaor. BBepdons ID tbia prohibition are alk>wed for 
IOCial la'Vicel, emqeacy, and law enfo1a:ment penomel wboae dutiea 111d 
respooatbilidea requile odti wile; 

D. Not tramport UDIUtl:orir.ecl paaengen in a Gowamneut owned or 1eaaed m>tnr 
ffbicle; 

R Report to billber superviaor my medical or physical condition. incJuding the uae of 
c:omroDed subltancea, Jft&iiptiou orowr-the-comm:r drugs. which may impair the 
drha' from the aafe operltiDn of a Dlltor vehicle; 

F. Succeafully coq,lete Dlltm ~Je aafety training at least neJ'Y tine years; 

G. Notify their aupenilor if their Stare drmng privilepa are ffiltricted, suapavlcd, 
nM>bd. or caaceW, or if they haw been othawiae diaqualified from bokfina a 
licente. Bq,loyeea are allo iaponsible for reportiDa any situabm tbll may airer 

6 



131 of 213

their autborizatioD or ability to ope:n&a a tm1Dr vehicle, such u ay lepl or COUit 

oldaed suapeosion of drmna privilega or any limiting medical condition; 

H. Report all incidenta imolvina a Gofflllllx:Dt owned or leued motor wllicle, 
COIWDcial ID.ltor 'Yehicle, rental tmtor whicle, or a priwtely owned or Jeued motor 
whicle that occur during the prdormmcc of their official dutiea; 

Report all on-duty incidclm inwlvina a Go~D1 owned or leaaed m>tm wlncle, 
conmt:1Cia1 ID.ltor wbicle, !mil tmtor 'ftlbicle, or a privaly owned or 1eaaed m>tor 
'Vehicle that could remlt in a violamn, cma:m, duqe, arreat. warrant, or civil acmn; 

J. Report all incideD1a inwlvina a Go~ ow:md or leaaed momr whicle, 
COillDfiCial mocor wbicle, !mil ID.ltor whicle, or pri'98tely owned or lr,aed ID.llDI' 

whicle and the uae of C0Dll0Ded 1W>lhlDl:a or~ bewnaea; iq,airment 

iauJtina from ~14Jt.ion or owr-tbD-couoler druga, ilJnNa, or medical condilion; or 
oda' facton that iq,lir CODCeDUa:icm. m>tor atil1a or reaction time; 

K. Report any aattictioD. IUlp"Dn>D, revocadon. or cancellamn of their driwr>1 

liceme, for my Jenath of time. or any dilqulificadon from hoJdina a State, 
CO.lllllla'CW. or iD1anational operaror01 licellae; and 

L Notify aupa'Vilon of lbeae incidents DO lat.er than the followiag bulineu day after 

their occm1mce. Fai1me 10 iDfbrm the supervilor of any aach ,ritnatinu may lllbject 
eq,lDyeea to dilciplilUlry action. 

A AD eq,loyeea and tam CODttact aq,lDyeea whoae job ffJCIIIRI opeaatiun of a motor 
wbicle 1Dlllt .........ity requeat audmizatioD to operate a ID.ltor w:hicle in carrying out 
the dutia of tmir pomoaa. 

B. AU eq,loyeea and tam contract eq,lDyeca D111t 1DJDWJy submit to their aupcnilor 
GSA Form YHI, Mocol' Vehicle Opea1110r0

1 Licenae and Driving Reconl to ramwal 
In coq,lamg the form, iDdividDaJa will provide a rapome to all quelDDIII (Section 
D) and certify that their atarementl an, true and conect to the belt of tbr:ir tnowedp 
(Section ID). 

C. Supawon will review the GSA Form Y:J11 for accmacy and ~leteneu. 
coq,1ete w1 lip SectiDn IV _; Supenilory Review, and forward to the appropiatae 
safety office for the receipt of applicatk>n for their regioDa. 

D. 1be appopriate safety office will review the submitted tonm and requat a copy of 
the applicaDI'• driving n,cc:ml from the 81'POPiaae State motor wbicle office(1) and if 

appropriate 111d wbrR feuible, the tribal court wbra eq,loyeea pimarily opezate 
ID.ltor wbicle1 within that ttiba1 jurildim>D. 

8 



132 of 213

B. Upon a receipt of a fawnab1e reYiew of the driving record, the safety officer will 
c:oq,Jete Section V - Catificatioa of BHgibility ml Auth>rization, sign ml~ 
certifyioa that the individual meeta his IA drivel' qua1ificatiom. 

F. W'tth the safety offica'' a catfficatkm. the supervilor may iuae a Motor VdncJe 
Openinr authorization Cant (Attachment 2): The Card will be issued for a period of 

five )'C8l'I, 

G. Baaed on the safety officers report that the applicant ii not qualified, the supervimr 
· will not iuue or will rewb a Motor Vehicle Opeiator Authorization Card. 

Supervuora are mrrioded that they may be penonally liable if they authorize an 
aq,k>yee to opcrat.e a motor ~hicJe on go"Vermncnt buaineu if 1111 eq,k>yee ia 

deteunined not to be qualified by virtue of failina to xmet qualification ataDdarda. 

VL Failure ID Report Jnddn1w IDTahlaa M-.. Vebkw 

Failure of the JD>tor whicJe opeaator ID report such incideots of traffic citamm or 
accident violationa to the supenilor u IOOll u polllible after the occamence, but no 1abr 

thlll the mu bnaine11 day, may retUlt in dilciplinary or otm mhmle acmn. 

7 



133 of 213. '• 
Atta.laut. 2 

IIOTOR VEHICLE OPERATOR'S LICENSE AND DRMNG RECORD TU IE COIFLETED BY CERTIFYING OFF1CW. ON. Y 
(SN Privacy Act Jnfomlllllon on l"WWN) CARD liiUIIBER-FROM ur'-348 

APPUCANTS ~ 0.-. Flrle, Middle 1111111) DATEISStED . I DATE EXPIRES 

NAME OF ORGANIZATION I OFFICE TB.EPtlONE NIMBER VEHICLE (S) APPUCAHT IS REQUESTED TO OPERATE 

D TYPE A-PASSENGER VEHICLES 

OfflCE MHUNGADDRESS ~ZP CODE) D TYPE B • TRUCl<S > 1 TOtt AND AU.-WI-EEL-ORNE 

O TYPE C- TRACTOR·TRAILER & TIWLER PUUJNO 

D TYPE D- PASSENGER CARRYING BUSES 

D lYPE E - SPECw.. PURPOSE VEHICU:S, SUCH AS 
AMBUI.AHCES, FlRE APPARAl\JS, WRECKERS, 
CRANES, EARnf MOVING EQUIPl,EHT, ETC. 
SPECIFY TYPE: 

SECTIONJ-. , •• DATA FROII,.. . 
STATI: I LICENSE ... DATI:ISSUED I DATE __ ·· - RESTRIC110NS ON STATE LICENSE 

STATE LICENSE IUOPERATE(Veh .. ) I SEX 81K1nDATE uUL.OR d tWR I COLOR" EYES HGT. Iv.or. 
RESIDENTW. ADDRESS crrv STATE ZIPCODE 

SECTION I- DRMNG RECORD 
A- RE~ OF TYPES<-·~~ ~-DRNEN,..,. ,~~ THE PAST FOUR YEARS 

TYPE OF VEHCLES UKIYl::l'I ESTIMI\TEO aaL.E8 DRIVEN ESTIIMTED·Do\Y8 DRIVEN 

B-RECORD OF DRIVING COHVICTIONS 11-__111 - PMUnal OlRNG THE PAST FOUR YEARS 
Do\TE NATURE OR TYPe OIF VIOlATION crrv AND STATE AC'TIONTAKEN 

C - ""'CORD Of' • ·o DURING THE PAST FOUR YEARS 

DATE NA'T:UAE Of' ACCIDENT crrv /VfU :Jl'ATE ~IIUNTAKEN 

D-RECORD OF SUSPENSION OR RE'«>CATION OF LICENSE DUtcaO&i TJ-E P.AS'T FOUR YEARS 
DATE - - FOR SU6PENSION OR --:noN crrv AND STATE Mi 11UN TAKEN 

GENERAL SERVICES ADIINSTRATION 08A FORM 3I07 (6-89) 



134 of 213• L 

TE 

F.RE OF ABUSE OR NEGLECT TO OR UHAUTliORIZED USE OF GOVERNMENT VEHICLES 
CrJY AND STATE ACT10H TAICEN 

Pl-

APPUCAHT IN MY OPfNON (0 IS D IS NOT) COHSIDERED QUALIFIED TO SAFB. Y OPERATE Tl£ VEHICLE (S) FOR WHICH 
AUTHORIZATION JS REQUESTED. (Erplain, Jfneated}. 

SUPERVISOR'S SIG*TURE TTn.E 

v- TION 
TYPES OF VEJilClES AUTHORIZE) TO OPERATE 

0 TYPE A- PASSENGER CARS, STATION WAGONS, CARRYALLS, NfO TWO vvtEEl. DRIVE l'RUCl(S, ONE TOH AND UNDER. 

0 TVPE 8-AU. TRUCKS OIIER OE TON AND VEHIClES 'MTH MORE THAN lWO-WHEELED CRIVE -EXCEPT THOSE USTED UNDER 
TYPES C, D, AND E. 

D TYPE C - TRACTOA-TRNLER VEHIClES, N4fJ OntER TRAILER PUWNG VEHICLES- INCLUDtNO SEDANS ETC. WHEN SUCH vetCl.E8 
ARE USED TO PULL TIWlER8. 

0 TYPE 0- PASSENGER CARRYING BUSES. 

O TYPE E - SPECIAL PURPOSE VEHICLES SUCH NJ AMBULANCES. FIRE APPARATIJS. WRECKERS, CRANES, GRADERS, EARTH MOVING 
EQUIPMEHT. AN> OVERSIZED VEHICLES. (Specfy palllcvlllr type.) 

OF Cl:RTIFYING OR=JCIAL MTE 

____ .. _____ . 



135 of 213

April 29, 2009 

United States Department of the Interior 
BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS 

NATIONAL INTERAGENCY FIRE CENTER 
3833 SOUTH DEVELOPMENT AVENUE 

BOISE, IDAHO 83705-5354 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING 

Att.edaent 3 

I, _~ ________ hereby acknowledge receipt and undcrst.anding of the 

Motor Vehicle Operation Policy of May 3, 2006. 

Signature Date 



THE WHITE HOUSE 

Office of the Press Secretary 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

For Immediate Release                                                        October 1, 2009 

EXECUTIVE ORDER 

- - - - - - - 

FEDERAL LEADERSHIP ON REDUCING TEXT MESSAGING WHILE DRIVING 

By the authority vested in me as President by the Constitution and the laws of the United States of America, including 

section 7902(c) of title 5, United States Code, and the Federal Property and Administrative Services Act of 1949, as 

amended, 40 U.S.C. 101 et seq., and in order to demonstrate Federal leadership in improving safety on our roads 

and highways and to enhance the efficiency of Federal contracting, it is hereby ordered as follows: 

Section 1. Policy. With nearly 3 million civilian employees, the Federal Government can and should demonstrate 

leadership in reducing the dangers of text messaging while driving. Recent deadly crashes involving drivers 

distracted by text messaging while behind the wheel highlight a growing danger on our roads. Text messaging 

causes drivers to take their eyes off the road and at least one hand off the steering wheel, endangering both 

themselves and others. Every day, Federal employees drive Government-owned, Government-leased, or 

Government-rented vehicles (collectively, GOV) or privately-owned vehicles (POV) on official Government business, 

and some Federal employees use Government-supplied electronic devices to text or e-mail while driving. A Federal 

Government-wide prohibition on the use of text messaging while driving on official business or while using 

Government-supplied equipment will help save lives, reduce injuries, and set an example for State and local 

governments, private employers, and individual drivers. Extending this policy to cover Federal contractors is designed 

to promote economy and efficiency in Federal procurement. Federal contractors and contractor employees who 

refrain from the unsafe practice of text messaging while driving in connection with Government business are less 

likely to experience disruptions to their operations that would adversely impact Federal procurement. 

Sec. 2. Text Messaging While Driving by Federal Employees. Federal employees shall not engage in text messaging 

(a) when driving GOV, or when driving POV while on official Government business, or (b) when using electronic 

equipment supplied by the Government while driving. 

Sec. 3. Scope of Order. (a) All agencies of the executive branch are directed to take appropriate action within the 

scope of their existing programs to further the policies of this order and to implement section 2 of this order. This 

includes, but is not limited to, considering new rules and programs, and reevaluating existing programs to prohibit text 

messaging while driving, and conducting education, awareness, and other outreach for Federal employees about the 

136 of 213



safety risks associated with texting while driving. These initiatives should encourage voluntary compliance with the 

agency's text messaging policy while off duty. 

(b) Within 90 days of the date of this order, each agency is directed, consistent with all applicable laws and 

regulations: (i) to take appropriate measures to implement this order, (ii) to adopt measures to ensure compliance 

with section 2 of this order, including through appropriate disciplinary actions, and (iii) to notify the Secretary of 

Transportation of the measures it undertakes hereunder. 

(c) Agency heads may exempt from the requirements of this order, in whole or in part, certain employees, devices, or 

vehicles in their respective agencies that are engaged in or used for protective, law enforcement, or national security 

responsibilities or on the basis of other emergency conditions. 

Sec. 4. Text Messaging While Driving by Government Contractors, Subcontractors, and Recipients and 

Subrecipients. Each Federal agency, in procurement contracts, grants, and cooperative agreements, and other 

grants to the extent authorized by applicable statutory authority, entered into after the date of this order, shall 

encourage contractors, subcontractors, and recipients and subrecipients to adopt and enforce policies that ban text 

messaging while driving company-owned or -rented vehicles or GOV, or while driving POV when on official 

Government business or when performing any work for or on behalf of the Government. Agencies should also 

encourage Federal contractors, subcontractors, and grant recipients and subrecipients as described in this section to 

conduct initiatives of the type described in section 3(a) of this order. 

Sec. 5. Coordination. The Secretary of Transportation, in consultation with the Administrator of General Services and 

the Director of the Office of Personnel Management, shall provide leadership and guidance to the heads of executive 

branch agencies to assist them with any action pursuant to this order. 

Sec. 6. Definitions. 

(a) The term "agency" as used in this order means an executive agency, as defined in 5 U.S.C. 105, except for the 

Government Accountability Office. 

(b) "Texting" or "Text Messaging" means reading from or entering data into any handheld or other electronic device, 

including for the purpose of SMS texting, e-mailing, instant messaging, obtaining navigational information, or 

engaging in any other form of electronic data retrieval or electronic data communication. 

(c) "Driving" means operating a motor vehicle on an active roadway with the motor running, including while 

temporarily stationary because of traffic, a traffic light or stop sign, or otherwise. It does not include operating a motor 

vehicle with or without the motor running when one has pulled over to the side of, or off, an active roadway and has 

halted in a location where one can safely remain stationary. 

Sec. 7. General Provisions. 

137 of 213



(a) Nothing in this order shall be construed to impair or otherwise affect or alter: 

(i) Authority granted by law or Executive Order to an agency, or the head thereof; 

(ii) Powers and duties of the heads of the various departments and agencies pursuant to the Highway Safety Act of 

1966, as amended, 23 U.S.C. 402 and 403, section 19 of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, as 

amended, 29 U.S.C. 668, sections 7901 and 7902 of title 5, United States Code, or the Federal Property and 

Administrative Services Act of 1949, as amended, 40 U.S.C. 101 et seq.; 

(iii) Rights, duties, or procedures under the National Labor Relations Act, 29 U.S.C. 151 et seq.; or 

(iv) Functions of the Director of the Office of Management and Budget relating to budgetary, administrative, or 

legislative proposals. 

(b) This order shall be implemented consistent with applicable law and subject to the availability of appropriations. 

(c) This order is not intended to, and does not, create any right or benefit, substantive or procedural, enforceable at 

law or in equity, by any party against the United States, its departments, agencies, or entities, its officers, employees, 

or agents, or any other person. 

BARACK OBAMA 

THE WHITE HOUSE, 

October 1, 2009. 

 

138 of 213



Page 1 of 1 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

Legislative Operating Committee 
February 19, 2020 

Curfew Amendments            
Submission Date: 2/5/20 Public Meeting: n/a 

LOC Sponsor:   Jennifer Webster Emergency Enacted: n/a 

Summary:  This item was added to the Active Files List for a technical amendment to be made to

remove an erroneous depiction of the Nation’s territorial jurisdiction. 

2/5/20 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to add Curfew Law amendments to the active files list for a 
technical amendment with Jennifer Webster as the sponsor; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

Next Steps: 
 Approve the draft and the legislative analysis and defer to a work meeting for further consideration.

139 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3. O.C. 308 – Page 1 

  Title 3. Health and Public Safety - Chapter 308 
T<yethin<tshaw^=late> Kayanl^sla> 

We’ll put our arms across to stop them    
CURFEW 

 
 

308.1.  Purpose and Policy 
308.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
308.3.  Definitions 
308.4.  Jurisdiction 

308.5.  Curfew 
308.6.  Enforcement of Curfew Violations 
308.7.  Penalties of Curfew Violations 

  

 1 
308.1.  Purpose and Policy 2 
308.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this law is to protect the health, safety, and welfare of persons 3 
and property within the Reservation by regulating the activities of minors on the Reservation 4 
during certain hours, while imposing certain obligations and responsibilities upon the parents, 5 
guardians, and/or legal custodians of a minor for the control and supervision of that minor. 6 
308.1-2. Policy. It is the policy of the Nation to support all drug use prevention initiatives of the 7 
Nation by protecting the health, safety, and welfare of persons through the establishment of a 8 
curfew for minors in public spaces within the Reservation during certain hours in an effort to 9 
minimize the opportunity for harm to come to minors during those hours. 10 
 11 
308.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 12 
308.2-1. This law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC-10-09-19-F., 13 
and amended by resolution BC-__-__-__-__. 14 
308.2-2. This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee and/or General 15 
Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. 16 
308.2-3. Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 17 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 18 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 19 
308.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 20 
the provisions of this law shall control.   21 
308.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation.  22 
 23 
308.3.  Definitions 24 
308.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 25 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 26 

(a)  “Court of Appeals” means the branch of the Nation's Judiciary delegated the authority 27 
of final appeal within the Nation’s Judiciary, as authorized by Oneida General Tribal 28 
Council resolution GTC-03-19-17-A . 29 
(b)  “Family Court” means the branch of the Nation’s Judiciary delegated the authority to 30 
administer the judicial authorities and responsibilities of the Nation related to the family 31 
and/or children, as authorized by Oneida General Tribal Council resolution GTC-03-19-32 
17-A. 33 
(c)  “Guardian” means the person, department, and/or agency appointed the duty and 34 
authority of guardianship of a child by a Court for the purpose of managing and caring for 35 
the child. A guardian has the right to make major decisions affecting a child including 36 
education, religious and cultural upbringing, the right to consent to marriage, to enlistment 37 

140 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3. O.C. 308 – Page 2 

in the armed forces, to major surgery and medical treatment and to adoption, or make 38 
recommendations as to adoption. 39 
(d)  “Legal custodian” means any person, department, and/or agency, other than a parent 40 
or guardian, to whom legal custody of a child has been granted by Court order and has the 41 
rights and responsibilities for the following:  42 

(1) To have physical custody of the child as determined by the Court, if physical 43 
custody is not with the person having legal custody;  44 
(2) To protect, educate and discipline the child so long as it is in the child’s best 45 
interest; and  46 
(3) To provide the child with adequate food, shelter, education, ordinary medical 47 
care and other basic needs, according to court order. In an emergency situation, a 48 
custodian shall have the authority to consent to surgery as well as any other 49 
emergency medical care needs. 50 

(e)  “Member of the Nation” means an individual enrolled in the Oneida Nation. 51 
(f)  “Minor” means a person age sixteen (16) years old or younger. 52 
(g)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 53 
(h)  “Parent” means the biological or adoptive parent of a child. 54 
(j)  “Public space” means any public streets, highways, roads, alleys, parks, vacant lots, or 55 
any public lands. 56 
(j)  “Relative” means any person connected with a child by blood, marriage or adoption. 57 
(k)  “Reservation” means all the property within the exterior boundaries of the Reservation 58 
of the Oneida Nation, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the Oneida 7 Stat. 566, 59 
and any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law. 60 

 61 
308.4.  Jurisdiction 62 
304.4-1.  Jurisdiction of the Court.  The Family Court has jurisdiction over any action brought 63 
under this law. 64 
308.4-2.  Personal Jurisdiction.  This law applies to: 65 

(a) All members of the Nation, individuals eligible for enrollment in the Nation, and 66 
members of other federally-recognized tribes. 67 
(b) Individuals leasing, occupying or otherwise using fee land owned by the Nation or by 68 
individual members of the Nation; and/or lands held in trust on behalf of the Nation or 69 
individual members of the Nation.  70 
(c) Individuals who have consented to the jurisdiction of the Nation or as otherwise 71 
consistent with federal law. An individual shall be considered to have consented to the 72 
jurisdiction of the Nation: 73 

(1)  By entering into a consensual relationship with the Nation, or with the Nation’s 74 
entities, corporations, or members of the Nation, including but not limited to 75 
contracts or other agreements; or 76 
(2)  By other facts which manifest an intent to consent to the authority of the Nation, 77 
including failure to raise an objection to the exercise of personal jurisdiction in a 78 
timely manner. 79 

308.4-3.  Territorial Jurisdiction.  This law extends within the Reservation to all land owned by 80 
the Nation and individual trust and/or fee land of a member of the Nation. 81 
 82 

141 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3. O.C. 308 – Page 3 

308.5.  Curfew 83 
308.5-1.  Curfew Established.  No minor shall be on any public space either on foot or in any 84 
vehicle driven or parked, between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. within the boundaries of 85 
the Reservation, unless the minor is accompanied by a parent, guardian, or legal custodian. 86 
308.5-2.  Parental Responsibility.  No parent, guardian, or legal custodian shall knowingly permit 87 
or fail to take action to prevent the minor from being on any public space either on foot or in any 88 
vehicle driven or parked, between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. within the boundaries of 89 
the Reservation. 90 
308.5-3.  Exemptions to Curfew.  A minor shall not be in violation of the curfew, if at the time of 91 
the alleged violation the minor was: 92 

(a)  in the performance of a duty directed by such parent, guardian, or legal custodian; 93 
(b)  engaged in employment or an employment related activity, or traveling to or returning 94 
home from employment; 95 
(c)  engaged in interstate travel; 96 
(d)  attending an educational, cultural, religious, or recreational activity that was supervised 97 
by adults, or traveling to or returning home from such activity; 98 
(e)  on the sidewalk in front of his or her home or an adjacent home; 99 
(f)  going to, attending, or returning home from a movie theatre; 100 
(g)  engaged in hunting, fishing, or trapping in accordance with the laws, policies, and rules 101 
of the Nation; 102 
(h) exercising rights protected by the Nation’s Constitution and the United States 103 
Constitution, such as free exercise of religion, freedom of speech, and the right of 104 
assembly;  105 
(i)  involved in an emergency situation; and/or  106 
(j)  engaged in any other activity as deemed appropriate by the Oneida Police Department 107 
officer. 108 

 109 
308.6.  Enforcement of Curfew Violations 110 
308.6-1.  Enforcement Procedure.  A suspected violation of curfew shall be enforced by the Oneida 111 
Police Department in the following ways: 112 

(a)  A minor who is suspected of violating curfew may be stopped by an Oneida Police 113 
Department officer. No person shall assault, obstruct or flee from any Oneida Police 114 
Department officer enforcing or attempting to enforce the provisions of this law. 115 
(b)  The Oneida Police Department officer shall ask the minor’s name, age, and reason for 116 
violating curfew. The minor shall provide the Oneida Police Department officer 117 
identification if available. No person shall falsely represent his or her name or age to an 118 
Oneida Police Department officer. 119 
(c)  If the Oneida Police Department officer reasonably believes based on the totality of the 120 
circumstances that a violation of curfew has occurred and not one of the exemptions in 121 
section 308.5-3 apply, the Oneida Police Department officer may take custody of the minor 122 
for the purpose of returning such minor to the care and custody of a parent, guardian, or 123 
legal custodian. 124 
(d)  Once the Oneida Police Department officer has taken the minor into his or her custody, 125 
the minor shall provide the Oneida Police Department officer with contact information for 126 
his or her parent, guardian, or legal custodian. The Oneida Police Department officer shall 127 
contact the minor’s parent, guardian, or legal custodian to come and pick up the minor and 128 
take the minor into his or her care and custody. If the minor’s parent, guardian, or legal 129 

142 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3. O.C. 308 – Page 4 

custodian is unable to pick the minor up, then the Oneida Police Department officer may 130 
bring the minor home to release the minor to the custody and care of the minor’s parent, 131 
guardian, or legal custodian. 132 
(e)  If the Oneida Police Department officer is unable to contact the minor’s parent, 133 
guardian, or legal custodian after reasonable efforts are made, the Oneida Police 134 
Department officer shall attempt to locate an adult relative or other responsible adult 135 
willing and able to accept the care and custody of the minor, and may release the minor 136 
into the care and custody of such person. 137 

308.6-2.  Warning.  The first time a minor is held in custody by an Oneida Police Department 138 
officer for a curfew violation the Oneida Police Department officer shall provide the minor and 139 
the minor’s parent, guardian, or legal custodian a warning and advise the minor and parent, 140 
guardian, or legal custodian of the provisions of this law and that any subsequent curfew violations 141 
may result in the issuance of a citation and the imposition of a penalty.  142 
308.6-3.  Issuance of a Citation.  Any subsequent time a minor is held in custody by an Oneida 143 
Police Department officer for a curfew violation the Oneida Police Department officer may issue 144 
a citation to the minor and the minor’s parent, guardian, or legal custodian.  145 

(a)  A citation for a violation of this law and/or any orders issued pursuant to this law may 146 
include fines and other penalties, as well as conditional orders made by the Family Court. 147 
(b)  A citation for a violation of this law shall be processed in accordance with the 148 
procedure contained in the Nation’s laws and policies governing citations. 149 
(c)  All citations for violations of this law require a mandatory appearance at the citation 150 
pre-hearing by the minor and his or her parent, guardian, or legal custodian. 151 

 152 
308.7.  Penalties of Curfew Violations 153 
308.7-1.  Upon a finding by the Family Court that a violation of this law has occurred, the minor 154 
and/or the minor’s parent, guardian, or legal custodian may be subject to the following penalties: 155 

(a)  Fines.  An individual may be ordered to pay a fine as a result of a violation of this law. 156 
The Oneida Business Committee shall hereby be delegated the authority to adopt through 157 
resolution a fine schedule which sets forth specific fine amounts for violations of this law. 158 

(1)  All fines shall be paid to the Judiciary. 159 
(2)  Fines shall be paid within ninety (90) days after the order is issued or upheld 160 
on final appeal, whichever is later.  161 

(A)  The ninety (90) day deadline for payment of fines may be extended if 162 
an alternative payment plan is approved by the Family Court. 163 

(3)  If an individual does not pay his or her fine the Family Court may seek to collect 164 
the money owed through the Nation’s garnishment and/or per capita attachment 165 
process or any other collection process available to the Family Court. 166 
(4)  Community service may be substituted for part or all of any fine at the minimum 167 
wage rate of the Nation for each hour of community service. 168 

(b)  Community service.  An individual may be ordered to perform community service. 169 
Community service can be used in lieu of, or in addition to, a fine.  170 

(1)  All community service assignments shall be approved by the Family Court. 171 
The Family Court shall give preference to culturally relevant community service 172 
assignments and/or community service assignments that focus on the betterment of 173 
the individual’s community. 174 

143 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3. O.C. 308 – Page 5 

(2)  The Family Court shall provide the individual a written statement of the terms 175 
of the community service order, and a statement that the community service order 176 
is monitored.  177 
(3)  The Family Court’s community service order shall specify: 178 

(A)  how many hours of community service the individual is required to 179 
complete; 180 
(B)  the time frame in which the hours shall be completed; 181 
(C) how the individual shall obtain approval for his or her community 182 
service assignment; 183 
(D)  how the individual shall report his or her hours; and 184 
(E)  any other information the Family Court determines is relevant. 185 

(c)  Family counseling and/or parenting programs.  An individual may be ordered to 186 
participate in a family counseling and/or a parenting program. 187 
(d)  Any other penalty as deemed appropriate by the Family Court. 188 

308.7-2.  Staying a Curfew Penalty.  The Family Court may stay the enforcement of a penalty 189 
issued as a result of a curfew violation for a period of time to be determined by the Family Court. 190 
If the individual maintains compliance with the law during the time period in which the penalty is 191 
stayed, then the Family Court may dismiss the citation. If the individual commits another violation 192 
of the law during the time period in which the penalty is stayed, then the penalty shall go into 193 
effect. 194 
 195 
End. 196 
 197 
Adopted – BC-10-09-19-F 198 
Amended – BC-__-__-__-__ 199 

144 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3. O.C. 308 – Page 1 

  Title 3. Health and Public Safety - Chapter 308 
T<yethin<tshaw^=late> Kayanl^sla> 

We’ll put our arms across to stop them    
CURFEW 

 
 

308.1.  Purpose and Policy 
308.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
308.3.  Definitions 
308.4.  Jurisdiction 

308.5.  Curfew 
308.6.  Enforcement of Curfew Violations 
308.7.  Penalties of Curfew Violations 

  

 1 
308.1.  Purpose and Policy 2 
308.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this law is to protect the health, safety, and welfare of persons 3 
and property within the Reservation by regulating the activities of minors on the Reservation 4 
during certain hours, while imposing certain obligations and responsibilities upon the parents, 5 
guardians, and/or legal custodians of a minor for the control and supervision of that minor. 6 
308.1-2. Policy. It is the policy of the Nation to support all drug use prevention initiatives of the 7 
Nation by protecting the health, safety, and welfare of persons through the establishment of a 8 
curfew for minors in public spaces within the Reservation during certain hours in an effort to 9 
minimize the opportunity for harm to come to minors during those hours. 10 
 11 
308.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 12 
308.2-1. This law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC-10-09-19-F, 13 
and amended by resolution BC-__-__-__-__. 14 
308.2-2. This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee and/or General 15 
Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. 16 
308.2-3. Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 17 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 18 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 19 
308.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 20 
the provisions of this law shall control.   21 
308.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation.  22 
 23 
308.3.  Definitions 24 
308.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 25 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 26 

(a)  “Court of Appeals” means the branch of the Nation's Judiciary delegated the authority 27 
of final appeal within the Nation’s Judiciary, as authorized by Oneida General Tribal 28 
Council resolution GTC-03-19-17-A . 29 
(b)  “Family Court” means the branch of the Nation’s Judiciary delegated the authority to 30 
administer the judicial authorities and responsibilities of the Nation related to the family 31 
and/or children, as authorized by Oneida General Tribal Council resolution GTC-03-19-32 
17-A. 33 
(c)  “Guardian” means the person, department, and/or agency appointed the duty and 34 
authority of guardianship of a child by a Court for the purpose of managing and caring for 35 
the child. A guardian has the right to make major decisions affecting a child including 36 
education, religious and cultural upbringing, the right to consent to marriage, to enlistment 37 

145 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3. O.C. 308 – Page 2 

in the armed forces, to major surgery and medical treatment and to adoption, or make 38 
recommendations as to adoption. 39 
(d)  “Legal custodian” means any person, department, and/or agency, other than a parent 40 
or guardian, to whom legal custody of a child has been granted by Court order and has the 41 
rights and responsibilities for the following:  42 

(1) To have physical custody of the child as determined by the Court, if physical 43 
custody is not with the person having legal custody;  44 
(2) To protect, educate and discipline the child so long as it is in the child’s best 45 
interest; and  46 
(3) To provide the child with adequate food, shelter, education, ordinary medical 47 
care and other basic needs, according to court order. In an emergency situation, a 48 
custodian shall have the authority to consent to surgery as well as any other 49 
emergency medical care needs. 50 

(e)  “Member of the Nation” means an individual enrolled in the Oneida Nation. 51 
(f)  “Minor” means a person age sixteen (16) years old or younger. 52 
(g)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 53 
(h)  “Parent” means the biological or adoptive parent of a child. 54 
(j)  “Public space” means any public streets, highways, roads, alleys, parks, vacant lots, or 55 
any public lands. 56 
(j)  “Relative” means any person connected with a child by blood, marriage or adoption. 57 
(k)  “Reservation” means all the property within the exterior boundaries of the Reservation 58 
of the Oneida Nation, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the Oneida 7 Stat. 566, 59 
and any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law. 60 

 61 
308.4.  Jurisdiction 62 
304.4-1.  Jurisdiction of the Court.  The Family Court has jurisdiction over any action brought 63 
under this law. 64 
 65 
308.5.  Curfew 66 
308.5-1.  Curfew Established.  No minor shall be on any public space either on foot or in any 67 
vehicle driven or parked, between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. within the boundaries of 68 
the Reservation, unless the minor is accompanied by a parent, guardian, or legal custodian. 69 
308.5-2.  Parental Responsibility.  No parent, guardian, or legal custodian shall knowingly permit 70 
or fail to take action to prevent the minor from being on any public space either on foot or in any 71 
vehicle driven or parked, between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. within the boundaries of 72 
the Reservation. 73 
308.5-3.  Exemptions to Curfew.  A minor shall not be in violation of the curfew, if at the time of 74 
the alleged violation the minor was: 75 

(a)  in the performance of a duty directed by such parent, guardian, or legal custodian; 76 
(b)  engaged in employment or an employment related activity, or traveling to or returning 77 
home from employment; 78 
(c)  engaged in interstate travel; 79 
(d)  attending an educational, cultural, religious, or recreational activity that was supervised 80 
by adults, or traveling to or returning home from such activity; 81 
(e)  on the sidewalk in front of his or her home or an adjacent home; 82 
(f)  going to, attending, or returning home from a movie theatre; 83 

146 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3. O.C. 308 – Page 3 

(g)  engaged in hunting, fishing, or trapping in accordance with the laws, policies, and rules 84 
of the Nation; 85 
(h) exercising rights protected by the Nation’s Constitution and the United States 86 
Constitution, such as free exercise of religion, freedom of speech, and the right of 87 
assembly;  88 
(i)  involved in an emergency situation; and/or  89 
(j)  engaged in any other activity as deemed appropriate by the Oneida Police Department 90 
officer. 91 

 92 
308.6.  Enforcement of Curfew Violations 93 
308.6-1.  Enforcement Procedure.  A suspected violation of curfew shall be enforced by the Oneida 94 
Police Department in the following ways: 95 

(a)  A minor who is suspected of violating curfew may be stopped by an Oneida Police 96 
Department officer. No person shall assault, obstruct or flee from any Oneida Police 97 
Department officer enforcing or attempting to enforce the provisions of this law. 98 
(b)  The Oneida Police Department officer shall ask the minor’s name, age, and reason for 99 
violating curfew. The minor shall provide the Oneida Police Department officer 100 
identification if available. No person shall falsely represent his or her name or age to an 101 
Oneida Police Department officer. 102 
(c)  If the Oneida Police Department officer reasonably believes based on the totality of the 103 
circumstances that a violation of curfew has occurred and not one of the exemptions in 104 
section 308.5-3 apply, the Oneida Police Department officer may take custody of the minor 105 
for the purpose of returning such minor to the care and custody of a parent, guardian, or 106 
legal custodian. 107 
(d)  Once the Oneida Police Department officer has taken the minor into his or her custody, 108 
the minor shall provide the Oneida Police Department officer with contact information for 109 
his or her parent, guardian, or legal custodian. The Oneida Police Department officer shall 110 
contact the minor’s parent, guardian, or legal custodian to come and pick up the minor and 111 
take the minor into his or her care and custody. If the minor’s parent, guardian, or legal 112 
custodian is unable to pick the minor up, then the Oneida Police Department officer may 113 
bring the minor home to release the minor to the custody and care of the minor’s parent, 114 
guardian, or legal custodian. 115 
(e)  If the Oneida Police Department officer is unable to contact the minor’s parent, 116 
guardian, or legal custodian after reasonable efforts are made, the Oneida Police 117 
Department officer shall attempt to locate an adult relative or other responsible adult 118 
willing and able to accept the care and custody of the minor, and may release the minor 119 
into the care and custody of such person. 120 

308.6-2.  Warning.  The first time a minor is held in custody by an Oneida Police Department 121 
officer for a curfew violation the Oneida Police Department officer shall provide the minor and 122 
the minor’s parent, guardian, or legal custodian a warning and advise the minor and parent, 123 
guardian, or legal custodian of the provisions of this law and that any subsequent curfew violations 124 
may result in the issuance of a citation and the imposition of a penalty.  125 
308.6-3.  Issuance of a Citation.  Any subsequent time a minor is held in custody by an Oneida 126 
Police Department officer for a curfew violation the Oneida Police Department officer may issue 127 
a citation to the minor and the minor’s parent, guardian, or legal custodian.  128 

(a)  A citation for a violation of this law and/or any orders issued pursuant to this law may 129 
include fines and other penalties, as well as conditional orders made by the Family Court. 130 

147 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3. O.C. 308 – Page 4 

(b)  A citation for a violation of this law shall be processed in accordance with the 131 
procedure contained in the Nation’s laws and policies governing citations. 132 
(c)  All citations for violations of this law require a mandatory appearance at the citation 133 
pre-hearing by the minor and his or her parent, guardian, or legal custodian. 134 

 135 
308.7.  Penalties of Curfew Violations 136 
308.7-1.  Upon a finding by the Family Court that a violation of this law has occurred, the minor 137 
and/or the minor’s parent, guardian, or legal custodian may be subject to the following penalties: 138 

(a)  Fines.  An individual may be ordered to pay a fine as a result of a violation of this law. 139 
The Oneida Business Committee shall hereby be delegated the authority to adopt through 140 
resolution a fine schedule which sets forth specific fine amounts for violations of this law. 141 

(1)  All fines shall be paid to the Judiciary. 142 
(2)  Fines shall be paid within ninety (90) days after the order is issued or upheld 143 
on final appeal, whichever is later.  144 

(A)  The ninety (90) day deadline for payment of fines may be extended if 145 
an alternative payment plan is approved by the Family Court. 146 

(3)  If an individual does not pay his or her fine the Family Court may seek to collect 147 
the money owed through the Nation’s garnishment and/or per capita attachment 148 
process or any other collection process available to the Family Court. 149 
(4)  Community service may be substituted for part or all of any fine at the minimum 150 
wage rate of the Nation for each hour of community service. 151 

(b)  Community service.  An individual may be ordered to perform community service. 152 
Community service can be used in lieu of, or in addition to, a fine.  153 

(1)  All community service assignments shall be approved by the Family Court. 154 
The Family Court shall give preference to culturally relevant community service 155 
assignments and/or community service assignments that focus on the betterment of 156 
the individual’s community. 157 
(2)  The Family Court shall provide the individual a written statement of the terms 158 
of the community service order, and a statement that the community service order 159 
is monitored.  160 
(3)  The Family Court’s community service order shall specify: 161 

(A)  how many hours of community service the individual is required to 162 
complete; 163 
(B)  the time frame in which the hours shall be completed; 164 
(C) how the individual shall obtain approval for his or her community 165 
service assignment; 166 
(D)  how the individual shall report his or her hours; and 167 
(E)  any other information the Family Court determines is relevant. 168 

(c)  Family counseling and/or parenting programs.  An individual may be ordered to 169 
participate in a family counseling and/or a parenting program. 170 
(d)  Any other penalty as deemed appropriate by the Family Court. 171 

308.7-2.  Staying a Curfew Penalty.  The Family Court may stay the enforcement of a penalty 172 
issued as a result of a curfew violation for a period of time to be determined by the Family Court. 173 
If the individual maintains compliance with the law during the time period in which the penalty is 174 
stayed, then the Family Court may dismiss the citation. If the individual commits another violation 175 
of the law during the time period in which the penalty is stayed, then the penalty shall go into 176 
effect. 177 

148 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3. O.C. 308 – Page 5 

 178 
End. 179 
 180 
Adopted – BC-10-09-19-F 181 
Amended – BC-__-__-__-__ 182 

149 of 213



      Analysis to Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

          t<yethin<tshaw^=late> kayanl^sla> 
                               we’ll put our arms across to stop them  

                           AMENDMENTS TO CURFEW LAW 

LEGISLATIVE ANALYSIS 
 

SECTION 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

REQUESTER: 
Legislative Reference 

Office 

SPONSOR: 
Jennifer Webster 

DRAFTER: 
Clorissa N. Santiago 

ANALYST: 
Brandon Wisneski 

Intent of the  
Amendments 

Technical corrections to remove inaccurate or duplicative references to the 
Nation’s territorial and personal jurisdiction.   

Purpose To protect the health, safety, and welfare of persons and property within the 
Reservation by regulating the activities of minors on the Reservation during 
certain hours, while imposing certain obligations and responsibilities upon the 
parents, guardians, and/or legal custodians of a minor for the control and 
supervision of that minor [3 O.C. 308.1-1].  

Affected Entities Oneida Police Department and Oneida Judiciary.  

Related Legislation Judiciary law.  

Public Meeting A public meeting has not yet been held.   

Fiscal Impact A fiscal impact statement has not yet been requested.   

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE DEVELOPMENT 1 
A. The Curfew law was first adopted by the Oneida Business Committee on October 9, 2019.  2 
B. Upon a review of the Nation’s Code of Laws, the Oneida Law Office and Legislative Operating 3 

Committee (LOC) identified references to the Nation’s jurisdiction that were either inaccurate or 4 
duplicative. In consultation with the Oneida Law Office, the LOC proposes technical amendments to 5 
the Curfew law to remove these inaccurate or unnecessary references. The intent of these changes is 6 
not to alter how the Curfew law is currently being enforced, but to ensure that all references to 7 
jurisdiction in the Nation’s Code of Laws are accurate.  8 
 9 

SECTION 3. CONSULTATION AND OUTREACH 10 
A. Representatives from the following departments or entities participated in the development of this law 11 

and legislative analysis: Oneida Law Office.  12 
B. The following laws were reviewed in the drafting of this analysis: Judiciary law, Domestic Animals 13 

law, Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance, Tribal Environmental Response law, Judiciary Rules of 14 
Evidence.  15 
  16 

SECTION 4. PROCESS 17 
A. The amendments to this law have followed the process set forth in the Legislative Procedures Act 18 

(LPA). 19 
B. The LOC added the amendments to the Active Files List on February 5, 2020.  20 
 21 

150 of 213



      Analysis to Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

SECTION 5. CONTENTS OF THE LEGISLATION  22 
A. Deletion of Territorial Jurisdiction Section. These amendments delete an incorrect reference to the 23 

Nation’s territorial jurisdiction for this law. The Curfew law incorrectly states that the territorial 24 
jurisdiction of this law is limited to land owned by the Nation or individual trust and/or fee land of a 25 
member of the Nation.  26 
 Territorial Jurisdiction. The Nation’s territorial jurisdiction is properly defined in the Constitution 27 

and Bylaws of the Oneida Nation and the Nation’s Judiciary law (see below).  28 
 Conclusion. Since the reference included in the Curfew law is inaccurate, unnecessary and already 29 

located in the Nation’s Constitution and Judiciary law, it has been deleted for clarity.   30 
 31 
Table 1. Comparison: Territorial Jurisdiction as Referenced in Constitution and Laws of the Nation.  32 

Deleted Language in 

Current Curfew law 

Language in Constitution of 

the Oneida Nation 

Language in Judiciary law 

This law extends within the 
Reservation to all land 
owned by the Nation and 
individual trust and/or fee 
land of a member of the 
Nation [3 O.C. 308.4-3].  

The jurisdiction of the Oneida 
Nation shall extend to the 
territory within the present 
confines of the Oneida 
Reservation and to such other 
lands as may be hereafter added 
thereto within or without said 
boundary lines under any law 
of the United States, except as 
otherwise provided by law 
[Article 1 – Territory] 

“The territorial jurisdiction of the 
Trial Court shall extend to the 
Reservation and all lands held in 
trust by the United States for the 
benefit of the Tribe within the State 
of Wisconsin.” [8 O.C. 801.5-3].  

. 33 
B. Deletion of Personal Jurisdiction Section. These amendments also delete references to the Nation’s 34 

personal jurisdiction from this law. The personal jurisdiction of the Nation is already provided for in 35 
the Nation’s Judiciary law.  36 
 Personal Jurisdiction. The Judiciary law already clarifies that the Nation has personal jurisdiction 37 

over members of the Oneida Nation, members of other federally-recognized Indian tribes, and any 38 
“non-Indians” who have consented to the jurisdiction of the Nation (examples include a contract 39 
or lease agreement.)   40 

 Conclusion. Since the Nation’s personal jurisdiction is already provided for in the Judiciary law, it 41 
has been deleted from this law for clarity.   42 

 43 
Table 2. Comparison: Personal Jurisdiction in laws of the Nation.  44 

Deleted Language in Current Curfew law Language in Judiciary law 

Personal Jurisdiction.  This law applies to: 
(a) All members of the Nation; the 
Nation’s entities and corporations; and 
members of other federally-recognized 
tribes; 
(b) Individuals and businesses leasing, 
occupying or otherwise using fee land 
owned by the Nation or by individual 
members of the Nation; and/or lands held 

Personal Jurisdiction 

(a) Indians. The Trial Court shall have 
jurisdiction over all Indians. 8 O.C. 801 – Page 
5 (b) Non-Indians. The Trial Court shall have 
jurisdiction over non-Indians who have 
consented to the jurisdiction of the Tribe or Trial 
Court or as otherwise consistent with federal 
law.  

(1) Consent to Jurisdiction. For 
purposes of subsection 801.5-4(b) 

151 of 213



      Analysis to Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

in trust on behalf of the Nation or 
individual members of the Nation; and  
(c) Individuals who have consented to the 
jurisdiction of the Nation or as otherwise 
consistent with federal law. An individual 
shall be considered to have consented to 
the jurisdiction of the Nation: 

(1) By entering into a consensual 
relationship with the Nation, or 
with the Nation’s entities, 
corporations, or members of the 
Nation, including but not limited 
to contracts or other agreements; 
or 
(2) By other facts which manifest 
an intent to consent to the 
authority of the Nation, including 
failure to raise an objection to the 
exercise of personal jurisdiction in 
a timely manner. [3 O.C. 304.4-1]. 

 

above, a person shall have consented to 
the jurisdiction of the Trial Court by:  

(A) entering into a consensual 
relationship with the Tribe, 
Tribal entities, Tribal 
corporations, or Tribal 
members, including but not 
limited to contracts or other 
agreements; or 
 (B) other facts which the Trial 
Court determines manifest an 
intent to consent to the 
authority of the Tribe or the 
jurisdiction of the Trial Court, 
including failure to raise an 
objection to the exercise of 
personal jurisdiction in a timely 
manner. [8 O.C. 801.5-4]. 

 

 45 
 46 
SECTION 6. EXISTING LEGISLATION 47 
A. References to Territorial Jurisdiction in Other Oneida laws. The following laws also include 48 

references to the Nation’s territorial jurisdiction.  49 
 Domestic Animals [3 O.C. 304.4-2]  50 

o Conclusion: The reference to territorial jurisdiction in the Domestic Animals law is also 51 
incorrect and will need to be updated or deleted. The LOC has added the Domestic Animals 52 
law to Active Files List for amendments.  53 

 Judiciary [8 O.C. 801.5-3] 54 
o Conclusion. The reference to territorial jurisdiction in the Judiciary law is correct and no 55 

amendments are necessary.  56 
 Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance (ONGO) [5 O.C. 501.3-1] 57 

o Conclusion. The reference to territorial jurisdiction in ONGO is correct and no 58 
amendments are necessary.  59 

 Tribal Environmental Response [4 O.C. 401.4-2] 60 
o Conclusion. The reference to territorial jurisdiction in the Tribal Environmental Response 61 

law is correct and no amendments are necessary.  62 
 Judiciary Rules of Evidence [8 O.C. 804.5-2(a)].  63 

o Conclusion. The reference to territorial jurisdiction in the Judiciary Rules of Evidence is 64 
correct and no amendments are necessary.  65 

 66 
SECTION 7. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS  67 
A. Fiscal Impact. A fiscal impact statement has not yet been requested.  68 
 Under the Legislative Procedures Act, a fiscal impact statement is required for all legislation except 69 

emergency legislation [1 O.C. 109.6-1].  70 

152 of 213



      Analysis to Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 A fiscal impact statement shall be submitted by agencies as directed by the Legislative Operating 71 
Committee and may be prepared by any agency who may receive funding if the legislation is 72 
enacted; who may administer a program if the legislation is enacted; who may have financial 73 
information concerning the subject matter of the legislation; or by the Finance Office, upon request 74 
of the Legislative Operating Committee [1 O.C. 109.6-1(a) and (b)]. 75 

 76 
 77 

153 of 213



Page 1 of 1 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

Legislative Operating Committee 
February 19, 2020 

Domestic Animals Amendments          
Submission Date: 2/5/20 Public Meeting: n/a 

LOC Sponsor:   Ernest Stevens III Emergency Enacted: n/a 

Summary:  This item was added to the Active Files List for a technical amendment to be made to

remove an erroneous depiction of the Nation’s territorial jurisdiction. 

2/5/20 LOC: Motion by Daniel Guzman King to add Domestic Animals amendments to the active files list 
for a technical amendment with Ernest Stevens III as the sponsor; seconded by Jennifer 
Webster. Motion carried unanimously. 

Next Steps: 
 Approve the draft and the legislative analysis and defer to a work meeting for further consideration.

154 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 1 

 Title 3. Health and Public Safety - Chapter 304 
DOMESTIC ANIMALS 

K@tse>na Olihw@=ke  
matters concerning the pet animals 

DOMESTIC ANIMALS 
	
304.1.	 Purpose and Policy	
304.2.	 Adoption, Amendment, Conflicts	
304.3.	 Definitions	
304.4.	 Jurisdiction	
304.5.	 Authority	
304.6.  Treatment of Animals	
304.7.	 Dogs and Cats	
304.8.	 Livestock	
304.9.	 Hens	
304.10.  Prohibited Animals	
304.11.  Dangerous Animals	

304.4.	 Authority	
304.5.  Treatment of Animals	
304.6.	 Dogs and Cats	
304.7.	 Livestock	
304.8.	 Hens	
304.9.  Prohibited Animals	
304.10.  Dangerous Animals	
304.1211.  Owner Liability 
304.1312.  Enforcement of Violations 

 

304.1.  Purpose and Policy 1 
304.1-1. Purpose.  The purpose of this law is to: 2 

(a) protect the health, safety, and welfare of the community by requiring certain basic 3 
measures to prevent the spread of disease carried by domestic animals; 4 
(b) set minimum standards for the treatment of animals; 5 
(c) prohibit certain species of animals from being brought onto the Reservation; 6 
(d) regulate the keeping of livestock on lots zoned residential within the Reservation; and 7 
(e) establish consequences for damages caused by domestic animals. 8 

304.1-2. Policy.  It is the policy of the Nation to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the 9 
community by: 10 

(a) requiring certain basic measures to prevent the spread of disease carried by domestic 11 
animals; 12 
(b) establishing requirements for licensing domestic animals, and 13 
(c) regulating the types of animals which may be kept as domestic animals.  14 

 15 
304.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 16 
304.2-1. This law was adopted by Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC-03-13-96-B and 17 
amended by resolutions BC-06-22-11-G, BC-06-28-17-B, and BC-05-08-19-C., and BC-__-__-18 
__-__. 19 
304.2-2. This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee and/or 20 
General Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. 21 
304.2-3. Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 22 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 23 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 24 
304.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 25 
the provisions of this law shall control.   26 
304.2-5. This law is adopted under the authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation.  27 
 28 
304.3.  Definitions 29 
304.3-1. This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law. All 30 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 31 

(a)  “Court of Appeals” means the Nation’s Judiciary’s Court of Appeals, which is the court 32 
of final appeal within the Nation. 33 
(b)  “District Quarantine” means a rabid or otherwise diseased domestic animal is suspected 34 

155 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 2 

or known to be within a discernible area and all such animals reasonably suspected of being 35 
infected are subject to enforced isolation for a period of time to limit or prevent the spread 36 
of disease or infection and during which time said animals are tested for diseases, including 37 
rabies. 38 
(c)  “Fine” means a monetary punishment issued to a person violating this law. 39 
(d)  “Hen” means a female chicken of the order and family gallus gallus domesticus. 40 
(e)  “Husbandry practices” means accepted manner of managing resources, cultivating, and 41 
caring for animals including the breeding, feeding, and tending of the animals. 42 
(f)  “Judiciary” means the Oneida Nation Judiciary, which is the judicial system that was 43 
established by Oneida General Tribal Council resolution GTC-01-07-13-B to administer 44 
the judicial authorities and responsibilities of the Nation. 45 
(g)  “Livestock” means any equine (i.e. horse, donkey, etc.), bovine (i.e. cow, steer, heifer, 46 
etc.), sheep, goat, pig. 47 
(h)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation.   48 
(i)  “Owner” means any person who owns, harbors, keeps, controls or acts as a caretaker 49 
for an animal. Absent evidence of alternative adult ownership, this law presumes that 50 
domestic animals are owned by the adult homeowner or renter. 51 
(j)  “Penalty” means a punishment, other than a fine, imposed on a person violating this 52 
law and may include, but is not limited to, the confiscation of wildlife with return of the 53 
same at the discretion of the Trial Court and restitution. 54 
(k)  “Reservation” means all the property within the exterior boundaries of the Reservation 55 
of the Oneida Nation, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the Oneida 7 Stat. 566, 56 
and any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law. 57 
(l)  “Residential household” means a residential lot, except for those residential lots 58 
designed as multi-family lots, in which each family unit within the lot constitutes a separate 59 
household. 60 
(m)  “Tethering” means the act of fastening an animal to a stationary object while 61 
unattended so that the animal can only range within a set radius. Tethering does not include 62 
the use of a leash to walk an animal. 63 
(n)  “Trial Court” means the Trial Court of the Oneida Nation Judiciary.  64 
(o)  “Quarantine” means the act of keeping an animal in enforced isolation for a period of 65 
time to limit or prevent the spread of disease or infection and during which time said animal 66 
is tested for diseases, including rabies. 67 

 68 
304.4.  Authority Jurisdiction 69 
304.4-1. Personal Jurisdiction.  This law applies to: 70 

(a) All members of the Nation; the Nation’s entities and corporations; and members of 71 
other federally-recognized tribes; 72 
(b) Individuals and businesses leasing, occupying or otherwise using fee land owned by 73 
the Nation or by individual members of the Nation; and/or lands held in trust on behalf of 74 
the Nation or individual members of the Nation; and  75 
(c) Individuals who have consented to the jurisdiction of the Nation or as otherwise 76 
consistent with federal law. An individual shall be considered to have consented to the 77 

156 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 3 

jurisdiction of the Nation: 78 
(1) By entering into a consensual relationship with the Nation, or with the Nation’s 79 
entities, corporations, or members of the Nation, including but not limited to 80 
contracts or other agreements; or 81 
(2) By other facts which manifest an intent to consent to the authority of the Nation, 82 
including failure to raise an objection to the exercise of personal jurisdiction in a 83 
timely manner. 84 

304.4-2. Territorial Jurisdiction.  This law extends within the Reservation to all land owned by 85 
the Nation and individual trust and/or fee land of a member of the Nation. 86 
 87 
304.5.  Authority 88 
304.5-1. General.  This law governs the keeping of all domestic animals which are commonly 89 
owned as household pets. Domestic animals include, but are not limited to, dogs, cats, ferrets, 90 
rabbits, guinea pigs, turtles, birds, pigeons, hamsters, non-venomous reptiles, amphibians, and 91 
arachnids. 92 

(a) Domestic animals do not include prohibited animals as identified by the prohibited 93 
animals resolution provided for in section 304.10-2. 94 

304.54-2.  Authority of the Oneida Police Department and Conservation Department.  Oneida 95 
Police Officers and Conservation Wardens shall have the authority to: 96 

(a)  investigate complaints involving domestic animals;  97 
(b) enforce the provisions of this law through appropriate means, including but not limited 98 
to:  99 

(1) seizing any animal that is taken, employed, used, or possessed in violation of 100 
this law and/or mistreated, rabid or otherwise in danger or dangerous; 101 
(2) issuing citations consistent with the fine and penalty schedule developed in 102 
accordance with this law; and 103 
(3) using force, up to and including lethal force, to stop an immediate threat to 104 
public safety caused by an animal.  105 

(A)  Where lethal force is used, such execution shall be conducted in as 106 
humane manner as possible and, to the extent feasible, avoids damage to the 107 
animal’s head for the purpose of rabies testing. 108 

304.54-3. Fine, Penalty, and Licensing Fee Schedule.  The Environmental, Health, Safety, and 109 
Land Division and the Environmental Resource Board are hereby delegated joint authority to 110 
develop a fine, penalty, and licensing fee schedule. The fine, penalty, and licensing fee schedule 111 
shall be adopted by the Oneida Business Committee through resolution. 112 
304.54-4. Disease Investigation and Quarantine.  The Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land 113 
Division, the Emergency Management Coordinator, and the Comprehensive Health Division are 114 
hereby delegated joint authority to establish standard operating procedures related to disease 115 
investigations and quarantines. 116 
304.54-5. Issuance of Licenses.  The Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division shall make 117 
all decisions related to the issuance of a license and/or permit in accordance with this law, unless 118 
otherwise noted. 119 

 120 

157 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 4 

304.65.  Treatment of Animals 121 
304.65-1. Food and Water. An owner shall provide an animal with a daily supply of food and 122 
water sufficient to maintain the animal in good health.  123 
304.65-2. Shelter.  An owner shall meet the minimum standards for indoor and outdoor shelter for 124 
an animal. All shelter shall be structurally sound and maintained in good repair to protect the 125 
animal from injury and to contain the animal. 126 

(a) Minimum indoor standards of shelter.  Minimum standards for indoor shelter include 127 
the following: 128 

(1) Temperature.  The ambient temperature of the indoor shelter shall be 129 
compatible with the health of the animal. 130 
(2) Ventilation.  Indoor shelter facilities shall be adequately ventilated by natural 131 
or mechanical means to provide for the health of the animal at all times. 132 

(b) Minimum outdoor standards of shelter.  Minimum standards for outdoor shelter include 133 
the following: 134 

(1) Shelter from Sunlight.  When sunlight is likely to cause heat exhaustion of an 135 
animal tied or caged outside, sufficient shade by natural or artificial means shall be 136 
provided to protect the animal from direct sunlight.  Caged does not include farm 137 
fencing used to confine livestock. 138 
(2) Climatic Conditions.  Natural or artificial shelter appropriate to the local 139 
climatic conditions for the animal concerned shall be provided as necessary for the 140 
health of the animal. 141 
(3) Adverse Weather.  If an animal is tied or confined unattended outdoors under 142 
weather conditions which adversely affect the health of the animal, a weather 143 
appropriate shelter of suitable size to accommodate the animal shall be provided. 144 

(c) Space Standards.  Enclosures shall be constructed and maintained so as to provide 145 
sufficient space to allow each animal adequate freedom of movement.  Inadequate space 146 
may be indicated by evidence of debility, stress, or abnormal behavior patterns.   147 

(1)  Dog Kennels. Dog kennels shall meet the following space requirements where, 148 
if there are multiple dogs in the same kennel, the base kennel space requirement is 149 
based on the size of the largest dog and the additional kennel space requirements 150 
are based on the size of each additional dog kept in the kennel: 151 

(A)  Dog Size Between One and Thirty-Five Pounds.  A dog that weighs 152 
between one (1) and thirty-five (35) pounds shall have a required base 153 
kennel space of sixty (60) square feet. Required additional kennel space per 154 
additional dog of this size is twelve (12) square feet. 155 
(B)  Dog Size Between Thirty-Six and Seventy-Five Pounds.  A dog that 156 
weighs between thirty-six (36) and seventy-five (75) pounds shall have a 157 
required base kennel space of eighty (80) square feet. Required additional 158 
kennel space per additional dog of this size is eighteen (18) square feet. 159 
(C)  Dog Size Seventy-Six Pounds or Greater.  A dog that weighs seventy-160 
six (76) pounds or more shall have a required base kennel space of one 161 
hundred (100) square feet. Required additional kennel space per additional 162 
dog of this size is twenty-four (24) square feet. 163 

158 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 5 

(d) Sanitation Standards.  An owner shall meet the minimum standards of sanitation for 164 
both indoor and outdoor shelter. Minimum sanitation standards require waste matter from 165 
the animal to be removed within twenty-four (24) hours of its deposit.   166 
(e)  Shelter Exception for Livestock.  In the case of livestock kept on farms on land zoned 167 
agricultural, nothing in this section shall be construed as imposing shelter requirements or 168 
standards more stringent than normally accepted husbandry practices. 169 

304.65-3.  Tethering.  If a kennel or enclosed yard is not available, an owner may tether an 170 
unsupervised animal as long as the owner meets the following conditions: 171 

(a)  the tether is connected to the animal with a buckle type collar or body harness made of 172 
nylon or leather not less than one inch (1”) in width and at least two inches (2”) greater in 173 
diameter than the animal’s neck or torso; 174 

(1) The use of a choke collar, prong collar head harness, or other similar type of 175 
head harness or collar shall be prohibited for the use of tethering. 176 

(b)  the tether is at least twelve feet (12’) long and allows the animal to move in all 177 
directions unimpeded; 178 
(c)  the total weight of the tether does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the animal’s body 179 
weight; 180 
(d)  the animal is tethered so as to prevent injury, strangulation, or entanglement, and allows 181 
the animal access to water and shelter; 182 
(e)  the tethered animal is not sick, injured, or nursing; 183 
(f)  the animal is not tethered on any vacant property or land or with an unoccupied 184 
dwelling; and 185 
(g)  the animal is not tethered in a manner that allows the animal to cross onto public space 186 
or property of others. 187 

304.65-4. Mistreatment of Animals.  No person shall treat any animal in a manner which causes 188 
harm, injury or death.  This section does not apply to: 189 

(a) normal and accepted veterinary and/or care practices; or 190 
(b) teaching, research or experimentation conducted at a facility regulated under federal or 191 
applicable state law. 192 

304.65-5. Mandatory Reporting.  An employee of the Nation shall report any animal mistreatment 193 
witnessed during the regular course of his or her employment with the Nation to the Oneida Police 194 
Department and any other appropriate entity. 195 
 196 
304.7.  Dogs and Cats 197 
304.76-1. License Required.  An owner shall be required to obtain a license for any dog or cat five 198 
(5) months of age or older on an annual basis. 199 

(a) License Period.  The license year shall commence on January 1st and end on December 200 
31st of every year.  201 
(b)  License Eligibility.  To be eligible for a license, the owner shall provide:  202 

(1)  the licensing fee; and 203 
(2)  proof of current rabies vaccination.  204 

(c) Placement of License Tag.  Upon the receipt of a license the owner shall be provided a 205 
license tag for the dog or cat. The owner shall securely attach the license tag to the animal’s 206 

159 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 6 

collar and shall require the animal wear the collar at all times. 207 
(1) Exception. A dog or cat shall not be required to wear the collar if the dog or cat 208 
is: 209 

(A)  hunting or actively involved in herding or controlling livestock if the 210 
animal is under control of its owner; 211 
(B)  within the owner’s residence and/or securely confined in a fenced area; 212 
and/or 213 
(C)  being shown during a competition. 214 

304.76-2.  Rabies Vaccinations Required.  An owner shall be required to obtain a rabies 215 
vaccination for any dog or cat five (5) months of age or older.  216 
304.76-3. Limit on the Number of Dogs and Cats.  An individual may keep no more than two (2) 217 
dogs or three (3) cats; and a total of no more than four (4) dogs and cats combined; in a single 218 
residential household.   219 

(a)  Exception. The limit on the number of dogs and cats a person may keep or possess does 220 
not apply to a person who:  221 

(1)  is eligible for any grandfather provisions included in this law’s adopting 222 
resolution;  223 
(2)  keeps or possesses a litter of pups or kittens, or a portion of a litter, for a period 224 
not exceeding five (5) months from birth;  225 
(3)  resides on property zoned agricultural; and/or  226 
(4)  obtains a permit for the additional dog or cat. 227 

(b)  Permit for Additional Dogs or Cats.  A person may keep more than two (2) dogs or 228 
three cats (3) in a single residential household if the owner obtains a permit from the 229 
Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division for the additional animal. The 230 
application for the permit must be signed by the owner and contain the signature of the 231 
homeowner of the residential household if the homeowner is not the applicant.  232 

(1)  By seeking a permit for an additional dog or cat the owner agrees that he or she 233 
shall reduce the number of licensed dogs or cats on the premises if there are two (2) 234 
or more nuisance complaints against the residential household within one (1) 235 
calendar year caused by, or related to, the number of dogs or cats housed on the 236 
premises.  237 
(2)  If two (2) or more nuisance complaints are received against the residential 238 
household due to the number of dogs or cats housed on the premises, the owner 239 
shall reduce the number of animals within thirty (30) days. 240 

304.76-4. Running at Large.  An owner shall not allow a dog or cat to run at large by being any 241 
place except upon the premises of the owner, unless the dog or cat is crated, penned, or on a leash 242 
under the control of a person physically able to control the animal.   243 

(a) A stray dog or cat running at large may be referred to the Oneida Police Department or 244 
Oneida Conservation Department. 245 
(b) When an Oneida Police Officer or Oneida Conservation Warden finds a dog or cat 246 
running at large, the officer and/or warden shall, if possible, pick up and impound such 247 
animal. 248 
(c) Whenever any impounded animal bears an identification mark, such as a collar with 249 

160 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 7 

identification tags or license tag, the owner shall be notified as soon as reasonably possible. 250 
304.76-5.  Nuisance.  An Oneida Police Officer or Oneida Conservation Warden may pick up and 251 
impound a dog or cat that has been found to be a nuisance. A dog or cat shall be found to be a 252 
nuisance if the actions of the dog or cat: 253 

(a)  resulted in two (2) or more verified disturbances due to excessive barking and/or other 254 
noise by the animal, or the animal running at large; and/or  255 
(b)  resulted in one (1) or more verified disturbance due to threatening behavior by the 256 
animal running at large. 257 

304.76-6. Investigations for Suspected Animal Bites.  The owner shall notify the Oneida Police 258 
Department in the event the owner’s cat or dog bites a human or another domestic animal. 259 

(a)  The responding Oneida Police Officer or Oneida Conservation Warden shall: 260 
(1)  Ascertain whether the domestic animal is properly licensed and has current 261 
vaccinations. 262 
(2)  Ensure all information provided is correct. 263 
(3)  Contact the Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division to provide 264 
notification of the domestic animal bite. 265 
(4)  If the cat or dog has current rabies vaccinations, order the owner to: 266 

(A)  Quarantine the animal for ten (10) days; and 267 
(B)  Present the animal for examination by a veterinarian within twenty-268 
four (24) hours of the bite, on the last day of quarantine and on one (1) day 269 
in between the first twenty-four (24) hours and the tenth (10th) day. 270 

(5)  If the cat or dog does not have current rabies vaccination, order the owner to: 271 
(A)  Quarantine the animal for ten (10) days or deliver the animal to an 272 
isolation facility at the owner’s expense. If a home quarantine is ordered, 273 
the owner shall present the domestic animal for examination by a 274 
veterinarian within twenty-four (24) hours of the bite, on the last day of 275 
quarantine and on one (1) day in between the first twenty-four (24) hours 276 
and the tenth (10th) day; or 277 
(B)  Euthanize the animal and send the specimen for analysis at the owner’s 278 
expense, if the animal has exhibited any signs of rabies. 279 

(b)  Upon expiration of a quarantine period, a veterinarian may extend the quarantine 280 
period. Upon expiration of all quarantine periods, if the veterinarian certifies that the 281 
animal has not exhibited any signs of rabies, the animal may be released from quarantine. 282 
(c)  If the veterinarian certifies that the animal has exhibited any signs of rabies the 283 
following shall occur: 284 

(1) If the animal has current rabies vaccinations, the Oneida Police Officer or 285 
Oneida Conservation Warden may order the animal to be euthanized and send the 286 
specimen for analysis, to be paid for by the Nation. 287 
(2)  If the animal does not have current rabies vaccinations, the Oneida Police 288 
Officer or Oneida Conservation Warden may order the animal to be euthanized and 289 
send the specimen for analysis at the owner’s expense. 290 

304.76-7. District Quarantine.  A district quarantine may be initiated by staff designated by the 291 
Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division, an Oneida Police Officer, an Oneida 292 

161 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 8 

Conservation Warden, and/or a Public Health Officer. 293 
(a) If an area is subject to a district quarantine for rabies, all dogs and cats within the district 294 
shall be kept securely confined, tied, leashed or muzzled.  Any dog or cat not confined, 295 
tied, leashed or muzzled is a public nuisance and may be impounded.  All Oneida Police 296 
Officers and Oneida Conservation Wardens shall cooperate in the enforcement of the 297 
quarantine. 298 
(b) An animal that is immunized against rabies as evidenced by a valid certificate of rabies 299 
vaccination or other evidence is exempt from the district quarantine provisions of this 300 
section. 301 

 302 
304.87.  Livestock 303 
304.87-1. An owner shall obtain a conditional use permit from the Oneida Land Commission in 304 
order to keep livestock on land zoned residential.  305 
304.87-2.  Limitations on Livestock.  Livestock kept on land zoned residential are subject to the 306 
following limitations: 307 

(a) One (1) large animal per one (1) acre.  Examples of large animals include, but are not 308 
limited to, horses, cows, and pigs. 309 
(b) One (1) small animal per one-half (½) acre.  Examples of small animals include, but 310 
are not limited to, goats, and sheep. 311 
(c) One (1) goat or sheep per recorded lot under one-half (½) acre when setback 312 
requirements can be met. 313 

304.87-3. Liability for Damage Caused by Livestock at Large.  Any person whose livestock 314 
escapes from its normal confined area and becomes at large is responsible for any and all damage 315 
to persons and property caused by such livestock while it is away from its normal confined area. 316 
 317 
304.98. Hens 318 
304.98-1.  Hen Permit.  An owner shall obtain a conditional use permit from the Oneida Land 319 
Commission in order to keep hens on land zoned residential.   320 
304.98-2.  Prohibition of Roosters.  An owner shall not keep a rooster on land zoned residential.  321 
304.98-3.  Limit on the Number of Hens Allowed. The number of hens an owner may keep is 322 
dependent on the size of the residential lot. 323 

(a)  An owner may to keep up to six (6) hens on a residential lot that is smaller than two 324 
(2) acres in size. 325 
(b)  An owner may keep up to twelve (12) hens on a residential lot two (2) acres in size or 326 
larger. 327 

304.98-4.  Standards for Keeping Hens.  An owner shall keep hens in the following manner: 328 
(a)  No person shall keep a hen over eight (8) weeks of age in a principal structure. 329 
(b)  Hens shall be kept within a structure such as a coop or fenced area used exclusively to 330 
keep hens and shall provide at least four (4) square feet of space per hen. 331 
(c)  No accessory structure used to keep hens shall be located within twenty-five feet (25’) 332 
of any principal structure which is not owned by the person permitted to keep the hens. 333 
(d)  No accessory structure used to keep hens shall be located in a front or side yard. 334 
(e)  All hens shall be kept and handled in a sanitary manner to prevent the spread of 335 

162 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 9 

communicable diseases amongst birds or to humans. 336 
304.98-5.  Prohibition of Nuisance Hens.  No owner may keep hens that cause any other nuisance 337 
associated with unhealthy conditions, create a public health threat, or otherwise interfere with the 338 
normal use of property or enjoyment of life by humans or animals. 339 
 340 
304.109. Prohibited Animals 341 
304.109-1. No person shall bring into, keep, harbor, maintain, offer for sale or barter, act as a 342 
custodian, have custody or control of, or release to the wild on the Reservation a prohibited animal. 343 
304.109-2.  Prohibited Animals.  The Oneida Business Committee shall provide through the 344 
adoption of a resolution which orders and families of animals, whether bred in the wild or in 345 
captivity, and any or all hybrids are prohibited from being on the Reservation. 346 
304.109-3. Prohibited Animals Exception.  The prohibition of certain animals shall not apply 347 
to: 348 

(a) Individuals who are eligible for any grandfather provisions included in this law’s 349 
adopting resolution. 350 
(b) A zoological park and/or sanctuary, an educational or medical institution, and/or a 351 
specially trained entertainment organization who receives a permit from the 352 
Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division to own, harbor or possess the prohibited 353 
animal. 354 

304.109-4.  Prohibited Animal Permit.  The Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division 355 
may issue a prohibited animal permit if: 356 

(a)  the animal and animal quarters are kept in a clean and sanitary condition and 357 
maintained to eliminate objectionable odors; and 358 
(b)  the animal is maintained in quarters so constructed as to prevent its escape. 359 

304.109-5.  Release of Prohibited Animals.  The Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land 360 
Division, may approve a wildlife refuge and/or sanctuary to release prohibited animals within the 361 
Reservation without applying for and receiving a prohibited animal permit. 362 
304.109-6.  Seizure of Prohibited Animals.  An unpermitted prohibited animal may be seized by 363 
the Oneida Police Department and/or the Oneida Conservation Department.  364 

(a)  A prohibited animal that is seized shall be held by the Oneida Police Department, the 365 
Oneida Conservation Department, or its designee until it can be determined if the animal 366 
is an endangered or threatened species.   367 
(b)  At any time after such identification, the Oneida Police Department and/or Oneida 368 
Conservation Department may seek an order from the Trial Court as to the care, custody 369 
and control of the animal.   370 
(c)  If the Trial Court finds the animal has been taken, employed, used or possessed in 371 
violation of this section, the owner shall be responsible for reimbursing the Oneida Police 372 
Department and/or the Oneida Conservation Department for the cost of holding the animal 373 
and any costs incurred in identifying the animal. 374 

304.109-7. Notice of Release or Escape.  The owner of a prohibited animal that has been 375 
released or escapes shall immediately notify the Oneida Police Department and/or the Oneida 376 
Conservation Department and shall be liable for any cost of recapture of the animal.  377 
304.10-8. Forfeiture of the Prohibited Animal.  An owner found in violation of this section shall 378 

163 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 10 

forfeit or surrender the prohibited animal to the Oneida Police Department, Oneida Conservation 379 
Department, or designee. Upon such forfeiture or surrender, the Trial Court may direct destruction 380 
or transfer of the animal to a qualified zoological, educational, or scientific institution or qualified 381 
private propagator for safekeeping, with costs assessed against the owner. 382 
 383 
304.1110.   Dangerous Animals 384 
304.1110-1. Dangerous Animals. No person shall own, keep, possess, return to or harbor a 385 
dangerous animal. An animal shall be presumed to be dangerous if the animal: 386 

(a) approaches or chases a human being or domestic animal in a menacing fashion or 387 
apparent attitude of attack;  388 
(b) bites, inflicts injury, attacks, or otherwise endangers the safety of a human being or 389 
domestic animal; 390 
(c)  is suspected to be owned, trained or harbored for the purpose of dog fighting; and/or 391 
(d)  has been declared to be a dangerous animal and/or ordered to be destroyed in any other 392 
jurisdiction. 393 

304.1110-2.  Dangerous Animal Determination.  An Oneida Police Officer or Oneida 394 
Conservation Warden may determine an animal to be dangerous whenever, upon investigation, the 395 
officer finds that the animal meets the definition of dangerous animal provided in section 304.11-396 
1. 397 

(a)  Upon making a determination that an animal is dangerous, the Oneida Police Officer 398 
or Oneida Conservation Warden shall issue a written order with an accompanying citation 399 
declaring the animal to be dangerous. 400 
(b)  The citation and order shall be personally delivered to the apparent owner or custodian 401 
of the dangerous animal.  402 
(c)  Upon receipt of the written order and accompanying citation the owner shall remove 403 
the dangerous animal from the Reservation within three (3) business days. 404 

304.1110-3.  Contesting a Dangerous Animal Determination.  If the owner wishes to contest the 405 
dangerous animal determination, he or she shall file with the Trial Court a written objection to the 406 
order within three (3) business days of receipt of the order. 407 

(a)  The written objection shall include specific reasons for objecting to or contesting the 408 
order. An owner may argue an animal should not be deemed dangerous due to the animal 409 
biting, attacking or menacing any person and/or domestic animal because the animal was 410 
acting to: 411 

(1) defend its owner or another person from an attack by a person or animal; 412 
(2) protect its young or another animal; 413 
(3) defend itself against any person or animal which has tormented, assaulted or 414 
abused it; and/or 415 
(4) defend its owner’s property against trespassers. 416 

(b)  Pending the outcome of the hearing, the animal shall be securely confined in a humane 417 
manner either on the premises of the owner or caretaker, or with a licensed veterinarian. If 418 
confined on the premises of the owner or caretaker, the following requirements shall apply: 419 

(1)  Leash and Muzzle. No owner shall permit a dangerous animal to go outside its 420 
kennel or pen unless the animal is securely restrained with a leash no longer than 421 

164 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 11 

four feet (4’) in length by a person who is at least sixteen (16) years of age who is 422 
in physical control of the leash, competent to govern the animal and capable of 423 
physically controlling and restraining the animal. The owner shall not leash an 424 
animal to inanimate objects such as a tree, post, or building. When the animal is on 425 
a leash outside the animal’s kennel, the owner shall muzzle the animal in a humane 426 
way by a commercially available muzzling device sufficient to prevent the animal 427 
from biting a person or other animal. 428 
(2)  Confinement.  Except when leashed and muzzled the owner shall ensure the 429 
dangerous animal is securely confined indoors or in a securely enclosed and locked 430 
pen or kennel that is located on the premises of the owner and constructed in a 431 
manner that does not allow the animal to exit the pen or kennel on its own volition. 432 
The owner shall not permit an animal to be kept on a porch, patio, or in any part of 433 
a house or structure on the premises of the owner that would allow the animal to 434 
exit the building on its own volition. The owner shall not permit the animal to be 435 
kept in a house or structure when the windows are open or when screen windows 436 
or screen doors are the only obstacle preventing the animal from exiting the 437 
structure. 438 
(3)  Signs.  The owner of a dangerous animal shall display, in prominent places on 439 
his or her premises near all entrances to the premises, signs in letters of not less 440 
than two inches (2”) high warning that there is a dangerous animal on the property. 441 
A similar sign shall be posted on the kennel or pen of the animal. In addition, the 442 
owner shall conspicuously display a sign with a symbol warning children of the 443 
presence of a dangerous animal. 444 
(4)  Notification.  The owner of a dangerous animal shall notify the Oneida Police 445 
Department and/or the Oneida Conservation Department immediately if the animal 446 
is at large, is unconfined, has attacked another animal, or has attacked a person.  447 

(c)  If an owner or caretaker fails to follow the requirements for harboring a dangerous 448 
animal pending a hearing, the animal may be impounded by the Oneida Police Officer or 449 
Oneida Conservation Warden issuing the dangerous animal determination. 450 

304.1110-4.  Dangerous Animal Determination Hearing.  A hearing on the dangerous animal 451 
determination shall be held within fourteen (14) days of submission of the written objection with 452 
the Trial Court. At the hearing, the Trial Court shall determine whether the determination that the 453 
animal is dangerous should be substantiated.  454 

(a)  If the Trial Court concludes that the determination that the animal is dangerous is 455 
substantiated, then the Trial Court shall issue an order that mandates the animal be removed 456 
from the Reservation within forty-eight (48) hours of the determination.  457 

(1)  The order shall contain the requirement that the owner notify the Oneida Police 458 
Department within twenty-four (24) hours if the dangerous animal has been sold or 459 
been given away. If the dangerous animal has been sold or given away, the owner 460 
shall also provide the name, address and telephone number of the new owner of the 461 
dangerous animal. If the dangerous animal is sold or given away to a person 462 
residing outside the Reservation or to a person or entity that falls outside of the 463 
jurisdiction of this law, the owner shall present evidence to the Oneida Police 464 

165 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 12 

Department showing that he or she has notified the police department or other law 465 
enforcement agency of the animal's new residence, including the name, address and 466 
telephone number of the new owner. The Oneida Police Department shall forward 467 
all such notifications to the Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division 468 
within a reasonable amount of time.   469 

(b)  The Trial Court may order a dangerous animal to be destroyed. If such an order is 470 
issued, the Trial Court shall require the owner submit proof of destruction within five (5) 471 
business days from a licensed veterinarian.  If the owner does not satisfy these 472 
requirements, an Oneida Police Officer and/or an Oneida Conservation Warden shall seize 473 
the animal and enforce compliance at the cost of the owner. 474 
(c)  The Trial Court may mandate attendance at an additional Trial Court hearing if 475 
restitution is appropriate. 476 

304.1110-5.  Appeal of the Trial Court’s Decision.  An appeal of the Trial Court’s decision on the 477 
dangerous animal determination may be appealed to the Nation’s Court of Appeals.  478 

(a)  An appeal shall be submitted to the Court of Appeals within five (5) business days 479 
from the date of the Trial Court’s decision. 480 
(b)  Upon an appeal to the Court of Appeals, the order to remove the animal from the 481 
Reservation or any order to destroy an animal is stayed pending the outcome of the appeal.  482 

604.1110-6.  Dangerous Animal Exception. The Trial Court may provide an exception to the 483 
dangerous animal provisions of this law for a law enforcement or military animal upon 484 
presentation by the animal’s owner or handler of a satisfactory arrangement for safe keeping of the 485 
animal.  486 

  487 
304.1211.  Owner Liability  488 
304.1211-1. An owner shall be liable for damages caused by his or her domestic animal. 489 

(a) First Offense.  The owner is liable for the full amount of damages caused by the 490 
domestic animal. 491 
(b) Subsequent Offenses. The owner shall be liable for two (2) times the full amount of 492 
damages caused by the domestic animal if the owner knew or should have known that the 493 
domestic animal previously caused damages. 494 
 495 

304.1312.  Enforcement of Violations 496 
304.1312-1.  Citations.  CitationsA citation for the violation of this law and/or orders issued 497 
pursuant to this law may include fines, penalties and conditional orders in accordance with the 498 
fine, penalty, and licensing fee schedule. A citation for a violation of this law shall be processed 499 
in accordance with the procedure contained in the Nation’s laws and policies governing citations. 500 

304.13-2.  Citation Pre-Hearing.  All citations shall include a pre-hearing date with the 501 
Trial Court which shall be set for the next scheduled monthly pre-hearing date that is at 502 
least thirty (30) days after the citation was issued.(a)  The act of contesting a dangerous 503 
animal determination shall follow the process contained in section 304.11. 504 
(a)  Persons wishing to contest a citation shall appear at the prehearing, at which time the 505 
Trial Court shall accept pleas which either contest or admit committing the act for which 506 
the citation was issued.   507 

166 of 213



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 13 

(b)  In addition to scheduling requested hearings, the Trial Court may also make conditional 508 
orders at the pre-hearing which are effective until the matter is resolved. 509 

304.13-3. Citation Hearing.  The Trial Court shall schedule a hearing as expeditiously as possible, 510 
provided that it shall be scheduled within ninety (90) days of the date of the prehearing, for all 511 
persons entering a plea contesting the fact that they committed the act for which a citation was 512 
issued. 513 
304.13-4.  Appeals of the Trial Court’s Determinations.  Any person wishing to contest the 514 
determination of the Trial Court may appeal to the Nation’s Court of Appeals in accordance with 515 
the Rules of Appellate Procedure. 516 
304.13-5.  Fines.  All fines304.12-2.  Fines.  All fines as a result of a citation shall be paid to the 517 
Judiciary. Money received from fines shall be contributed to the General Fund. 518 

(a)  Fines shall be paid within ninety (90) days after the order is issued or upheld on final 519 
appeal, whichever is later. If the fine is not paid by this deadline, the Trial Court may seek 520 
to collect the money owed through the Nation’s garnishment and/or per capita attachment 521 
process. 522 

(1)  The ninety (90) day deadline for payment of fines may be extended if an 523 
alternative payment plan is approved by the Trial Court. 524 

(b(a)  Community service may be substituted for part or all of any fine at the minimum 525 
wage rate of the Nation for each hour of community service. 526 
 527 

End. 528 
 529 
Adopted - BC-03-13-96-B 530 
Amended – BC-06-22-11-G 531 
Amended – BC-06-28-17-B 532 
Amended – BC-05-08-19-C 533 
Amended – BC-__-__-__-__ 534 
 535 

167 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 1 

 Title 3. Health and Public Safety - Chapter 304 
K@tse>na Olihw@=ke  

matters concerning the pet animals 

DOMESTIC ANIMALS 
	
304.1.	 Purpose and Policy	
304.2.	 Adoption, Amendment, Conflicts	
304.3.	 Definitions	
304.4.	 Authority	
304.5.  Treatment of Animals	
304.6.	 Dogs and Cats	
304.7.	 Livestock	

304.8.	 Hens	
304.9.  Prohibited Animals	
304.10.  Dangerous Animals	
304.11.  Owner Liability 
304.12.  Enforcement of Violations 

 

304.1.  Purpose and Policy 1 
304.1-1. Purpose.  The purpose of this law is to: 2 

(a) protect the health, safety, and welfare of the community by requiring certain basic 3 
measures to prevent the spread of disease carried by domestic animals; 4 
(b) set minimum standards for the treatment of animals; 5 
(c) prohibit certain species of animals from being brought onto the Reservation; 6 
(d) regulate the keeping of livestock on lots zoned residential within the Reservation; and 7 
(e) establish consequences for damages caused by domestic animals. 8 

304.1-2. Policy.  It is the policy of the Nation to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the 9 
community by: 10 

(a) requiring certain basic measures to prevent the spread of disease carried by domestic 11 
animals; 12 
(b) establishing requirements for licensing domestic animals, and 13 
(c) regulating the types of animals which may be kept as domestic animals.  14 

 15 
304.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 16 
304.2-1. This law was adopted by Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC-03-13-96-B and 17 
amended by resolutions BC-06-22-11-G, BC-06-28-17-B, BC-05-08-19-C, and BC-__-__-__-__. 18 
304.2-2. This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee and/or 19 
General Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. 20 
304.2-3. Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 21 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 22 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 23 
304.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 24 
the provisions of this law shall control.   25 
304.2-5. This law is adopted under the authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation.  26 
 27 
304.3.  Definitions 28 
304.3-1. This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law. All 29 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 30 

(a)  “Court of Appeals” means the Nation’s Judiciary’s Court of Appeals, which is the court 31 
of final appeal within the Nation. 32 
(b)  “District Quarantine” means a rabid or otherwise diseased domestic animal is suspected 33 
or known to be within a discernible area and all such animals reasonably suspected of being 34 
infected are subject to enforced isolation for a period of time to limit or prevent the spread 35 
of disease or infection and during which time said animals are tested for diseases, including 36 
rabies. 37 
(c)  “Fine” means a monetary punishment issued to a person violating this law. 38 

168 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 2 

(d)  “Hen” means a female chicken of the order and family gallus gallus domesticus. 39 
(e)  “Husbandry practices” means accepted manner of managing resources, cultivating, and 40 
caring for animals including the breeding, feeding, and tending of the animals. 41 
(f)  “Judiciary” means the Oneida Nation Judiciary, which is the judicial system that was 42 
established by Oneida General Tribal Council resolution GTC-01-07-13-B to administer 43 
the judicial authorities and responsibilities of the Nation. 44 
(g)  “Livestock” means any equine (i.e. horse, donkey, etc.), bovine (i.e. cow, steer, heifer, 45 
etc.), sheep, goat, pig. 46 
(h)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation.   47 
(i)  “Owner” means any person who owns, harbors, keeps, controls or acts as a caretaker 48 
for an animal. Absent evidence of alternative adult ownership, this law presumes that 49 
domestic animals are owned by the adult homeowner or renter. 50 
(j)  “Penalty” means a punishment, other than a fine, imposed on a person violating this 51 
law and may include, but is not limited to, the confiscation of wildlife with return of the 52 
same at the discretion of the Trial Court and restitution. 53 
(k)  “Reservation” means all the property within the exterior boundaries of the Reservation 54 
of the Oneida Nation, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the Oneida 7 Stat. 566, 55 
and any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law. 56 
(l)  “Residential household” means a residential lot, except for those residential lots 57 
designed as multi-family lots, in which each family unit within the lot constitutes a separate 58 
household. 59 
(m)  “Tethering” means the act of fastening an animal to a stationary object while 60 
unattended so that the animal can only range within a set radius. Tethering does not include 61 
the use of a leash to walk an animal. 62 
(n)  “Trial Court” means the Trial Court of the Oneida Nation Judiciary.  63 
(o)  “Quarantine” means the act of keeping an animal in enforced isolation for a period of 64 
time to limit or prevent the spread of disease or infection and during which time said animal 65 
is tested for diseases, including rabies. 66 

 67 
304.4.  Authority 68 
304.4-1. General.  This law governs the keeping of all domestic animals which are commonly 69 
owned as household pets. Domestic animals include, but are not limited to, dogs, cats, ferrets, 70 
rabbits, guinea pigs, turtles, birds, pigeons, hamsters, non-venomous reptiles, amphibians, and 71 
arachnids. 72 

(a) Domestic animals do not include prohibited animals as identified by the prohibited 73 
animals resolution provided for in section 304.10-2. 74 

304.4-2.  Authority of the Oneida Police Department and Conservation Department.  Oneida 75 
Police Officers and Conservation Wardens shall have the authority to: 76 

(a)  investigate complaints involving domestic animals;  77 
(b) enforce the provisions of this law through appropriate means, including but not limited 78 
to:  79 

(1) seizing any animal that is taken, employed, used, or possessed in violation of 80 
this law and/or mistreated, rabid or otherwise in danger or dangerous; 81 

169 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 3 

(2) issuing citations consistent with the fine and penalty schedule developed in 82 
accordance with this law; and 83 
(3) using force, up to and including lethal force, to stop an immediate threat to 84 
public safety caused by an animal.  85 

(A)  Where lethal force is used, such execution shall be conducted in as 86 
humane manner as possible and, to the extent feasible, avoids damage to the 87 
animal’s head for the purpose of rabies testing. 88 

304.4-3. Fine, Penalty, and Licensing Fee Schedule.  The Environmental, Health, Safety, and 89 
Land Division and the Environmental Resource Board are hereby delegated joint authority to 90 
develop a fine, penalty, and licensing fee schedule. The fine, penalty, and licensing fee schedule 91 
shall be adopted by the Oneida Business Committee through resolution. 92 
304.4-4. Disease Investigation and Quarantine.  The Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land 93 
Division, the Emergency Management Coordinator, and the Comprehensive Health Division are 94 
hereby delegated joint authority to establish standard operating procedures related to disease 95 
investigations and quarantines. 96 
304.4-5. Issuance of Licenses.  The Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division shall make 97 
all decisions related to the issuance of a license and/or permit in accordance with this law, unless 98 
otherwise noted. 99 

 100 
304.5.  Treatment of Animals 101 
304.5-1. Food and Water. An owner shall provide an animal with a daily supply of food and 102 
water sufficient to maintain the animal in good health.  103 
304.5-2. Shelter.  An owner shall meet the minimum standards for indoor and outdoor shelter for 104 
an animal. All shelter shall be structurally sound and maintained in good repair to protect the 105 
animal from injury and to contain the animal. 106 

(a) Minimum indoor standards of shelter.  Minimum standards for indoor shelter include 107 
the following: 108 

(1) Temperature.  The ambient temperature of the indoor shelter shall be 109 
compatible with the health of the animal. 110 
(2) Ventilation.  Indoor shelter facilities shall be adequately ventilated by natural 111 
or mechanical means to provide for the health of the animal at all times. 112 

(b) Minimum outdoor standards of shelter.  Minimum standards for outdoor shelter include 113 
the following: 114 

(1) Shelter from Sunlight.  When sunlight is likely to cause heat exhaustion of an 115 
animal tied or caged outside, sufficient shade by natural or artificial means shall be 116 
provided to protect the animal from direct sunlight.  Caged does not include farm 117 
fencing used to confine livestock. 118 
(2) Climatic Conditions.  Natural or artificial shelter appropriate to the local 119 
climatic conditions for the animal concerned shall be provided as necessary for the 120 
health of the animal. 121 
(3) Adverse Weather.  If an animal is tied or confined unattended outdoors under 122 
weather conditions which adversely affect the health of the animal, a weather 123 
appropriate shelter of suitable size to accommodate the animal shall be provided. 124 

170 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 4 

(c) Space Standards.  Enclosures shall be constructed and maintained so as to provide 125 
sufficient space to allow each animal adequate freedom of movement.  Inadequate space 126 
may be indicated by evidence of debility, stress, or abnormal behavior patterns.   127 

(1)  Dog Kennels. Dog kennels shall meet the following space requirements where, 128 
if there are multiple dogs in the same kennel, the base kennel space requirement is 129 
based on the size of the largest dog and the additional kennel space requirements 130 
are based on the size of each additional dog kept in the kennel: 131 

(A)  Dog Size Between One and Thirty-Five Pounds.  A dog that weighs 132 
between one (1) and thirty-five (35) pounds shall have a required base 133 
kennel space of sixty (60) square feet. Required additional kennel space per 134 
additional dog of this size is twelve (12) square feet. 135 
(B)  Dog Size Between Thirty-Six and Seventy-Five Pounds.  A dog that 136 
weighs between thirty-six (36) and seventy-five (75) pounds shall have a 137 
required base kennel space of eighty (80) square feet. Required additional 138 
kennel space per additional dog of this size is eighteen (18) square feet. 139 
(C)  Dog Size Seventy-Six Pounds or Greater.  A dog that weighs seventy-140 
six (76) pounds or more shall have a required base kennel space of one 141 
hundred (100) square feet. Required additional kennel space per additional 142 
dog of this size is twenty-four (24) square feet. 143 

(d) Sanitation Standards.  An owner shall meet the minimum standards of sanitation for 144 
both indoor and outdoor shelter. Minimum sanitation standards require waste matter from 145 
the animal to be removed within twenty-four (24) hours of its deposit.   146 
(e)  Shelter Exception for Livestock.  In the case of livestock kept on farms on land zoned 147 
agricultural, nothing in this section shall be construed as imposing shelter requirements or 148 
standards more stringent than normally accepted husbandry practices. 149 

304.5-3.  Tethering.  If a kennel or enclosed yard is not available, an owner may tether an 150 
unsupervised animal as long as the owner meets the following conditions: 151 

(a)  the tether is connected to the animal with a buckle type collar or body harness made of 152 
nylon or leather not less than one inch (1”) in width and at least two inches (2”) greater in 153 
diameter than the animal’s neck or torso; 154 

(1) The use of a choke collar, prong collar head harness, or other similar type of 155 
head harness or collar shall be prohibited for the use of tethering. 156 

(b)  the tether is at least twelve feet (12’) long and allows the animal to move in all 157 
directions unimpeded; 158 
(c)  the total weight of the tether does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the animal’s body 159 
weight; 160 
(d)  the animal is tethered so as to prevent injury, strangulation, or entanglement, and allows 161 
the animal access to water and shelter; 162 
(e)  the tethered animal is not sick, injured, or nursing; 163 
(f)  the animal is not tethered on any vacant property or land or with an unoccupied 164 
dwelling; and 165 
(g)  the animal is not tethered in a manner that allows the animal to cross onto public space 166 
or property of others. 167 

171 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 5 

304.5-4. Mistreatment of Animals.  No person shall treat any animal in a manner which causes 168 
harm, injury or death.  This section does not apply to: 169 

(a) normal and accepted veterinary and/or care practices; or 170 
(b) teaching, research or experimentation conducted at a facility regulated under federal or 171 
applicable state law. 172 

304.5-5. Mandatory Reporting.  An employee of the Nation shall report any animal mistreatment 173 
witnessed during the regular course of his or her employment with the Nation to the Oneida Police 174 
Department and any other appropriate entity. 175 
 176 
304.7.  Dogs and Cats 177 
304.6-1. License Required.  An owner shall be required to obtain a license for any dog or cat five 178 
(5) months of age or older on an annual basis. 179 

(a) License Period.  The license year shall commence on January 1st and end on December 180 
31st of every year.  181 
(b)  License Eligibility.  To be eligible for a license, the owner shall provide:  182 

(1)  the licensing fee; and 183 
(2)  proof of current rabies vaccination.  184 

(c) Placement of License Tag.  Upon the receipt of a license the owner shall be provided a 185 
license tag for the dog or cat. The owner shall securely attach the license tag to the animal’s 186 
collar and shall require the animal wear the collar at all times. 187 

(1) Exception. A dog or cat shall not be required to wear the collar if the dog or cat 188 
is: 189 

(A)  hunting or actively involved in herding or controlling livestock if the 190 
animal is under control of its owner; 191 
(B)  within the owner’s residence and/or securely confined in a fenced area; 192 
and/or 193 
(C)  being shown during a competition. 194 

304.6-2.  Rabies Vaccinations Required.  An owner shall be required to obtain a rabies 195 
vaccination for any dog or cat five (5) months of age or older.  196 
304.6-3. Limit on the Number of Dogs and Cats.  An individual may keep no more than two (2) 197 
dogs or three (3) cats; and a total of no more than four (4) dogs and cats combined; in a single 198 
residential household.   199 

(a)  Exception. The limit on the number of dogs and cats a person may keep or possess does 200 
not apply to a person who:  201 

(1)  is eligible for any grandfather provisions included in this law’s adopting 202 
resolution;  203 
(2)  keeps or possesses a litter of pups or kittens, or a portion of a litter, for a period 204 
not exceeding five (5) months from birth;  205 
(3)  resides on property zoned agricultural; and/or  206 
(4)  obtains a permit for the additional dog or cat. 207 

(b)  Permit for Additional Dogs or Cats.  A person may keep more than two (2) dogs or 208 
three cats (3) in a single residential household if the owner obtains a permit from the 209 
Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division for the additional animal. The 210 

172 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 6 

application for the permit must be signed by the owner and contain the signature of the 211 
homeowner of the residential household if the homeowner is not the applicant.  212 

(1)  By seeking a permit for an additional dog or cat the owner agrees that he or she 213 
shall reduce the number of licensed dogs or cats on the premises if there are two (2) 214 
or more nuisance complaints against the residential household within one (1) 215 
calendar year caused by, or related to, the number of dogs or cats housed on the 216 
premises.  217 
(2)  If two (2) or more nuisance complaints are received against the residential 218 
household due to the number of dogs or cats housed on the premises, the owner 219 
shall reduce the number of animals within thirty (30) days. 220 

304.6-4. Running at Large.  An owner shall not allow a dog or cat to run at large by being any 221 
place except upon the premises of the owner, unless the dog or cat is crated, penned, or on a leash 222 
under the control of a person physically able to control the animal.   223 

(a) A stray dog or cat running at large may be referred to the Oneida Police Department or 224 
Oneida Conservation Department. 225 
(b) When an Oneida Police Officer or Oneida Conservation Warden finds a dog or cat 226 
running at large, the officer and/or warden shall, if possible, pick up and impound such 227 
animal. 228 
(c) Whenever any impounded animal bears an identification mark, such as a collar with 229 
identification tags or license tag, the owner shall be notified as soon as reasonably possible. 230 

304.6-5.  Nuisance.  An Oneida Police Officer or Oneida Conservation Warden may pick up and 231 
impound a dog or cat that has been found to be a nuisance. A dog or cat shall be found to be a 232 
nuisance if the actions of the dog or cat: 233 

(a)  resulted in two (2) or more verified disturbances due to excessive barking and/or other 234 
noise by the animal, or the animal running at large; and/or  235 
(b)  resulted in one (1) or more verified disturbance due to threatening behavior by the 236 
animal running at large. 237 

304.6-6. Investigations for Suspected Animal Bites.  The owner shall notify the Oneida Police 238 
Department in the event the owner’s cat or dog bites a human or another domestic animal. 239 

(a)  The responding Oneida Police Officer or Oneida Conservation Warden shall: 240 
(1)  Ascertain whether the domestic animal is properly licensed and has current 241 
vaccinations. 242 
(2)  Ensure all information provided is correct. 243 
(3)  Contact the Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division to provide 244 
notification of the domestic animal bite. 245 
(4)  If the cat or dog has current rabies vaccinations, order the owner to: 246 

(A)  Quarantine the animal for ten (10) days; and 247 
(B)  Present the animal for examination by a veterinarian within twenty-248 
four (24) hours of the bite, on the last day of quarantine and on one (1) day 249 
in between the first twenty-four (24) hours and the tenth (10th) day. 250 

(5)  If the cat or dog does not have current rabies vaccination, order the owner to: 251 
(A)  Quarantine the animal for ten (10) days or deliver the animal to an 252 
isolation facility at the owner’s expense. If a home quarantine is ordered, 253 

173 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 7 

the owner shall present the domestic animal for examination by a 254 
veterinarian within twenty-four (24) hours of the bite, on the last day of 255 
quarantine and on one (1) day in between the first twenty-four (24) hours 256 
and the tenth (10th) day; or 257 
(B)  Euthanize the animal and send the specimen for analysis at the owner’s 258 
expense, if the animal has exhibited any signs of rabies. 259 

(b)  Upon expiration of a quarantine period, a veterinarian may extend the quarantine 260 
period. Upon expiration of all quarantine periods, if the veterinarian certifies that the 261 
animal has not exhibited any signs of rabies, the animal may be released from quarantine. 262 
(c)  If the veterinarian certifies that the animal has exhibited any signs of rabies the 263 
following shall occur: 264 

(1) If the animal has current rabies vaccinations, the Oneida Police Officer or 265 
Oneida Conservation Warden may order the animal to be euthanized and send the 266 
specimen for analysis, to be paid for by the Nation. 267 
(2)  If the animal does not have current rabies vaccinations, the Oneida Police 268 
Officer or Oneida Conservation Warden may order the animal to be euthanized and 269 
send the specimen for analysis at the owner’s expense. 270 

304.6-7. District Quarantine.  A district quarantine may be initiated by staff designated by the 271 
Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division, an Oneida Police Officer, an Oneida 272 
Conservation Warden, and/or a Public Health Officer. 273 

(a) If an area is subject to a district quarantine for rabies, all dogs and cats within the district 274 
shall be kept securely confined, tied, leashed or muzzled.  Any dog or cat not confined, 275 
tied, leashed or muzzled is a public nuisance and may be impounded.  All Oneida Police 276 
Officers and Oneida Conservation Wardens shall cooperate in the enforcement of the 277 
quarantine. 278 
(b) An animal that is immunized against rabies as evidenced by a valid certificate of rabies 279 
vaccination or other evidence is exempt from the district quarantine provisions of this 280 
section. 281 

 282 
304.7.  Livestock 283 
304.7-1. An owner shall obtain a conditional use permit from the Oneida Land Commission in 284 
order to keep livestock on land zoned residential.  285 
304.7-2.  Limitations on Livestock.  Livestock kept on land zoned residential are subject to the 286 
following limitations: 287 

(a) One (1) large animal per one (1) acre.  Examples of large animals include, but are not 288 
limited to, horses, cows, and pigs. 289 
(b) One (1) small animal per one-half (½) acre.  Examples of small animals include, but 290 
are not limited to, goats, and sheep. 291 
(c) One (1) goat or sheep per recorded lot under one-half (½) acre when setback 292 
requirements can be met. 293 

304.7-3. Liability for Damage Caused by Livestock at Large.  Any person whose livestock 294 
escapes from its normal confined area and becomes at large is responsible for any and all damage 295 
to persons and property caused by such livestock while it is away from its normal confined area. 296 

174 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 8 

 297 
304.8. Hens 298 
304.8-1.  Hen Permit.  An owner shall obtain a conditional use permit from the Oneida Land 299 
Commission in order to keep hens on land zoned residential.   300 
304.8-2.  Prohibition of Roosters.  An owner shall not keep a rooster on land zoned residential.  301 
304.8-3.  Limit on the Number of Hens Allowed. The number of hens an owner may keep is 302 
dependent on the size of the residential lot. 303 

(a)  An owner may to keep up to six (6) hens on a residential lot that is smaller than two 304 
(2) acres in size. 305 
(b)  An owner may keep up to twelve (12) hens on a residential lot two (2) acres in size or 306 
larger. 307 

304.8-4.  Standards for Keeping Hens.  An owner shall keep hens in the following manner: 308 
(a)  No person shall keep a hen over eight (8) weeks of age in a principal structure. 309 
(b)  Hens shall be kept within a structure such as a coop or fenced area used exclusively to 310 
keep hens and shall provide at least four (4) square feet of space per hen. 311 
(c)  No accessory structure used to keep hens shall be located within twenty-five feet (25’) 312 
of any principal structure which is not owned by the person permitted to keep the hens. 313 
(d)  No accessory structure used to keep hens shall be located in a front or side yard. 314 
(e)  All hens shall be kept and handled in a sanitary manner to prevent the spread of 315 
communicable diseases amongst birds or to humans. 316 

304.8-5.  Prohibition of Nuisance Hens.  No owner may keep hens that cause any other nuisance 317 
associated with unhealthy conditions, create a public health threat, or otherwise interfere with the 318 
normal use of property or enjoyment of life by humans or animals. 319 
 320 
304.9. Prohibited Animals 321 
304.9-1. No person shall bring into, keep, harbor, maintain, offer for sale or barter, act as a 322 
custodian, have custody or control of, or release to the wild on the Reservation a prohibited animal. 323 
304.9-2.  Prohibited Animals.  The Oneida Business Committee shall provide through the adoption 324 
of a resolution which orders and families of animals, whether bred in the wild or in captivity, and 325 
any or all hybrids are prohibited from being on the Reservation. 326 
304.9-3. Prohibited Animals Exception.  The prohibition of certain animals shall not apply to: 327 

(a) Individuals who are eligible for any grandfather provisions included in this law’s 328 
adopting resolution. 329 
(b) A zoological park and/or sanctuary, an educational or medical institution, and/or a 330 
specially trained entertainment organization who receives a permit from the 331 
Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division to own, harbor or possess the prohibited 332 
animal. 333 

304.9-4.  Prohibited Animal Permit.  The Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division may 334 
issue a prohibited animal permit if: 335 

(a)  the animal and animal quarters are kept in a clean and sanitary condition and 336 
maintained to eliminate objectionable odors; and 337 
(b)  the animal is maintained in quarters so constructed as to prevent its escape. 338 

304.9-5.  Release of Prohibited Animals.  The Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division, 339 

175 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 9 

may approve a wildlife refuge and/or sanctuary to release prohibited animals within the 340 
Reservation without applying for and receiving a prohibited animal permit. 341 
304.9-6.  Seizure of Prohibited Animals.  An unpermitted prohibited animal may be seized by the 342 
Oneida Police Department and/or the Oneida Conservation Department.  343 

(a)  A prohibited animal that is seized shall be held by the Oneida Police Department, the 344 
Oneida Conservation Department, or its designee until it can be determined if the animal 345 
is an endangered or threatened species.   346 
(b)  At any time after such identification, the Oneida Police Department and/or Oneida 347 
Conservation Department may seek an order from the Trial Court as to the care, custody 348 
and control of the animal.   349 
(c)  If the Trial Court finds the animal has been taken, employed, used or possessed in 350 
violation of this section, the owner shall be responsible for reimbursing the Oneida Police 351 
Department and/or the Oneida Conservation Department for the cost of holding the animal 352 
and any costs incurred in identifying the animal. 353 

304.9-7. Notice of Release or Escape.  The owner of a prohibited animal that has been released 354 
or escapes shall immediately notify the Oneida Police Department and/or the Oneida Conservation 355 
Department and shall be liable for any cost of recapture of the animal.  356 
304.10-8. Forfeiture of the Prohibited Animal.  An owner found in violation of this section shall 357 
forfeit or surrender the prohibited animal to the Oneida Police Department, Oneida Conservation 358 
Department, or designee. Upon such forfeiture or surrender, the Trial Court may direct destruction 359 
or transfer of the animal to a qualified zoological, educational, or scientific institution or qualified 360 
private propagator for safekeeping, with costs assessed against the owner. 361 
 362 
304.10.   Dangerous Animals 363 
304.10-1. Dangerous Animals. No person shall own, keep, possess, return to or harbor a dangerous 364 
animal. An animal shall be presumed to be dangerous if the animal: 365 

(a) approaches or chases a human being or domestic animal in a menacing fashion or 366 
apparent attitude of attack;  367 
(b) bites, inflicts injury, attacks, or otherwise endangers the safety of a human being or 368 
domestic animal; 369 
(c)  is suspected to be owned, trained or harbored for the purpose of dog fighting; and/or 370 
(d)  has been declared to be a dangerous animal and/or ordered to be destroyed in any other 371 
jurisdiction. 372 

304.10-2.  Dangerous Animal Determination.  An Oneida Police Officer or Oneida Conservation 373 
Warden may determine an animal to be dangerous whenever, upon investigation, the officer finds 374 
that the animal meets the definition of dangerous animal provided in section 304.11-1. 375 

(a)  Upon making a determination that an animal is dangerous, the Oneida Police Officer 376 
or Oneida Conservation Warden shall issue a written order with an accompanying citation 377 
declaring the animal to be dangerous. 378 
(b)  The citation and order shall be personally delivered to the apparent owner or custodian 379 
of the dangerous animal.  380 
(c)  Upon receipt of the written order and accompanying citation the owner shall remove 381 
the dangerous animal from the Reservation within three (3) business days. 382 

176 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 10 

304.10-3.  Contesting a Dangerous Animal Determination.  If the owner wishes to contest the 383 
dangerous animal determination, he or she shall file with the Trial Court a written objection to the 384 
order within three (3) business days of receipt of the order. 385 

(a)  The written objection shall include specific reasons for objecting to or contesting the 386 
order. An owner may argue an animal should not be deemed dangerous due to the animal 387 
biting, attacking or menacing any person and/or domestic animal because the animal was 388 
acting to: 389 

(1) defend its owner or another person from an attack by a person or animal; 390 
(2) protect its young or another animal; 391 
(3) defend itself against any person or animal which has tormented, assaulted or 392 
abused it; and/or 393 
(4) defend its owner’s property against trespassers. 394 

(b)  Pending the outcome of the hearing, the animal shall be securely confined in a humane 395 
manner either on the premises of the owner or caretaker, or with a licensed veterinarian. If 396 
confined on the premises of the owner or caretaker, the following requirements shall apply: 397 

(1)  Leash and Muzzle. No owner shall permit a dangerous animal to go outside its 398 
kennel or pen unless the animal is securely restrained with a leash no longer than 399 
four feet (4’) in length by a person who is at least sixteen (16) years of age who is 400 
in physical control of the leash, competent to govern the animal and capable of 401 
physically controlling and restraining the animal. The owner shall not leash an 402 
animal to inanimate objects such as a tree, post, or building. When the animal is on 403 
a leash outside the animal’s kennel, the owner shall muzzle the animal in a humane 404 
way by a commercially available muzzling device sufficient to prevent the animal 405 
from biting a person or other animal. 406 
(2)  Confinement.  Except when leashed and muzzled the owner shall ensure the 407 
dangerous animal is securely confined indoors or in a securely enclosed and locked 408 
pen or kennel that is located on the premises of the owner and constructed in a 409 
manner that does not allow the animal to exit the pen or kennel on its own volition. 410 
The owner shall not permit an animal to be kept on a porch, patio, or in any part of 411 
a house or structure on the premises of the owner that would allow the animal to 412 
exit the building on its own volition. The owner shall not permit the animal to be 413 
kept in a house or structure when the windows are open or when screen windows 414 
or screen doors are the only obstacle preventing the animal from exiting the 415 
structure. 416 
(3)  Signs.  The owner of a dangerous animal shall display, in prominent places on 417 
his or her premises near all entrances to the premises, signs in letters of not less 418 
than two inches (2”) high warning that there is a dangerous animal on the property. 419 
A similar sign shall be posted on the kennel or pen of the animal. In addition, the 420 
owner shall conspicuously display a sign with a symbol warning children of the 421 
presence of a dangerous animal. 422 
(4)  Notification.  The owner of a dangerous animal shall notify the Oneida Police 423 
Department and/or the Oneida Conservation Department immediately if the animal 424 
is at large, is unconfined, has attacked another animal, or has attacked a person.  425 

177 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 11 

(c)  If an owner or caretaker fails to follow the requirements for harboring a dangerous 426 
animal pending a hearing, the animal may be impounded by the Oneida Police Officer or 427 
Oneida Conservation Warden issuing the dangerous animal determination. 428 

304.10-4.  Dangerous Animal Determination Hearing.  A hearing on the dangerous animal 429 
determination shall be held within fourteen (14) days of submission of the written objection with 430 
the Trial Court. At the hearing, the Trial Court shall determine whether the determination that the 431 
animal is dangerous should be substantiated.  432 

(a)  If the Trial Court concludes that the determination that the animal is dangerous is 433 
substantiated, then the Trial Court shall issue an order that mandates the animal be removed 434 
from the Reservation within forty-eight (48) hours of the determination.  435 

(1)  The order shall contain the requirement that the owner notify the Oneida Police 436 
Department within twenty-four (24) hours if the dangerous animal has been sold or 437 
been given away. If the dangerous animal has been sold or given away, the owner 438 
shall also provide the name, address and telephone number of the new owner of the 439 
dangerous animal. If the dangerous animal is sold or given away to a person 440 
residing outside the Reservation or to a person or entity that falls outside of the 441 
jurisdiction of this law, the owner shall present evidence to the Oneida Police 442 
Department showing that he or she has notified the police department or other law 443 
enforcement agency of the animal's new residence, including the name, address and 444 
telephone number of the new owner. The Oneida Police Department shall forward 445 
all such notifications to the Environmental, Health, Safety, and Land Division 446 
within a reasonable amount of time.   447 

(b)  The Trial Court may order a dangerous animal to be destroyed. If such an order is 448 
issued, the Trial Court shall require the owner submit proof of destruction within five (5) 449 
business days from a licensed veterinarian.  If the owner does not satisfy these 450 
requirements, an Oneida Police Officer and/or an Oneida Conservation Warden shall seize 451 
the animal and enforce compliance at the cost of the owner. 452 
(c)  The Trial Court may mandate attendance at an additional Trial Court hearing if 453 
restitution is appropriate. 454 

304.10-5.  Appeal of the Trial Court’s Decision.  An appeal of the Trial Court’s decision on the 455 
dangerous animal determination may be appealed to the Nation’s Court of Appeals.  456 

(a)  An appeal shall be submitted to the Court of Appeals within five (5) business days 457 
from the date of the Trial Court’s decision. 458 
(b)  Upon an appeal to the Court of Appeals, the order to remove the animal from the 459 
Reservation or any order to destroy an animal is stayed pending the outcome of the appeal.  460 

604.10-6.  Dangerous Animal Exception. The Trial Court may provide an exception to the 461 
dangerous animal provisions of this law for a law enforcement or military animal upon 462 
presentation by the animal’s owner or handler of a satisfactory arrangement for safe keeping of the 463 
animal.  464 

  465 
304.11.  Owner Liability  466 
304.11-1. An owner shall be liable for damages caused by his or her domestic animal. 467 

(a) First Offense.  The owner is liable for the full amount of damages caused by the 468 

178 of 213



Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

3 O.C. 304 – Page 12 

domestic animal. 469 
(b) Subsequent Offenses. The owner shall be liable for two (2) times the full amount of 470 
damages caused by the domestic animal if the owner knew or should have known that the 471 
domestic animal previously caused damages. 472 
 473 

304.12.  Enforcement of Violations 474 
304.12-1.  Citations.  A citation for the violation of this law and/or orders issued pursuant to this 475 
law may include fines, penalties and conditional orders in accordance with the fine, penalty, and 476 
licensing fee schedule. A citation for a violation of this law shall be processed in accordance with 477 
the procedure contained in the Nation’s laws and policies governing citations. 478 

(a)  The act of contesting a dangerous animal determination shall follow the process 479 
contained in section 304.11. 480 

304.12-2.  Fines.  All fines as a result of a citation shall be paid to the Judiciary. Money received 481 
from fines shall be contributed to the General Fund. 482 

(a)  Community service may be substituted for part or all of any fine at the minimum wage 483 
rate of the Nation for each hour of community service. 484 
 485 

End. 486 
 487 
Adopted - BC-03-13-96-B 488 
Amended – BC-06-22-11-G 489 
Amended – BC-06-28-17-B 490 
Amended – BC-05-08-19-C 491 
Amended – BC-__-__-__-__ 492 
 493 

179 of 213



      Analysis to Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

          Tok^ske Kayanl^hsla Tsi> Ni>yohuntsya=t# 
                     The real/certain laws of the territory of the nation 
 

AMENDMENTS TO 

DOMESTIC ANIMALS LAW 

LEGISLATIVE ANALYSIS 
 

SECTION 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

REQUESTER: 
Legislative Reference 

Office 

SPONSOR: 
Ernie Stevens III 

DRAFTER: 
Clorissa N. Santiago 

ANALYST: 
Brandon Wisneski 

Intent of the  
Amendments 

Technical corrections to remove inaccurate or duplicative references to the 
Nation’s territorial jurisdiction, personal jurisdiction and citations process.    

Purpose To protect the health, safety, and welfare of the community by requiring certain 
basic measures to prevent the spread of disease carried by domestic animals; set 
minimum standards for treatment of animals; prohibit certain species of animals 
from being brought onto the Reservation; regulate the keeping of livestock on 
lots zoned residential with in the Reservation; and establish consequences for 
damages caused by domestic animals [3 O.C. 304.1-1]. 

Affected Entities Oneida Police Department; Oneida Environmental Health, Safety and Land 
Division; Oneida Conservation Department; Oneida Environmental Resource 
Board; Oneida Comprehensive Health Division, Oneida Land Commission; 
Oneida Emergency Management Coordinator, Oneida Judiciary. 

Related Legislation Judiciary law.  

Public Meeting A public meeting has not yet been held.   

Fiscal Impact A fiscal impact statement has not yet been requested.   

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE DEVELOPMENT 1 
A. The Domestic Animals law was first adopted by the Oneida Business Committee on March 13, 1996 2 

and most recently amended on May 8, 2019. Domestic animals are animals commonly owned as 3 
household pets, such as cats and dogs.    4 

B. Upon a review of the Nation’s Code of Laws, the Oneida Law Office and Legislative Operating 5 
Committee (LOC) identified references to the Nation’s jurisdiction that were either inaccurate or 6 
duplicative. In consultation with the Oneida Law Office, the LOC proposes technical amendments to 7 
the Domestic Animals law to remove these inaccurate or unnecessary references. The intent of these 8 
changes is not to alter how the Domestic Animals law is currently being enforced, but to ensure that all 9 
references to jurisdiction in the Nation’s Code of Laws are accurate.  10 
 11 

SECTION 3. CONSULTATION AND OUTREACH 12 
A. Representatives from the following departments or entities participated in the development of this law 13 

and legislative analysis: Oneida Law Office.    14 
B. The following laws were reviewed in the drafting of this analysis: Judiciary law, Curfew law, Oneida 15 

Nation Gaming Ordinance, Tribal Environmental Response law, Judiciary Rules of Evidence. 16 

180 of 213



      Analysis to Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

SECTION 4. PROCESS 17 
A. The amendments to this law have followed the process set forth in the Legislative Procedures Act 18 

(LPA). 19 
B. The LOC added the amendments to the Active Files List on February 5, 2020.  20 

 21 
SECTION 5. CONTENTS OF THE LEGISLATION  22 
A. Deletion of Territorial Jurisdiction Section. These amendments delete an incorrect reference to the 23 

Nation’s territorial jurisdiction for this law. The Domestic Animals law incorrectly states that the 24 
territorial jurisdiction of this law is limited to land owned by the Nation or individual trust and/or fee 25 
land of a member of the Nation.  26 
 Territorial Jurisdiction. The Nation’s territorial jurisdiction is properly defined in the Constitution 27 

and Bylaws of the Oneida Nation and the Nation’s Judiciary law (see below). 28 
 Conclusion. Since the reference included in the Domestic Animals law is inaccurate, unnecessary, 29 

and already located in the Nation’s Constitution, it has been deleted for clarity.   30 
 31 
Table 1. Comparison: Territorial Jurisdiction in laws of the Nation.  32 

Deleted Language in 

Current Domestic Animals 

law 

 

Language in Oneida 

Constitution  

Language in Judiciary law 

This law extends within the 
Reservation to all land 
owned by the Nation and 
individual trust and/or fee 
land of a member of the 
Nation [3 O.C. 304.4-2].  

The jurisdiction of the Oneida 
Nation shall extend to the 
territory within the present 
confines of the Oneida 
Reservation and to such other 
lands as may be hereafter added 
thereto within or without said 
boundary lines under any law 
of the United States, except as 
otherwise provided by law 
[Article 1 – Territory] 

“The territorial jurisdiction of the 
Trial Court shall extend to the 
Reservation and all lands held in 
trust by the United States for the 
benefit of the Tribe within the State 
of Wisconsin.” [8 O.C. 801.5-3].  

. 33 
B. Deletion of Personal Jurisdiction Section. These amendments also delete references to the Nation’s 34 

personal jurisdiction from this law. The personal jurisdiction of the Nation is already provided for in 35 
the Nation’s Judiciary law.  36 
 Personal Jurisdiction. The Judiciary law already clarifies that the Nation has personal jurisdiction 37 

over members of the Oneida Nation, members of other federally-recognized Indian tribes, and any 38 
“non-Indians” who have consented to the jurisdiction of the Nation (examples include a contract 39 
or lease agreement.)   40 

 Conclusion. Since the Nation’s personal jurisdiction is already properly defined in the Judiciary 41 
law, it has been deleted from this law for clarity.   42 

 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 

181 of 213



      Analysis to Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Table 2. Comparison: Personal Jurisdiction in laws of the Nation.  48 
Deleted Language in Current Domestic Animals 

law 

 

Language in Judiciary law 

Personal Jurisdiction.  This law applies to: 
(a) All members of the Nation; the 
Nation’s entities and corporations; and 
members of other federally-recognized 
tribes; 
(b) Individuals and businesses leasing, 
occupying or otherwise using fee land 
owned by the Nation or by individual 
members of the Nation; and/or lands held 
in trust on behalf of the Nation or 
individual members of the Nation; and  
(c) Individuals who have consented to the 
jurisdiction of the Nation or as otherwise 
consistent with federal law. An individual 
shall be considered to have consented to 
the jurisdiction of the Nation: 

(1) By entering into a consensual 
relationship with the Nation, or 
with the Nation’s entities, 
corporations, or members of the 
Nation, including but not limited 
to contracts or other agreements; 
or 
(2) By other facts which manifest 
an intent to consent to the 
authority of the Nation, including 
failure to raise an objection to the 
exercise of personal jurisdiction in 
a timely manner. [3 O.C. 304.4-1]. 

 

Personal Jurisdiction 

(a) Indians. The Trial Court shall have 
jurisdiction over all Indians.  
(b) Non-Indians. The Trial Court shall have 
jurisdiction over non-Indians who have 
consented to the jurisdiction of the Tribe or Trial 
Court or as otherwise consistent with federal 
law.  

(1) Consent to Jurisdiction. For 
purposes of subsection 801.5-4(b) 
above, a person shall have consented to 
the jurisdiction of the Trial Court by:  

(A) entering into a consensual 
relationship with the Tribe, 
Tribal entities, Tribal 
corporations, or Tribal 
members, including but not 
limited to contracts or other 
agreements; or 
 (B) other facts which the Trial 
Court determines manifest an 
intent to consent to the 
authority of the Tribe or the 
jurisdiction of the Trial Court, 
including failure to raise an 
objection to the exercise of 
personal jurisdiction in a timely 
manner [8 O.C. 801.5-4].  

 

 49 
C. Updates to Enforcement and Citations Section. The Citations section of the law has been updated to 50 

reflect the Nation’s new Citations law.  51 
 Background. On February 12, 2020, the Oneida Business Committee adopted a Citations law to 52 

establish a consistent process for citations issued for violations of all laws of the Nation. The new 53 
Citations law includes a detailed process regarding prehearings, hearings and appeals.  54 

 Conclusion. Now that these details are included in the Citations law, it is unnecessary to include 55 
the same information in the Domestic Animals law. Therefore, the duplicate citation information 56 
has been deleted. Instead, a reference stating that citations will be processed in accordance with the 57 
procedures in the Citations law has been added [3 O.C. 304.12-1].  58 

 59 
SECTION 6. EXISTING LEGISLATION 60 
A. References to Territorial Jurisdiction in Other Oneida laws. The following laws also include 61 

references to the Nation’s territorial jurisdiction.  62 

182 of 213



      Analysis to Draft 1 
2020 02 19 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 Curfew Law [3 O.C. 308.4-3]  63 
o Conclusion: The reference to territorial jurisdiction in the Curfew law is also incorrect and 64 

will need to be updated or deleted. The LOC has added the Curfew law to Active Files List 65 
for amendments.  66 

 Judiciary [8 O.C. 801.5-3] 67 
o Conclusion. The reference to territorial jurisdiction in the Judiciary law is correct and no 68 

amendments are necessary.  69 
 Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance (ONGO) [5 O.C. 501.3-1] 70 

o Conclusion. The reference to territorial jurisdiction in ONGO is correct and no 71 
amendments are necessary.  72 

 Tribal Environmental Response [4 O.C. 401.4-2] 73 
o Conclusion. The reference to territorial jurisdiction in the Tribal Environmental Response 74 

law is correct and no amendments are necessary.  75 
 Judiciary Rules of Evidence [8 O.C. 804.5-2(a)].  76 

o Conclusion. The reference to territorial jurisdiction in the Judiciary Rules of Evidence is 77 
correct and no amendments are necessary.  78 

 79 
SECTION 7. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS  80 
A. Fiscal Impact. A fiscal impact statement has not yet been requested.   81 
 Under the Legislative Procedures Act, a fiscal impact statement is required for all legislation except 82 

emergency legislation [1 O.C. 109.6-1].  83 
 A fiscal impact statement shall be submitted by agencies as directed by the Legislative Operating 84 

Committee and may be prepared by any agency who may receive funding if the legislation is 85 
enacted; who may administer a program if the legislation is enacted; who may have financial 86 
information concerning the subject matter of the legislation; or by the Finance Office, upon request 87 
of the Legislative Operating Committee [1 O.C. 109.6-1(a) and (b)]. 88 

 89 
 90 

183 of 213



Page 1 of 1 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

Legislative Operating Committee 
February 19, 2020 

Tobacco Emergency Amendments   
Submission Date: 1/15/20 Public Meeting: n/a 

LOC Sponsor:   Kirby Metoxen Emergency Enacted: n/a 

Summary:  This item is being amended to comply with newly adopted federal law that changes the

minimum age of anyone buying tobacco products from eighteen (18) to twenty one (21). 

1/15/20 Motion by Daniel Guzman King to add the Tobacco Law Emergency Amendments to the 
active files list with Kirby Metoxen as the sponsor; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

1/30/20 Work Meeting. Present: Brandon Wisneski, Kristen Hooker, Clorissa Santiago, Daniel       
Guzman, Ernest Stevens III, Jennifer Webster, David Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Carl Artman 
(Oneida Law Office Attorney). The purpose of the meeting was to discuss if the Nation must 
change its tobacco purchase minimum age from 18 to 21. 

Next Steps: 
 Approve the Tobacco law emergency adoption packet and forward to the Oneida Business Committee

for consideration.

184 of 213



185 of 213

TO: 
FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO B0x365 • Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov 

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 

Please find the following attached backup documentation for your consideration of the Tobacco 

Law Emergency Amendments: 

1. Resolution: Tobacco Law Emergency Amendments 

2. Statement of Effect: Tobacco Law Emergency Amendments 
3. Tobacco Law Emergency Amendments Legislative Analysis 

4. Tobacco Law (Redline) 

5. Tobacco Law (Clean) 

Overview 

Emergency amendments to the Tobacco law (the "Law") are requested in order to comply with an 

amendment to the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. On December 20, 2019, President 
Trump signed into law an amendment to increase the minimum age of sale of tobacco products 

from eighteen (18) to twenty-one (21). The amendment was effective immediately. Tobacco 
products include cigarettes, tobacco and e-cigarettes. 

The Oneida Retail operations have been compliant with the minimum age change since January 1, 

2020. 

The Tobacco law regulates the sale, possession, and distribution of cigarettes within the 
Reservation. [1 O.C. 115.1-1]. Cun-ently, the Law does not allow the sale of tobacco products to 

any person under the of age of eighteen (18). [1 0. C. 115. 6-3]. This emergency amendment to the 

Law would change the minimum age provision from eighteen (18) to twenty-one (21) years of age 
and become effective iml,llediately. 

Requested Action 
Approve the Resolution: Tobacco Law Emergency Amendments. 

Page 1 of 1 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



Oneida Nation 
 

Post Office Box 365 
 
 Phone: (920)869-2214                                       Oneida, WI 54155 
 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
 5 

BC Resolution # ________________  6 
Tobacco Law Emergency Amendments  7 

 8 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Nation is a federally recognized Indian government and a treaty tribe 9 

recognized by the laws of the United States of America; and 10 
 11 
WHEREAS,  the Oneida General Tribal Council is the governing body of the Oneida Nation; and 12 
 13 
WHEREAS,  the Oneida Business Committee has been delegated the authority of Article IV, Section 1, 14 

of the Oneida Tribal Constitution by the Oneida General Tribal Council; and 15 
 16 
WHEREAS, the Tobacco law (the “Law”) was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution 17 

BC-11-18-81-A and amended by resolution BC-10-10-07-A and BC-04-09-14-F, and BC-18 
01-25-17-B; and 19 

 20 
WHEREAS, the Law regulates the sale, possession and distribution of cigarettes within the 21 

Reservation; and  22 
 23 
WHEREAS, the current Law allows for tobacco products to be sold to those persons eighteen (18) years       24 

of age and older; and 25 
 26 
WHEREAS, on December 20, 2019 the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act was amended to change 27 

the minimum age for the sale of tobacco products from eighteen (18) years to twenty-one 28 
(21) years; and 29 

 30 
WHEREAS, an emergency amendment to the Law is being made to increase the minimum age in which 31 

people may buy tobacco products from eighteen (18) years of age to twenty-one (21) years 32 
of age in order to comply with federal law; and 33 

 34 
WHEREAS, the Legislative Procedures Act authorizes the Oneida Business Committee to enact 35 

legislation on an emergency basis, to be in effect for a period of six (6) months, renewable 36 
for an additional six (6) months; and  37 

 38 
WHEREAS, emergency adoption of legislation is allowed when legislation is necessary for the 39 

immediate preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare of the Reservation 40 
population, and the amendment of the legislation is required sooner than would be possible 41 
under the Legislative Procedures Act; and 42 

 43 
WHEREAS, the emergency adoption of the amendment to the Law is necessary for the preservation of 44 

the public health and general welfare of the Reservation population because it ensures the 45 
Nation is in compliance with federal law; and  46 

 47 
WHEREAS, observance of the requirements under the Legislative Procedures Act for adoption of this 48 

amendment would be contrary to public interest; and 49 
 50 
WHEREAS, the Legislative Procedures Act does not require a public meeting or fiscal impact statement 51 

when considering emergency legislation; and 52 

186 of 213



BC Resolution _____________ 
Tobacco Law Emergency Amendments 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 53 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the emergency amendments to the Tobacco law are hereby 54 
adopted on an emergency basis and shall become effective immediately. 55 
 56 

 57 

187 of 213



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  �  Oneida, WI 54155‐0365 

Oneida‐nsn.gov   
 
 

Statement of Effect 
Tobacco Law Emergency Amendments 

 
Summary 

This Resolution adopts an amendment to the Tobacco Law (the “Law”) that increases the 
minimum age to purchase tobacco from eighteen (18) to twenty-on (21). 
 
Submitted by: Jennifer Falck, Legislative Reference Office 

Date: February 26, 2020 

Resolution: 

 

 

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office 

 
The Tobacco law regulates the sale, possession, and distribution of tobacco products within the 
Reservation. [1 O.C. 115.1-1]. Tobacco products include cigarettes, tobacco, and e-cigarettes.  
 
An emergency amendment to the Law is being requested in order to address public health and 
general welfare of the Reservation population and comply with an amendment to the Federal Food, 
Drug, and Cosmetic Act. On December 20, 2019, President Trump signed into law an amendment 
to increase the minimum age of the sale of tobacco products from eighteen (18) to twenty-one (21). 
The amendment was effective immediately. 
 
Currently, the Law restricts the sale of tobacco products to those eighteen (18) and older. This 
amendment would increase the minimum age a person must be to purchase tobacco products to 
twenty-one (21). 
 
The Oneida Business Committee may temporarily enact an emergency law where legislation is 
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare of the 
reservation population and the enactment or amendments of legislation is required sooner than 
would be possible under the conventional legislative process. 
 
This amendment is considered an emergency because it impacts public health. In addition, 
complying with federal laws of general applicability are in the best interest of the Nation’s general 
welfare. 
 
If adopted these amendments would expire on July 26, 2020. 
 

Conclusion 

Adoption of this Resolution would not conflict with any of the Nation’s laws. 
 

188 of 213



Analysis to Draft 1 

2020 02 26 

Page 1 of 4 
 

oy&=kwa> olihw@=ke 
Oh yoon gwa  oh lee waa gay 

matters concerning tobacco 

EMERGENCY AMENDMENTS TO THE TOBACCO LAW  

   LEGISLATIVE ANALYSIS 
SECTION 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office 

REQUESTER: 
Legislative 

Reference Office 

SPONSOR: 
Kirby Metoxen 

DRAFTER: 
Jennifer Falck 

ANALYST: 
Maureen Perkins 

Intent of the 
Amendments 

The intent of the proposed emergency amendments to the Tobacco law (Law) is to 
increase the minimum age for sales of tobacco products and from eighteen (18) to 
twenty-one (21) in response to a change in the federal law that was signed on 
December 20, 2019.  The Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020  [HR 18 

1865-563 Section 603(a)(5)] requires an amendment to section 906(d) of the 
Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act [21 U.S.C. 387f(d)] that became effective 
immediately and made it unlawful to sell tobacco products to any person younger 
than twenty-one (21) years of age.   

Basis of Emergency  The proposed amendments are being presented for temporary emergency approval 
in accordance with the Legislative Procedures Act to immediately protect public 
health and to bring the Nation into compliance with the change to federal law.  
There would not be time to process the amendments under the standard legislative 
process before the change in federal law became effective [1 O.C. 109.9-5].   

Purpose The purpose of this Law is to regulate the sale, possession and distribution of 
cigarettes within the Reservation [1 O.C. 115.1-1]. 

Affected Entities Oneida Retail Enterprise, Oneida Casino Employees, Oneida Judiciary, Oneida 
Police Department 

Related Legislation Oneida Personal Policies and Procedures, Judiciary law, Citations law 

Enforcement All cigarettes acquired, owned, possessed, sold, or distributed in violation of this 
law are unlawful property and subject to seizure by any Oneida law enforcement 
officer [1 O.C. 115.8-1].  Violators subject to the jurisdiction of the Nation shall be 
subject to a fine of not more than ten dollars ($10) per pack of un-stamped cigarettes 
to be issued by the Oneida Police Department and paid to the Nation [1 O.C. 115.8-

1(a)].   

Due Process Oneida Nation employees who violate this Law shall be subject to disciplinary 
action in accordance with the Nation’s laws, rules, and policies governing 
employment [1 O.C. 115.8-1(b)].  Persons issued citations under this law may 
contest the citation with the Nation’s judicial system [1 O.C. 115.8-2]. Citations 
issued will follow the process contained in the Citations law [8 O.C. 807]. 

Public Meeting A public meeting in accordance with the Legislative Procedures Act is not required 
for legislation considered as an emergency [1 O.C. 109.8-1(b) and 109.9-5(a)]. 

Fiscal Impact A fiscal impact statement prepared in accordance with the Legislative Procedures 
Act is not required for legislation considered as an emergency [1 O.C. 109.9-5(a)]. 

Expiration of 
Emergency 
Amendments 

Emergency amendments are effective immediately upon approval by the Oneida 
Business Committee, expire six (6) months from the date of approval and may be 
extended for up to six (6) additional months [1 O.C. 109.9-5(b)]. 

 

189 of 213



Analysis to Draft 1 

2020 02 26 

Page 2 of 4 
 

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE DEVELOPMENT 1 

A. Background. The Tobacco law was first adopted by the Oneida Business Committee (OBC) on March 2 

15, 1976, and most recently amended on January 25, 2017.  The proposed emergency amendments to 3 

the Tobacco law (the Law) are being requested in response to a change in federal law [Public Law No: 4 

116-94. Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020].  The Further Consolidated Appropriations 5 

Act, 2020,  was signed into law on December 20, 2019, and effectively directed a change to the Federal 6 

Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act to raise the legal age to purchase tobacco products to at least twenty-one 7 

(21) years old effective immediately.  This change in federal law applies equally to all tobacco retail 8 

outlets making it illegal on a federal level to sell tobacco products to anyone under the age of twenty-9 

one (21).  Impact. As a result of this change to federal law; section 115.6-3 of the Nation’s Tobacco 10 

law may be amended to the restrict sales of tobacco products by striking eighteen (18) and inserting 11 

twenty-one (21) to comply with this federal requirement.   12 

a. Tobacco Products. Tobacco products is not included in the definitions section and is 13 

therefore used in the everyday sense [1 O.C. 115.5]. 14 

b. Traditional Tobacco.  The Law does not apply to traditional tobacco [1 O.C. 115.3-1]. 15 

c. Federal Register. The Secretary of Health and Human Services is required to publish in 16 

the Federal Register, within six (6) months, a final rule to update the regulations issued 17 

under chapter IX of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act to strike all instances of “18 18 

years” and insert “21 years”, update the relevant age verification requirements to require 19 

age verification for individuals under the age of 30 [Further Consolidated Appropriations 20 

Act, 2020, p. 1492-1503].  21 

d. Retailer Responsibility.  The Federal amendments make it clear that it is the responsibility 22 

of the retailer to ensure that tobacco products are not sold to anyone under the age of 23 

twenty-one (21).   “It shall be unlawful for any retailer to sell a tobacco product to any 24 

person younger than 21 years of age” [Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020, p. 25 

1493].  Employee Responsibility. The Nation’s law further applies disciplinary action to 26 

employees who violate the Law which, as amended, includes selling tobacco products to 27 

anyone under the age of twenty-one (21) [1 O.C. 115.8-1(b)]. 28 

B. The proposed emergency amendments to the Tobacco law bring the Nation into compliance with the 29 

amended federal law. 30 

 31 

SECTION 3. CONSULTATION AND OUTREACH 32 

A. Compliance.  Correspondence with the Oneida Retail Division Director has revealed that the Nation 33 

has already begun to implement the federal change to the age of purchasing tobacco by raising the 34 

required minimum age to twenty-one (21) to buy tobacco within all of the Nation’s retail tobacco 35 

locations [Email Communication, January 8, 2020].  Additionally, signs have been changed throughout 36 

the reservation and registers have been reprogrammed to reflect the age twenty-one (21).  This change 37 

in federal law also affects Oneida Casino employees who are between eighteen (18) and twenty (20) 38 

years old who previously purchased cigarettes for guests of the Oneida Casino.  Those purchases will 39 

now require an Oneida Nation Casino employee who is at least twenty-one (21) years old [Kalihwisaks, 40 

January 9, 2020].   41 

B. Consultation. The Oneida Law Office was consulted in the development of the emergency amendments 42 

to the law and legislative analysis [Personal Communication, January 30, 2020].  According to the 43 

Oneida Law Office; this change in federal legislation is a law of general applicability which means it 44 

applies equally and with general consistency to all people, including tribal governments [Wildenthal, 45 

2017].  This change in federal law and the minimum age of twenty-one (21)  years old to purchase 46 

tobacco products will apply to Kwik Trip in the same way it applies to the Oneida tobacco outlets.  The 47 

change in federal law applies to the sales of tobacco products; the federal law does not mention and 48 

therefore does not apply to youth smoking or the possession of tobacco products by anyone under the 49 

age of twenty-one (21) [Federal, Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act – Tobacco Products]. 50 

190 of 213



Analysis to Draft 1 

2020 02 26 

Page 3 of 4 
 

C. Research.  The increase in the age to purchase tobacco products to twenty-one (21) is based on research 51 

related to the age that a person begins smoking and their likelihood to become addicted.  Research 52 

demonstrates that if a person has never smoked by the age of eighteen (18), the odds are three-to-one 53 

that he will never smoke.  By age twenty-four (24) the odds are twenty-to-one [Tobacco 21, Nicoteen 54 

Brain].  Age Change in Progress Prior to Federal Amendment.  Nineteen (19) states and 540 local 55 

jurisdictions had already raised the minimum age to purchase tobacco products to twenty-one (21) prior 56 

to the change in Federal Legislation [Tobacco 21, FAQ].   57 

 58 

SECTION 4. PROCESS 59 

A. The LOC added the Tobacco law emergency amendments to the active files list during a regular LOC 60 

meeting on February 5, 2020. 61 

B. The amendments to this Law have followed the required process related to emergency legislation 62 

detailed in the Legislative Procedures Act (LPA) [1 O.C. 109.9-5]. 63 

C. The proposed emergency amendment will be presented to the LOC and forwarded to the OBC for 64 

consideration of approval.  The LPA only requires that a legislative analysis accompany the amended 65 

law for approval on an emergency basis.  A public meeting and a fiscal impact statement are not 66 

required for the consideration of emergency legislation [1 O.C. 109.9-5(a)]. 67 

a. The LPA defines emergency as the “immediate preservation of the public health, safety, or 68 

general welfare of the reservation population and the enactment or amendment of 69 

legislation is required sooner than would be possible under this law” [1 O.C. 109.9-5]. 70 

b. Emergency enacted legislation becomes effective upon approval and remains effective for 71 

six (6) months from the date of approval. Emergency enacted legislation expires when six 72 

(6) months has passed unless the emergency is extended for an additional six (6) months 73 

[1 O.C. 109.9-5(b)]. 74 

 75 

SECTION 5. CONTENTS OF THE  AMENDMENTS 76 

A. The proposed emergency amendments change the age for the sale of tobacco products from prohibiting 77 

sales under the age of eighteen (18) to prohibiting sales under the age of twenty-one (21) [1 O.C. 115.6-78 

3].   79 

 80 

SECTION 6. EFFECT ON EXISTING LEGISLATION 81 

A. The following laws were reviewed in the development of this legislative analysis: Oneida Personal 82 

Policies and Procedures, Citations law and Judiciary law.   83 

B. The proposed amendment does not conflict with the Nation’s Code of Laws.  84 

 85 

SECTION 7. ENFORCEMENT AND ACCOUNTABILITY 86 

A. The Law is currently enforced by all Oneida Nation Tobacco Retail Locations utilizing existing staff.   87 

B. Oneida Nation employees who violate this law are subject to disciplinary action in accordance with the 88 

Nation’s laws, rules, and policies governing employment [1 O.C. 115.8-1(b)].  Persons issued citations 89 

under this Law may contest the citation with the Nation’s judicial system [1 O.C. 115.8-2]. 90 

C. The Oneida Retail Division Director is responsible for the implementation of the amended Law.  91 

 92 

SECTION 8. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 93 

B. Emergency Legislation. The Legislative Procedures Act authorizes the OBC to temporarily enact an 94 

emergency law where legislation is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public health, safety 95 

or general welfare of the reservation population and the enactment or amendment of legislation is 96 

required sooner than would be possible by utilizing the standard legislative process [1 O.C. 109.9-5(b)].  97 

In this situation, there would not be time to amend the law through the standard legislative process prior 98 

to the changes to federal law going into effect.  99 

191 of 213



Analysis to Draft 1 

2020 02 26 

Page 4 of 4 
 

C. Deadline for Permanent Adoption of Amendments. If adopted on an emergency basis by the OBC as 100 

proposed on February 26, 2020; these amendments will become effective immediately and will remain 101 

in effect for up to six months (August 26, 2020), with a possibility of a one-time extension of up to an 102 

additional six months (February 26, 2021) [1 O.C. 109.9-5(b)]. 103 

D. Additional Amendments.  These emergency amendments only consider one amendment to change the 104 

prohibited age of sales of tobacco products from any person under the age of eighteen (18) [1 O.C. 105 

115.6-3 of Current Law] to any person under the age of twenty-one (21) [1 O.C. 115.6-3].  Additional 106 

amendments to the Law may be considered when permanent amendments are considered. 107 

E. Fiscal Impact. A fiscal impact statement is not required. 108 

a. Under the Legislative Procedures Act, a fiscal impact statement is required for all 109 

legislation except emergency legislation [1 O.C. 109.9-5(a)].  110 

 111 

Research Citations 112 

Public Law No: 116-94: Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020, p. 1492-1503. 113 

 https://docs.house.gov/billsthisweek/20191216/BILLS-116HR1865SA-RCP116-44.PDF  114 

 115 

Federal, Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act – Tobacco Products 116 

 https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title21/chapter9/subchapter9&edition=prelim  117 

 118 

Tobacco Twenty-One: Preventing Tobacco Addiction Foundation 119 

Tobacco 21 FAQ: https://tobacco21.org/federal-tobacco-21-faq/  120 

Tobacco 21 Nicoteen Brain: https://tobacco21.org/kids-tobacco/  121 

 122 

Kalihwisaks, January 9, 2020.   123 

https://oneida-nsn.gov/blog/2020/01/09/oneida-retail-enforcing-new-federal-tobacco-law/  124 

 125 

Wildenthal, B.H. (2017).  Indian Sovereignty, General Federal Laws, and the Cannons of Construction: 126 

An Overview and Update.   American Indian Law Journal, 6(1) pp. 97-173.   127 

   https://digitalcommons.law.seattleu.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1175&context=ailj 128 

 129 

192 of 213

https://docs.house.gov/billsthisweek/20191216/BILLS-116HR1865SA-RCP116-44.PDF
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title21/chapter9/subchapter9&edition=prelim
https://tobacco21.org/federal-tobacco-21-faq/
https://tobacco21.org/kids-tobacco/
https://oneida-nsn.gov/blog/2020/01/09/oneida-retail-enforcing-new-federal-tobacco-law/
https://digitalcommons.law.seattleu.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1175&context=ailj


Draft 1- Emergency Amendments for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 26 

1 O.C. 115 – Page 1 

Title 1. Government and Finances - Chapter 115 
Oy&=kwa> Olihw@=ke 

matters concerning tobacco 
TOBACCO  

Oy&=kwa> Olihw@=ke 
matters concerning tobacco 

 
 

115.1.  Purpose and Policy 
115.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
115.3.  Definitions 
115.4.  Oneida Retail Locations 

115.5.  Purchase of, Title to And Possession of Tobacco Products 
115.6.  Restrictions on Sales 
115.7.  Liability 
115.8.  Violations 

 

 

115.1.  Purpose and Policy 1 
115.1-1.  Purpose.  The purpose of this law is to regulate the sale, possession and distribution of 2 
cigarettes within the Reservation. 3 
115.1-2.  Policy.  It is the policy of the Nation to ensure that all cigarette sales on the Reservation 4 
are conducted in a lawful manner. 5 
 6 
115.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 7 
115.2-1.  This law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC- 11-18-81-8 
A and amended by resolution BC-10-10-07-A, BC-04-09-14-F, and BC-01-25-17-B., and BC-__-9 
__-__-__. 10 
115.2-2.  This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee and/or the 11 
Oneida General Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures 12 
Act. 13 
115.2-3.  Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 14 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 15 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 16 
115.2-4.  In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 17 
the provisions of this law shall control. 18 
115.2-5.  This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 19 
 20 
115.3.  Definitions 21 
115.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 22 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 23 

(a)  “Cigarette” means any roll for smoking made wholly or in part of tobacco, irrespective 24 
of size, shape and irrespective of the tobacco being flavored, adulterated, or mixed with 25 
any other ingredient, where such roll has a wrapper or cover made of paper or any material, 26 
except where such wrapper is wholly or in the greater part made of natural leaf tobacco in 27 
its natural state. 28 
(b)  “Electronic cigarette” means a device that enables a person to ingest nicotine, or other 29 
chemicals or substances, by inhaling a vaporized liquid and shall include the cartridges and 30 
other products used to refill the device.  “Electronic cigarette” shall not include any device 31 
that is prescribed by a healthcare professional. 32 
(c)  “Employee” means a person employed by the Oneida Nation working in an Oneida 33 
retail location. 34 
(d)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 35 
(e)  “Oneida Retail Location” means an Oneida Nation retail sales business selling stamped 36 
cigarettes within the Oneida Nation Reservation. 37 

193 of 213



Draft 1- Emergency Amendments for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 26 

1 O.C. 115 – Page 2 

(f)  “Reservation” means all land within the exterior boundaries of the Reservation of the 38 
Oneida Nation, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the Oneida, 7 Stat. 566, and 39 
any land added thereto pursuant to federal law. 40 
(g)  “Stamped Cigarettes” means cigarettes bearing valid Wisconsin tax stamps. 41 
  42 

115.4.  Oneida Retail Locations 43 
115.4-1.  The Nation shall maintain Oneida retail locations within the Reservation as it deems 44 
necessary to provide adequate service to consumers of stamped cigarettes. 45 
115.4-2.  Each Oneida retail location established hereunder shall be managed and operated by the 46 
Oneida Nation. 47 
 48 
115.5.  Purchase of, Title to and Possession of Tobacco Products 49 
115.5-1.  The Nation shall purchase stamped cigarettes from such suppliers as it may choose and 50 
shall take title and possession on delivery to an Oneida retail location on the Reservation (the title 51 
shall be subject to any purchase money security interest).  Possession of the stamped cigarettes 52 
(but not title) shall be transferred to the manager of the Oneida retail location to be held for sale to 53 
the consumers.  The Nation shall retain title to stamped cigarettes until sold to a consumer. 54 
 55 
115.6.  Restrictions on Sales 56 
115.6-1.  The Nation shall be the exclusive retailer of cigarettes bearing the Wisconsin Tribal 57 
Cigarette tax stamp within the Reservation.  Furthermore, only the Nation may claim the tax 58 
refunds on cigarettes sold on the Reservation as provided for under state law. 59 
115.6-2.  The Nation reserves the right to restrict sales, volume, pricing and profit margin of 60 
stamped cigarettes sold at aan Oneida retail location. 61 
115.6-3.  Cigarettes and electronic cigarettes shall not be sold to any person under the age of 62 
eighteen (18).twenty-one (21) .  Cigarettes and electronic cigarettes for sale at an Oneida retail 63 
location shall be on display behind a counter. No person other than an authorized employee shall 64 
sell cigarettes and electronic cigarettes at an Oneida retail location. 65 
115.6-4.  No person may sell or offer for sale unstamped cigarettes on the Reservation. 66 
 67 
115.7.  Liability 68 
115.7-1.  The Nation shall be responsible for all risks to the stamped cigarettes and shall carry full 69 
insurance against fire, theft, and other hazards, and such insurance shall include as a beneficiary 70 
any person owning a purchase money security interest in the products to the extent his or her 71 
interest may appear. 72 
 73 
115.8  Violations 74 
115.8-1.  All cigarettes acquired, owned, possessed, sold, or distributed in violation of this law are 75 
unlawful property and subject to seizure by any Oneida law enforcement officer. 76 

(a)  Violators subject to the jurisdiction of the Nation shall be subject to a fine of not more 77 
than ten dollars ($10) per pack of un-stamped cigarettes to be issued by the Oneida Police 78 
Department and paid to the Nation. 79 
(b)  Employees who violate this law shall be subject to disciplinary action in accordance 80 
with the Nation’s laws, rules, and policies governing employment.  81 

115.8-2.  All fines assessed under this section shall be paid within sixty (60) days of issuance of 82 
the citation, unless the person contests the citation with the Nation’s judicial system before the fine 83 
is to be paid. 84 
End. 85  86 

194 of 213



Draft 1- Emergency Amendments for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current) 
2020 02 26 

1 O.C. 115 – Page 3 

Adopted - BC-3-15-76-A Adopted - BC-11-18-81-A  Amended - BC-01-25-17-B 87 
Adopted - BC-9-7-77-B Amended - BC-10-10-07-A Emergency Amended – BC-__-__-__-__ 88 
Adopted - BC-9-4-79-C Amended - BC-04-09-14-F 89 

195 of 213



Draft 1- Emergency Amendments for OBC Consideration2020 02 26 

1 O.C. 115 – Page 1 

Title 1. Government and Finances - Chapter 115 
Oy&=kwa> Olihw@=ke 

matters concerning tobacco 
TOBACCO  

 
 

 

115.1.  Purpose and Policy 
115.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
115.3.  Definitions 
115.4.  Oneida Retail Locations 

115.5.  Purchase of, Title to And Possession of Tobacco Products 
115.6.  Restrictions on Sales 
115.7.  Liability 
115.8.  Violations 

 

 

115.1.  Purpose and Policy 1 
115.1-1.  Purpose.  The purpose of this law is to regulate the sale, possession and distribution of 2 
cigarettes within the Reservation. 3 
115.1-2.  Policy.  It is the policy of the Nation to ensure that all cigarette sales on the Reservation 4 
are conducted in a lawful manner. 5 
 6 
115.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 7 
115.2-1.  This law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC- 11-18-81-8 
A and amended by resolution BC-10-10-07-A, BC-04-09-14-F, BC-01-25-17-B, and BC-__-__-9 
__-__. 10 
115.2-2.  This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee and/or the 11 
Oneida General Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures 12 
Act. 13 
115.2-3.  Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 14 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 15 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 16 
115.2-4.  In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 17 
the provisions of this law shall control. 18 
115.2-5.  This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 19 
 20 
115.3.  Definitions 21 
115.3-1.  This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 22 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 23 

(a)  “Cigarette” means any roll for smoking made wholly or in part of tobacco, irrespective 24 
of size, shape and irrespective of the tobacco being flavored, adulterated, or mixed with 25 
any other ingredient, where such roll has a wrapper or cover made of paper or any material, 26 
except where such wrapper is wholly or in the greater part made of natural leaf tobacco in 27 
its natural state. 28 
(b)  “Electronic cigarette” means a device that enables a person to ingest nicotine, or other 29 
chemicals or substances, by inhaling a vaporized liquid and shall include the cartridges and 30 
other products used to refill the device.  “Electronic cigarette” shall not include any device 31 
that is prescribed by a healthcare professional. 32 
(c)  “Employee” means a person employed by the Oneida Nation working in an Oneida 33 
retail location. 34 
(d)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 35 
(e)  “Oneida Retail Location” means an Oneida Nation retail sales business selling stamped 36 
cigarettes within the Oneida Nation Reservation. 37 
(f)  “Reservation” means all land within the exterior boundaries of the Reservation of the 38 

196 of 213



Draft 1- Emergency Amendments for OBC Consideration2020 02 26 

1 O.C. 115 – Page 2 

Oneida Nation, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the Oneida, 7 Stat. 566, and 39 
any land added thereto pursuant to federal law. 40 
(g)  “Stamped Cigarettes” means cigarettes bearing valid Wisconsin tax stamps. 41 
  42 

115.4.  Oneida Retail Locations 43 
115.4-1.  The Nation shall maintain Oneida retail locations within the Reservation as it deems 44 
necessary to provide adequate service to consumers of stamped cigarettes. 45 
115.4-2.  Each Oneida retail location established hereunder shall be managed and operated by the 46 
Oneida Nation. 47 
 48 
115.5.  Purchase of, Title to and Possession of Tobacco Products 49 
115.5-1.  The Nation shall purchase stamped cigarettes from such suppliers as it may choose and 50 
shall take title and possession on delivery to an Oneida retail location on the Reservation (the title 51 
shall be subject to any purchase money security interest).  Possession of the stamped cigarettes 52 
(but not title) shall be transferred to the manager of the Oneida retail location to be held for sale to 53 
the consumers.  The Nation shall retain title to stamped cigarettes until sold to a consumer. 54 
 55 
115.6.  Restrictions on Sales 56 
115.6-1.  The Nation shall be the exclusive retailer of cigarettes bearing the Wisconsin Tribal 57 
Cigarette tax stamp within the Reservation.  Furthermore, only the Nation may claim the tax 58 
refunds on cigarettes sold on the Reservation as provided for under state law. 59 
115.6-2.  The Nation reserves the right to restrict sales, volume, pricing and profit margin of 60 
stamped cigarettes sold at an Oneida retail location. 61 
115.6-3.  Cigarettes and electronic cigarettes shall not be sold to any person under the age of 62 
twenty-one (21) .  Cigarettes and electronic cigarettes for sale at an Oneida retail location shall be 63 
on display behind a counter. No person other than an authorized employee shall sell cigarettes and 64 
electronic cigarettes at an Oneida retail location. 65 
115.6-4.  No person may sell or offer for sale unstamped cigarettes on the Reservation. 66 
 67 
115.7.  Liability 68 
115.7-1.  The Nation shall be responsible for all risks to the stamped cigarettes and shall carry full 69 
insurance against fire, theft, and other hazards, and such insurance shall include as a beneficiary 70 
any person owning a purchase money security interest in the products to the extent his or her 71 
interest may appear. 72 
 73 
115.8  Violations 74 
115.8-1.  All cigarettes acquired, owned, possessed, sold, or distributed in violation of this law are 75 
unlawful property and subject to seizure by any Oneida law enforcement officer. 76 

(a)  Violators subject to the jurisdiction of the Nation shall be subject to a fine of not more 77 
than ten dollars ($10) per pack of un-stamped cigarettes to be issued by the Oneida Police 78 
Department and paid to the Nation. 79 
(b)  Employees who violate this law shall be subject to disciplinary action in accordance 80 
with the Nation’s laws, rules, and policies governing employment.  81 

115.8-2.  All fines assessed under this section shall be paid within sixty (60) days of issuance of 82 
the citation, unless the person contests the citation with the Nation’s judicial system before the fine 83 
is to be paid. 84 
End. 85  86 
Adopted - BC-3-15-76-A Adopted - BC-11-18-81-A  Amended - BC-01-25-17-B 87 

197 of 213



Draft 1- Emergency Amendments for OBC Consideration2020 02 26 

1 O.C. 115 – Page 3 

Adopted - BC-9-7-77-B Amended - BC-10-10-07-A Emergency Amended – BC-__-__-__-__ 88 
Adopted - BC-9-4-79-C Amended - BC-04-09-14-F 89 

198 of 213



Page 1 of 2 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

Legislative Operating Committee 
February 19, 2020 

Petition: N. Dallas – Make a Funeral Home 
Petition: N. Dallas – Hold on Building  
Submission Date: 2/5/20 Public Meeting: n/a 

LOC Sponsor:   
Emergency Enacted: n/a 

Expires: n/a 

Summary: These Petitions request that a General Tribal Council meeting be called to 

decide whether to turn the Woodland Worship Center, located at 760 Airport Drive in Oneida, 

Wisconsin, into a funeral home to be operated as an enterprise of the Oneida Nation. 

Petition: N. Dallas – Make a Funeral Home  

1/22/20 OBC: Motion by Lisa Summers to acknowledge receipt of the petition from Nancy Dallas – 
Make a funeral home; Seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried. 

Motion by Lisa Summers to assign the petition to the April 6, 2020, tentatively 
scheduled special GTC meeting; Seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried. 

Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the OBC Direct Report Offices to complete and 
submit their administrative impact statements of the petition to the Secretary by January 
31, 2020; Seconded by Lisa Summers. Motion carried. 

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct the Law, Finance, Legislative Reference Offices, 
and Community Development Planning Committee to complete and submit the legal 
review, fiscal impact statement, statement of effect, and committee statement, 
respectively, to the Secretary by February 18, 2020; Seconded by Lisa Summers. 
Motion carried. 

*Amendment to the main motion by Trish King to request the Oneida Land
Commission to submit a commission statement regarding the petition; Seconded by
David P. Jordan. Motion carried.

  2/5/20 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the petition: Nancy Dallas – Make a Funeral Home 
to the active files list; Seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried. 

Petition: N. Dallas – Hold on Building 

1/22/20 OBC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to acknowledge receipt of the petition from Nancy Dallas 
– Hold on building; Seconded by Lisa Summers. Motion carried.

199 of 213



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

  Motion by Lisa Summers to assign the petition to the April 6, 2020, tentatively          
  scheduled special GTC meeting; Seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried. 
 
  Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the OBC Direct Report Offices to complete and 
  submit their administrative impact statements of the petition to the Secretary by January 
  31, 2020; Seconded by Lisa Summers. Motion carried.  
 
  Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the Law, Finance, Legislative Reference Offices 
  and Community Development Planning Committee to complete and submit the legal 
  review, fiscal impact statement, statement of effect, and committee statement,            
  respectively, to the Secretary by February 18, 2020; Seconded by Lisa Summers.        
  Motion carried.  
 
2/5/20 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the petition: Nancy Dallas – Hold on Building to 
  the active files list; Seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried.  
 
 

Next Steps: 
▪ Approve the Petition: N. Dallas – Make a Funeral Home statement of effect and forward to 

the Oneida Business Committee for consideration. 
 

▪ Approve the Petition: N. Dallas – Hold on Building statement of effect and forward to the 
Oneida Business Committee for consideration. 

 
 

200 of 213



 

Page 1 of 3 

 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov   
 
 
 

Statement of Effect 
Petition: N. Dallas – Make a Funeral Home 

Petition: N. Dallas – Hold on Building    

 
Summary 

These Petitions request that a General Tribal Council meeting be called to decide whether to turn 
the Woodland Worship Center, located at 760 Airport Drive in Oneida, Wisconsin, into a funeral 
home to be operated as an enterprise of the Oneida Nation.  
  
Submitted By:  Kristen M. Hooker, Staff Attorney, Legislative Reference Office 

Date:  February 13, 2020 

 
Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office 

On December 31, 2019, Petition: N. Dallas – Make a Funeral Home and Petition: N. Dallas – Hold 
on Building were submitted to the Oneida Business Committee Support Office by Nancy Dallas. 
The Petitions have since been verified by the Oneida Trust Enrollment Department. On January 
22, 2020, the Oneida Business Committee acknowledged receipt of both Petitions and directed the 
Legislative Reference Office to complete a statement of effect by February 18, 2020.   
 
The Petition: N. Dallas – Make a Funeral Home, requests that a meeting of the General Tribal 
Council (“GTC”) be called to consider whether “[t]o make a funeral home on the property of the 
Woodland Worship Center and have the property to be an Enterprise Division for the Oneida 
Nation.” Likewise, the Petition: N. Dallas – Hold on Building, requests that a GTC meeting be 
called to consider whether “[t]o put a hold on the building which is the Woodland Worship Center, 
located at 760 Airport Drive, Oneida, Wis. and to make this a funeral home.” Because both 
Petitions are essentially seeking the same outcome – to turn the Woodland Worship Center into a 
funeral home – this statement of effect will be analyzing them together.     
   
All applicable laws and policies of the Nation were reviewed in developing this statement of effect, 
including the Oneida Nation Constitution (“Constitution”), the Cemetery law, the Children’s 
Burial Fund Policy, the Nation’s Zoning and Shoreland Protection law, and the Budget 
Management and Control law. 
 
Article IV, Section 1 of the Constitution grants the GTC power to “manage all economic affairs 
and enterprises of the Oneida Nation” and to “promulgate and enforce ordinances . . . providing 
for the . . . appropriation of available tribal funds for public purposes. . . .”  [Oneida Nation 

Constitution Article IV Section 1(e) and (f)]. Subject to its review, the GTC has delegated the 
authority set forth in Article IV of the Constitution to the OBC. 
 
The Nation’s Zoning and Shoreland Protection law (“Law”) protects the character and stability of 
residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, and other districts within the Reservation, as well 
as assures the orderly and beneficial development of such areas, by regulating the use of land and 

201 of 213

~ 
ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

buildings located therein. [6 O.C. 605.1-1]. The Law does permit the establishment and/or 
operation of a funeral home within areas of the Reservation that are zoned as a Commercial District 
(C-1). [6 O.C. 605.7-7]. However, certain provisions within the Law would have an impact on the 
Petitions at issue.  
 
For example, in the likely event that a permit would be required to turn the Woodland Worship 
Center premises into a funeral home, section 605.6-8 of the Law provides that “[n]o permit shall 
be issued under this law unless the applicant’s building plans, including the site plan, if applicable, 
are compliant with the Tribe’s Building Code.” [6 O.C. 605.6-8]. And, with respect to parking 
spaces, section 605.6-10 requires mortuaries or funeral homes provide “at least fifteen (15) off-
street parking spaces for each chapel or parlor, plus one (1) off-street parking space for each funeral 
vehicle maintained on the premises.” [6 O.C. 605.10(e)(12)].            
   
The Nation’s Budget Management and Control law (“Budget Law”), adopted by the OBC through 
resolution BC-02-08-17-C, sets forth the processes that the OBC, Oneida fund units, executive 
managers and managers must follow when preparing the Nation’s budget for consideration by the 
GTC. [1 O.C. 121.1-1]. This includes that community input budget meetings occur before a budget 
is developed so that community members are given an opportunity to provide input as to what 
should be included in the upcoming fiscal year budget; that the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) 
and any other relevant managers provide responses and/or recommendations to all comments and 
considerations presented at the meetings; and that the Nation’s Treasurer work with the CFO to 
place a community budget input meeting packet on the OBC agenda no later than the last OBC 
Meeting in January. [1 O.C. 121-5-2(c) and (d)]. 
 

The Budget Law also requires that the Nation’s Treasurer hold, at a minimum, two (2) community 
informational meetings to present the contents of the budget after the OBC has approved the final 
draft budget, but before the final draft budget has been presented to the GTC. [1 O.C. 121.5-8].  

After the informational meetings, the OBC is then required to present the budget to the GTC with 
a request for adoption by resolution no later than September 30th of each year unless good cause 
exists to extend the deadline. [1 O.C. 121.5-9 and 121.5-1]. The Nation’s FY2020 budget was 
adopted on September 16, 2019.      
 
Although the Budget Law provides opportunities for members of the community to provide input 
at various community budget meetings throughout the budgetary process, it does not address how 
GTC petitions, such as the ones at issue, or directives regarding budgetary concerns affect the 
budgetary process provided for in the Budget Law. Nor do the Petitions identify where the funding 
would come from for the Nation to establish and operate a funeral home as an enterprise division. 
At a minimum, adoption of the Petitions would require a two-thirds vote to amend the budget since 
the proposed enterprise and related costs are not included within the FY2020 budget. 
 
Likewise, absent the third-party review that GTC required by motion of January 20, 2020 to 
accompany petitions, such as the ones at issue, that call for economic development or financial 
strategy, these Petitions could only be adopted if, by a two-thirds vote, GTC overturned the need 
for a third-party review to be presented along with the Petitions.        
 
 

202 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

~ 
ONEIDA 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
Conclusion 

Adoption of the Petition: N. Dallas – Make a Funeral Home and the Petition: N. Dallas – Hold on 
Building would not result in a legislative impact on any current laws of the Nation so long as the 
procedures contained in the Nation’s Zoning and Shoreland Protection and Budget Management 
and Control laws are followed and the decision to move forward with the Petitions absent a third-
party review is approved by a two-thirds vote.  
 

 
Requested Action 

Accept the Petition: N. Dallas – Make a Funeral Home and the Petition: N. Dallas – Hold on 
Building statement of effect.   

203 of 213

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

~ 
ONEIDA 



204 of 213

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 

I) Request Date: February 19, 2020 

2) ContactPerson(s): Clarissa N. Santiago 

Dept: Legislative Reference Office 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 

PO Box 365 • Oneida, WI 54155-0365 
Oneida.nsn.gov 

Phone Number: (920) 869-4417 Email: csantia1@oneidanation.org 

3) Agenda Title: Petition: M. Debraska - Increase GTC Meeting Stipend 

4) Detailed description of the item and the reason/justification it is being brought before the LOC: 

On February 12, 2020, the Oneida Business Committee directed that the 
Leg1slat1ve Reference Office submit a statement of effect on the Pet1t1on: 
M. Debraska Increase GTC Meeting Stipend. 

List any supporting materials included and submitted with the Agenda Request Form 

!) ~ ~ ~ ~~ ~ ~~~~~~ 

2)~~~~~~~~~~ 

3) ~~~~~~ ~~~ ~ 

4)~~~~~~~~~~ 

5) Please list any Jaws, policies or resolutions that might be affected: 

6) Please list all other departments or person(s) you have brought your concern to: 

7) Do you consider this request urgent? •Yes DNo 

If yes, please indicate why: 

Timelines for petitions provided for by resolution GTC-01-21-19-A. 

I, the undersigned, have reviewed the attached materials, and understand that they are subject to action by 

the Legislative Operating Committee. 

Signature of Requester: 

s form and all supporting materials to: 

LOC@oneidanation.org 

0 /' 

Legislative Operating Committee (LOC} 
P.O. Box 365 

Oneida, WI 54155 

Phone 920-869-4376 

" =DDDOOO 

ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



205 of 213

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 

1) Request Date: February 19, 2020 

2) Contact Person(s): _J_e_n_ni_fe_r_F_a_l_ck _________ _ 

LRO 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365 • Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Onelda-nsn.gov 

Phone Nmmhe•r• 869-4312 Email: jfalck@oneidanation.org 
----------

3) Agenda Boards, Committees, and Commissions law Emergency Amendments 

4) Detailed description of the item and the reason/justification it is being brought before the LOC: 

On February 12, 2020 the Business Committee requested that the LOG 
consider this law 

List any supporting materials included and submitted with the Agenda Request Form 

}) ___________ _ 3) ___________ ~ 

2) _________ . 4) ___________ ~ 

5) Please list any laws, policies or resolutions that might be affected: 

6) Please list all other departments or person(s) you have brought your concern to: 

7) Do you consider this request urgent? !IIYes 0No 

If yes, please indicate why: 

In order to ensure the amendments are complete by March 2020 caucus 

I, the undersigned, have reviewed the attached materials, and understand that they are subject to action by 

the Legislative Operating Committee. 

Please send this form and all supporting materials to: 

LOC@oneidanation.org 

or 

Legislative Operating Committee (LOC) 

P.O.Box365 

Oneida, WI 54155 

Phone 920-869-4376 

~ 
ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart A strong fire. 



Page 1 of 6 

Legislative Operating Committee FY2020 First Quarter Report 

Current Active Files List – As of 2/12/2020 
*An item that the LOC intends to finish by July 2020 (end of the 2017‐2020 term)

   This item was completed and the LOC is no longer working on it 
   Work completed      Work completed October 1, 2019‐ February 12, 2020 

Name of Legislation 
Development    Public Input     GTC/OBC Consideration  

         or Adoption       
*Sanctions & Penalties ‐ Deferred by GTC 3/17/19
Child Support Amendments  BC‐01‐08‐20‐C 
Boards, Committees, & Commissions Bylaws (15 sets) 
Curfew  BC‐10‐09‐19‐F 
*Oneida Food Service Code Amendments

*Industrial Hemp

Taxation  
Wellness Court 
*Indian Preference in Contracting Amendments

*Vehicle Driver Certification & Fleet Management

*Citations Law‐ BC adopted on 2/12/20
*Recycling & Solid Waste Law Amendments

*Children’s Burial Fund
*Curfew Amendments

*Tobacco Emergency Amendments

*Domestic Animals Amendments

Real Property Amends. (Emerg. Expire 7/22/20) 
*SEOTS Bylaws Amendments

*NEPC Bylaws Amendments

*Land Commission Bylaws Amends.

Public Peace 
Drug & Alcohol Free Elected/Appointed Officials 
Tribal Traffic Code 
Business Corporations 
Code of Ethics Amendments 
Rules of Civil Procedure Amendments 
General Welfare Exclusion‐ Income Exemptions 
Work Visas 
Law Enforce. Ord. Amendments‐ Con. Wardens 
Environmental Review Law 
Attorney Contract Policy Amendments 
Tribal Institutional Review Board 
Guardianship 
Uniform Commercial Code 
Personnel Policies & Procedures Amendments 
Investigative Leave Policy Amendments 
Workplace Violence Amendments 

206 of 213



Legislative Operating Committee FY20 First Quarter Report     February 2020 

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

FY20 First Quarter Executive Summary 
 
Children’s Burial Fund Policy Amendments  
This law is being updated to remove outdated restrictions and to create more flexibility in using the 
funds. Potential amendments include; updating qualifications, clarify caskets or coffin costs are 
payable if identified with an invoice, expressly prohibit travel costs, remove limitations on the use of 
the fund to pay food expenses. 
  
Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management Amendments 
Potential amendments for this law include; revise the qualifications to become a certified driver  
of the Nation, revise and simplify the process for suspending a person’s driver certification,  
clarify that other violations of this law that do not result in the suspension or revocation of a 
driver’s license will be handled by disciplinary action instead of suspension of driver certification, 
revise the restriction on driving while using prescription or over the counter medications, require 
mileage reimbursement requests to be submitted within (30) days of driving the miles or by the  
end of the fiscal year, whichever is sooner, ban the use of e‐cigarettes in fleet vehicles, and clarify 
that weapons are banned in fleet vehicles and personal vehicles used for official business. 
  
Child Support Amendments 
(Update: This was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee‐ BC‐01‐08‐20‐C) 
Amendments  include; create a process to suspend or modify child support orders  for parents 
incarcerated for one hundred and eighty (180) days or more, update notice requirements and 
timelines for initiating an action by the Child Support Department as well as sending appointment 
letters, notices of delinquency, notices of enforcement action, and income withholding orders, 
clarify  how  the  Family  Court may  redact  addresses  and  identifying  information  from  court 
documents to ensure the safety of a party, make updates to how child support obligations are 
calculated in certain special circumstances involving shared‐placement parents, split‐placement 
parents, and a serial family obligor, repeal Child Support Rule No. 1 ‐ Deviation from Child Support 
and Rule No. 2 ‐ Enforcement Tools and move the contents of the rules into the body of the law 
itself, and, make additional updates and clarify language throughout the law. 
  
Oneida Food Service Code Amendments 
Potential amendments include;  include mobile food trucks within the category of permanent 
food service establishments, add a notice and other procedural requirements to the 
processing of applications for licensure to operate a food service business, create exemptions 
for cottage food sales and prepackaged restaurants, afford licensing fee waivers to protect food 
service businesses or prepackaged restaurants from duplicative payments that would be caused 
by overlapping jurisdictions, and, allow the area manager the final determination on appeals of 
non‐citation issued decisions unless one (1) of the three (3) express grounds exist to further 
appeal the decision. The public meeting was held be on February 6, 2020 and the amendments 
will be sent to the Oneida Business Committee for consideration in the second quarter. 
Committee Conference Room 
  
 

207 of 213



Legislative Operating Committee FY20 First Quarter Report     February 2020 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
Indian Preference in Contracting Policy Amendments 
Proposed amendments include; update the definition of tribal corporation to include any 
corporation chartered and/or wholly owned by the Nation, raise the threshold for when Indian 
Preference applies to contracts from $1,500 to $3,000, redefine joint ventures and permit joint 
ventures to qualify for Indian Preference on a project‐specific basis, set a new timeline for 
Indian Preference Office to review contracts, and, clarify the Indian Preference Office’s 
authority to develop a fine and penalty schedule for violations of this law, to be approved by 
the Oneida Business Committee by resolution. A public meeting was held on December 19, 
2019 and the amendments will be sent to the Business Committee for consideration in the 
second quarter.  
 
 

 
 
First Quarter Legislative Highlights 
 
Completed: Boards, Committees, and Commission Bylaws Amendments 
All the Nation’s boards, committees, and commissions are required to amend their bylaws as a 
result of the adoption of the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law (formerly known as the 
Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions).  The LOC assisted the 
entities with this project and the Oneida Business Committee approved all but two sets of bylaws in 
the first quarter.  
 
Adopted: Curfew law 
This law was the result of a recommendation from the Tribal Action Plan Policy Sub‐Committee. 
The LOC agreed to work on this legislation in an effort to support all drug use prevention 
initiatives. The purpose of this law is to protect the health, safety, and welfare of minors. The 
Oneida Business Committee adopted this law on October 9, 2019, and it became effective on 
October 23, 2019.  
 
The Curfew law requires that  people age sixteen (16) and under not be on any public space 
between 10:00pm and 6:00am. The curfew hours are similar to neighboring communities. The 
law provides for several exemptions including; traveling to and from work, educational or 

Table 2. Legislative Operating Committee Meetings in First Quarter 
All LOC meetings are open to the public and are the first and third Wednesday of each month, 9:00am, at 
the Norbert Hill Center, in Business Committee Conference Room. 
Legislative Operating Committee Meetings 
October 2, 2019  Regular LOC meeting   
October 16, 2019  Regular LOC meeting 
November 6, 2019  Regular LOC meeting 
November 20, 2019  Regular LOC meeting  
December 4, 2019  Regular LOC meeting 
December 18, 2019  Regular LOC meeting cancelled 

208 of 213



Legislative Operating Committee FY20 First Quarter Report     February 2020 

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

cultural activities, extracurricular activities, travel to and from movie theatres, etc. Penalties can 
apply to minors, parents, guardians, or legal custodians. Penalties for breaking curfew include; 
family counseling, parenting programs, community service including cultural activities, and 
monetary fines. 
 
LOC Plans for Second Quarter 
In the second quarter the LOC will focus on; 

1. Child Support Amendments 
2. Indian Preference in Contracting Amendments 
3. Citations Law 
4. Vehicle Driver Certification & Fleet Management Amendments 
5. Children’s Burial Fund Amendments  
6. Real Property Emergency Amendments 
7. Curfew Amendments 
8. Domestic Animals Amendments 
9. Oneida Food Service Code Amendments 
10. Tobacco Emergency Amendments 

  
Legislative Reference Office Update  
The LRO will focus on the LOC’s second quarter legislative priorities. In addition, the LRO is 
working on; 
 

 Moving the Nation’s legislative history to a digital and searchable format. 
 Planning community outreach events for the LOC to discuss the community’s 

ideas regarding the development of a Wellness Court. 
 Preparing for the 2020 General Election and subsequent transition. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

209 of 213



Legislative Operating Committee FY20 First Quarter Report     February 2020 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Completed Legislation in 2017‐2020 Term 
Chart 1. Illustrates what legislation has been completed since August 2017 and it indicates which General 
Tribal Council’s priorities each piece of legislation is tied to.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Housing Government 
Admin.

BPM

Chart 1. Completed Legislation and GTC Priorities 
Most of the adopted legislation completed so far in this term  
have addressed Government Administration, Human Services, and Housing priorities. 

Government Administration (25) 
 Membership Ordinance Rule #1 
 Membership Ordinance Rule #2 
 Rules of Civil Procedures Amendments and  

Rescission 
 Whistleblower Protection 
 Legal Resource Center Rule #1 
 Election Amendments 
 Boards, Committees, and Commissions Law 
 15 sets of boards, committees, and  

commissions bylaws amendments 
 Family Court Rule #1 
 Judiciary Law Rule #1 
 Citations law 

Human Services (8) 
 Legal Resource Center Law 
 Community Support Fund Rule Handbook 
 Legal Resource Center Rule #1 
 Employee Protection Amendments and Rescission 
 Military Service Employee Protection Amendments and 

Rescission 
 Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments and 

Rescission 
 Children’s Code 
 Child Support Amendments 

Housing (6) 
 Leasing Law 
 Leasing Law Rule #1 
 Leasing Law Rule #2 
 Leasing Law Rule #3 
 Landlord Tenant Rule #1 
 Landlord‐Tenant Amendments 

Public Safety (3) 
 Domestic Animals Law Rule #1 
 Domestic Animals Amendments 
 Curfew Law 

Building & Property Maintenance (1) 
 Oneida Nation Seal & Flag Rule #1‐Placement, 

Maintainance, and Authorized Use 
 

 

210 of 213



Legislative Operating Committee FY20 First Quarter Report     February 2020 

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Legislative Operating Committee Contact Information 
Feel free to contact the LOC with questions or comments; 
 David Jordan, LOC Chairperson, 

djordan1@oneidanation.org 
 Kirby Metoxen, LOC Vice Chairperson, 

kmetox@oneidanation.org 
 Jennifer Webster, LOC member, 

jwebste1@oneidanation.org 
 Daniel King‐Guzman, LOC Member, dguzman@oneidanation.org 
 Ernest Stevens III, LOC Member, esteven4@oneidanation.org  
 LOC@oneidanation.org 

 
Legislative Operating Committee meetings are the first and third Wednesday of each month, at 
9:00am, in the Norbert Hill Center. Meeting agendas and other materials are available at 
https://oneida‐nsn.gov/government/business‐committee/standing‐committees/legislative‐
operating‐committee/ 
 
 
 
Yaw^ko 
 

211 of 213



1 2/ 13/ 2020 9:49 AMLOC

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29

February 2020

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

March 2020

February 2020

Jan 26 27 28 29 30 31 Feb 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9:00am LOC 

(BC_Conf_Roo

m) - LOC

9:00am LOC 

Meeting 

(BC_Conf_Roo

m) - LOC

12:15pm PUBLIC 

MEETING: 

Oneida Food 

Service Code 

Amendments 

(BC_Conf_Roo

m) - Kristen M.

Hooker

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

10:00am LOC 

Work Session 

(BC_Exec_Conf

_Room) - 

12:15pm PUBLIC 

MEETING: 

Children's 

Burial Fund 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

9:00am LOC 

(BC_Conf_Roo

m) - Jennifer 

A. Falck

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

9:00am LOC 

Work Session  

(BC_Exec_Conf

_Room) - 

Clorissa N. 

Santiago

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

212 of 213



2 2/ 13/ 2020 9:49 AMLOC

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

March 2020

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

April 2020

M arch 2020

Mar 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

9:00am LOC 

(BC_Conf_Roo

m) - LOC

9:00am LOC 

Meeting 

(BC_Conf_Roo

m) - LOC

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

10:00am LOC 

Work Session 

(BC_Exec_Conf

_Room) - 

Clorissa N. 

Santiago

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

LOC CANCELLED

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

9:00am LOC 

Work Session 

(BC_Exec_Conf

_Room) - 

Clorissa N. 

Santiago

29 30 31 Apr 1 2 3 4

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

9:00am LOC                         
Meeting
(BC_Exec_Conf
_Room) - LOC

213 of 213


	I. Agenda
	II. Minutes
	III.1 Indian Preference in Contracting Law Amendments CS
	III.1.1 PM Comment Memo with LOC Consideration
	502.1.  Purpose and Policy
	502.3.  Definitions
	502.6.  Application of Indian Preference to Contracts
	502.3.  Definitions
	502.5.  Certification of Entities
	502.3.  Definitions
	502.3.  Definitions
	502.5.  Certification of Entities
	502.5-5.  Notification Requirements.  A certified entity shall report the following to the Indian Preference Office within ten (10) business days of such an occurrence:
	(a)  changes in the ownership or control status of the entity;
	(b)  suspension, revocation, lapse or loss of any licensing, certification, insurance, bonding, or credit lines; and/or
	(c)  any other changes that could:
	(1)  affect an entity’s eligibility for certification;
	(2)  affect the financial liability of any entity, contracting party or the Nation; and/or
	(3)  alter the status of the qualifications of the entity.
	502.5.  Certification of Entities
	502.3.  Definitions
	502.6.  Application of Indian Preference to Contracts
	502.6.  Application of Indian Preference to Contracts
	502.7.  Compliance Agreements
	502.8.  Skills Bank and Qualified Trades Workers
	502.8.  Skills Bank and Qualified Trades Workers

	III.1.2 Draft 2 (Redline to PM Draft)
	III.1.3 Draft 2 (Clean)
	III.1.4 Analysis
	III.1.5 FIS Request Memo

	III.2 Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management Amendments CS
	III.2.1 PM Comment Memo
	210.4. Driver Certification
	210.5. Responsibilities of a Certified Driver
	210.5. Responsibilities of a Certified Driver
	210.8. Suspension of Driver Certification and Other Enforcement
	210.4. Driver Certification
	210.5. Responsibilities of a Certified Driver
	210.4. Driver Certification
	210.4. Driver Certification
	210.4. Driver Certification
	210.8. Suspension of Driver Certification and Other Enforcement
	210.4. Driver Certification
	210.4. Driver Certification
	210.8. Suspension of Driver Certification and Other Enforcement
	210.8. Suspension of Driver Certification and Other Enforcement
	210.6. Fleet Vehicles
	210.7. Motor Vehicle Crashes or Damage to Vehicles

	III.2.2 PM Draft (Redline to Current)
	III.2.3 PM Draft (Clean)
	III.2.4 PM Transcript
	III.2.5 Written Comments
	2020 01 23 Barb Kolitsch Written Comments - Vehicle Driver and Fleet Management Law Public Comments
	Candice Skenandore - 2020 01 29 Self Governance Public Meeting Comments-Vehicle Driver


	III.3 Curfew Amendments CS
	III.3.1 Draft (Redline to Current)
	III.3.2 Draft (Clean)
	III.3.3 Analysis

	III.4 Domestic Animals Amendments CS
	III.4.1 Draft (Redline to Current)
	III.4.2 Draft (Clean)
	III.4.3 Analysis

	III.5 Tobacco Emergency Amendments CS
	III.5.1 Adoption Memo
	III.5.2 Resolution
	III.5.3 SOE
	III.5.4 Analysis
	III.5.5 Draft  (redline)
	III.5.6  Draft (Clean)

	III.6 Petition N. Dallas - Funeral Home CS
	III.6.1 SOE

	IV.1 Petition M. Debraska - Increase GTC Meeting Stipend ARF
	IV.2 Boards, Committees, and Commissions Emergency Amendments
	VI.1 FY2020 First Quarter LOC Report
	x. Calendar

